MEMSIC Inc Form DEFM14A August 06, 2013

Use these links to rapidly review the document <u>TABLE OF CONTENTS</u> <u>TABLE OF CONTENTS</u> <u>TABLE OF CONTENTS2</u> <u>Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data</u> <u>PART IV</u> MEMSIC, Inc. FORM 10-O, March 31, 2013 TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by the Registrant ý

Filed by a Party other than the Registrant o

Check the appropriate box:

- o Preliminary Proxy Statement
- o Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- ý Definitive Proxy Statement
- o Definitive Additional Materials
- o Soliciting Material under §240.14a-12

MEMSIC, INC.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- o No fee required.
- ý Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.
 - (1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:

MEMSIC, Inc. common stock, par value \$0.00001 per share (the "Common Stock"); restricted stock units with respect to the Common Stock;

restricted stock awards with respect to the Common Stock; and options to purchase shares of Common Stock

(2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:*

(a) 18,884,885 shares of Common Stock proposed to be acquired in the merger for the per-share merger consideration of \$4.225, (b) 551,667 restricted stock units with respect to the Common Stock outstanding, entitled to receive the per share merger consideration of \$4.225, (c) 52,500 restricted stock awards with respect to the Common Stock outstanding, entitled to receive the per share merger consideration of \$4.225, and (d) 1,507,475 shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to outstanding stock options, with exercise prices below the per share merger consideration of \$4.225.

(3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):

The proposed maximum aggregate value of the transaction, for purposes only of calculating the filing fee, is \$84,497,176, which is the sum of (a) the product of (i) the 18,884,885 shares of Common Stock that are proposed to be converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, multiplied by (ii) the merger consideration of \$4.225 per share of Common Stock, plus (b) the product of (i) the 551,667 restricted stock units, multiplied by (ii) the merger consideration of \$4.225 per share of Common Stock, plus (c) the product of (i) the 52,500 restricted stock awards, multiplied by (ii) the merger consideration of \$4.225 per share of Common Stock, plus (d) the product of (i) the 1,507,475 shares of Common Stock underlying options to purchase such shares at a per-share exercise price of less than \$4.225, multiplied by (ii) the amount by which the per-share merger consideration exceeds the \$2.648 per share weighted average exercise price of such options. The filing fee equals the proposed maximum aggregate value of the transaction multiplied by 0.0001364.

(4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

\$84,497,176

(5) Total fee paid:

\$11,525.41

- ý Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.
- o Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
 - (1) Amount Previously Paid:
 - (2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
 - (3) Filing Party:
 - (4) Date Filed:

Pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 22, 2013, by and among MEMSIC, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as the "Company"), MZ Investment Holdings Limited ("Parent") and MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited, a Delaware corporation wholly owned by Parent ("Merger Sub"), Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the "merger"), with the Company surviving the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent. At the effective time of the merger, the shares of Common Stock held by the Company as treasury stock, directly or indirectly by Parent or Merger Sub (including any Common Stock contributed to Parent prior to the effective time of the merger pursuant to the terms of a contribution agreement among Parent and certain stockholders), or by any wholly owned Company subsidiary (collectively, the "Cancelled Shares") will be cancelled and retired, and no consideration shall be delivered with respect thereto. The aggregate number of securities to which the transaction applies excludes the anticipated number of Cancelled Shares.

MEMSIC, INC. One Tech Drive Suite 325 Andover, Massachusetts 01810 Telephone: (978) 738-0900

August 6, 2013

To the Stockholders of MEMSIC, Inc.:

You are cordially invited to attend a special meeting of the stockholders of MEMSIC, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("MEMSIC," the "Company," "we," "our" or "us") which we will hold at the offices of Foley Hoag LLP located at Seaport West, 155 Seaport Boulevard, Boston, Massachusetts 02210 on September 16, 2013, at 10:00 a.m., local time.

At the special meeting, holders of our common stock, par value \$0.00001 per share (the "Common Stock") will be asked to consider and vote on a proposal to adopt an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 22, 2013 (as it may be amended from time to time, the "Merger Agreement"), by and among MEMSIC, MZ Investment Holdings Limited, an exempted company with limited liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands ("Parent"), and MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited, a Delaware corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of Parent ("Merger Sub"). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will be merged with and into the Company (the "merger"), and each share of Common Stock outstanding at the effective time of the merger (other than certain excluded shares and shares for which appraisal rights have been exercised, as described below) will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive \$4.225 per share in cash (the "merger consideration"), without interest, and less any applicable withholding taxes. Only stockholders who hold their shares of Common Stock at the close of business on August 6, 2013 will be entitled to vote at the special meeting.

Parent and Merger Sub are affiliates of IDG-Accel China Capital II L.P. ("Sponsor"). The Sponsor has agreed to purchase (or cause to be purchased) up to \$86.3 million of Parent's equity shares, which Parent has agreed to use to fund the acquisition of MEMSIC and pay other expenses incurred pursuant to the Merger Agreement. Prior to the consummation of the merger, certain investment funds affiliated with Sponsor (the "IDG Funds") and sixteen executive officers and employees of MEMSIC (together with the IDG Funds, the "Rollover Holders") will contribute to Parent a combination of cash and Common Stock, in exchange for equity shares of Parent. If the merger is completed, the following shares of Common Stock will not be entitled to the merger consideration, and will be cancelled and retired with no merger consideration paid with respect thereto: (i) shares held, whether directly or indirectly, by Merger Sub or Parent (including any Common Stock held by the Rollover Holders and contributed to Parent prior to the merger); (ii) shares held by the Company as treasury stock or otherwise held, whether directly or indirectly or indirectly, by any Company subsidiary; and (iii) shares held by any of the Company's stockholders who are entitled to and properly perfect their appraisal rights under Delaware law. Additional information regarding the exercise of appraisal rights is included in the enclosed proxy statement.

On November 10, 2012, the Company received an unsolicited acquisition proposal from IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P. ("IDG-Accel Growth II"), which is one of the IDG Funds, and a stockholder of MEMSIC. In the proposal, IDG-Accel Growth II, on behalf of itself and certain of its affiliated funds and their nominee entities, proposed to acquire all of the Common Stock that those entities did not already own. The Company's board of directors (the "Board") formed a committee consisting solely of its three independent and disinterested directors, Roger W. Blethen, Dr. Lawrence A. Kaufman and Michael Tung (the "Special Committee") to evaluate the proposal. The Special Committee considered this proposal and other alternatives available to the Company. In their evaluation of the merger and the Merger Agreement, the Special Committee and the Board considered, among other factors, the opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC, the financial advisor to the Special Committee, that, as of April 22, 2013, and based on and subject to the assumptions, limitations and qualifications set forth in the opinion, the per share merger consideration to be received by holders of our Common Stock (other than the Rollover

Table of Contents

Holders) entitled to receive the per share merger consideration is fair, from a financial point of view, to those stockholders. The RBC Capital Markets fairness opinion is attached as Annex B to the enclosed proxy statement.

Based upon the unanimous recommendation of the Special Committee, the Board, with Dr. Yang Zhao (our President and Chief Executive Officer, and also a Rollover Holder) and Dr. Quan Zhou (a director of the general partner of IDG-Accel Growth II) abstaining due to their respective interests in the merger, unanimously: (i) determined that the merger, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, is fair to and in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders; (ii) approved and declared advisable the merger, the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement; and (iii) resolved to recommend that the Company's stockholders adopt the Merger Agreement. Accordingly, the Board (with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining) unanimously recommends that Company stockholders vote for "FOR" the proposal to adopt the Merger Agreement.

On April 22, 2013, MEMSIC, Parent, the IDG Funds and certain other Rollover Holders entered into a voting agreement whereby the IDG Funds and such Rollover Holders committed to vote the shares of Common Stock over which they exercise voting control in favor of the approval of the merger and the adoption of the Merger Agreement. The IDG Funds and the other Rollover Holders party to the voting agreement beneficially own shares of Common Stock representing approximately 22.6% of the total voting power of the Common Stock. *Under Delaware law and the Merger Agreement, consummation of the merger is conditioned upon approval of the proposal to adopt the Merger Agreement by the affirmative vote of stockholders representing at least a majority of the issued and outstanding Common Stock. Thus, your vote is important regardless of the number of shares you own. Your failure to vote will have the same effect as a vote against the Merger Agreement. At the special meeting you also will be asked to consider and vote on: (i) a proposal to approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, specified compensation that may become payable to the named executive officers of the Company in connection with the merger; and (ii) a proposal to approve the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary or appropriate, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to approve the proposal to adopt the Merger Agreement. <i>The Board (with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining) unanimously recommends that Company stockholders vote "FOR" each of these proposals.*

The enclosed proxy statement describes the Merger Agreement, the merger and related agreements and provides specific information concerning the special meeting. We urge you to read the entire proxy statement carefully, including the appendices, as well as the related Schedule 13E-3 Transaction Statement, as amended, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including its exhibits. These documents set forth the details of the Merger Agreement and other important information related to the merger.

While stockholders may exercise their right to vote their shares in person, we recognize that many stockholders may not be able to, or do not desire to, attend the special meeting. Accordingly, we have enclosed a proxy card that will enable your shares to be voted on the matters to be considered at the special meeting, even if you are unable to attend. If you desire your shares to be voted in accordance with the Board's recommendation, you need only sign, date and return the proxy card in the enclosed postage-paid envelope. Otherwise, please mark the proxy card to indicate your voting instructions; date and sign the proxy card; and return it in the enclosed postage-paid envelope.

Submitting a proxy card will not prevent you from voting your shares in person if you subsequently choose to attend the special meeting. Even if you plan to attend the special meeting in person, we request that you complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card and thus ensure that your shares will be represented at the special meeting if you are unable to attend. If you have any questions

Table of Contents

or require assistance in voting your shares, please call AST Phoenix Advisors, our proxy solicitor for the special meeting, toll-free at (877) 478-5038.

Sincerely,

Roger W. Blethen Chairman of the Special Committee

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities regulatory agency has approved or disapproved the merger, passed upon the merits or fairness of the merger or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of the disclosure in this document. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This proxy statement is dated August 6, 2013 and is first being mailed to stockholders on or about August 9, 2013.

MEMSIC, INC.

One Tech Drive Suite 325 Andover, Massachusetts 01810 Telephone: (978) 738-0900

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To the Stockholders of MEMSIC, Inc.:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a special meeting of the stockholders of MEMSIC, Inc. (the "Company") will be held at the offices of Foley Hoag LLP located at Seaport West, 155 Seaport Boulevard, Boston, Massachusetts 02210 on September 16, 2013, at 10:00 a.m., local time, for the following purposes:

1.

to consider and vote on a proposal to adopt the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 22, 2013 (as it may be amended from time to time, the "Merger Agreement"), by and among the Company, MZ Investment Holdings Limited, an exempted company with limited liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands ("Parent"), and MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited, a Delaware corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of Parent;

2.

to approve, on an advisory (non-binding) basis, certain compensation that may become payable to the named executive officers of the Company in connection with the merger;

3.

to approve the adjournment of the special meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies if there are insufficient votes at the time of the special meeting to adopt the Merger Agreement; and

4.

to act upon such other business as may properly come before the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

The holders of record of our common stock, par value \$0.00001 per share ("Common Stock"), at the close of business on August 6, 2013, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the special meeting or at any adjournment thereof. All stockholders of record are cordially invited to attend the special meeting in person.

The merger and the Merger Agreement are described in the accompanying proxy statement, which you should read in its entirety before voting. A copy of the Merger Agreement is attached as Annex A to the proxy statement. Company stockholders may be entitled to assert appraisal rights under Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. See the enclosed proxy statement, which includes as Annex C a copy of Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, for more information.

Your vote is important, regardless of the number of shares of Common Stock you own. The adoption of the Merger Agreement by the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock is a condition to the consummation of the merger. The advisory (non-binding) proposal to approve specified compensation that may become payable to the named executive officers of the Company in connection with the merger, and the proposal to adjourn the special meeting to solicit additional proxies, if necessary, require the affirmative vote of holders of a majority of the voting power present and entitled to vote thereon. Even if you plan to attend the special meeting in person, we request that you complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy and thus ensure that your shares will be represented at the special meeting if you are unable to attend.

If you sign, date and return your proxy card without indicating how you wish to vote, your proxy will be voted in favor of the adoption of the Merger Agreement, in favor of the advisory (non-binding) proposal to approve certain compensation that may become payable to the named executive officers of the Company in connection with the merger, and in favor of the proposal to adjourn the special meeting to solicit additional proxies, if necessary or appropriate. Your failure to vote or submit your proxy will have the same effect as a vote against the adoption of the Merger Agreement, and will not

Table of Contents

be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the special meeting (in order for any matter to be considered at the special meeting, a quorum, consisting of the holders of a majority of the voting power of the shares of the Common Stock outstanding and entitled to vote on such matters as of the record date, must be present in person or by proxy). Failure to vote or submit your proxy will not affect the advisory vote to approve certain compensation that may become payable to the named executive officers of the Company in connection with the merger or the vote regarding the adjournment of the special meeting to solicit additional proxies, if necessary or appropriate.

Your proxy may be revoked at any time before the vote at the special meeting by following the procedures outlined in the accompanying proxy statement. If you are a stockholder of record, attend the special meeting and wish to vote in person, you may revoke your proxy by attending the meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Robert L. Birnbaum *Secretary*

Dated August 6, 2013 Andover, Massachusetts

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SUMMARY TERM SHEET The Parties to the Merger Agreement	<u>1</u>
The Purpose of the Special Meeting	<u>1</u>
	<u>2</u>
The Special Meeting	<u>2</u>
Record Date and Quorum	2
Required Vote for the Merger	<u>3</u>
Conditions to the Merger	<u>-</u>
When the Merger Will Become Effective	
Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger	<u>4</u>
Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration	4
Purposes and Reasons for the Merger	5
Certain Effects of the Merger	<u>5</u>
Treatment of Company Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units	<u>6</u>
Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger	<u>6</u>
Financing	7
Limited Guaranty	<u>8</u>
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger	2
Material People's Republic of China Income Tax Consequences of the Merger	2
Anticipated Accounting Treatment of the Merger	<u>9</u>
Regulatory Approvals	<u>9</u>
Litigation	<u>10</u>
Appraisal Rights	<u>10</u>
	<u>11</u>
<u>No Solicitation</u>	<u>11</u>
Termination	<u>13</u>
Termination Fees	<u>14</u>
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL MEETING AND THE MERGER	<u>15</u>
SPECIAL FACTORS	<u>10</u> 21
Background of the Merger	<u>21</u>

	<u>21</u>
Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger	
	<u>35</u>
Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration	
	<u>45</u>
Position of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders as to Fairness of the Merger	
	51
i	_

Table of Contents

Purposes and Reasons for the Merger Certain Effects of the Merger	<u>54</u>
How We May be Affected if the Merger is not Completed	<u>55</u>
Prospective Financial Information	<u>58</u>
Financing	<u>59</u>
Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger	<u>68</u>
Advisory Vote on Specified Compensation	<u>70</u>
Directors and Officers of the Surviving Corporation	<u>74</u>
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger	<u>75</u>
Material PRC Income Tax Consequences of the Merger	<u>75</u>
Regulatory Approvals	<u>79</u>
Fees and Expenses	<u>80</u>
Anticipated Accounting Treatment of the Merger	<u>80</u>
Litigation	<u>81</u>
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION	<u>81</u>
THE PARTIES TO THE MERGER	<u>83</u>
MEMSIC, Inc.	<u>84</u>
MZ Investment Holdings Limited and MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited	<u>84</u>
THE SPECIAL MEETING	<u>84</u>
Date, Time and Place	<u>85</u>
Purpose of the Special Meeting	<u>85</u>
Recommendation of the Board	<u>85</u>
Record Date and Quorum	<u>86</u>
Required Vote	<u>86</u>
Voting; Proxies; Revocation	<u>86</u>
Adjournments and Postponements	<u>87</u>
Solicitation of Proxies	<u>88</u>
Questions and Additional Information	<u>88</u>
Multiple Stockholders Sharing the Same Address	<u>89</u>
THE MERGER AGREEMENT	<u>89</u>
Explanatory Note Regarding the Merger Agreement	<u>89</u>

Structure of the Moreon		<u>89</u>
Structure of the Merger		<u>90</u>
When the Merger Becomes Effective		<u>90</u>
Effect of the Merger on the Common Stock		
	ii	<u>90</u>

Treatment of Company Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units	<u>91</u>
Payment of the Merger Consideration	<u>91</u>
Representations and Warranties	<u>93</u>
Conduct of Business Pending the Merger	<u>96</u>
Other Covenants and Agreements	<u>99</u>
Conditions to the Merger	108
Termination	<u>109</u>
Termination Fees	
Expenses	<u>111</u>
Specific Performance	<u>112</u>
AGREEMENTS INVOLVING COMMON STOCK	<u>112</u>
Voting Agreement	<u>112</u>
Limited Guaranty	<u>112</u>
Contribution Agreement	<u>113</u>
PROVISIONS FOR UNAFFILIATED STOCKHOLDERS	<u>113</u>
IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING MEMSIC	<u>113</u>
Company Background	<u>114</u>
	<u>114</u>
Directors and Executive Officers	<u>114</u>
Prior Public Offerings	<u>117</u>
Historical Selected Financial Information	<u>117</u>
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges	<u>117</u>
Book Value Per Share	117
Market Price and Dividend Information	<u></u> <u>117</u>
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management	<u>117</u> <u>118</u>
Transactions in Common Stock	
APPRAISAL RIGHTS	<u>121</u>
The Appraisal Process	<u>122</u>
Filing Written Demand; Withdrawal	<u>123</u>
Voting	<u>123</u>
Stockholders Entitled to Appraisal	<u>124</u>
Notice by the Surviving Corporation	<u>124</u>

Filing a Petition for Appraisal		<u>125</u>
		<u>125</u>
Determination of Fair Value		<u>125</u>
MULTIPLE STOCKHOLDERS SHARING ONE ADDRESS		127
	iii	

<u>SUBMISSION OF STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS</u> IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING PARENT, MERGER SUB, IDG, AND THE INDIVIDUAL ROLLOVER	<u>127</u>
HOLDERS	<u>128</u>
Parent, Merger Sub and the IDG Filing Persons	<u>128</u>
The Individual Rollover Holders	<u>128</u>
Certain Transactions Between the Parties	<u>130</u>
WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	<u>130</u>
Annex A Agreement and Plan of Merger	<u>A-1</u>
Annex B Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC	<u>B-1</u>
Annex C Section 262 of the Delaware General Corporation Law	<u>C-1</u>
Annex D MEMSIC's Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2012	
Annex E MEMSIC's Form 10-Q for the Fiscal Quarter ended March 31, 2013	<u>D-1</u>
iv	<u>E-1</u>

SUMMARY TERM SHEET

You are being asked to consider and vote upon a proposal to approve an Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 22, 2013, by and among MEMSIC, Inc., MZ Investment Holdings Limited ("Parent") and MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited, a Delaware corporation wholly owned by Parent ("Merger Sub"). This agreement, as amended from time to time, is referred to in this proxy statement as the "Merger Agreement," and is attached to this proxy statement as Annex A. The Merger Agreement provides for the merger of Merger Sub with and into MEMSIC, with MEMSIC as the surviving corporation (the "merger"). Immediately following the merger, Parent will own all of the outstanding capital stock of MEMSIC. Our board of directors (the "Board") has determined that the Merger Agreement is advisable and in the best interests of our company and our stockholders, unanimously approved the merger in accordance with the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "DGCL"), and unanimously recommended that our stockholders vote in favor of adoption of the Merger Agreement. This Summary Term Sheet briefly describes the most material terms of the proposed merger, the Merger Agreement and the other agreements entered into in connection with the merger, and may not contain all of the information that is important to you. We encourage you to read carefully this entire proxy statement, including its annexes, which constitute part of this proxy statement. The items in this Summary Term Sheet include page references directing you to a more complete description of that topic in this proxy statement.

The Parties to the Merger Agreement (Page 84)

MEMSIC, Inc.

MEMSIC, Inc., which we refer to as "our company," "we," "our," "us," or, as the surviving corporation in the merger, the "Surviving Corporation," is a Delaware corporation incorporated in February 1999. We are headquartered in Andover, Massachusetts, and provide advanced semiconductor sensor and integrated sensing system solutions based on micro electromechanical systems, or "MEMS," technology and mixed signal circuit design. Our products include accelerometers, magnetic sensors and electronic compass solutions, integrated high performance inertial measurement units for industrial and avionics applications, MEMS flow sensing systems, and wireless sensing network systems. See "*Important Information Regarding MEMSIC Company Background*" beginning on page 114 of this proxy statement. See also "*The Parties to the Merger MEMSIC, Inc.*" on page 84 of this proxy statement.

Additional information about us can be found in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 and in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2013, attached as Annexes D and E, respectively, each of which is included with these proxy materials and constitutes part of this proxy statement. See "*Where You Can Find Additional Information*" on page 130 of this proxy statement.

MZ Investment Holdings Limited

MZ Investment Holdings Limited, referred to as "Parent," is a newly formed exempted company with limited liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Parent is an affiliate of IDG-Accel China Capital II L.P., a limited partnership organized under the laws of the Cayman Islands and referred to as "Sponsor," and of the IDG Funds (as such term is defined below; for additional information, see "*Important Information Regarding Parent, Merger Sub, IDG, and the Individual Rollover Holders Parent, Merger Sub and the IDG Filing Persons*"). Parent has not engaged in any business other than in connection with the merger and related transactions. See "*The Parties to the Merger MZ Investment Holdings Limited and MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited*" on page 84 of this proxy statement.

1

MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited

MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited, referred to as "Merger Sub," is a newly formed Delaware corporation. Merger Sub is a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent and was formed solely for the purpose of engaging in the merger and related transactions. Merger Sub has not engaged in any business other than in connection with the merger and related transactions. See *"The Parties to the Merger MZ Investment Holdings Limited and MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited"* on page 84 of this proxy statement.

The Purpose of the Special Meeting (Page 85)

As holders of our common stock, par value \$0.00001 per share, which we refer to as the "Common Stock," you will be asked to consider and vote upon the proposal to adopt the Merger Agreement (a copy of which is attached to this proxy statement as Annex A), which we refer to as the "Merger Proposal." The Merger Agreement provides that, at the closing, Merger Sub will be merged with and into our company, and each outstanding share of Common Stock (other than shares held by: (i) our company as treasury stock; (ii) Parent or Merger Sub, whether directly or indirectly; (iii) any of our subsidiaries; or (iv) stockholders who have properly exercised and perfected and not withdrawn or lost their appraisal rights under Delaware law), will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive \$4.225 per share in cash (the "merger consideration"), without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes.

Upon the effectiveness of the merger, we will become a privately held company, wholly owned by Parent. Parent will be owned by entities and individuals which will consist of:

the Sponsor, which has agreed to provide up to \$86.3 million in cash consideration in exchange for equity shares of Parent, to aid Parent's financing of the merger and related expenses;

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P., IDG-Accel China Investors II L.P., IDG Technology Venture Investments, L.P., IDG Technology Venture Investments, LLC, and IDG Technology Venture Investment III, L.P. (collectively, the "IDG Funds," and together with Sponsor, "IDG"), which beneficially own 4,725,223 shares of Common Stock, and intend to roll over these shares in exchange for equity shares of Parent; and

sixteen of our executive officers and employees, including, among others, Dr. Yang Zhao, our President and Chief Executive Officer, Dr. Paul Zavracky, our President of North American and European Operations, and Ms. Patricia Niu, our Chief Financial Officer (such officers and employees, together with IDG, the "Rollover Holders"), who collectively have beneficial ownership of 683,550 shares of Common Stock, and who will acquire equity shares of Parent in exchange for cash consideration and/or contributions of Common Stock beneficially owned by them.

The Special Meeting (Page 85)

The special meeting will be held at the offices of Foley Hoag LLP located at Seaport West, 155 Seaport Boulevard, Boston, Massachusetts 02210 on September 16, 2013, at 10:00 a.m., local time.

Record Date and Quorum (Page 86)

The holders of record of the Common Stock as of the close of business on August 6, 2013 (the "record date"), are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the special meeting.

The presence at the special meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the shares of Common Stock outstanding on the record date will constitute a quorum, permitting us to conduct our proposed business at the special meeting.

Table of Contents

Required Vote for the Merger (Page 86)

To adopt the Merger Agreement, under Delaware law and under the Merger Agreement, the holders of a majority of the voting power of our outstanding Common Stock at the close of business on the record date must vote "FOR" the Merger Proposal. A failure to vote your shares of Common Stock or an abstention from voting will have the same effect as a vote against the merger.

On April 22, 2013, we entered into a voting agreement with Parent, the IDG Funds and certain other Rollover Holders (which we refer to as the "Voting Agreement") pursuant to which, and subject to certain exceptions, the IDG Funds and those Rollover Holders party to the Voting Agreement committed to vote the shares of Common Stock over which they exercise voting control in favor of the Merger Proposal, against certain Competing Transactions (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement and described under "*The Merger Agreement Other Covenants and Agreements*"), and against any action, agreement or transaction that could reasonably be expected to materially impede, frustrate, interfere with, delay, postpone, adversely affect or prevent the consummation of the merger or the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. See "*Agreements Involving Common Stock Voting Agreement*" on page 112 of this proxy statement.

As of May 10, 2013, there were 24,296,504 shares of Common Stock outstanding. The IDG Funds own, in the aggregate, 4,725,223 shares of Common Stock, representing approximately 19.4% of our outstanding voting power. As of August 6, 2013, the filing date of this proxy statement, the Rollover Holders party to the Voting Agreement (including the IDG Funds) own, in the aggregate, 5,486,982 shares of Common Stock, representing approximately 22.6% of our outstanding voting power.

Conditions to the Merger (Page 108)

Each party's obligation to complete the merger is subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions:

approval of the Merger Proposal by the affirmative vote of stockholders representing at least a majority of our issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, in accordance with the DGCL;

no governmental authority of competent jurisdiction having enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any statute, law, ordinance, regulation, rule, code, executive order, injunction, judgment, decree or other order (whether in effect, pending, proposed or threatened) that has or would have the effect of making the merger illegal or otherwise prohibiting the merger's consummation (an "injunction") in the United States, the People's Republic of China (the "PRC"), or any other jurisdiction where such an injunction would reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement, and described in this proxy statement in "*The Merger Agreement Representations and Warranties*," beginning on page 93); and

procurement of all relevant regulatory approvals, except where a failure to obtain such approval(s) would not result in a Company Material Adverse Effect or prevent the consummation of the Merger.

Our obligation to complete the merger is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions:

the representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub in the Merger Agreement relating to: (i) their authority relative to the Merger Agreement; (ii) the sufficiency of their financing to pay the aggregate merger consideration and other fees and expenses; (iii) the availability of their financing at the consummation of the merger; and (iv) the net worth and capitalization of the Surviving Corporation, must be true and correct both when made and at the closing date of the merger;

Table of Contents

all remaining representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub in the Merger Agreement must be true and correct both when made and as of the closing date of the merger, except with respect to certain representations and warranties made as of a specified date, and to the extent any failures of these representations and warranties to be true and correct, individually or in the aggregate, would not be reasonably expected to prevent the consummation of the merger or any other transactions set forth in the Merger Agreement;

Parent and Merger Sub must have performed or complied, in all material respects, with all agreements and covenants that they are required to perform or comply with under the Merger Agreement prior to the closing date of the merger; and

Parent must have delivered to us an executed officer's certificate stating that the conditions set forth above have been satisfied.

The respective obligations of Parent and Merger Sub to complete the merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions:

our representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement relating to: (i) the approval of the Merger Agreement by our Board and the Special Committee (as such term is defined below); (ii) our corporate authority relative to the Merger Agreement; and (iii) the inapplicability of any anti-takeover measures to the merger, must be true and correct in all respects both when made and as of the closing date of the merger (except with respect to certain representations and warranties made as of a specified date);

our representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement relating to our capitalization must be true and correct in all material respects both when made and as of the closing date of the merger (except with respect to certain representations and warranties made as of a specified date);

all of our remaining representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement must be true and correct both when made and as of the closing date of the merger, except with respect to certain representations and warranties made as of a specified date, and to the extent any failures of these representations and warranties to be true and correct, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect;

we must have performed or complied, in all material respects, with all agreements and covenants that we are required to perform or comply with under the Merger Agreement prior to the effective time of the merger;

we must have delivered to Parent an executed officer's certificate stating that the conditions set forth above have been satisfied; and

since the date of the Merger Agreement, there must have not occurred and be continuing any Company Material Adverse Effect.

When the Merger Will Become Effective (Page 90)

We anticipate completing the merger in the third quarter of 2013.

Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger (Page 35)

Because two of our Board members, Drs. Yang Zhao and Quan Zhou, have actual or potential conflicts of interest in evaluating the merger due to their status as Rollover Holders or affiliates of Rollover Holders, our Board appointed a special committee consisting solely of the three independent and disinterested directors remaining on our Board: Roger W. Blethen, Dr. Lawrence A. Kaufman and

Table of Contents

Michael Tung (the "Special Committee"). The Special Committee was responsible for evaluating the merger and other strategic alternatives available to us, negotiating with IDG and other potentially interested parties and making recommendations to our Board with respect thereto.

Based upon the unanimous recommendation of the Special Committee, our Board, with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining due to their respective interests in the merger, unanimously: (i) determined that the merger, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, is fair to and in the best interest of our company and our stockholders; (ii) approved and declared advisable the merger, the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement; and (iii) resolved to recommend that our stockholders adopt the Merger Agreement. Accordingly, our Board (with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining) unanimously recommends that our stockholders vote for "FOR" the Merger Proposal. For a description of the reasons considered by the Special Committee and by our Board, see "Special Factors Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger" beginning on page 35 of this proxy statement. For a description of the interests of our directors Drs. Zhao and Zhou in the consummation of the merger, see "Special Factors Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger" beginning on page 70 of this proxy statement.

Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration (Page 45 and Annex B)

The Special Committee retained RBC Capital Markets, LLC, which we refer to as "RBC," to act as its financial advisor in connection with the Merger. The Special Committee selected RBC to act as its financial advisor based on its qualifications, expertise, reputation and knowledge of our business and affairs and its experience with semiconductor companies and the industry in which we operate. RBC has delivered a written opinion to the Special Committee to the effect that, as of April 22, 2013 and based upon and subject to the considerations, assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other matters set forth therein, the merger consideration to be received by our stockholders (other than the Rollover Holders) pursuant to the merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to such stockholders. RBC's opinion was provided to the Special Committee in connection with the Special Committee's and our Board's evaluation of the merger consideration, and did not address any other aspect of the merger or constitute a recommendation to any stockholder as to how such stockholder should vote or act with respect to any matters relating to the merger.

The full text of RBC's written opinion, dated April 22, 2013, is attached to this proxy statement as Annex B, and constitutes part of this proxy statement. The opinion sets forth, among other things, the assumptions made, procedures followed, matters considered and limitations and qualifications of the review undertaken by RBC in rendering its opinion. You should read the opinion carefully in its entirety. In the Special Committee's engagement letter with RBC, we agreed to pay RBC \$400,000 upon rendering its written opinion, whether or not the opinion was favorable. If the merger is successfully completed, RBC will also receive an additional transaction fee of \$1,850,000, against which all of the fee payable for the delivery of RBC's opinion will be credited. For a further discussion of RBC's opinion, our prior relationship with RBC and the terms of RBC's engagement, see "*Special Factors Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration*" beginning on page 45 of this proxy statement.

Purposes and Reasons for the Merger (Page 54)

Our purpose in undertaking the merger is to enable our "unaffiliated security holders," as that term is defined under Rule 13e-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (and which we refer to as "unaffiliated stockholders"), to realize the value of their investment in our Common Stock through their receipt of the merger consideration, which represents a premium of approximately 56% to the closing market price of the Common Stock on April 22, 2013, the last trading day before the public

5

Table of Contents

announcement of the signing of the Merger Agreement, and a premium of approximately 143% to the closing market price of our Common Stock on November 20, 2012, the last trading day before we announced that we had received a non-binding proposal from IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P., one of the IDG Funds, to acquire our company for \$4.00 per share.

Additionally, becoming a private company is expected to allow us to reduce costs related to being a public company and allow our management and certain other employees to eliminate much of the time they devote to complying with our obligations as a public company. As a result, we may be better able to focus our resources as a private company.

For Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders, the purposes of the merger include, but are not limited to, the following:

to allow Parent and the Rollover Holders (to the extent such Rollover Holders contribute cash and/or their Common Stock to Parent) to benefit from our future earnings and growth, if any, after the Common Stock ceases to be publicly traded;

to enable the Rollover Holders to immediately realize in cash the value of a portion of their Common Stock, to the extent such Common Stock is not "rolled over" into equity shares of Parent;

to allow the Rollover Holders to maintain a significant portion of their investment in our Common Stock through their commitments to exchange or roll over their Common Stock into equity shares of Parent; and

to afford the Surviving Corporation greater operating flexibility as a privately held company, allowing management to concentrate on long-term growth and to reduce its focus on the quarter-to-quarter performance often emphasized by the public markets.

Certain Effects of the Merger (Page 55)

If the conditions to the closing of the merger are either satisfied or, to the extent permitted, waived, Merger Sub will merge with and into our company, the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease, and we will continue our corporate existence under Delaware law as the surviving corporation in the merger, with all of our rights, privileges, immunities, powers and franchises continuing unaffected by the merger. Upon completion of the merger, shares of our Common Stock, other than shares that we own or are otherwise owned by Parent (including shares contributed to Parent by the Rollover Holders prior to the closing of the merger), Merger Sub and any stockholders who have properly exercised and perfected and not withdrawn or lost their appraisal rights under Delaware law, will be converted into the right to receive \$4.225 per share, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes. Following the completion of the merger, our Common Stock will no longer be publicly traded, we will no longer file reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), and our stockholders (other than those Rollover Holders that have acquired equity shares of Parent in exchange for cash consideration and/or contributions of Common Stock) will cease to own any of our equity interests.

Treatment of Company Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units (Page 91)

Company Stock Options. Upon the consummation of the merger, each option to purchase our Common Stock that is then outstanding, whether or not vested (which options are referred to as "Company Options"), including those held by the Rollover Holders, will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive cash in an amount equal to: (a) the product of (i) the total number of shares of Common Stock subject to such Company Option immediately prior to the consummation of the merger (without regard to vesting), and (ii) the excess, if any, of \$4.225 over the exercise price per share of Common Stock subject to such Company Option, less (b) any amounts that are required to be

Table of Contents

withheld or deducted under applicable tax provisions. Such amount will be paid as soon as reasonably practicable after the consummation of the merger. No holder of a Company Option that has an exercise price per share of Common Stock that is equal to or greater than the merger consideration will be entitled to any payment with respect to such cancelled Company Option before or after the effective time of the merger.

Company Restricted Stock Awards. Upon the consummation of the merger, each of our restricted stock awards that are granted and outstanding, including those held by the Rollover Holders and our directors, will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, which amount will be paid net of any applicable taxes, as soon as reasonably practicable after the effective time of the merger.

Company Restricted Stock Units. Upon the consummation of the merger, each of our restricted stock units that are granted and outstanding, including those held by the Rollover Holders and our directors, will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, which amount will be paid net of any applicable taxes, as soon as reasonably practicable after the effective time of the merger.

Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger (Page 70)

In considering the recommendation of our Board with respect to the Merger Agreement, you should be aware that some of our directors, executive officers and other employees have interests in the merger that are different from, or in addition to, the interests of our stockholders generally. Because of their interests in the consummation of the merger, Dr. Yang Zhao (our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, and also a Rollover Holder) and Dr. Quan Zhou (a director serving on our Board and an affiliate of IDG) abstained from our Board's unanimous recommendation that our stockholders vote for the Merger Proposal. The Special Committee and our Board were aware of these potential or actual conflicts of interest and considered them along with other matters when they resolved to recommend that our stockholders vote for the Merger Proposal. These interests, which are discussed in detail in the section entitled "*Special Factors Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger*" beginning on page 70 of this proxy statement, include the following:

prior to the merger, two of our directors (Dr. Zhou, acting indirectly through the IDG Funds, and Dr. Zhao, our President and Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of our Board) will contribute to Parent a combination of cash consideration and Common Stock in exchange for equity shares of Parent, and will be among our ultimate beneficial owners following completion of the merger;

prior to the merger, Dr. Zhao, Dr. Paul Zavracky, our President of North American and European Operations and Ms. Patricia Niu, our Chief Financial Officer (collectively, our "executive officers"), ten of our other employees, and three employees of MEMSIC Semiconductor (WUXI) Co., Ltd., our wholly owned Chinese subsidiary (which we refer to as "MEMSIC WUXI"), will contribute to Parent a combination of cash consideration and Common Stock in exchange for equity shares of Parent, and will, along with IDG, be ultimate beneficial owners of the Surviving Corporation following the effective time of the merger;

the Rollover Holders will be able to immediately realize in cash the value of a portion of their Common Stock (to the extent such Common Stock is not "rolled over" into equity shares of Parent) while simultaneously maintaining a significant portion of their investments in our Common Stock through their commitments to exchange or roll over their Common Stock into equity shares of Parent;

our executive officers immediately prior to the effective time of the merger will, from and after the effective time of the merger, be the initial officers of the Surviving Corporation, until their

7

Table of Contents

successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with the Surviving Corporation's certificate of incorporation and bylaws;

like other holders of Company Options, each Rollover Holder and each of our directors holding Company Options at the effective time of the merger (other than IDG, which does not hold any Company Options) will have the right to receive cash in respect of such Company Options, in an amount equal to: (a) the product of (i) the total number of shares of Common Stock subject to such Company Option immediately prior to the consummation of the merger (without regard to vesting), and (ii) the excess, if any, of \$4.225 over the exercise price per share of Common Stock subject to such Company Option, less (b) any amounts that are required to be withheld or deducted under applicable tax provisions.

like other holders of our restricted stock awards and restricted stock units, each Rollover Holder and each of our directors holding such securities at the effective time of the merger (with the exception of IDG, which does not hold any of such securities) will have the right to receive cash in respect of each share or unit in the amount of the merger consideration, without interest and less any amounts that are required to be withheld or deducted under applicable tax provisions;

our directors and executive officers are entitled to continued indemnification and insurance coverage under the Merger Agreement and the organizational documents of the Surviving Corporation; and

in consideration of their service on the Special Committee, the members of the Special Committee are entitled to receive cash fees in the amount of \$2,500 for each meeting of the Special Committee that they attend, and the Chairman of the Special Committee, Roger W. Blethen, is entitled to receive an additional one-time cash fee in the amount of \$7,500. Each of Mr. Tung and Dr. Kaufman has received \$57,500 in respect of these fees, and Mr. Blethen has received \$65,000 in respect of these fees, including his one-time cash fee as Chairman of the Special Committee. An additional \$15,000 is owed to each member of the Special Committee on account of these fees for meetings held during the second calendar quarter of 2013. On April 22, 2013 our Board approved an additional cash payment to each member of the Special Committee in the amount of \$63,375 in consideration of his service on the Special Committee, and such amounts also remain payable. These amounts were paid to our Special Committee members in July, 2013.

Financing (Page 68)

Parent estimates that the total amount of funds required to consummate the merger and related transactions and pay all other related fees, expenses and other amounts payable by Parent or the Surviving Corporation pursuant to the Merger Agreement will be approximately \$89.2 million. Parent expects this amount to be provided from the following sources:

an aggregate cash equity investment in Parent by the Sponsor of up to \$86.3 million (as described in this proxy statement under "*Special Factors Financing Equity Financing*");

the Rollover Holders' acquisition of equity shares of Parent in exchange for cash consideration and/or contributions of Common Stock beneficially owned by these Rollover Holders (as described in this proxy statement under "*Special Factors Financing Rollover Financing*"); and

with respect to the payment of certain transaction-related fees and expenses, from our cash balances and the cash balances of IDG.

The financing described above, when funded in accordance with the related equity commitment letter and contribution agreement, as applicable, will provide the cash proceeds sufficient for the

Table of Contents

consummation of the merger and the payment of all fees, expenses and other amounts payable pursuant to the Merger Agreement.

Limited Guaranty (Page 113)

The Sponsor has agreed to guarantee certain obligations of Parent under the Merger Agreement, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in a limited guaranty, dated as of April 22, 2013, in our favor (which we refer to as the "Limited Guaranty"), in an amount up to \$3.89 million. The obligations guaranteed by the Limited Guaranty includes the payment of the \$3.54 million Parent Termination Fee (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement, and described in this proxy statement under "*The Merger Agreement Termination Fees*," beginning on page 111) and other specified costs and expenses that may become payable by Parent. See "*Agreements Involving Common Stock Limited Guaranty*" beginning on page 113 of this proxy statement.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger (Page 75)

If you are a U.S. Holder (as such term is defined in this proxy statement under "Special Factors Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger," beginning on page 75), the receipt of cash in exchange for shares of our Common Stock pursuant to the merger will generally be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes. You should consult your own tax advisors for a full understanding of the tax consequences of the merger, including the exchange of shares of Common Stock for cash or an exercise of related appraisal rights, in light of your particular circumstances, including the application and effect of any state, local or foreign income and other tax laws. See "Special Factors Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger" beginning on page 75 of this proxy statement for additional information.

Material People's Republic of China Income Tax Consequences of the Merger (Page 79)

We do not believe that we should be considered a "resident enterprise" under the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the "EIT Law") of the PRC, or that any gain recognized on the receipt of cash for the shares of our Common Stock pursuant to the merger by stockholders that are not PRC residents should be considered as income sourced from the PRC and subject to PRC tax. If, however, PRC tax authorities were to determine that we should be considered a resident enterprise or that the receipt of cash for shares of our Common Stock should otherwise be subject to PRC tax, then gain recognized on the receipt of cash for shares of our Common Stock pursuant to the merger or through the exercise of appraisal rights by our stockholders who are not PRC residents could be treated as PRC-sourced income that would be subject to PRC income tax at a rate of 20%, in the case of individuals, or 10%, in the case of corporations (subject to applicable treaty relief). You should consult your own tax advisors for a full understanding of the PRC tax consequences of the merger, including the exchange of Common Stock shares for cash or an exercise of related appraisal rights, in light of your particular circumstances. See "Special Factors Material PRC Income Tax Consequences of the Merger" beginning on page 79 of this proxy statement for additional information.

Anticipated Accounting Treatment of the Merger (Page 81)

As the surviving corporation in the merger, we will account for the merger as a business combination using the purchase method of accounting for financial accounting purposes, whereby the estimated purchase price will be allocated to our assets and liabilities based on their relative fair values following FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 805, Business Combinations.



Regulatory Approvals (Page 80)

In connection with the merger, we will be required to make certain filings with, and comply with certain laws of, various PRC and U.S. federal and state governmental agencies. It is currently expected that no prior regulatory approvals, including under antitrust laws and regulations, will be required in order to complete the merger.

Litigation (Page 81)

On May 14, 2013, a putative class action captioned *Spencer v. Zhao et al.*, C.A. No. 13-1771-BLS, was filed in Massachusetts Superior Court in Suffolk County against us and our directors, as well as David Yang, a former director, and Merger Sub. An amended complaint was filed on June 4, 2013. The amended complaint alleges, among other things, that our directors breached their fiduciary duties of care, loyalty, good faith, candor and independence owed to our stockholders by engaging in an unfair process that resulted in the proposed merger at an inadequate price that is not in the best interests of our stockholders and that our officers and directors allegedly stand to gain unique benefits from the proposed transaction. The amended complaint alleges that that our directors breached their fiduciary duties by agreeing to non-solicitation and other deal protection provisions in the Merger Agreement, and that the preliminary version of this proxy statement that we filed with the SEC on May 21, 2013 fails to provide our stockholders with material information and/or provides them with materially misleading information thereby rendering our stockholders unable to make an informed decision as to how to vote at the special stockholder meeting. See "*Special Factors Litigation*" beginning on page 81 of this proxy statement for additional information regarding this suit.

While we and the other defendants believe that the allegations made in the lawsuit are without merit, we, together with these other defendants, entered into a memorandum of understanding dated as of July 29, 2013 (the "MOU"), with the plaintiff in the lawsuit solely in an effort to minimize the expense and uncertainty of litigation. Pursuant to the MOU, the parties agreed to settle the lawsuit subject to certain conditions and without admitting any liability. The MOU establishes a framework to resolve the allegations against us and the other defendants in connection with the merger and includes an agreement to negotiate and execute a final settlement agreement which would provide for: (i) the conditional certification, for settlement purposes only, of a non-opt-out class pursuant to Rule 23 of the Massachusetts Rule of Civil Procedure consisting of all holders of our Common Stock (excluding defendants in the lawsuit and certain related persons) from and including November 20, 2012 through and including the closing of the merger, together with their predecessors and successors and assigns; and (ii) the release and settlement by our stockholders of all claims against us and the other defendants in connection with the merger. The asserted claims will not be released and settled until approved by the Massachusetts Superior Court. In exchange for such settlement and release and pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the parties agreed, after arm's-length negotiations, that we would supplement this proxy statement with certain of the additional disclosures contained herein, and as specifically identified in the MOU (the "Supplemental Disclosures"). Plaintiff recites in the MOU that he believes that the proxy statement, when supplemented by the Supplemental Disclosures, will permit our stockholders to make a fully informed decision with respect to whether or not to approve the merger.

The settlement is contingent upon plaintiff's completion of confirmatory discovery. Plaintiff has the right to withdraw from the settlement in the event that he determines, following confirmatory discovery, that the settlement is not fair, reasonable, adequate or in the best interests of our stockholders. The settlement is also contingent upon approval by the Massachusetts Superior Court. In addition, in connection with the settlement and as provided in the MOU, the parties contemplate that plaintiff's counsel will seek an award of attorneys' fees and expenses as part of the settlement. The settlement

10

Table of Contents

will not affect the amount of the merger consideration that our stockholders are entitled to receive in the merger.

There can be no assurance that the parties will ultimately enter into a final settlement agreement or that the court would approve the settlement even if the parties were to enter into such final settlement agreement. In such event, the proposed settlement as contemplated by the MOU may be terminated, in which case we will continue to vigorously defend against the allegations made in the lawsuit. Because the settlement might not be approved by the court and the settlement may be terminated, the outcome of this lawsuit is uncertain and cannot be predicted with any certainty. An adverse judgment for monetary damages could have a material adverse effect on our operations and liquidity. A preliminary injunction could delay or jeopardize the completion of the merger, and an adverse judgment granting permanent injunctive relief could indefinitely prevent completion of the merger.

Appraisal Rights (Page 122 and Annex C)

Under Delaware law, holders of our Common Stock who do not vote in favor of the Merger Proposal, who properly demand appraisal of their shares of Common Stock and who otherwise comply with the requirements of Section 262 of the DGCL, which we refer to as "Section 262," will be entitled to seek appraisal for, and obtain payment in cash of the judicially determined fair value of, their shares of Common Stock in lieu of receiving the merger consideration if the merger is completed. This value could be more than, the same as, or less than the merger consideration. Any holder of Common Stock intending to exercise appraisal rights must, among other things, submit a written demand for appraisal to us prior to the vote on the Merger Proposal, must not vote in favor of the Merger Proposal and must otherwise strictly comply with all of the procedures required by Delaware law. The relevant provisions of the DGCL are included as Annex C to this proxy statement. You are encouraged to read these provisions carefully and in their entirety. Moreover, due to the complexity of the procedures for exercising the right to seek appraisal, stockholders who are considering exercising such rights are encouraged to seek the advice of legal counsel. Failure to strictly comply with these provisions will result in loss of the right of appraisal.

No Solicitation (Page 100)

Upon the execution of the Merger Agreement, we agreed to immediately cease and cause to be terminated all existing discussions or negotiations with any parties conducted prior to such time with respect to a Competing Transaction. We further agreed that neither we nor any of our directors, officers, subsidiaries or any of the directors or officers of our subsidiaries will, and that we will direct our agents, advisors and other representatives (including any investment banker, attorney or accountant retained by us or our subsidiaries), not to, in each case, directly or indirectly:

solicit, initiate or knowingly encourage (including by way of furnishing nonpublic information in a manner designed to knowingly encourage), or take any other action to facilitate, any inquiries or the making of any proposal or offer (including a proposal or offer to our stockholders) that constitutes, or would reasonably be expected to lead to, any Competing Transaction;

enter into, maintain or continue discussions or negotiations with, or provide any nonpublic information to, any person or entity (excluding our directors, officers, employees, financial advisors, attorneys, advisors and other representatives) in furtherance of such inquiries or to obtain a proposal or offer for a Competing Transaction;

except as otherwise provided below, agree to, approve, endorse or recommend any Competing Transaction or enter into any letter of intent or contract or commitment contemplating or otherwise relating to any Competing Transaction; or



Table of Contents

authorize or permit any of our officers, directors or subsidiaries, or direct any investment banker, financial advisor, attorney, accountant or other representative retained by or acting directly or indirectly under our direction or the direction of our subsidiaries, to take any of the above actions.

In addition, we may not release any third party whom we have reason to believe is seeking to make or has made a proposal or offer regarding Competing Transaction from, or waive any provision of, any confidentiality or standstill agreement to which it is a party, unless our Board or an applicable committee of our Board determines in good faith that the failure to take such action would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with the fiduciary duties of our Board or such committee.

We agreed to notify Parent as promptly as practicable (and in any event within 48 hours after we have knowledge), orally and in writing, of any proposal or offer, or any inquiry or contact with any person, regarding a Competing Transaction or that would reasonably be expected to lead to a Competing Transaction, specifying:

the material terms and conditions of the proposal or offer (including material amendments or proposed material amendments) and providing, if applicable, copies of any written requests, proposals or offers, including proposed agreements;

the identity of the party making such proposal or offer or the inquiry or contact; and

whether our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) has formed any intention to provide confidential information to such person.

We are obligated to keep Parent informed, on a reasonably current basis (and in any event within 48 hours of the occurrence of any material changes, developments, discussions or negotiations) of the status and terms of any such proposal, offer, inquiry, contact or request and of any material changes in the status and terms of any such proposal, offer, inquiry, contact or request (including the material terms and conditions thereof). We must provide Parent with 48 hours prior notice (or such lesser prior notice as is provided to the members of our Board or members of the Special Committee) of any meeting of our Board or the Special Committee at which our Board or the Special Committee, is reasonably expected to consider any Competing Transaction.

Notwithstanding the restrictions described above, our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) may furnish information to, and enter into discussions with, a person who has made an unsolicited, written, bona fide proposal or offer regarding a Competing Transaction if our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) has:

determined, in its good faith judgment (after consultation with its financial advisor and outside legal counsel), that such proposal or offer constitutes or could be reasonably expected to lead to a Superior Proposal (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement, and described in this proxy statement under "*The Merger Agreement Other Covenants and Agreements*");

determined, in its good faith judgment (after consultation with its outside legal counsel), that, in light of such Superior Proposal or potential Superior Proposal, failure to furnish such information or enter into discussions would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with its fiduciary obligations under applicable laws;

provided written notice to Parent of its intent to furnish information or enter into discussions with such person at least one business day prior to taking any such action; and

obtained from such person an executed confidentiality agreement on terms no less favorable to us in the aggregate than those contained in the confidentiality agreement we have in place with Sponsor.

Table of Contents

We must concurrently make available to Parent any information concerning our company or our subsidiaries that we provide to any third party pursuant to the above provisions and which was not previously provided to Parent.

Notwithstanding the provisions described above, the Merger Agreement does not prohibit our Board from disclosing to our stockholders a position contemplated by Rule 14e-2(a) and Rule 14d-9 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (which we refer to as the "Exchange Act") and nothing in the Merger Agreement prohibits us, our Board or any committee of our Board from issuing a "stop, look and listen" statement or other communication pending disclosure of its position, as contemplated by Rule 14e-2(a) and Rule 14d-9 under the Exchange Act. Additionally, our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) may, at any meeting at which, or in any written consent in which, it adopts resolutions authorizing the termination of the Merger Agreement to pursue a Superior Proposal, adopt further resolutions authorizing, agreeing to, approving, endorsing or recommending to our stockholders any Superior Proposal and any definitive agreement or agreements relating thereto.

Termination (Page 109)

The Merger Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the effective time:

upon our mutual written agreement with Parent, with the approval of each of our respective boards of directors (and in our case, acting upon the recommendation of the Special Committee);

by us or by Parent, if:

there has been an Outside Date Termination (as such term is defined in this proxy statement under "*The Merger Agreement Termination*," beginning on page 109);

any governmental authority of competent jurisdiction has enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any injunction that will have become final and non-appealable, provided that the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this provision will not be available to any party whose failure to fulfill any of its obligations under the Merger Agreement is the primary cause of, or primarily resulted in or materially contributed to the enactment, issuance, promulgation, enforcement or entry of such injunction; or

there has been a Stockholder Vote Termination (as such term is defined in this proxy statement under "*The Merger Agreement Termination*," beginning on page 109);

by us, if:

there has been a Superior Proposal Termination (as such term is defined in this proxy statement under "*The Merger Agreement Termination*," beginning on page 109);

there has been a Parent Breach Termination (as such term is defined in this proxy statement under "*The Merger Agreement Termination*," beginning on page 109); or

there has been a Failure to Close Termination (as such term is defined in this proxy statement under "*The Merger Agreement Termination*," beginning on page 109);

there has been a Company Breach Termination (as such term is defined in this proxy statement under "*The Merger Agreement Termination*," beginning on page 109);

there has been a Change in Recommendation Termination (as such term is defined in this proxy statement under "*The Merger Agreement Termination*," beginning on page 109); or

there has been a Non-Solicitation Termination (as such term is defined in this proxy statement under "*The Merger Agreement Termination*," beginning on page 109).

Termination Fees (Page 111)

We have agreed to pay Parent a termination fee of \$1.77 million, which we refer to as the "Company Termination Fee," less any amounts described under *"The Merger Agreement Expenses"* (beginning on page 112 of this proxy statement), paid or payable by us, if the Merger Agreement is terminated:

by Parent as a Change in Recommendation Termination or a Non-Solicitation Termination;

by us, as a Superior Proposal Termination; or

by Parent as a Company Breach Termination or by either of us or Parent as an Outside Date Termination or a Stockholder Vote Termination, if:

in the case of Stockholder Vote Termination, after the date of the Merger Agreement and prior to the special meeting, a bona fide Competing Transaction is made known to us, or is publicly announced or publicly made known, and has not been withdrawn; or

in the case of an Outside Date Termination or a Company Breach Termination, after the date of the Merger Agreement and before the effectiveness of such termination, a bona fide Competing Transaction is made known to us, or is publicly announced or publicly made known, and has not been withdrawn;

and, in each case, we, or one of our subsidiaries, consummate a Competing Transaction within twelve months after any such termination of the Merger Agreement, whether or not it is the same Competing Transaction (provided that for purposes of determining whether the Company Termination Fee shall be payable, all references to "20%" in the definition of "Competing Transaction" will be deemed to be references to "50%").

Parent is required to pay us the \$3.54 million Parent Termination Fee if we terminate the Merger Agreement as a Parent Breach Termination or a Failure to Close Termination.

In the event that we fail to pay the Company Termination Fee, or Parent fails to pay the Parent Termination Fee, when due and in accordance with the requirements of the Merger Agreement, either party, as the case may be, will be required to reimburse the other party for all costs and expenses reasonably incurred by the other party in connection with the collection of that fee, together with interest on such unpaid fee, commencing on the date that the Company Termination Fee or Parent Termination Fee became due, at a rate equal to the rate of interest publicly announced by Bank of America Corporation, from time to time, in The City of New York, as such bank's prime rate plus 1.00%. Such collection expenses will not otherwise diminish in any way the payment obligations under the Merger Agreement. Any such cost, expense or interest will be payable by us or by Parent only in the event the other party has obtained a final, non-appealable judgment for the failure to pay the relevant termination fee.

14

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE SPECIAL MEETING AND THE MERGER

The following questions and answers address briefly some questions you may have regarding the special meeting, the Merger Agreement and the merger. These questions and answers may not address all questions that may be important to you as one of our stockholders. Please refer to the more detailed information contained elsewhere in this proxy statement and the annexes to this proxy statement.

Q: Why am I receiving this proxy statement?

A:

On April 22, 2013, we entered into the Merger Agreement, providing for our merger with Merger Sub, where we will survive the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent. Parent and Merger Sub are affiliates of Sponsor. You are receiving this proxy statement in connection with the solicitation of proxies by our Board in favor of the Merger Proposal and the other matters to be voted on at the special meeting.

Q: What is the proposed transaction?

A:

The proposed transaction is our merger with Merger Sub pursuant to the Merger Agreement. Following the effective time of the merger, we will be privately held by Parent.

Q: What will I receive in the merger?

A:

If the merger is completed, you will be entitled to receive \$4.225 in cash, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes, for each share of Common Stock that you own, unless: (i) you are a Rollover Holder contributing some or all of the Common Stock you beneficially own in exchange for equity shares of Parent (in which case you will receive the merger consideration, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes, solely with respect to shares of Common Stock you sell in the merger); or (ii) you properly exercise and perfect, and do not withdraw or lose, appraisal rights under Section 262. For example, if you own 100 shares of Common Stock, are not a Rollover Holder, and do not exercise your appraisal rights, you will be entitled to receive \$422.50 in cash in exchange for your shares of Common Stock, less any applicable withholding taxes. You will not be entitled to receive shares in the Surviving Corporation.

Q: Am I entitled to exercise appraisal rights instead of receiving the merger consideration for my shares of Common Stock?

A:

Stockholders who do not vote in favor of the Merger Proposal, who properly demand appraisal of their shares of Common Stock, and who otherwise comply with the requirements of Section 262 are entitled to statutory appraisal rights, also known as dissenters' rights, under Delaware law in connection with the merger. This means that if you comply with the requirements of Section 262, you are entitled to have the "fair value" (as defined pursuant to Section 262) of your shares of Common Stock determined by the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware and to receive payment based on that valuation instead of receiving the merger consideration. The ultimate amount you would receive in an appraisal proceeding may be more than, the same as or less than the amount you would have received under the Merger Agreement. To exercise your appraisal rights, you must comply with the requirements of the DGCL. See "*Appraisal Rights*" beginning on page 122 of this proxy statement, and the text of Section 262, which is reproduced in its entirety as Annex C to this proxy statement.

Q: Where and when is the special meeting?

A:

The special meeting will take place at the offices of Foley Hoag LLP located at Seaport West, 155 Seaport Boulevard, Boston, Massachusetts 02210 on September 16, 2013, at 10:00 a.m., local time.

Q: What matters will be voted on at the special meeting?

A:

You will be asked to consider and vote on the following proposals:

to adopt the Merger Proposal;

to approve, by a non-binding, advisory vote, certain compensation arrangements for our executive officers in connection with the merger, which we refer to as the "Golden Parachute Proposal" (see "Special Factors Advisory Vote on Specified Compensation" and "Special Factors Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger" for additional information);

to adjourn or postpone the special meeting, if necessary, to solicit additional proxies in favor of the Merger Proposal, which we refer to as the "Adjournment Proposal;" and

to transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof, including to consider any procedural matters incident to the conduct of the special meeting.

Q: Who can attend and vote at the special meeting?

A:

All holders of record of our Common Stock as of the close of business on August 6, 2013, the record date for the special meeting, are entitled to receive notice of and to attend and vote at the special meeting, or any adjournment or postponement thereof. If you are a stockholder of record, please be prepared to provide proper identification, such as a driver's license. If you wish to attend the special meeting and your shares of Common Stock are held in "street name" by your broker, bank or other nominee, you will need to provide proof of ownership, such as a recent account statement or letter from your bank, broker or other nominee, along with proper identification. "Street name" holders who wish to vote at the special meeting will need to obtain a proxy executed in such holder's favor from the broker, bank or other nominee that holds their shares of Common Stock. Seating will be limited at the special meeting.

Q: What is the quorum required to transact business at the special meeting?

A:

In order for any matter to be considered at the special meeting, there must be a quorum present. The presence, in person or represented by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the shares of the Common Stock outstanding on the record date for the meeting will constitute a quorum. Shares of Common Stock represented by proxies reflecting abstentions will be counted as present and entitled to vote for purposes of determining a quorum. A "broker non-vote" occurs when a broker holding shares for a beneficial owner is precluded from exercising its voting discretion with respect to approving a "non-routine" proposal because the broker does not have discretionary voting power and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner. Because there are no discretionary items to be voted upon at the special meeting, broker non-votes as to all matters will not be counted as presented and entitled to vote for purposes of determining a quorum is not present, the stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting who are present or represented by proxy may adjourn the meeting until a quorum is present. See *"The Special Meeting Record Date and Quorum*" beginning on page 86 of this proxy statement.

Q: What vote of our stockholders is required to approve the Merger Agreement?

A:

Under Delaware law and as a condition to the consummation of the merger, stockholders holding at least a majority of the shares of the Common Stock outstanding at the close of business on the record date must vote "**FOR**" the Merger Proposal. A failure to vote your shares of Common Stock or an abstention from voting will have the same effect as a vote against the Merger Proposal.

As of May 10, 2013, there were 24,296,504 shares of our Common Stock outstanding. Except in their capacities as members of our Board, as applicable, none of our officers or directors has made any recommendation either in support of or in opposition to the merger or the Merger Agreement.

Our directors have informed us that, as of the date of this proxy statement, they intend to vote in favor of the Merger Proposal.

In connection with our entry into the Merger Agreement, on April 22, 2013, we entered into the Voting Agreement, whereby the IDG Funds and the other Rollover Holders party thereto (including our executive officers) committed to vote the shares of Common Stock over which they have voting control in favor of the Merger Proposal, against certain Competing Transactions, and against any action, agreement or transaction that could reasonably be expected to materially impede, frustrate, interfere with, delay, postpone, adversely affect or prevent the consummation of the merger or the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. The IDG Funds beneficially own, in the aggregate, 4,725,223 shares of Common Stock, representing approximately 19.4% of our outstanding voting power, and the other Rollover Holders party to the Voting Agreement beneficially own, in the aggregate, 761,759 shares of Common Stock, representing approximately 3.1% of our outstanding voting power.

Q: What vote of our stockholders is required to approve other matters to be discussed at the Special Meeting?

A:

The approval of the Golden Parachute Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal require the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast on those proposals.

Q: What was the role and recommendation of the Special Committee?

A:

Because Drs. Zhao and Zhou have actual or potential conflicts of interest in evaluating the merger, our Board appointed the Special Committee to evaluate the merger and other strategic alternatives, and to make recommendations to our Board with respect thereto. The Special Committee had no obligation to recommend the adoption of the Merger Agreement, the merger or any other transaction. The Special Committee unanimously recommended that the Board: (i) determine that the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger, are advisable to us, and in our best interests; (ii) approve and declare advisable our execution, delivery and performance of the Merger Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger; and (iii) resolve to recommend that our stockholders adopt the Merger Agreement, in each case upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement.

In arriving at its conclusion, the Special Committee considered, among other things, the opinion of RBC, that, as of the date of such opinion, and based on and subject to the assumptions, limitations and qualifications set forth in the opinion, the per share merger consideration to be received by holders of our Common Stock (other than the Rollover Holders) is fair, from a financial point of view, to such stockholders. See "*Special Factors Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the*

¹⁷

Table of Contents

Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger" beginning on page 35 of this proxy statement.

Q: How does the Board recommend that I vote?

A:

Our Board (with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining) unanimously recommends that our stockholders vote:

"FOR" the Merger Proposal;

"FOR" the Golden Parachute Proposal; and

"FOR" the Adjournment Proposal.

Our Board based its recommendation on the unanimous recommendation of the Special Committee, and also considered the fairness opinion of RBC. You should read "*Special Factors Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger*" beginning on page 35 of this proxy statement, for a discussion of the factors that our Board (with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining) considered in deciding to recommend that our stockholders vote in favor of the Merger Proposal. See also "*Special Factors Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger*" beginning on page 70 of this proxy statement.

Q: What effects will the merger have on MEMSIC and the Common Stock?

A:

Our Common Stock is currently registered under the Exchange Act and is listed on the NASDAQ Global Market, which we refer to as the "NASDAQ," under the symbol "MEMS." As a result of the merger, we will become wholly owned by Parent. Following the consummation of the merger, the registration of our Common Stock and our reporting obligations under the Exchange Act will be terminated, and our Common Stock will no longer be listed on any stock exchange or quotation system, including the NASDAQ. Unless you are a Rollover Holder or have properly exercised and perfected your appraisal rights, your Common Stock will represent only the right to receive the merger consideration.

Q: When do you expect the merger to be completed?

A:

We will complete the merger as quickly as possible after the special meeting. In order to complete the merger, we must obtain the stockholder approvals described in this proxy statement, and the other closing conditions under the Merger Agreement must be satisfied or waived. We hope to complete the merger during the third calendar quarter of 2013, although there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so.

Q: Is the merger expected to be taxable to me?

A:

If you are a U.S. stockholder, the receipt of cash for your shares of Common Stock pursuant to the merger will generally be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If you are a "Non-U.S. Holder" (as such term is defined in this proxy statement under *"Special Factors Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger,"* beginning on page 75), the receipt of cash for your shares of Common Stock pursuant to the merger will generally not be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes, unless you have certain connections to the United States. See *"Special Factors Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger"* beginning on page 75 of this proxy statement.

We do not believe that we should be considered a "resident enterprise" under the PRC's EIT Law, or that any gain recognized on the receipt of cash for the shares of our Common Stock pursuant to the merger by stockholders that are not PRC residents should be considered as income sourced

Table of Contents

from the PRC and subject to PRC tax. If, however, PRC tax authorities were to determine that we should be considered a resident enterprise or that the receipt of cash for shares of our Common Stock should otherwise be subject to PRC tax, then gain recognized on the receipt of cash for shares of our Common Stock pursuant to the merger or through the exercise of appraisal rights by our stockholders who are not PRC residents could be treated as PRC-sourced income that would be subject to PRC income tax at a rate of 20% in the case of individuals, or 10% in the case of corporations (subject to applicable treaty relief). You should consult your own tax advisors for a full understanding of the PRC tax consequences of the merger, including the exchange of Common Stock shares for cash or an exercise of related appraisal rights, in light of your particular circumstances. See *"Special Factors Material PRC Income Tax Consequences of the Merger"* beginning on page 79 of this proxy statement for additional information.

You should consult your own tax advisors for a full understanding of the tax consequences of the merger, including the exchange of Common Stock shares for cash or an exercise of related appraisal rights, in light of your particular circumstances (including the application and effect of any state, local or foreign income and other tax laws, such as those of the PRC).

Q: What happens if the merger is not consummated?

A:

If the Merger Agreement is not approved by our stockholders, or if the merger is not consummated for any other reason, our stockholders will not receive any payment for their shares in connection with the merger. Instead, we will remain a public company and shares of Common Stock will continue to be listed and traded on the NASDAQ. Under specified circumstances, we may be required to pay Parent and Merger Sub a termination fee of \$1.77 million, or Parent may be required to pay us a termination fee of \$3.54 million. See "*The Merger Agreement Termination*" beginning on page 109 of this proxy statement.

Q: What do I need to do now?

A:

We urge you to read this proxy statement carefully, including its annexes, which constitute part of this proxy statement, and to consider how the merger affects you. If you are a stockholder of record, you can ensure that your shares are voted at the special meeting by completing, signing, dating and returning your proxy card(s) in the enclosed envelope(s).

If you hold your shares in "street name" through a broker, bank or other nominee you should follow the directions provided by your broker, bank or other nominee regarding how to instruct your broker, bank or other nominee to vote your shares. Without those instructions, your shares will not be voted, which will have the same effect as voting against the Merger Proposal.

If you sign your proxy card and do not indicate how you want to vote, your shares will be voted FOR the Merger Proposal, FOR the advisory Golden Parachute Proposal, FOR the Adjournment Proposal, and in accordance with the recommendations of our Board on other matters properly brought before the special meeting for a vote (provided we do not know, at a reasonable time before the special meeting, of all matters to be presented at the meeting).

Q: When should I cast my vote?

A:

You should complete and mail in your proxy card as soon as possible so that your shares will be voted at the special meeting.

Q: Should I send in my stock certificates or other evidence of ownership now?

A:

No. If the merger is completed, you will be sent a letter of transmittal with detailed written instructions for exchanging your shares of Common Stock for the merger consideration. If your

Table of Contents

shares of Common Stock are held in "street name" by your broker, bank or other nominee, you may receive instructions from your broker, bank or other nominee as to what action, if any, you need to take to effect the surrender of your "street name" shares in exchange for the merger consideration. **Do not send in your certificates now**.

Q: What if I have lost a stock certificate?

A:

If you have lost a stock certificate, of if it has been damaged or destroyed, then before you will be entitled to receive the merger consideration, you will have to make an affidavit of the loss, theft or destruction. You may also be required to post a bond in a customary amount and upon such terms as may be reasonably required as indemnity against any claim that may be made against Parent or the Surviving Corporation with respect to such certificate. These procedures will be described in a letter of transmittal that you will receive after the effective time of the merger, which you should read carefully in its entirety. See "*The Merger Agreement Payment of the Merger Consideration*" beginning on page 91 of this proxy statement.

Q: What happens if I sell my shares of Common Stock before the completion of the merger?

A:

If you transfer your shares of Common Stock, you will have transferred your right to receive the merger consideration in the merger. In order to receive the merger consideration, you must hold your shares of Common Stock through the completion of the merger.

Q: Can I revoke my voting instructions?

A:

Yes. You can revoke your voting instructions at any time before your proxy is voted at the special meeting. If you are a stockholder of record, you may revoke your proxy by notifying our Corporate Secretary in writing at MEMSIC, Inc., Attn: Corporate Secretary, One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, Massachusetts 01810, or by submitting a new proxy by mail, dated after the date of the proxy being revoked. In addition, if you are a stockholder of record, you may revoke your proxy by attending the special meeting. Please note that if you hold your shares in "street name" and you have instructed a broker, bank or other nominee to vote your shares, the above-described options for revoking your voting instructions do not apply, and instead you must follow the instructions received from your broker, bank or other nominee to revoke your voting instructions.

Q: May I vote in person?

A:

Yes. You may attend the special meeting and vote your shares in person, whether or not you sign and return your proxy card(s). If your shares are held of record in "street name" by a broker, nominee, fiduciary or other custodian and you wish to vote in person at the special meeting, you must obtain from the record holder a proxy issued in your name. Even if you plan to attend the special meeting in person, we request that you complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card and thus ensure that your shares will be represented at the special meeting in case you are unable to attend.

Q: What does it mean if I get more than one proxy card or voting instruction card?

A:

If your shares are registered differently or are held in more than one account, you will receive more than one proxy or voting instruction card. Please complete and return all of the proxy cards or voting instruction cards you receive to ensure that all of your shares are voted. Please ensure that you return each proxy card in the return envelope that accompanies such proxy card.

Table of Contents

Q: What is householding and how does it affect me?

A:

The SEC permits companies to send a single set of proxy materials to any household at which two or more stockholders reside, but only if the applicable company provides advance notice and follows certain procedures, and to the extent that stockholders have not provided contrary instructions (in which case, each stockholder sharing a household continues to receive a separate notice of the meeting, proxy statement and proxy card). Certain brokerage firms may have instituted householding for beneficial owners of Common Stock held through brokerage firms. If your family has multiple accounts holding our Common Stock, you may have already received householding notifications from your broker. Please contact your broker directly if you have any questions or require additional copies of this proxy statement. The broker will arrange for delivery of a separate copy of this proxy statement promptly upon your written or oral request. You may decide at any time to revoke your decision to household, and thereby receive multiple copies.

Q: Who will count the votes?

A:

A representative of Computershare Trust Company, N.A. will count the votes and act as an inspector of election.

Q: Who can help answer my other questions?

A:

If you have more questions about the merger, or require assistance in submitting your proxy or voting your shares or need additional copies of the proxy statement or the enclosed proxy card, please contact AST Phoenix Advisors, which is acting as the proxy solicitation agent and information agent in connection with the merger.

If your broker, bank or other nominee holds your shares, you should also call your broker, bank or other nominee for additional information.

SPECIAL FACTORS

Background of the Merger

Our Board and senior management have periodically reviewed our long-term strategic plan with the goal of maximizing shareholder value. As part of this ongoing process, our Board and senior management have also from time to time reviewed strategic alternatives that may be available to us.

In January 2012, our Board and management conducted a review of our operations and plans, our recently acquired systems business, and our strategic alternatives. While our 2011 revenue had grown substantially over 2010, this growth was due primarily to sales to a single customer, Samsung. The high concentration of our revenues in the price-sensitive mobile phone market had resulted in steadily declining gross margins, and we had incurred operating losses in each year since our initial public offering. Sales in the system solution business that we acquired in 2010 were declining, and in 2011 we wrote off a significant portion of the goodwill attributable to our acquisition of this business. Since our initial public offering at \$10.00 per share in December 2007, our stock price had fallen to a low of \$1.50 per share in 2008, and in early 2012 our shares had been trading below \$4.00 per share for more than two years. Our Board concluded that it would be prudent to explore the sale of our company, as an alternative to remaining independent, as a means of making value available to our stockholders.

In late February 2012, after interviewing several investment banking firms, our Board engaged RBC to undertake a process to explore our strategic alternatives, including by identifying parties that could potentially acquire our company. RBC is an internationally recognized investment banking firm providing a full range of financial advisory and other services. Our Board selected RBC for this engagement based on its qualifications, expertise, reputation and knowledge of our business and affairs and its experience with semiconductor companies and the industry in which we operate.

Table of Contents

On February 28, 2012, in order to encourage our management and employees to cooperate in our exploration of our strategic alternatives and to consider the prospect of a change in control of our company in an objective manner, our Board resolved that all unvested equity awards made pursuant to our 2007 Stock Incentive Plan and Amended and Restated 2009 Nonqualified Inducement Stock Plan would accelerate upon a change in control of our company.

Over the next five months, representatives of RBC contacted 21 parties that it and our Board considered to be those most likely to be interested in acquiring us. RBC representatives contacted operating companies in the semiconductor industry and related industries, as well as private equity firms. Of the parties contacted by RBC, 17 expressed initial interest in evaluating the potential opportunity. Nine of these companies entered into nondisclosure agreements with us and held introductory due diligence meetings with our management. Dr. Quan Zhou, as a member of our Board, participated in our Board's deliberations and meetings with representatives of RBC throughout this process. IDG did not at this time express an interest in making a bid, and during this period we received no acquisition proposal from any of the parties contacted, or otherwise.

On May 3, 2012, representatives of RBC reported to our Board on the progress of RBC's engagement. In their report, the representatives of RBC reviewed the scope of their engagement and the tasks performed and to be performed by RBC and by management in connection with the process of exploring our strategic alternatives and presented a related timeline for a possible transaction. They also reported on the number and identities of the parties contacted to date in the outreach process and the feedback received from each. A copy of the slide deck for this RBC presentation is included as Exhibit 99.(c)(3) to the Schedule 13E-3 Transaction Statement, as amended (the "Schedule 13E-3"), and is filed with the SEC under the Exchange Act. The representatives of RBC reported that they had contacted thirteen potential acquirors, of which eight stated they had some level of interest in exploring a potential transaction, five had scheduled or were in the process of scheduling management meetings and two had executed nondisclosure agreements. The remaining five parties that had been contacted were not interested in a potential transaction with us.

On May 8, 2012, during our earnings call for the first quarter of 2012, we announced that we expected revenues from our largest customer, Samsung, which accounted for 37% of our sales in 2011, to decrease substantially in 2012. Our stock price dropped 40%, from a closing price of \$3.81 on May 8, 2012 to \$2.29 on May 9, 2012.

On June 28, 2012, representatives of RBC reported again to our Board and presented an update on the progress of their engagement. A copy of the slide deck for RBC's process update is filed as Exhibit 99.(c)(4) to the Schedule 13E-3. They reported that as of that date, RBC had contacted five additional parties, bringing the total contacted to eighteen, of which fourteen had shown some level of initial interest. Nine of these parties had executed nondisclosure agreements and eight had held meetings with management or conducted some level of follow-up due diligence. RBC had provided bid instruction letters to four of these parties. Of the eight parties that proceeded to management meetings, six had determined not to submit any bid, and the remaining two were still considering whether to bid.

On our earnings call for the second quarter of 2012 on August 2, 2012, we announced that we would pursue a new strategy to diversify our customer base and introduce higher-margin products, which would involve significant near term reductions in revenue and significant increases in research and development and other operating expenses.

On August 3, 2012, our Board concluded that further exploration of a potential sale of our company was unlikely to be fruitful based on the recent deterioration in our business and stock price and the lack of interest in an acquisition from other parties, and on August 9, 2012 we terminated the engagement of RBC.

Over the next seven weeks, our stock price continued to decline steadily, to a closing price of \$1.59 on September 28, 2012, close to its historic low of \$1.50 in 2008.

Table of Contents

At a regularly scheduled Board meeting on November 6, 2012, Dr. Zhou informed the other directors that IDG was considering making a proposal to acquire us.

On November 10, 2012, our Board received a letter containing a non-binding proposal from IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P., for itself and on behalf of its affiliated funds and certain nominees, to acquire all outstanding shares of our Common Stock that were not then owned by IDG or its affiliates, for cash in the amount of \$4.00 per share. The IDG proposal stated that, while IDG did not currently have any agreement, arrangement or understanding with Dr. Zhao or any other member of our management with respect to the proposal acquisition, IDG hoped to work with Dr. Zhao, subject to appropriate oversight by our Board, to formulate a definitive acquisition proposal and to invite Dr. Zhao and other selected members of the senior management of our company to roll over their Common Stock to an acquisition vehicle to be formed by IDG.

On November 10, 2012, our lead director, Mr. Blethen, notified our two other independent directors, Dr. Kaufman and Mr. Tung, of his receipt of the IDG proposal, and they discussed the advisability of forming a Special Committee of the Board to consider and respond to the IDG proposal. Mr. Blethen also telephoned Dr. Yang Zhao, informed him of the IDG proposal, and instructed him, on behalf of the Board, not to communicate with IDG on our behalf concerning the IDG proposal or to engage in discussions concerning his role as a potential equity participant in the transaction.

On November 11, 2012 Messrs. Blethen and Tung and Dr. Kaufman met by telephone with representatives of Foley Hoag LLP ("Foley Hoag"), our counsel. The representatives of Foley Hoag briefed the independent directors on our Board's fiduciary duties under Delaware law in connection with a potential sale of control of our company, including its duty to undertake a process calculated to obtain the best price reasonably available for our unaffiliated stockholders (as such term is defined in this section of the proxy statement, under the subheading " *Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger*"), should the Board determine to pursue a sale of control. The independent directors determined that it would be advisable to form the Special Committee, consisting of our three independent directors, to consider and respond to the IDG proposal and to explore any other strategic alternatives that might be available to us, including a transaction with another financial sponsor or strategic buyer, as well as the option of remaining independent.

The independent directors also agreed that it would be advisable to engage a financial advisor to assist the Special Committee in its evaluation of and response to the IDG proposal and exploration of other alternatives. They agreed that RBC would be well situated to perform this task, in light of its familiarity with us and our business and industry and its knowledge of, and contacts with, potential likely acquirers of our company as a result of the process undertaken earlier in 2012. RBC had performed no services for us other than in connection with its engagement by our Board to explore our strategic alternatives earlier in 2012, and has never performed any services for IDG or any affiliate of IDG. The independent directors authorized Mr. Tung to contact RBC with a view to negotiating the terms of a new engagement for RBC to serve as financial advisor to the Special Committee.

On November 11, 2012, counsel to IDG, Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP ("Skadden"), contacted Foley Hoag. They stated that IDG was mindful of the fiduciary duties of our directors and officers and was also aware of the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which we refer to as "Section 203," that limits business combinations between Delaware corporations and certain interested stockholders. They indicated that IDG would seek a waiver of Section 203 before reaching any agreement, arrangement or understanding with members of management concerning their willingness to join the buyer group.

On November 13, 2012, our Board, acting by unanimous written consent, appointed the Special Committee, consisting of our three independent directors, Messrs. Blethen and Tung and Dr. Kaufman,

Table of Contents

and delegated to the Special Committee full authority to engage its own financial and legal advisors, review, evaluate and negotiate the terms and conditions, and determine the advisability of the IDG proposal, explore alternatives to the IDG proposal and recommend to our Board what action, if any, should be taken by the Board with respect to the IDG proposal or any alternative proposal or transaction.

Between November 13, 2012 and November 21, 2012, the Special Committee and RBC negotiated the terms of RBC's engagement as financial advisor to the Special Committee.

The Special Committee met on November 14, 2012 with representatives of Foley Hoag and RBC in attendance. The Special Committee discussed with representatives of RBC the process to be followed in order to evaluate the IDG proposal and to determine whether any superior alternative might be available, including the option of remaining independent. The representatives of RBC summarized the results of their prior outreach process and the feedback received from the parties contacted, none of which had submitted a bid. A copy of the slide deck for the RBC process update presentation is filed as Exhibit 99.(c)(5) to the Schedule 13E-3. The Special Committee discussed having RBC contact a number of the parties involved in the prior process to determine whether any of them might be receptive to a new approach in light of the IDG proposal. The representatives of RBC noted that one such party, a financial sponsor referred to herein as Company A, had during our earlier outreach process orally indicated interest in exploring a transaction at a price of up to \$4.00 per share, although it never made a formal offer. They also noted that Company B, a high performance analog semiconductor company, had received preliminary materials, but had not met with our management or made a formal offer before our initial outreach process had terminated in August 2012. The representatives of RBC explained to the Special Committee that in a conversation between representatives of RBC and Company B regarding the termination, the representatives of Company B had implied that they might consider a potential bid price in the range of \$6.00 per share if Company B decided to pursue a transaction. The representatives of RBC also stated that a second financial sponsor, Company C, had expressed interest in exploring a possible transaction, but that Company C had not conducted any due diligence or made any formal offer at the time the prior process was terminated in August 2012. A copy of the slide deck for the RBC presentation is filed as Exhibit 99.(c)(5) to the Schedule 13E-3. The Special Committee discussed the possibility that Companies A, B or C might be induced to make a bid at a price higher than the \$4.00 per share offered by IDG.

The Special Committee noted that our stock price had never recovered from the sharp drop it experienced in May 2012 following our announcement that we expected revenues from our largest customer to decrease substantially, and discussed other factors influencing our stock price, including our generally low gross margins, our dependence on the low-end China cellphone market and the lack of liquidity, limited research coverage and thin trading in the market for our Common Stock. The Special Committee noted that management had announced a new strategy to diversify our customer base and introduce higher-margin products, which would involve significant near term reductions in revenue and increases in operating expenses, and discussed the obstacles to execution of the new strategy and the risk that, even if executed successfully, it might not result in a value for our company that was higher than that offered by the IDG proposal. The Special Committee agreed to enquire of RBC concerning its views of our potential valuation as an independent company.

The Special Committee met on November 16, 2012. The members discussed the negotiation of the RBC engagement letter. The Special Committee also discussed the importance of ensuring that management be reminded of their fiduciary duties to us and our stockholders and given clear instructions regarding their role in the process of exploring the IDG proposal and any others that might be received. The Special Committee requested that counsel prepare a memorandum to be delivered to Dr. Zhao, our Chief Financial Officer, Patricia Niu, and our President of North American and European Operations, Dr. Paul Zavracky, who are our three executive officers, for this purpose.

Table of Contents

The Special Committee also agreed to instruct management to provide to RBC updated projections for 2013 and 2014 reflecting management's new strategy to enable RBC to provide its updated views on our valuation. Mr. Blethen reported that he had informed Dr. Zhou that, given the potential for real or apparent conflicts of interest due to Dr. Zhou's role at IDG and IDG's interest in exploring management's potential participation in its bid, the Special Committee intended to proceed in a cautious and deliberate manner in a process that thoroughly and independently assessed all options. He said that Dr. Zhou understood and concurred in this approach. The representatives of Foley Hoag explained the provisions of Section 203 and their potential application to the IDG proposal to the Special Committee. The Special Committee concluded that it was premature to grant any waiver of Section 203, and instructed counsel to remind management that they were not authorized to enter into discussions with IDG concerning their potential participation in the transaction at that time.

The Special Committee met again telephonically on November 19, 2012, at which time it authorized execution of an engagement letter with RBC on terms discussed at the meeting, which the Special Committee considered to be favorable to us and to provide appropriate incentives to RBC to obtain the highest value available for our stockholders. Representatives of RBC then joined the meeting and the Special Committee discussed the potential value of our company, the likelihood that IDG would be prepared to increase its offer, and strategies that might be employed to achieve such increase. The Special Committee authorized RBC to engage in discussions with IDG concerning its proposal. They also directed RBC to pursue other potential offers, including by reaching out to parties contacted in our earlier outreach process that the Special Committee considered, based on the feedback received by RBC during that process, might be receptive to a renewed approach.

On November 20, 2012, we announced publicly our receipt of the IDG proposal.

Between November 20 and December 5, 2012, representatives of Foley Hoag and Skadden negotiated the terms of a non-disclosure agreement between IDG and us, Skadden presented IDG's legal due diligence request and Foley Hoag and Skadden discussed logistical arrangements for documentary due diligence. The non-disclosure agreement between us and IDG was executed on December 5, 2012.

On November 21, 2012, we entered into a formal engagement letter with RBC with respect to RBC's engagement as financial advisor to the Special Committee. On the same date, the Special Committee met with Dr. Zhao and Ms. Niu to discuss communication with employees, investors and stock market analysts regarding the IDG proposal. The Special Committee also considered the benefits and risks of having RBC approach competitors as potential acquirers, and discussed ways in which we could make available to potential bidders that were also our competitors the confidential information that was required, while providing reasonable protection to us against those who might use such information to our detriment.

Beginning in late November 2012 and continuing into January 2013, representatives of RBC contacted a total of 14 parties that RBC and the Special Committee believed might have some level of interest in the potential opportunity, in addition to IDG. These included 10 companies that had been contacted during the earlier February 2012 process, had demonstrated at least mild interest in the potential opportunity and had provided feedback to representatives of RBC indicating that they might be receptive to a reopening of discussions, including Companies A, B and C. Parties contacted in the earlier process that had passed due to a lack of strategic fit were not recontacted by representatives of RBC. The list of parties contacted by representatives of RBC also included four additional companies, participants in our industry that had not been included in that earlier process. Of the 14 parties contacted, 11 were operating companies in the semiconductor industry and related industries and three were financial sponsors known to have an interest in the semiconductor industry and MEMS technologies. As discussed further below, in the end none of these parties submitted a bid or acquisition proposal.

On November 26, 2012, members of management spoke by telephone with representatives of Company A for preliminary due diligence.

Table of Contents

The Special Committee met next on November 30, 2012. Mr. Blethen reported that RBC was seeking to arrange meetings in California with four potentially interested parties, including Companies A and B as well as two other potential strategic acquirers: a manufacturer of industrial products and equipment, Company D; and a provider of MEMS-based motion processing products for consumer electronics, Company E.; The Special Committee was aware of the potential for a conflict of interest due to IDG's proposal to include members of senior management in its bidder group, and was also aware that Dr. Zhao had expressed concerns about entering into negotiations with companies that were our competitors. To ensure a fair and robust bidding process, the Special Committee decided that a member of the Special Committee and/or representatives of RBC would accompany management representatives and attend each of the scheduled meetings in California along with the representatives of management. A member of the Special Committee and/or a representative of RBC attended every scheduled meeting with prospective bidders thereafter. The Special Committee also agreed that Dr. Zhao should be reminded of the importance of his maintaining a neutral stance in his communications with bidders on our behalf.

Over the weekend of December 1 and 2, 2012, representatives of Company A had a second due diligence discussion by telephone with Dr. Zhao.

On December 5, 2012, the Special Committee met to discuss preparations for the scheduled meetings with Companies A, B, D and E. At that meeting, the Special Committee also reviewed a recommendation by Foley Hoag that the Special Committee engage special Delaware counsel to advise the Special Committee with respect to its work. The Special Committee concurred and undertook to explore candidates.

On December 6 and 7, 2012, representatives of RBC, the Special Committee and members of management held due diligence meetings in California with Companies B, D and E. Companies A, B, D and E, and all other parties contacted by RBC that proceeded to exploratory due diligence, were provided with a slide deck that included, among other things, our historical financial information and management's preliminary operating budget for 2013 (see " *Prospective Financial Information*" in this section of the proxy statement). Company A cancelled its scheduled meeting. Representatives of RBC and the members of management made presentations regarding our business and prospects, including our new strategy to diversify our customer base and introduce higher-margin products, and responded to questions from the prospective bidders.

The Special Committee convened its next meeting on December 10, 2012, with representatives of Foley Hoag and Richards, Layton & Finger, P.A. ("RLF") in attendance. The Special Committee approved the appointment of RLF as special counsel to the Special Committee. The Special Committee selected RLF due to its reputation, expertise in mergers and acquisitions and extensive knowledge of Delaware law. RLF had previously provided no services to us or to IDG. The Special Committee discussed the meetings that had taken place with Companies B, D and E. The Special Committee discussed the status of RBC's valuation analysis, noting that RBC was working with management, including our executive officers, to obtain a longer term forecast reflecting management's current strategy. The Special Committee considered that an updated forecast and valuation analysis would be useful in assisting the Special Committee in seeking to negotiate a higher price from IDG or another potential bidder and in evaluating our stand-alone prospects.

Later on December 10, 2012, a telephonic due diligence meeting between us and representatives of IDG and RBC was held, with members of the Special Committee in attendance. At the meeting, management and representatives of RBC made presentations to IDG regarding the strategic benefits of acquiring us and responded to questions from IDG.

The Special Committee met on December 14, 2012 to receive a report on the December 10 meeting with IDG. Representatives of RBC also orally summarized for the Special Committee the feedback RBC had been receiving from the parties it had contacted. The feedback was not positive.



Table of Contents

Company A had informed RBC that it would not submit a bid, based on several factors, including our financial performance and valuation and concerns about the consumer market, competitive pressures and strategic fit and about compatibility between Company A and our senior management. Company B stated that it was not interested in our consumer and mobile businesses, was skeptical about the prospects for our automotive and industrial businesses, and was concerned that the Company's gross margins were too far below Company B's gross margins. Company D was initially interested but it was now unclear whether they would engage in follow-up discussions with RBC. Company E was not interested in the consumer business and was concerned about our financial performance. All potential bidders were interested in retaining the management team and, in particular, Dr. Zhao. Companies A and D identified their lack of confidence in being able to retain the services of our management team following an acquisition of us as a factor in their decision not to submit a bid. Representatives of RBC reported that these responses were similar to feedback we had received from prospective purchasers contacted in RBC's unsuccessful outreach effort earlier in 2012.

On December 16, 2012, representatives of RBC contacted Company C, as well as Companies F and G, a provider of mixed signal and analog semiconductors and a manufacturer of electronic components, respectively, to ascertain their interest in entering into discussions with respect to possibly acquiring us. By December 20, 2012 each of these companies advised RBC that it was not interested due to a lack of fit with its strategic or investment priorities. Companies H and I, a financial sponsor and a semiconductor manufacturer, respectively, each of which had been contacted in late November, 2012 by representatives of RBC, also withdrew from the process at this time, with the former citing insufficient knowledge of the industry and the latter citing a lack of strategic need to acquire us.

The Special Committee convened a meeting on December 18, 2012 at which representatives of RBC, RLF, Foley Hoag and RBC's counsel, O'Melveny & Myers LLP ("OMM") were present. Representatives of RBC first summarized the outreach process conducted earlier in 2012 and its subsequent contacts with potential bidders. In total, nine initial potential parties other than IDG had been identified and contacted by RBC subsequent to our receipt of the IDG proposal. Of these, eight expressed initial interest; four, consisting of Companies A, B, D and E, had met with management; and, as of December 17, 2012, all nine of the contacted parties had either declined to participate or had formally withdrawn from the process after initial discussions. A copy of the slide deck for the RBC presentation at the December 18, 2012 meeting is filed as Exhibit 99.(c)(6) to the Schedule 13E-3.

The Special Committee reconvened on December 19, 2012 along with representatives of RBC, RLF, Foley Hoag and OMM, at which time RBC representatives discussed our estimated financial results for 2012 and our preliminary projections for 2013 and 2014 (see " *Prospective Financial Information*" in this section of the proxy statement). The projections for 2013 were consistent, in terms of revenues and gross margins, with the preliminary operating budget for 2013 included in the slide deck provided to potential bidders. The preliminary projections called for 11% revenue growth with modest gross margin improvement in 2013, accompanied by a 20% increase in operating expenses, resulting in a projected non-GAAP operating income in 2013 that was 45% lower than the projected 2012 non-GAAP operating income. Revenue in 2014 was projected to grow at a significantly greater rate, to \$89 million, and EBITDA was projected to improve to \$6.5 million. The Special Committee members noted that, in recent years, management had repeatedly missed internal projections based on similar plans for rapid improvement in our financial performance. Representatives of RBC and the Special Committee discussed the preliminary projections and the material risks inherent in them, including the difficulty of predicting financial results from new products and markets toward which we were still transitioning, and the possibility that larger than expected sales and marketing expenditures would be necessary to achieve management's aggressive revenue growth projection.

Representatives of RBC presented orally the results of their preliminary analysis of our valuation on a stand-alone basis using the estimated financial results for 2012 and the preliminary projections for 2013. Using comparable companies identified on the basis of their financial performance and profiles,

Table of Contents

RBC's analyses indicated revenue and EBITDA multiples that implied a value per share of approximately \$2.50 to \$3.80. RBC's comparable precedent mergers and acquisitions analysis indicated valuations of approximately \$3.70 to \$4.50 per share. Representatives of RBC made it clear that the preliminary projections were still under development by the Company, that RBC's analysis was preliminary and did not represent a formal opinion of RBC, and that RBC's analysis had not been approved by its fairness opinion review committee. The Special Committee discussed this information and asked questions of the RBC representatives. The Special Committee also discussed risks to us and our stockholders if IDG were to withdraw its bid and its fiduciary duties with respect to that possibility. The Special Committee agreed to meet again on December 21, 2012 to decide on a formal response to the IDG proposal. RBC undertook to provide a written summary of its preliminary analysis for consideration by the Special Committee at that meeting, which it did on December 20, 2012.

On December 19 and 20, 2012, representatives of RBC contacted three semiconductor manufacturers, Companies J, K and L, to ascertain their interest in entering into discussions regarding a possible acquisition of us. These companies, each of which had been contacted and conducted exploratory due diligence on us in the earlier outreach process and had decided not to submit any acquisition proposal at that time, each advised RBC that it still was not interested in acquiring us.

On December 21, 2012, the Special Committee met with representatives of RLF and Foley Hoag present. The Special Committee reviewed our estimated financial results for 2012, preliminary financial projections for 2013 and 2014, and the written presentation from representatives of RBC, dated December 20, 2012, concerning RBC's preliminary analysis of our valuation that confirmed the oral presentation at the December 19, 2012 meeting. A copy of the RBC presentation dated December 20, 2013 is filed as Exhibit 99.(c)(7) to the Schedule 13E-3. Representatives of RBC also reported on the results of RBC's outreach effort and the feedback received from the parties contacted, stating that at this time IDG was the only party that remained engaged in the process. The Special Committee instructed RBC to communicate to IDG that the Special Committee was prepared to enter into further discussions with IDG, but that IDG's proposed \$4.00 price per share was not a "preemptive price" that would justify entering into exclusive negotiations with IDG or waiving Section 203 to enable IDG to commence discussions with our management team. The Special Committee instructed RBC to encourage IDG to reconsider its views on valuation.

On December 23, 2012, representatives of RBC spoke with representatives of IDG to deliver the message discussed at the last Special Committee meeting. IDG responded that it would be unable to increase its bid before hearing the Special Committee's views on valuation and that it wanted to move forward with due diligence. On December 24, 2012, IDG, through its counsel, renewed its request for a waiver of Section 203.

On December 27, 2012, representatives of RBC and IDG spoke again telephonically during which conversation representatives of RBC led IDG through their views on market valuations potentially justifying a higher price. IDG again indicated that it would like to begin due diligence and meet with our management.

On December 28, 2012, the Special Committee met by conference call to discuss the fact that IDG had contacted Mr. Blethen regarding starting due diligence, who had responded that the Special Committee would consider providing limited due diligence focused on items relevant to valuation that would assist IDG in improving its bid. Representatives of RBC reported that IDG had responded to RBC that IDG's offer was "fully valued" and provided a significant premium, and that IDG did not feel that it was under competitive pressure to increase its bid. The Special Committee discussed the risk that IDG might decrease or withdraw its offer if the process did not move at a reasonable pace and considered ways to incentivize IDG to offer a higher price.

Between January 1, 2013 and January 8, 2013, representatives of RBC had a series of telephone conversations with IDG in which they provided to IDG their views on market valuation and relevant



Table of Contents

comparables and precedent transactions. IDG provided a preliminary due diligence request list and also requested a tour of our facility in Wuxi, China and meetings with our personnel there.

On January 9, 2013, the Special Committee held a meeting with representatives of RLF and Foley Hoag present. The Special Committee discussed our prospects and value as an independent business and management's assumptions and expectations used in the management forecasts given to RBC for RBC's valuation analysis, and subsequently given to IDG. Foley Hoag and RLF explained the process and likely timeline for negotiating definitive agreements with IDG or any other party, and the Special Committee also discussed the risk of disruption to our business and distraction of management that could result from a lengthy course of negotiations.

On January 11, 2013, our Board held a regularly scheduled meeting to review our preliminary financial results for the fourth quarter of 2012 and management's proposed operating budget for 2013. Management presented a revised 2013 operating budget, which was consistent in terms of revenues and gross margins with the preliminary operating budget for 2013 that had been included in the slide deck provided to potential bidders, but provided for a reduced level of planned operating expenses, with a view to reducing the operating loss reflected in the preliminary operating budget for 2013. Management also responded to numerous questions from the directors concerning the assumptions used in developing the revised 2013 operating budget.

Later on January 11, 2013, the Special Committee received a presentation from members of management, including Dr. Zhao, who demonstrated to the Special Committee how management had been presenting us to potential bidders and discussed with the Special Committee how those potential bidders had responded to the presentations. Management was then excused and representatives of RBC joined the meeting. Representatives of RBC reported that they were working with management to prepare responses to IDG's initial due diligence questions, including a request for projections through 2016, and to schedule in-person meetings and a tour of the Wuxi facility for IDG. This set of meetings was scheduled for January 28, 2013. Representatives of RBC stated that IDG did not appear willing to increase its bid. Representatives of RBC also reported that another financial institution had contacted RBC about a manufacturer of electronic components, Company M, which was possibly interested in a strategic transaction with us. It was agreed that RBC should quickly engage with Company M while continuing to seek a higher price from IDG.

During the week of January 14, 2013, representatives of RBC initiated contact with Company M. They also approached Company N, a provider of microcontroller, mixed-signal, analog and memory products that had first been contacted during RBC's earlier outreach process. Each of these companies expressed interest in exploring a possible transaction, and between January 14 and February 19, 2013, representatives of RBC and members of management engaged in exploratory due diligence discussions with Companies M and N, which included meetings attended by our personnel, and representatives of RBC and Company M at our facility in Wuxi.

On January 17, 2013, representatives of RBC provided responses to IDG's due diligence requests and delivered to IDG management projections that covered 2013 by quarter and the full years 2014 through 2016, as discussed in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Prospective Financial Information.*" The projections were consistent in all material respects with those for 2013 that had been discussed with the Special Committee at its January 11, 2013 meeting, and included revised projections for 2014 and projections for 2015 and 2016 that had been developed by management earlier in January.

On January 21, 2013, representatives of RBC informed IDG that we were in discussions with two other companies that were interested in a potential transaction with us. IDG indicated that it might be willing to reconsider its price after the January 28, 2013 meeting with management in Wuxi.



Table of Contents

On January 23, 2013, the Special Committee met with representatives of RBC, Foley Hoag and RLF present. Representatives of RBC reported on the progress of discussions with Companies M and N.

On January 28, 2013, representatives of each of RBC and our management, and other of our personnel, met with IDG in Wuxi for due diligence discussions and a tour of our Wuxi facility, and between January 28 and February 8, 2013, representatives of RBC and our management responded to further due diligence requests from IDG.

On January 31, 2013, Company N withdrew from the process, stating that despite their positive reaction to the management presentations and to the potential strategic fit with Company N, they could not offer a valuation competitive with the \$4.00 IDG proposal.

On February 12, 2013, IDG submitted to RBC a revised acquisition proposal at a price of \$4.15 per share, accompanied by IDG's proposed form of agreement and plan of merger.

On February 15, 2013, the Special Committee met to discuss IDG's revised proposal. Representatives of RBC presented an analysis of the financial terms of the revised IDG proposal, noting that it represented a premium of approximately 139% over our unaffected stock price as of November 20, 2012, the last trading day before our announcement of the initial IDG proposal, and an implied enterprise value for our company of \$63.3 million, compared with an enterprise value of \$0.2 million based on our unaffected stock price as of November 20, 2012. The RBC report did not include any recommendation or valuation analysis or state any opinion as to the fairness of the revised \$4.15 price proposed by IDG. A copy of the slide deck for RBC's presentation at the February 15, 2013 meeting is filed as Exhibit 99.(c)(8) to the Schedule 13E-3. IDG's meetings with our management and certain of our other employees in Wuxi as well as our meetings in Wuxi with Company M and the feedback received from Company N. They noted that Company M's interest seemed to have cooled since the meetings in Wuxi, based on concerns about compatibility with management and Company M's ability to retain the services of our management team after the acquisition. RBC's representatives agreed to, and did subsequently, discuss with Company M the desirability of Company M taking steps to incentivize management to remain with the company after a change in control. The Special Committee again weighed the relative merits of us remaining independent, and in particular whether remaining independent would result in an equal or better value for stockholders than taking the offer from IDG. The Special Committee agreed that it would be advisable to fully gauge the interest of Company M before responding to IDG.

On February 16, 2013, Mr. Blethen spoke with a representative of Company M to encourage Company M to submit an acquisition proposal. The Company M representative stated that Company M was not confident of its ability to retain the services of our full management team after the acquisition, and on February 19, 2013, Company M informed the Special Committee that it was not interested in continuing discussion concerning a transaction.

On February 20, 2013, the full Board met in Andover, Massachusetts without Dr. Quan Zhou. The purpose of the meeting was for management to formally present our revised strategy, discuss our prospects as a stand-alone company and review management's projections for 2013 through 2016 prepared for use by RBC and delivered to IDG. A lengthy discussion ensued, in which the directors questioned management, including Dr. Yang Zhao, at length about management's strategy and the assumptions underlying the projections and the risks and obstacles to achieving them. The directors present considered the projections to represent more of a statement of management's goals than an estimate having a high degree of reliability. They were skeptical to varying degrees about the likelihood of attaining the results predicted in the projections, for a number of reasons, including that:

our management has limited experience in generating accurate long range forecasts of our future performance;



Table of Contents

the projections called for a near doubling of revenue from 2012 to 2016;

the projected growth in revenue relied substantially on new products, the development and launch of which are subject to numerous uncertainties and are often delayed;

the projected growth in revenue also depended on significant penetration of new markets and the success of as-yet unknown customers in commercializing their systems incorporating our products;

in particular, the projections depended on higher sales in the industrial market, which has lengthy product design and sales cycles and is difficult to penetrate, and with which we have had limited experience;

the improved profitability reflected in the projections would require significant improvements in our gross margins which might not materialize, and could also be adversely affected if our planned entry into new markets should require greater sales and marketing expenses that were predicted in the projections; and

the mobile telephone and consumer electronics markets, upon which the projections continued to rely in significant part, are volatile, price sensitive and move very quickly, making accurate long-term projections difficult.

Taking these factors into consideration, Dr. Zhao stated that in his opinion the probability of our fully achieving the projections was less than 50-50.

Later that day, the Special Committee met separately to discuss its response to the revised IDG proposal. The Special Committee agreed that management's presentation and discussion with the Special Committee had been thorough, covering management's plans and strategies for the business and obstacles to their achievement, management's expectations regarding our anticipated revenues, major account opportunities and product development plans and its views of the risks and opportunities affecting our business prospects. The Special Committee agreed that it was not likely that we would exceed the projected revenues or earnings reflected in management's plan, which would be necessary in the Special Committee's view to make remaining independent a better option than being acquired at the \$4.15 per share offered by IDG. After receiving further advice from its counsel on their fiduciary duties, the Special Committee members agreed that the revised IDG offer was sufficiently attractive to proceed with further negotiations. The Special Committee instructed RBC to counter IDG's new offer with a proposed price of \$4.50 per share.

Representatives of RBC conveyed the Special Committee's counterproposal to IDG on February 21, 2013.

On February 23, 2013, IDG communicated to representatives of RBC a revised proposal, in which it offered to acquire us at a price of \$4.35 per share. The revised offer, which IDG stated was its best and final offer, was conditional upon the Special Committee promptly waiving Section 203 and providing access to management to allow IDG to commence discussions with management of its participation in the proposed merger. IDG stated that if it was granted that access it could move very quickly to complete negotiations and sign a definitive merger agreement.

On February 24, 2013, the Special Committee met to discuss the revised \$4.35 offer. The Special Committee discussed certain key terms still being negotiated in the merger agreement. These terms included the scope of IDG's commitment to provide financing for the transaction, IDG's desire to provide for a minimum amount of cash on our balance sheet as a condition to its obligation to close, the definition of the term "Material Adverse Effect" and the availability of specific performance as a remedy, each of which the Special Committee considered to be important because it could adversely affect the certainty of deal closure, as well as the treatment of employee equity awards in the merger.

Table of Contents

The Special Committee again met on February 25, 2013 with representatives of RLF, Foley Hoag and RBC. The Special Committee considered the history of its negotiations with IDG and whether IDG could be induced to make a higher offer and concluded that in all likelihood \$4.35 per share represented IDG's best and final offer. They also considered our prospects as an independent company following the new strategy announced by management, and the long-term revenue and earnings potential reflected in management's four-year projections. The Special Committee believed that the new strategy was unproven and subject to significant execution risk, and that improvement in our sales and profitability at the rate and of the magnitude predicted in the four-year projections was not likely. Notwithstanding that assessment, the Special Committee considered whether, if the four-year projections were accepted at face value as representing a "best case" estimate of our long-term financial performance as a stand-alone company, remaining independent would be superior from a financial point of view to the merger price of \$4.35 per share offered by IDG, payable immediately in cash, and concluded that it would not. The Special Committee therefore agreed that IDG should be informed that the \$4.35 price was acceptable in principle, and the Special Committee would be prepared to grant the requested Section 203 waiver, provided that the key issues in the proposed merger agreement that had been discussed at the February 24 meeting could be resolved in a satisfactory manner. These points were conveyed to IDG, along with our proposed mark-up of the related sections of the proposed merger agreement, on February 26, 2013.

Between February 26, 2013 and March 13, 2013, discussions continued among the Special Committee, representatives of RBC, IDG and their respective counsel concerning these issues.

Our full Board held a regularly scheduled meeting on March 1, 2013. At this meeting, management, including our executive officers, reported on our operations and our progress towards implementing management's new strategy. They informed the Board that the sales outlook for 2013 had deteriorated for a variety of reasons, and provided a revised sales forecast for the first quarter and full year of \$13.1 million and \$68.7 million, respectively. These figures were materially lower than management's prediction of \$15.4 million for the first quarter and \$72.1 million for the full year that had been provided to IDG and other bidders.

Later that day the Special Committee met to discuss the progress of negotiations with IDG.

On March 6, 2013, IDG, through its counsel, again renewed its request for a waiver of Section 203.

On March 8, 2013 during our earnings call for the fourth quarter of 2012, we announced revenue guidance for the first quarter of 2013 of between \$11 million and \$12 million, compared with sales of \$20 million in the first quarter of 2012. Following this call, each of the two research analysts that follow us substantially reduced his 2013 revenue estimate for us and increased his estimate of our losses for the year.

On March 11, 2013, the full Special Committee again met, along with representatives of RLF and Foley Hoag. Foley Hoag and RLF reported that reasonable progress had been made toward resolving the key merger agreement terms that had been under discussion. The Special Committee concluded that at this point it would be beneficial to our stockholders to waive Section 203 to permit IDG to hold discussions with Dr. Zhao and other members of management concerning their willingness to join the IDG buyer group with respect to IDG's \$4.35 offer, and to provide IDG with the additional due diligence it was requesting, so as to enable IDG to firm up its proposal regarding its financing commitment. Pursuant to the authority delegated to it by the full Board at the time of its formation, the Special Committee resolved to waive Section 203 with respect to IDG's \$4.35 offer as to our executive officers and IDG was notified to that effect.

On April 4, 2013, the Special Committee resolved to waive Section 203 with respect to additional specified employees of the Company. Also on April 4, 2013, the Special Committee determined that, to



Table of Contents

facilitate the prompt completion of negotiations between us and IDG, it would be in the interest of our unaffiliated stockholders for us to reimburse up to \$50,000 attorneys' fees incurred by the management group in connection with their negotiations with IDG concerning the terms on which they would roll their existing equity interests in us into equity in the acquiring entity. This amount was subsequently increased by the Special Committee to \$70,000 on April 12, 2013. Between March 11, 2013 and April 22, 2013, members of management, Wilmer Cutler Pickering Hale and Dorr LLP, as special counsel to our executive officers ("WilmerHale"), IDG and Skadden negotiated concerning the manner in which members of management would participate as equity investors in the acquisition vehicle to be organized by IDG for purposes of the merger. There were no negotiations between IDG and our executive officers prior to the execution of the Merger Agreement regarding their remaining employed by our company following the merger.

On March 13, 2013, IDG and its counsel were provided with access to an electronic data room that had been established by us for purposes of conducting documentary due diligence, and between March 13 and April 22, 2013 IDG continued its due diligence investigation.

On March 17, 2013, Foley Hoag transmitted to Skadden the Special Committee's comments on the draft merger agreement, and between March 17, 2013 and April 22, 2013, Foley Hoag, RLF and Skadden negotiated the terms of the merger agreement and other related definitive agreements.

On March 20, 2013, the Special Committee met, with representatives of RBC, RLF and Foley Hoag in attendance. At this meeting, the Special Committee discussed the recent downward movement in the trading price of the shares of our Common Stock, and agreed that they were unaware of any adverse developments relating to the potential transaction that might explain this movement. The Special Committee also discussed the progress of negotiations with IDG.

On March 21, 2013, IDG contacted RBC and informed RBC that our reduced revenue projection for the first quarter of 2013, as reflected in our publicly-issued guidance on March 8, 2013, had raised significant concern on the part of IDG about our 2013 outlook as a whole, and that that in IDG's view, this negatively affected our valuation. IDG indicated that it would likely propose a new, lower price for the deal.

After conferring with the Special Committee, representatives of RBC held telephone conversations with representatives of IDG on March 22 and March 26, 2013 in which RBC conveyed a message to IDG, on behalf of the Special Committee, that a price decrease at this point in negotiations would not be well received by the Special Committee and could put the deal at risk.

On March 26, 2013, the Special Committee met, with representatives of RBC, RLF and Foley Hoag in attendance. At this meeting, the Special Committee discussed IDG's indication that it would likely propose a new, lower price for the deal, the Special Committee's potential response to that indication, and the progress of negotiations more generally.

On March 27, 2013, the Special Committee met, with our executive officers in attendance. The Special Committee repeated its prior instructions to Dr. Zhao, Ms. Niu, and Mr. Zavracky that, in connection with the negotiations with IDG, their only role was to negotiate the terms of their individual agreements with IDG relating to the roll-over of certain management equity interests. The Special Committee also encouraged management to ensure that this issue would not delay the completion of a definitive agreement, should the Special Committee determine that such an agreement is advisable and in the best interest of us and our stockholders.

On April 1, 2013, IDG formally communicated to RBC a revised price proposal of \$4.10 per share. IDG indicated that it decreased the offer price based on, among other things, the following factors: our financial results for 2012 and the fourth quarter of 2012, which indicated continued deterioration in our business compared with previous projections; our revenue guidance for the first quarter of 2013, which indicated that our revenues would be significantly lower than in the projections provided to IDG in

Table of Contents

January 2013, casting doubt on the projections for the full year 2013; and the fact that our stock price was falling precipitously, despite investors' awareness of IDG's previously announced \$4.00 per share offer. IDG also indicated that it was willing to move expeditiously to finalize the definitive documentations subject to the Special Committee's prompt consideration of the revised offer price.

On April 2, 2013 the Special Committee met, with representatives of RBC, RLF and Foley Hoag present, to discuss the status of the negotiations over the definitive agreements and a response to IDG's price reduction proposal. Foley Hoag and RLF informed the Special Committee that several important issues remained to be resolved in the merger agreement, including the circumstances of payment of the termination fee payable by us in certain events and the amount of the reverse termination fee to be received by us in certain events. They also reported that IDG and management did not yet appear to have reached resolution on the roll-over of their outstanding equity awards and participation in the merger.

On April 3, 2013, representatives of RBC, at the direction of the Special Committee, informed IDG that the \$4.10 price was unacceptable and that the Special Committee would not entertain any discussion of a change in price until all other terms of the definitive agreements and IDG's arrangements with management had been finalized.

Between April 3, 2013 and April 16, 2013, Skadden, Foley Hoag, RLF and WilmerHale continued to exchange revisions of the definitive agreements, and the Special Committee held telephone meetings on April 4, April 12 and April 16, 2013 to review the progress of these negotiations.

In its meeting on April 16, 2013, the Special Committee received reports from representatives of RBC, Foley Hoag and RLF on the status of the negotiations and remaining open issues. The members of the Special Committee acknowledged that IDG's demand for a lower price was understandable in light of our reduced revenue projection for 2013 and discussed the possible effect on our stock price of announcing that the IDG proposal had been rejected or withdrawn. After extensive discussion, the Special Committee resolved to communicate to IDG a counterproposal for the resolution of all open issues, which included a price of \$4.30 per share, a reverse termination fee of 4% of transaction value, reduced by the amount of any expenses to be reimbursed by us, to be capped at \$700,000. This proposal was conveyed by representatives of RBC to IDG.

On April 16 and 17, 2013, further negotiations occurred directly between Mr. Blethen and IDG, as a result of which IDG made a final oral offer of \$4.225 per share in cash, and IDG also accepted the Special Committee's position on the other outstanding terms.

On April 18, 2013, the Special Committee met again, with representatives of Foley Hoag and RLF, to discuss the progress of negotiations. Mr. Blethen reported on his direct negotiations with IDG, and the Special Committee discussed IDG's offer and the open issues in the merger agreement. Following discussion, the Special Committee agreed in principle that \$4.225 per share in cash, subject to IDG accepting the Special Committee's position on the other outstanding terms, was acceptable. The Special Committee directed Mr. Blethen to convey this message to IDG, and directed counsel to deliver to IDG a final draft of the merger agreement, reflecting the terms discussed.

Between April 18 and April 22, 2013, representatives of Foley Hoag, RLF and Skadden completed the preparation of the definitive Merger Agreement, the Equity Commitment Letter (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement and described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Financing*," beginning on page 68), the Limited Guaranty and the Voting Agreement and Skadden and WilmerHale completed the preparation of the definitive Contribution Agreement (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement and described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Financing*," beginning on page 68), the Limited Guaranty and the Voting Agreement and Skadden and WilmerHale completed the preparation of the definitive Contribution Agreement (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement and described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Financing*," beginning on page 68), among IDG, our executive officers and certain other members of our management.

Table of Contents

On April 22, 2013, the Special Committee met, along with representatives of RLF, Foley Hoag and RBC, to consider the definitive Merger Agreement and related agreements. Following a presentation by the Foley Hoag representatives, the Special Committee considered the key terms of the Merger Agreement, the Limited Guaranty and the Equity Commitment Letter, including in particular the terms of the non-solicitation covenant, the size of the termination fee, the ability to pursue superior offers or change the Board's recommendation under specified conditions, IDG's matching rights, the parties' remedies for breach, the provisions relating to the Parent Termination Fee, the terms under which the parties could terminate the Merger Agreement and the fees and expenses that would or might become payable upon or following termination.

The RLF and Foley Hoag representatives then reviewed with the members of the Special Committee the fiduciary duties of our Board in connection with a decision to sell our company. The Special Committee considered the thoroughness of the sale process that RBC had conducted, the number of parties contacted since early 2012, the number of parties that conducted exploratory due diligence and the nature of their responses, the fact that, apart from IDG, no other party had submitted a formal bid at any price, and the unlikelihood, in its view, that IDG would be willing to agree to any higher price than \$4.225 per share. The Special Committee considered whether the alternative of remaining a stand-alone company, in lieu of a sale, would offer better value to stockholders, and, in this connection, considered its prior discussions of our financial performance and stock price over recent periods, and its assessment of the probability that management's current strategic plan could be successfully executed and that management's related projections of our financial performance over the next four years could be attained.

The representatives of RBC reviewed with the Special Committee RBC's financial analyses of the proposed transaction and, after discussion with the members of the Special Committee, delivered RBC's oral opinion, subsequently confirmed in writing, that, as of April 22, 2013, based upon and subject to the various assumptions, procedures, factors, qualifications and limitations set forth in the written opinion, the cash merger consideration of \$4.225 per share to be received by holders of shares of our Common Stock (other than the Rollover Holders) pursuant to the Merger Agreement was fair, from a financial point of view, to such stockholders.

Following these presentations and the related discussions, the Special Committee unanimously determined to recommend to our Board that it approve the \$4.225 per share price and the other terms of the transaction.

Immediately following this meeting, a meeting of our full Board was convened, with all members of the Board participating in person or telephonically. The Special Committee presented its recommendation, whereupon the Board, with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining and all other members voting in favor, determined that the Merger Agreement was advisable and in the best interests of our company and our stockholders, unanimously approved the merger in accordance with the DGCL, and unanimously recommended that our stockholders vote in favor of adoption of the Merger Agreement.

Later that evening, we, Parent and Merger Sub executed the Merger Agreement and Sponsor delivered the executed Limited Guaranty and Equity Commitment Letter.

On April 23, 2013, we issued a press release announcing the execution of the Merger Agreement.

Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger

The Special Committee has unanimously determined that the merger, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, is fair to, and in the best interest of, our company and our unaffiliated stockholders.



Table of Contents

Additionally, the Special Committee unanimously approved the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby (including, without limitation, the merger), determined that the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby are advisable and in the best interests of, and fair to, our company and our stockholders, and recommended that our Board:

approve and declare advisable the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby (including the merger);

declare that it is in the best interests of our stockholders that we enter into the Merger Agreement and consummate the transactions contemplated thereby on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in Merger Agreement;

submit the Merger Agreement to our stockholders for adoption;

recommend that our stockholders adopt the Merger Agreement and approve the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby; and

approve the Merger Agreement, the Limited Guaranty, the Equity Commitment Letter, the Contribution Agreement and the Voting Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby for purposes of Section 203.

Based upon the unanimous recommendations of the Special Committee, our Board unanimously (with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining):

determined that the merger, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, is fair to, and in the best interest of, our company and our unaffiliated stockholders;

approved and declared advisable our execution, delivery and performance of the Merger Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby (including the merger); and

recommended that our stockholders vote for the Merger Proposal.

Determinations of the Special Committee

In approving the Merger Agreement and making its recommendations to our Board, the Special Committee, acting with the assistance of its legal and financial advisors, considered various factors relating to us, our business and prospects, the risks and challenges we faced, and the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger. In the view of the Special Committee, all of these factors generally supported the Special Committee's approval of the Merger Agreement, its aforementioned recommendations to our Board, and the Special Committee's belief that the merger is fair to our unaffiliated stockholders. In reaching its conclusions and making its recommendations to our Board, the Special Committee considered factors including, but not limited to, the following (which factors are not presented in any relative order of importance):

the advice of the Special Committee's independent legal counsel, RLF, regarding the fiduciary duties of the members of the Special Committee under applicable Delaware law;

the rules and procedures adopted by the Special Committee and agreed to by Parent and IDG with respect to their pursuit of their acquisition proposal and their interactions with us and our management, with the objective of achieving an even-handed, orderly and efficient process, directed, monitored and controlled by the Special Committee, for considering the proposal of Parent and IDG as well as other acquisition proposals that might be submitted to us;

the fairness opinion of RBC, the Special Committee's financial advisor, that, as of the date of such opinion, and based upon and subject to the considerations, assumptions, limitations, qualifications and other matters set forth therein, the merger consideration to be received by the

Table of Contents

holders of our Common Stock (other than the Rollover Holders) was fair, from a financial point of view, to such stockholders, as more fully described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading entitled " *Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration,*" beginning on page 45;

the financial analyses and presentations provided by RBC to the Special Committee, including the presentation of the analyses underlying the fairness opinion of RBC, described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading entitled " *Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration*," beginning on page 45;

the current and historical market prices of our Common Stock, and the fact that the merger consideration represented a premium of approximately 56% to the closing market price of our Common Stock on April 22, 2013, the last trading day before the public announcement of the signing of the Merger Agreement, as well as a premium of approximately 143% to the closing market price of our Common Stock on November 20, 2012, the last trading day before we announced that we had received a non-binding proposal from IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P., one of the IDG Funds, to acquire us for \$4.00 per share;

that the Special Committee unanimously believed the merger consideration was more favorable to our unaffiliated stockholders than the potential value that might result from other alternatives reasonably available to us, including the alternative of remaining a stand-alone public company, in light of a number of factors, including the risks and uncertainty associated with those alternatives;

in this regard, the Special Committee considered the facts that our largest customer, Samsung, had, in early 2012, significantly reduced its purchases of our products; that for the full year 2012, sales had declined in each of our three largest markets, not only in the mobile phone market that was adversely affected by our loss of business from Samsung, but also in our markets for automotive and industrial applications, while only our smallest and most volatile market, for consumer applications, experienced growth; that we had recently adopted a new strategy to diversify our customer base and introduce higher-margin products, which strategy was as yet unproven and would involve significant near term reductions in revenue and significant increases in research and development and other operating expenses; that, following the announcement of the foregoing developments, our stock price had declined and remained at a level significantly below the \$4.225 per share merger consideration, a development that the Special Committee did not consider merely a temporary phenomenon, but rather a market response to longer-term trends in our business that would require a change in strategy to reverse; that any estimate of our results of operations under our new strategy was subject to substantial execution risk and uncertainty; that for the first quarter of 2013, revenues declined in all four of our markets, to a total of \$11.4 million, or 57% of the total in the comparable period in 2012, and significantly below our management's preliminary operating budget for 2013; that since our initial public offering in 2007, the market price of our Common Stock has been, and may in the future be, volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in response to numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control; that our Common Stock is currently covered by research analysts at only two investment firms, is thinly traded and is relatively illiquid, limiting the ability of our stockholders to realize the value of their investment in us and our Common Stock;

the fact that approximately five months elapsed between the November 20, 2012 public announcement that IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P. had submitted its non-binding proposal to acquire us and the April 22, 2013 execution of the Merger Agreement, during which we conducted a lengthy and thorough sale process with the assistance of RBC, and such efforts did not yield any alternative proposals to acquire us;

Table of Contents

that, aside from the offers made by IDG and Parent prior to our entry into the Merger Agreement, the Special Committee and our Board had not received any offer for a merger, a sale of all or a substantial part of our assets, or a purchase of a controlling amount of our Common Stock at any time preceding the signing of the Merger Agreement;

the fact that, earlier in 2012, we had, with the assistance of RBC, conducted a five-month confidential process to evaluate our strategic alternatives, including a possible sale of our company, and that this confidential process, through which representatives of RBC contacted 21 parties, including both participants in our industry and private equity investors, and entered into nondisclosure agreements and due diligence discussions with 9 of those parties, had not resulted in any firm offer or proposal to acquire us at any price or to engage in any other strategic alternative involving a third party;

that \$4.225 per share represented the highest price that any third party had been prepared to pay after having received nonpublic information from us and conducting due diligence;

that one of our substantial institutional stockholders, not known to the Special Committee to have any affiliation with IDG, had written to our Board to state that "We are strong supporters of the IDG proposal because of its large price premium at \$4," adding "We will support a competitive auction if it can be conducted expeditiously. However we don't think this is necessary because IDG has offered a very big premium and being a board member they are already best placed to pay a good price."

the fact that on November 26, 2012, Potomac Capital (an unaffiliated institutional investor and beneficial owner of over 4% of our Common Stock at the time) filed a Schedule 13D with the SEC, announcing Potomac's support of the November 10, 2012 IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P. unsolicited, non-binding proposal to acquire us for \$4.00 per share;

in this regard, Potomac Capital referred to IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P.'s \$4.00 non-binding bid as "an attractive means to return capital to stockholders;"

that since November 20, 2012, our Common Stock had traded at a significant discount to the \$4.00 per share price in the original IDG proposal, indicating to the Special Committee that our stockholders generally discounted the likelihood that any offer would be made at any higher price;

that the Special Committee believed the merger consideration was fair to our unaffiliated stockholders in light of the Special Committee's understanding of our business, assets, results of operations, financial condition, competitive position, strategy, prospects and projected financial performance, and the nature of the industry and regulatory environment in which we compete;

that the proposed merger consideration is all cash, so that the transaction allows our unaffiliated stockholders to realize a fair value, in cash, for their investment and provides such unaffiliated stockholders certainty of value for their shares, especially when viewed against the risks inherent in our business, including the various risks we have disclosed under Item 1A, "Risk Factors," of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, as filed with the SEC on March 22, 2013, and included with these proxy materials as Annex D, and the risks and uncertainties inherent in our new strategic plan;

The terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement and related transaction documents, including but not limited to:

the absence of a financing condition in the Merger Agreement;

Table of Contents

the fact that Parent had, as of the signing of the Merger Agreement, obtained committed equity financing from Sponsor sufficient to pay the merger consideration for all stockholders other than the Rollover Holders;

the obligations of Parent and Merger Sub to obtain alternative financing, in an amount sufficient to consummate the merger and on terms not materially less favorable (in the aggregate), in the event such parties' financing becomes unavailable in the manner or from the sources contemplated in the Merger Agreement;

our ability, subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, to seek specific performance of Parent's and Merger Sub's obligations to consummate the merger and obtain the financing contemplated by the Merger Agreement;

the representation of Parent and Merger Sub in the Merger Agreement that, subject to the accuracy of the information we have provided, upon the completion of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement and at the effective time of the Merger, the Surviving Corporation will be solvent and will not have an unreasonably small amount of capital for the operation of its business;

the condition to the consummation of the merger that the Merger Agreement be adopted by the affirmative vote of stockholders representing a majority of the issued and outstanding Common Stock;

the fact that our Board or any applicable committee thereof may explore a Competing Transaction, including the provision of non-public information to and the entering of discussions with a potential competing acquirer, if the Board or any applicable committee thereof determines, in its good faith judgment after consultation with a financial advisor and outside legal counsel, that such Competing Transaction is or could reasonably be expected to lead to a Superior Proposal, and certain other conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement are met;

the ability of our Board or any applicable committee thereof to: (i) change, withhold, withdraw, qualify or modify its recommendation that our stockholders adopt the Merger Agreement; or (ii) adopt, approve or recommend a Competing Transaction, if, prior to the special meeting of our stockholders to be held for the purpose of voting upon the Merger Proposal, our Board or any applicable committee thereof determines in its good faith judgment, and after consultation with outside counsel, that failure to take these actions would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with its fiduciary duties;

the provision of the Merger Agreement allowing us to terminate the Merger Agreement in certain circumstances relating to the presence of a Superior Proposal, subject to the payment of a termination fee of \$1.77 million;

the fact that the \$1.77 million termination fee, payable by us in certain circumstances, is relatively minor and reasonable in comparison to the aggregate value of the merger and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement;

the requirement that, in the event of a failure of the merger to be consummated under certain circumstances, Parent will be obligated to pay us a termination fee of \$3.54 million, and the fact that such payment obligation is guaranteed by Sponsor pursuant to the Limited Guaranty;

the terms and conditions of the Voting Agreement, whereby certain of the Rollover Holders, including each of our executive officers, and each of the IDG Funds have agreed to vote in favor of the Merger Proposal; and

Table of Contents

the fact that the Voting Agreement terminates upon any termination of the Merger Agreement and does not otherwise restrict our ability to explore a Superior Proposal in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement;

its assessment of the risk of non-consummation of the merger due to the failure to obtain the affirmative vote of stockholders representing a majority of the issued and outstanding Common Stock;

its view that there is a high degree of certainty that the merger can be consummated, in view of the terms of the Merger Agreement and related documents, the limited closing conditions and the absence of significant required regulatory approvals;

the likelihood that the merger can be consummated promptly;

the Special Committee's belief that Parent and IDG would likely be able to acquire us at a higher price per share than any potential competing bidder due to the significant equity position of the IDG Funds, especially if the IDG Funds were unwilling to sell their 19.4% stake in connection with any alternative transaction involving our acquisition;

the Special Committee's belief that the economic interests of each director on the Special Committee with respect to the merger are aligned with those of our unaffiliated stockholders whose shares of Common Stock will be converted in the merger into the right to receive the merger consideration, because the members of the Special Committee may be deemed to own, in the aggregate, 2,602,620 shares of our Common Stock, including Company Options and restricted stock units (see "*Important Information Regarding MEMSIC Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management*" beginning on page 118 of this proxy statement);

in this regard, Mr. Michael Tung, a member of the Special Committee, may be deemed to beneficially own 2,357,620 shares of Common Stock based on his position as Chief Financial Officer and Managing Partner of VentureStar-InveStar Capital Inc., an affiliate of InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc. (which holds 1,285,551 shares of Common Stock), and InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc. (II) LCD (which holds 1,072,069 shares of Common Stock);

the active and direct role of the chairman of the Special Committee, Roger W. Blethen, and the Special Committee's representatives in the negotiations with respect to the Merger Agreement, and the consideration by the Special Committee at numerous meetings of the status and key issues being discussed in such negotiations;

the negotiations that took place between the Special Committee and the Special Committee's representatives, on the one hand, and Parent, IDG and the representatives of Parent and IDG on the other hand, which resulted in the increase in the merger consideration from IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P.'s initial non-binding offer of \$4.00 per share to \$4.225 per share, and the belief of the members of the Special Committee that \$4.225 per share was the highest price that Parent and IDG would pay to our stockholders;

the availability of appraisal rights under Delaware law to our stockholders who do not vote in favor of the Merger Proposal and who otherwise comply with all of the required procedures under Delaware law, which provides those eligible stockholders with an opportunity to have a Delaware court determine the fair value of their shares, which may be more than, less than, or the same as the amount such stockholders would have received under the Merger Agreement;

the Special Committee's belief that it was fully informed about the extent to which the interests of Dr. Zhao, the other executive officers, and Dr. Zhou in the merger differed from those of our unaffiliated stockholders;

Table of Contents

the fact that, in the absence of the merger, we would continue to incur significant expenses by remaining a public company, including the related legal, accounting, transfer agent, printing and filing fees, which could adversely affect our financial performance and the value of our Common Stock; and

such other factors, considerations, documents, information and advice as the Special Committee deemed necessary or appropriate in order to reach its decision whether to approve the Merger Agreement and recommend that the Board approve and recommend to our stockholders that they vote in favor of the Merger Proposal.

The Special Committee believes that each of these factors supported its unanimous recommendations to the Board, as described above.

In evaluating the fairness of the merger, the Special Committee did not consider:

our net book value, because the Special Committee believes that net book value, which we calculated as stockholders' equity less net intangible assets, is not a material indicator of the value of the Common Stock, but rather is an accounting concept indicative of historical asset costs (our net book value per share as of March 31, 2013 was approximately \$3.10, assuming 24,296,504 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of May 10, 2013, which is approximately 27% lower than the merger consideration);

the purchase prices paid in the transactions described under "Important Information Regarding MEMSIC Transactions in Common Stock" beginning on page 121 of this proxy statement, due to the isolated nature and limited magnitude of such transactions (though the Special Committee notes that the consideration to be received by our unaffiliated stockholders represents a premium over such prices);

any other firm offers for a merger, a sale of all or a substantial part of our assets, or a purchase of a controlling amount of our Common Stock, as the Special Committee (and the Board) were not aware of our having received any such firm offer(s) from anyone other than Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders in the two years preceding the signing of the Merger Agreement; and

our liquidation value, because the Special Committee considered us to be a viable, going concern and therefore did not consider liquidation value to be a relevant methodology.

In addition, the Special Committee did not determine, nor did it ask RBC to formally estimate, a pre-merger going concern value for the Common Stock as such. The Special Committee did, however, consider relevant to our going concern value the discounted cash flow analysis performed by RBC, as described below under "Special Factors Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration," beginning on page 45 of this proxy statement. The Special Committee does not believe there is a single reliable method of determining going concern value, although the Special Committee believes the analyses of RBC in their totality may, to some degree, be generally reflective of going concern value, and the Special Committee adopted RBC's discounted cash flow analysis in reaching its conclusion with respect to the fairness of the merger to our unaffiliated stockholders. Further, to the extent the pre-merger going concern value was reflected in the pre-announcement per share price of the Common Stock, the merger consideration represented a significant premium to that going concern value per share. The Special Committee did not specifically consider the high and low sales prices for the Common Stock as described under "Important Information Regarding MEMSIC Market Price and Dividend Information" beginning on page 117 of this proxy statement, but did review trading prices of the Common Stock over the two-year period prior to the execution of the Merger Agreement. The Special Committee noted that the \$4.225 merger consideration to be received by unaffiliated stockholders represented a substantial premium over the "high" sale prices of the Common

Table of Contents

Stock at all times since our announcement on May 8, 2012 that we expected revenues from our largest customer to decrease substantially in 2012.

In the course of reaching the determinations and decisions and making the recommendations described above, the Special Committee also considered the following factors relating to the procedural safeguards that the Special Committee believed were and are present to ensure the fairness of the merger, each of which safeguards the members of the Special Committee believe supported their decision and provided assurances regarding the fairness of the merger:

that the Special Committee is composed of three independent directors who are not affiliated with Parent, Merger Sub or IDG and have never been employees of Parent, Merger Sub, or any affiliate of IDG;

that, following our November 20, 2012 disclosure of the non-binding proposal from IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P. to acquire us for \$4.00 per share and our appointment of the Special Committee to evaluate such proposal and other alternatives available to us, we did not receive any alternate bids at any price or other offers to enter into any other third party transaction(s), despite:

the Special Committee retaining RBC as its financial advisor to assist with evaluating IDG's proposal and exploring strategic alternatives;

the Special Committee conducting a lengthy and thorough sale process during which representatives of RBC, at the direction of the Special Committee, actively solicited a range of potential buyers to submit competing proposals to acquire us; and

the fact that any party expressing interest in a possible transaction with or acquisition of our company was permitted to conduct due diligence and make a proposal, subject only to the requirement that it enter into a customary confidentiality agreement;

that the Special Committee was advised by independent legal counsel and financial advisors in connection with exploring strategic alternatives and negotiating the terms of any transaction, including the merger;

that there were vigorous negotiations between the advisors of Parent and IDG and the advisors of the Special Committee, with the direct involvement of the chairman of the Special Committee, regarding the merger consideration and the other terms of the merger and the Merger Agreement;

that the Special Committee conducted extensive deliberations regarding the merger over a period of approximately five months;

the fact that the members of the Special Committee do not have a financial interest in the merger different from those of our unaffiliated stockholders, other than: (i) receipt of Board and Special Committee fees (which were not contingent upon the consummation of the merger or the recommendation of any transaction); (ii) customary and reasonable indemnification and director liability insurance rights under the Merger Agreement; and (iii) acceleration of unvested director equity awards upon consummation of the merger, on the same terms applicable to our employees holding such awards;

that the Special Committee, whose members comprise a majority of our Board, had the ultimate authority to decide whether or not to proceed with a transaction or any alternative thereto;

that the Special Committee and our Board had no obligation to recommend any transaction;

that the Special Committee requested and received from RBC a written opinion dated April 22, 2013, that, as of that date and based upon and subject to the considerations, assumptions,

Table of Contents

limitations, qualifications and other matters set forth therein, the merger consideration to be received by our stockholders (other than the Rollover Holders) pursuant to the merger was fair, from a financial point of view, to such stockholders;

that the adoption of the Merger Agreement and the consummation of the merger is subject to the affirmative vote of stockholders representing a majority of the issued and outstanding Common Stock;

that we retain the ability to terminate the Merger Agreement in order to enter into an alternative agreement with respect to a Superior Proposal, subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement and our payment of a customary and reasonable termination fee;

that the Special Committee made its evaluation of the Merger Agreement and the merger based upon the factors discussed in this proxy statement and with the full knowledge of the interests of management and the interested directors (Drs. Zhao and Zhou) in the merger; and

that dissenting stockholders who oppose the merger may assert and demand appraisal rights under the DGCL.

In light of the procedural safeguards described above, the Special Committee did not consider it necessary in order to adequately protect the interests of our stockholders to: (i) structure the merger such that approval of at least a majority of our unaffiliated stockholders is required to effect the transaction; or (ii) retain an unaffiliated representative to act solely on behalf of our unaffiliated stockholders to negotiate the terms of the Merger Agreement or prepare a report concerning the fairness of the Merger Agreement and the merger.

In the course of reaching the determinations and decisions and making the recommendations described above, the Special Committee also considered a variety of risks and potentially negative factors relating to the Merger Agreement, the merger and the other transactions contemplated thereby. These factors included, but were not limited to, the following:

the fact that, following the merger, our stockholders (other than any Rollover Holders who will have become equity investors in Parent at the effective time of the merger) will have no ongoing equity participation in the Surviving Corporation following the merger, and that such stockholders will cease to participate in our future earnings or growth, if any, or to benefit from increases, if any, in the value of the Common Stock, and will not participate in any potential future sale of Parent or the Surviving Corporation to a third party;

the possibility that, after the completion of the merger, Parent could cause the Surviving Corporation to engage in unspecified transactions including restructuring efforts, special dividends or the sale of some or all of the shares or assets of the Surviving Corporation to one or more purchasers, which transactions could conceivably produce a higher aggregate value than that available to stockholders in the merger;

the fact that those directors that were not appointed to the Special Committee (Drs. Zhao and Zhou), have interests that are different from those of our unaffiliated stockholders, as described under this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger;*"

the fact that, although the Special Committee expects the merger to be consummated, there can be no assurances that all conditions to the parties' obligations to complete the merger will be satisfied, and as a result, the merger may not be completed, even if the Merger Agreement is adopted by our stockholders;

the risk of non-completion of the merger as a result of the failure to obtain the affirmative vote of stockholders representing a majority of the issued and outstanding Common Stock;

Table of Contents

the possibility that we could be required, under certain circumstances, to pay to Parent a termination fee of \$1.77 million;

the risks to our business if the merger is not completed, including the diversion of management and employee attention, potential employee attrition and the potential effect on business and customer relationships;

the substantial expenses we have incurred and expect to incur in connection with the merger, including in connection with litigation resulting from the announcement or pendency of the merger;

the fact that the 19.4% ownership stake of the IDG Funds may have made a competing third-party offer at a value in excess of the \$4.225 per share offered by Parent (which is an affiliate of Sponsor and the IDG Funds) less likely than if such ownership stake did not exist;

the Merger Agreement's restrictions on the conduct of our business before the completion of the merger, generally requiring us to conduct our business only in the ordinary course, subject to numerous limitations, which may delay or prevent us from undertaking valuable business opportunities that may arise before the completion of the merger; and

the fact that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes and under PRC tax law, the merger consideration could be taxable to those of our stockholders receiving the merger consideration.

The foregoing discussion of the information and factors considered by the Special Committee includes the material factors considered by the Special Committee. In view of the variety of factors considered in connection with its evaluation of the merger, the Special Committee did not find it practicable to, and did not, quantify or otherwise assign relative weights to the specific factors considered in reaching its determination and recommendation. In addition, individual directors may have given different weights to different factors. The Special Committee made its recommendations to our Board with respect to the Merger Agreement and the merger based upon the totality of the information it considered.

Determinations of the Board of Directors

Our Board consists of five directors: Roger Blethen, Dr. Lawrence Kaufman, Michael Tung, Dr. Yang Zhao and Dr. Quan Zhou. Drs. Zhao and Zhou were not appointed to the Special Committee because of their conflicts of interests with respect to the merger, as described under this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger*" beginning on page 70. On April 22, 2013, immediately following the meeting of the Special Committee at which the Special Committee determined to make the recommendations to our Board described above, our Board held a meeting, at which all five directors participated telephonically, to consider the recommendations of the Special Committee with respect to the merger. At the commencement of the meeting, Drs. Zhao and Zhou announced their intentions to abstain from voting with respect to the merger. Accordingly, the members of our Board who cast votes with respect to the merger were the same three directors who comprise the Special Committee. At the meeting, our Board, acting upon the unanimous recommendation of the Special Committee, unanimously (with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining): (i) determined that the merger, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, is fair to, and in the best interest of, our company and our unaffiliated stockholders; (ii) approved and declared advisable our execution, delivery and performance of the Merger Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger; and (iii) resolved to recommend that our stockholders vote for the Merger Proposal. Accordingly, the merger was also approved by a majority of our directors that are not employees of our company or any of its subsidiaries.

Table of Contents

Because the members of our Board who cast votes with respect to the foregoing matters relating to the merger were the same three directors who comprise the Special Committee, the factors considered by our Board in taking the foregoing actions were the same as the factors considered by the Special Committee.

The Board, with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining, unanimously recommends that you vote "FOR" the adoption of the Merger Agreement.

Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration

On April 22, 2013, as financial advisor to the Special Committee, RBC rendered its written opinion to the Special Committee that, as of that date and subject to the assumptions, qualifications and limitations set forth in its opinion, the merger consideration of \$4.225 per share in cash, without interest, for each share of our Common Stock was fair, from a financial point of view, to the holders of such Common Stock, other than the Rollover Holders. The full text of RBC's written opinion dated April 22, 2013 is attached to this proxy statement as Annex B and constitutes part of this proxy statement. RBC's opinion was approved by the RBC M&A Fairness Opinion Committee. This summary of RBC's opinion is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the opinion. We urge you to read RBC's opinion carefully in its entirety for a description of the procedures followed, assumptions made, matters considered and limitations on the review undertaken by RBC.

RBC's opinion was provided for the information and assistance of the Special Committee in connection with its consideration of the merger. RBC's opinion did not address the merits of our underlying decision to engage in the merger or the relative merits of the merger compared to any alternative business strategy or transaction in which we might engage. RBC's opinion and the analyses performed by RBC in connection with its opinion, as reviewed by the Special Committee, were only two of many factors taken into consideration by the Special Committee in connection with its evaluation of the merger. **RBC's opinion does not constitute a recommendation to any holder of Common Stock as to how such holder should vote with respect to the merger or any other proposal to be voted upon by them in connection with the merger.**

RBC's opinion addressed solely the fairness of the merger consideration, from a financial point of view, to the holders of such Common Stock, other than the Rollover Holders, and did not in any way address other terms or arrangements of the merger or the Merger Agreement, including, without limitation, the financial or other terms of any other agreement contemplated by, or entered into in connection with, the Merger Agreement. Further, in rendering its opinion, RBC expressed no opinion about the fairness of the amount or nature of the compensation to any of our directors, officers or employees, or any class of such persons, relative to the consideration to be paid to holders of Common Stock.

In rendering its opinion, RBC assumed and relied upon the accuracy and completeness of all the information that was publicly available to RBC and all of the financial, legal, tax, operating and other information that we provided to or discussed with RBC, including, without limitation, our financial statements and related notes thereto. RBC did not assume responsibility for independently verifying, and did not independently verify, this information. RBC assumed that all projections and forecasts we provided were reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and good faith judgments of our future financial performance as a standalone entity. RBC expressed no opinion as to those projections and forecasts or the assumptions on which they were based. RBC did not assume any responsibility to perform, and did not perform, an independent evaluation or appraisal of any of our assets or liabilities, and RBC was not furnished with any such valuations or appraisals. In addition, RBC did not assume any obligation to conduct, and did not conduct, any physical inspection of our properties or facilities. RBC did not investigate and made no assumption regarding any litigation or other claims affecting us.



Table of Contents

In rendering its opinion, RBC assumed, in all respects material to its analysis, that all conditions to the consummation of the merger would be satisfied without waiver. RBC further assumed that the executed versions of the Merger Agreement, the Contribution Agreement, the Voting Agreement, the Limited Guaranty, and the Equity Commitment Letter would not differ, in any respect material to its opinion, from the version thereof reviewed by RBC.

RBC's opinion spoke only as of the date it was rendered, was based on the conditions as they existed and information with which RBC was supplied as of such date, and was without regard to any market, economic, financial, legal or other circumstances or events of any kind or nature which may exist or occur after such date. RBC did not undertake to reaffirm or revise its opinion or otherwise comment on events occurring after the date of its opinion and does not have an obligation to update, revise or reaffirm its opinion. Unless otherwise noted, all analyses were performed based on market information available as of April 19, 2013, the trading day on which RBC finalized its analysis.

In connection with its review of the merger and the preparation and rendering of its opinion, RBC undertook the review and inquiries it deemed necessary and appropriate under the circumstances, including:

reviewing the financial terms of (i) the execution copy of the Merger Agreement received by RBC on April 22, 2013, (ii) the execution copy of the Contribution Agreement received by RBC on April 22, 2013, (iii) the execution copy of the Voting Agreement received by RBC on April 22, 2013, (iv) the execution copy of the Limited Guaranty received by RBC on April 22, 2013, and (v) the execution copy of the Equity Commitment Letter received by RBC on April 22, 2013;

reviewing and analyzing certain of our publicly available financial and other data with respect to us and certain other relevant historic operating data relating to us, made available to RBC from published sources and our internal records;

conducting discussions with members of our senior management with respect to our business prospects and financial outlook as a standalone entity;

reviewing reported prices and trading activity for our Common Stock;

reviewing certain information relating to our historical, current and future operations, financial condition and prospects, as we made available to RBC, including financial projections prepared by our management for the fiscal years ending 2013 through 2016, with certain adjustments thereto based on guidance from our management, as publicly disclosed on March 8, 2013; and

performing other studies and analyses as RBC deemed appropriate.

Set forth below is a summary of the material financial analyses performed by RBC in connection with the rendering of its opinion, as reviewed with the Special Committee at its meeting on April 22, 2013. The order of analyses described does not represent relative importance or weight given to those analyses by RBC. Some of the summaries of the financial analyses include information presented in tabular format. To fully understand the summary of the analyses used by RBC, the tables must be read together with the text of each summary. The tables alone do not constitute a complete description of the analysis.

For purposes of its analyses, RBC reviewed a number of financial and operating metrics, including:

Enterprise Value ("EV"), calculated as the value of the relevant company's outstanding equity securities (taking into account its convertible securities and other rights to acquire equity securities and other rights to acquire equity securities) based on the relevant company's closing stock price, or equity value, plus net debt (calculated as outstanding indebtedness, preferred stock and capital lease obligations less the amount of cash on its balance sheet), as of the specified date;

Table of Contents

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, adjusted for non-cash items (including stock-based compensation), and certain non-recurring and one-time charges, or "EBITDA;"

EBITDA less taxes, changes in working capital, and capital expenditures, or unlevered free cash flow (which we refer to as "UFCF").

Unless the context indicates otherwise, each of: (i) historical financial information for the most recently completed twelve-month period for which financial information had been made public ("LTM"); and (ii) financial information for each company analyzed, to the extent applicable, excluded:

stock-based compensation expenses and long-term incentive programs;

restructuring and other related closure costs;

gain or loss on sales of assets;

impairment charges;

acquired inventory step-up and revaluation;

acquisition-related costs;

litigation costs;

start-up costs;

secondary offering expenses; and

write-offs of notes receivable.

Our EVs, and corresponding EV multiples, as described below, are based on debt, cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2012, and on estimated shares outstanding using the treasury stock method, as of April 22, 2013, based on our management's estimates. Our LTM multiples, as described below, are based on information as of December 31, 2012.

Precedent Transaction Analysis

RBC reviewed certain implied transaction multiples for a set of precedent merger and acquisition transactions as compared to the corresponding implied transaction multiples for the merger. In selecting these precedent transactions, RBC considered mergers and acquisitions publicly announced since January 1, 2009 in the semiconductor device industry, in which the publicly-traded target company had a transaction value between \$25 and \$275 million.

RBC compared EV-to-LTM revenue and EV-to-LTM EBITDA multiples relating to the merger with corresponding LTM multiples in the selected precedent transactions. LTM amounts for the selected target companies were based on the most recently completed twelve-month period for which financial information had been made public at the time of the announcement of each transaction. EV data and other financial

information for the selected transactions were based on publicly available information at the time of the relevant transaction. Financial data regarding the precedent transactions

Table of Contents

was taken from filings with the SEC and other public filings, Wall Street research, Dealogic, FactSet and Bloomberg.

Acquiror	Target
Diodes Incorporated	BCD Semiconductor Manufacturing Limited
Cypress Semiconductor Corporation	Ramtron International Corp.
Golden Gate Private Equity, Inc.	Conexant Systems Inc.
Zoran Corporation	Microtune, Inc.(1)
Microsemi Corporation	White Electronic Designs Corporation
Microchip Technology Inc.	Silicon Storage Technology, Inc.(1)
ON Semiconductor Corp.	California Micro Devices Corporation(1)
IXYS Corp.	Zilog Inc.(1)
Virage Logic Corporation	ARC International Limited(1)
Integrated Device Technology, Inc.	Tundra Semiconductor Corporation
Exar Corp.	Hifn, Inc.(1)
CSR plc	SiRF Technology Holdings, Inc.(1)

(1)

Indicates selected transactions with not meaningful EBITDA multiples when relevant EBITDA figures are less than zero or EBITDA multiples are greater than 40.0x. Of these, California Micro Devices Corporation, Zilog Inc., ARC International Limited, Hifn, Inc. and SiRF Technology Holdings, Inc. had LTM EBITDA figures of less than zero while two of the transactions, Microtune, Inc. and Silicon Storage Technology, Inc., had LTM EBITDA multiples greater than 40.0x. These transactions were excluded from the summary of calculations of EV as a multiple of LTM EBITDA in the table set forth below based on RBC's judgment that in all seven transactions, the parties valued the target company on a basis other than LTM EBITDA multiples.

The following table compares the selected implied transaction multiples for the merger with the corresponding multiples for the selected precedent transactions:

	Min.	Precedent Tr Median	Our Company (As Implied by the Merger Per Share Price)		
EV as a multiple of:					
LTM Revenue	0.1x	0.9x	1.0x	1.7x	1.0x
LTM EBITDA	6.6x	7.9x	9.7x	14.6x	10.9x

RBC noted that the EV-to-LTM revenue multiple implied by the merger consideration was within the range of such multiples for the selected precedent transactions and was above or equal to both the mean and median multiples found in such precedent transactions. RBC noted that the EV-to-LTM EBITDA multiple implied by the merger consideration was within the range of such multiples for the selected precedent transactions and was above both the mean and median multiples found in such precedent transactions.

Public Company Analysis

RBC reviewed certain financial and operating information and implied trading multiples for selected publicly-traded companies as compared to the corresponding information and implied trading multiples for us. In choosing the selected companies, RBC considered publicly traded companies focused primarily on semiconductor devices listed on public U.S. exchanges with projected revenue growth and historical gross margin and EBITDA margin profiles similar to ours.

In this analysis, RBC compared our EV implied by the merger consideration, expressed as a multiple of our projected calendar year 2013 and 2014 revenue and EBITDA, to the corresponding multiples of projected calendar year 2013 and 2014 EV-to-revenue and EV-to-EBITDA of the selected companies implied by the public trading prices of their common stock. EV data for the selected

Table of Contents

companies was based on publicly available information for each company as of April 19, 2013. Stock market information was based on closing stock prices on April 19, 2013. Projected revenue and EBITDA were based on Wall Street research in our case, and, in the case of the selected companies, Capital IQ and FactSet consensus estimates.

Selected Semiconductor Companies

Himax Technologies, Inc.;

International Rectifier Corporation;

IXYS Corp.;

MagnaChip Semiconductor Corporation;

Pericom Semiconductor Corp.;

RF Micro Devices Inc.;

STMicroelectronics NV;

Supertex Inc.; and

TriQuint Semiconductor, Inc.

The following table presents our implied EV-to-revenue and EV-to-EBITDA multiples, and the corresponding multiples for the selected companies, for the periods reviewed by RBC in connection with its analysis:

		Selected C	Our Company (As Implied by the Merger Per		
	Min.	Median	Mean	Max.	Share Price)
EV as a multiple of:					
2013F Revenue	0.4x	0.7x	0.9x	1.8x	0.9x
2014F Revenue	0.4x	0.6x	0.8x	1.6x	0.7x
2013F EBITDA	3.6x	8.0x	10.0x	21.5x	12.5x
2014F EBITDA	3.1x	4.7x	5.6x	11.8x	6.1x

RBC noted that: (i) our EV-to-revenue multiple implied by the merger consideration for the projected calendar year 2013 was within the observed range of multiples, was above the median multiple and in-line with the mean multiple of the selected companies; (ii) our EV-to-revenue multiple implied by the merger consideration for the projected calendar year 2014 was within the observed range of multiples, was above the median multiple of selected companies analyzed and below the mean multiple of the selected companies; (iii) our EV-to-EBITDA multiple implied by the merger consideration for the projected calendar year 2013 was within the observed range of multiples and was above both the mean and median multiples of the selected companies; and (iv) our EV-to-EBITDA multiple implied by the merger consideration for the projected calendar year 2013 was within the observed range of the selected companies; and (iv) our EV-to-EBITDA multiple implied by the merger consideration for the projected calendar year 2014 was above both the mean and median multiples of the selected companies; and (iv) our EV-to-EBITDA multiple implied by the merger consideration for the projected calendar year 2014 was above both the mean and median multiples of the selected companies; and (iv) our EV-to-EBITDA multiple implied by the merger consideration for the projected calendar year 2014 was above both the mean and median multiples of the selected companies; and (iv) our EV-to-EBITDA multiple implied by the merger consideration for the projected calendar year 2014 was above both the mean and median multiples of the selected companies; and (iv) our EV-to-EBITDA multiple implied by the merger consideration for the projected calendar year 2014 was above both the mean and median multiples of the selected companies.

Discounted Cash Flow Analysis

RBC performed a discounted cash flow analysis to calculate the estimated present value of our standalone UFCF, based on forecasts and projections of our management from fiscal year 2013 through fiscal year 2016 (as presented in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Prospective Financial Information*" beginning on page 59), together with: (i) certain adjustments thereto based on our management's guidance, as publicly disclosed on March 8, 2013; and

Table of Contents

(ii) projections for fiscal year 2017 based on discussions with, and assumptions provided by, our management.

RBC performed such discounted cash flow analysis using discount rates reflecting a weighted-average cost of capital, or "WACC," ranging from 20.4% to 22.4% and, for purposes of calculating our terminal value at the end of the forecast period, terminal revenue and EBITDA multiples ranging from 0.6x to 0.8x and 3.0x to 5.0x, respectively. Both ranges are consistent with the forward multiples observed in RBC's Public Companies Analysis. The WACC was calculated assuming no debt and a 10% tax rate. These assumptions were consistent with management estimates of our long-term capital structure and tax rate. Our derived cost of equity was calculated per the capital asset pricing model, plus a size premium based on the 2012 Ibbotson Risk Premia Report. Revenue and EBITDA terminal multiple methods yielded an implied per share equity value reference range for our Common Stock of \$3.50 to \$4.03 and \$3.34 to \$4.22, respectively, compared to the merger consideration of \$4.225 per share.

Overview of Analyses; Other Considerations

No single company or transaction used in the above analyses as a comparison was identical to our company or the merger, and an evaluation of the results of those analyses is not entirely mathematical. Rather, the analyses involved complex considerations and judgments concerning financial and operating characteristics and other factors that could affect the acquisition, public trading or other values of the companies, businesses or transactions analyzed.

The preparation of a fairness opinion is a complex process that involves the application of subjective business judgment in determining the most appropriate and relevant methods of financial analysis and the application of those methods to particular circumstances. Several analytical methodologies were used by RBC, and no one method of analysis should be regarded as critical to the overall conclusion reached. Each analytical technique has inherent strengths and weaknesses, and the nature of the available information may further affect the value of particular techniques. The overall conclusions of RBC were based on all the analyses and factors presented herein taken as a whole and also on application of RBC's own experience and judgment. Such conclusions may involve significant elements of subjective judgment and qualitative analysis. RBC therefore believes that its analyses must be considered as a whole and that selecting portions of the analyses and of the factors considered, without considering all factors and analyses, could create an incomplete or misleading view of the processes underlying its opinion.

The Special Committee selected RBC to render its opinion based on its qualifications, expertise, reputation and knowledge of our business and affairs and its experience with semiconductor companies and the industry in which we operate. RBC has advised on numerous acquisitions of unaffiliated third parties in the semiconductor market. RBC is an internationally recognized investment banking firm and is regularly engaged in the valuation of businesses and their securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, corporate restructurings, underwritings, secondary distributions of listed and unlisted securities, private placements, and valuations for corporate and other purposes. In the ordinary course of business, RBC may act as a market maker and broker in our securities and receive customary compensation, and may also actively trade our securities for its own account and the accounts of its customers, and, accordingly, RBC and its affiliates may hold a long or short position in such securities. Other than the engagements with us and with the Special Committee as described in the following paragraph, RBC has not provided any other financial advisory services to us or to the IDG Funds in the two years preceding the delivery of its opinion. In addition, RBC is not providing the IDG Funds, Parent or Merger Sub financing in connection with this transaction.

Under its engagement agreement with the Special Committee, RBC became entitled to receive a fee of \$400,000 upon the delivery of a fairness opinion in connection with the Merger Agreement,

Table of Contents

without regard to whether RBC's opinion was accepted or the merger contemplated by the proposed Merger Agreement was consummated. RBC was also entitled to receive reasonable travel and other expenses not to exceed \$25,000, which amount was increased by the Special Committee in February 2013 to \$50,000, in order to reimburse RBC for the cost of additional travel to China necessary to meet with potential bidders. In addition, for its services as our financial advisor in connection with the merger, if the merger is successfully completed, RBC will receive an additional transaction fee of \$1,850,000 against which all of the fee payable for the delivery of RBC's opinion will be credited. Under RBC's engagement agreement, this transaction fee would have been discounted by 25% if within 45 days of executing the agreement we had consummated a sale transaction with a party not included in a list of previously contacted parties set forth in the agreement. Further, in the event that the merger is not completed, RBC will be entitled to receive 25% of any reverse termination fee received by us (after subtracting our actual expenses from such termination fee). In the event that the merger is not completed and we consummate at any time thereafter, pursuant to a definitive agreement or letter of intent or other evidence of commitment entered into during the term of RBC's engagement or during the 12 months following the term, certain other defined business combinations, RBC will be entitled to a transaction fee equal to \$1,850,000 plus 1.75% of any portion of the aggregate transaction value, as defined in the engagement agreement, that exceeds \$120 million but is less than or equal to \$150 million, plus 3.5% of the portion of any aggregate transaction value that exceeds \$150 million. In addition, we have agreed to indemnify RBC for certain liabilities that may arise out of RBC's engagement, including, without limitation, liabilities arising under the federal securities laws, and to reimburse certain out-of-pocket expenses incurred by RBC in performing its services. The terms of RBC's engagement letter were negotiated at arm's-length between the Special Committee and RBC, and the Special Committee was aware of this fee arrangement at the time it reviewed and approved the Merger Agreement. In addition, prior to RBC's engagement by the Special Committee, we had engaged RBC to provide financial advisory services with respect to a possible minority investment or sale transaction pursuant to a separate engagement letter dated February 12, 2012, which engagement letter we terminated by means of written notice to RBC, dated August 9, 2012.

RBC has consented to the inclusion in this proxy statement of the full text of its opinion.

Position of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders as to Fairness of the Merger

Under the rules governing "going private" transactions under Rule 13e-3 under the Exchange Act, Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders, may be deemed to be engaged in a "going private" transaction and required to express their beliefs as to the fairness of the merger to unaffiliated stockholders. Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders are making the statements included in this section solely for purposes of complying with the requirements of Rule 13e-3 and related rules under the Exchange Act. The view of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders as to the fairness of the merger should not be construed as a recommendation to any stockholder as to how that stockholder should vote on the Merger Proposal. Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders have interests in the merger that are different from, and in addition to, those of the unaffiliated stockholders.

Each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders believes that the interests of our unaffiliated stockholders were represented by the Special Committee, which negotiated the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement with the assistance of its independent legal and financial advisors. Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders attempted to negotiate a transaction that would be most favorable to them rather than our unaffiliated stockholders, and, accordingly, did not negotiate the Merger Agreement with a goal of obtaining terms that were substantively or procedurally fair to such stockholders. Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders did not participate in the deliberations of the Special Committee regarding, and did not receive any advice from the Special Committee's independent legal or financial advisors as to, the fairness of the merger to the Company's unaffiliated stockholders.

Table of Contents

Based on their knowledge and analysis of available information regarding our company, as well as discussions with our management regarding us and our business, and the factors considered by, and findings of, the Special Committee and the Board (as discussed in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading "*Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger,*" beginning on page 35), each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders believes that the merger is substantively fair to our unaffiliated stockholders based upon the following factors:

the current and historical market prices of the Common Stock, including the fact that the merger consideration of \$4.225 per share of Common Stock represents a premium of approximately 143% over the \$1.74 closing price of the Common Stock on November 20, 2012, the last trading day before the public announcement of IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P.'s non-binding proposal to acquire the company for \$4.00 per share, 144% over the Common Stock's average closing share price over the 90 calendar days ended on that date, and 56% over the Common Stock's closing share price of \$2.71 on April 22, 2013, the last trading day before the public announcement of the signing of the Merger Agreement;

the merger consideration of \$4.225 per share of the Common Stock is payable entirely in cash, thus allowing unaffiliated stockholders to immediately realize a determinate value for their shares;

the Special Committee determined, by the unanimous vote of all members of the Special Committee, and the Board determined, upon the unanimous vote of all members of the Board (with Dr. Zhao and Dr. Zhou abstaining), that the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including the merger, are in the best interests of the Company's unaffiliated stockholders;

the Sponsor has agreed to guarantee Parent's obligations under the Merger Agreement to pay, under certain circumstances, the Parent Termination Fee and certain other expenses;

the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including the merger, will not be funded by debt financing and will instead be funded by equity financing to be provided by Sponsor subject only to customary funding conditions, thereby providing a high degree of certainty with respect to the closing of the merger; and

the merger will provide liquidity for our unaffiliated stockholders without incurring brokerage and other costs typically associated with market sales.

Each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders believes that the merger is procedurally fair to our unaffiliated stockholders based upon the following factors:

the Special Committee, consisting entirely of independent and disinterested directors who are not affiliated with Parent, Merger Sub or any of the Rollover Holders, was established and given absolute authority to, among other things, review, evaluate and negotiate the terms of the merger and to decide not to engage in the merger;

the members of the Special Committee do not have any interests in the merger different from, or in addition to, those of our unaffiliated stockholders, other than the Special Committee members' receipt of Board and Special Committee compensation (which are not contingent upon the consummation of the merger or the special committee's or the Board's recommendation of the merger) and their indemnification and liability insurance rights under the Merger Agreement;

while each of Drs. Zhao and Zhou is a director of the Company, because of their respective participation in the transaction as a Rollover Holder and as an affiliate of IDG, neither of them served on the Special Committee, nor did they participate in or have any influence over the

Table of Contents

deliberative process of, or the conclusions reached by, the Special Committee or the negotiating positions of the Special Committee;

the Special Committee retained and was advised by its independent legal and financial advisors who are experienced in advising committees such as the special committee in similar transactions;

the Special Committee and the Board had no obligation to recommend the adoption of the Merger Agreement;

the merger consideration and other terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement were the result of vigorous negotiations over an extended period of time between Parent, Merger Sub, the Rollover Holders and their legal and financial advisors, on the one hand, and the Special Committee and its independent legal and financial advisors, on the other hand;

RBC, the Special Committee's independent financial advisor, rendered an opinion, dated April 22, 2013, to the Special Committee that, as of such date and based on and subject to the assumptions, considerations, qualifications, and limitations set forth in the written opinion, the merger consideration of \$4.225 per share to be received by holders of the Common Stock (other than the Rollover Holders) was fair, from a financial point of view, to such stockholders;

under the terms of the Merger Agreement, in certain circumstances, our company may furnish information to, and enter into discussions with, third parties with respect to a Competing Transaction, and the Board may also withdraw or modify the Company Recommendation (as such term is defined under *"The Merger Agreement Other Covenants and Agreements,"* beginning on page 99 of this proxy statement); and

our ability to terminate the Merger Agreement, in accordance with its terms, upon acceptance of a Superior Proposal.

In light of the procedural safeguards described above, each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders did not consider it necessary in order to adequately protect the interests of our stockholders to: (i) structure the merger such that approval of at least a majority of our unaffiliated stockholders is required to effect the transaction; or (ii) have the Company retain an unaffiliated representative to act solely on behalf of our unaffiliated stockholders to negotiate the terms of the Merger Agreement or prepare a report concerning the fairness of the Merger Agreement and the merger.

Each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders believes these factors provide a reasonable basis for his, her or its belief that the merger is both substantively and procedurally fair to our unaffiliated stockholders. This belief, however, is not intended to be and should not be construed as a recommendation to any holder of the Common Stock as to how such stockholder should vote with respect to the Merger Proposal. The aforementioned persons attempted to negotiate the terms of a transaction that would be most favorable to them, and not to our unaffiliated stockholders, and accordingly, did not negotiate the Merger Agreement with a goal of obtaining terms that were fair to such stockholders.

In reaching the above conclusion, each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders did not consider:

our net book value, because they believe that net book value is not a material indicator of the value of the Common Stock, but rather is an accounting concept indicative of historical asset costs (our net book value per share as of March 31, 2013 was approximately \$3.10, assuming 24,296,504 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of May 10, 2013, which is approximately 27% lower than the merger consideration);

Table of Contents

the purchase price paid in the transactions described under "*Important Information Regarding MEMSIC Transactions in Common Stock*" beginning on page 121 of this proxy statement, due to the isolated nature and limited magnitude of such transactions (though each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders notes that the consideration to be received by our unaffiliated stockholders represents a premium over such prices);

any other firm offer for a merger, a sale of all or a substantial part of our assets, or a purchase of a controlling amount of our Common Stock, as each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders was not aware of our having received any such firm offer(s) from anyone other than Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders in the two years preceding the signing of the Merger Agreement;

our liquidation value, because Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders consider us to be a viable, going concern and therefore did not consider liquidation value to be a relevant methodology; and

our pre-merger going concern value for the Common Stock as they did not believe there is a single reliable method of determining going concern value (though each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders notes that to the extent the pre-merger going concern value was reflected in the pre-announcement per share price of the Common Stock, the merger consideration represented a significant premium to that going concern value per share).

Purposes and Reasons for the Merger

Our Purposes and Reasons for the Merger

Our purpose in undertaking the merger is to allow our unaffiliated stockholders to realize the value of their investment in our Common Stock in cash at a price that represents a premium of 143% to the closing market price of the Common Stock on November 20, 2012, the last trading day before we announced that it had received a non-binding proposal from IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P. (one of the IDG Funds) to acquire us for \$4.00 per share, and a premium of 56% over the closing market price of our Common Stock on April 22, 2013, the last trading day before the public announcement of the signing of the Merger Agreement. The Special Committee and our Board (with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining) believe, based upon the reasons discussed in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading "*Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger*," that the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including the merger, are fair to, and in the best interests of, our company and our stockholders (to the extent such stockholders' shares of Common Stock are converted into the right to receive the merger consideration in the merger).

Additionally, becoming a private company is expected to reduce most of our costs related to being a public company, including but not limited to legal costs, the costs of certain accounting and auditing activities and internal controls, the cost of annual and special meetings, the cost of preparing, printing and mailing corporate reports and proxy statements, and the expense of a transfer agent. Further, following the merger, at such time as we are no longer subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, our management will be able to eliminate much of the time it and certain of our other employees devote exclusively to comply with our obligations as a public company. As a result, we may be better able to focus our resources as a private company.

Table of Contents

Purposes and Reasons of the Merger for Parent, Merger Sub, and the Rollover Holders

Under the rules governing "going private" transactions under Rule 13e-3, Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders may be deemed to be engaged in a "going private" transaction and required to express their reasons for the merger to our public stockholders. The aforementioned persons are making this statement solely for the purposes of complying with the requirements of Rule 13e-3 and related rules under the Exchange Act.

For the aforementioned persons, the purpose of the merger is to enable Parent to acquire control of our Company in a transaction in which the unaffiliated stockholders will receive \$4.225 per share of Common Stock. After the merger, shares of the Common Stock will cease to be publicly traded, and Parent will bear 100% of the risks and rewards of ownership of the Surviving Corporation. In addition, the merger will allow the Rollover Holders to invest in the Company through their equity investments in Parent while simultaneously "cashing out" a portion of their Common Stock, as described in this proxy statement.

Each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders believes that, as a privately-held entity, the Surviving Corporation's management will have greater flexibility to focus on improving its long-term profitability without the constraints caused by the public equity market's valuation of the company and emphasis on short-term period-to-period performance. As a privately-held entity, the Surviving Corporation will have greater flexibility to make decisions that might negatively affect short-term results, but that could increase its value over the long term.

As a privately-held entity, the Surviving Corporation will also be relieved of many of the other expenses, burdens and constraints imposed on companies that are subject to the public reporting requirements under the federal securities laws of the United States, including the Exchange Act and Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The need for a public company's management to be responsive to unaffiliated stockholders' concerns and to engage in dialogue with unaffiliated stockholders can also at times distract management's time and attention from the effective operation and improvement of the business, and this would no longer be an issue for the Surviving Corporation after the merger.

Each of Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders decided to undertake the going-private transaction to take advantage of the benefits of owning the Surviving Corporation as a privately-held company as described above.

Certain Effects of the Merger

If the Merger Agreement is adopted by our stockholders and certain other conditions to the closing of the merger are either satisfied or waived, Merger Sub will be merged with and into our company and we will be the surviving corporation.

Upon the consummation of the merger each share of our Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time of the merger (other than treasury shares owned by us, shares held by any of our subsidiaries and shares held directly or indirectly by Parent and Merger Sub, including those shares contributed to Parent by the Rollover Holders, all of which will be cancelled, and shares held by holders who have perfected and not withdrawn a demand for appraisal rights) will immediately be converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes.

A primary benefit of the merger to our unaffiliated stockholders will be the right of such stockholders to receive a cash payment of \$4.225, without interest, for each share of Common Stock held by such stockholders as described above, representing a premium of 143% to the closing market price of the Common Stock on November 20, 2012, the last trading day before we announced that we had received a non-binding proposal from IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P. to acquire us for \$4.00 per share, a premium of 144% over the average of the closing market price of the Common



Table of Contents

Stock over the 90 calendar days ended on November 20, 2012 and a premium of 56% over the closing market price of the Common Stock on April 22, 2013, the last trading day before the public announcement of the signing of the Merger Agreement. Additionally, such stockholders will avoid the risk of any possible decrease in our future earnings, growth or value.

The primary detriments of the merger to our unaffiliated stockholders include the lack of an opportunity of such stockholders to participate in any potential future earnings, growth or value. Additionally, the receipt of cash in exchange for shares of Common Stock pursuant to the merger will generally be a taxable sale transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes to our stockholders who surrender shares of our Common Stock in the merger and may also be a taxable transaction under other applicable tax laws, including those of the PRC.

Immediately following the merger, all of our equity interests will be owned, indirectly through Parent, by the Rollover Holders. If the merger is completed, the Rollover Holders will be the sole beneficiaries of our future earnings and growth, if any, and they will be the only ones entitled to vote, as stockholders of Parent, on matters affecting us following the merger.

We have accrued net operating loss carryforwards. Parent, Merger Sub, and the Rollover Holders will become beneficiaries of the future use of these net operating loss carryforwards after the merger to the extent of their respective equity interests in Parent. At December 31, 2012 we had gross United States net operating loss carryforwards of \$10.3 million, expiring in various amounts from 2028 through 2032. However, as a result of the merger, the ability to use these net operating loss carryforwards is expected to be limited by provisions of the Code.

Our Common Stock is currently registered under the Exchange Act and is listed on the NASDAQ under the symbol "MEMS." As a result of the merger, we will be a privately held corporation, and there will be no public market for our Common Stock. After the merger, our Common Stock will cease to be listed on the NASDAQ, and price quotations for the Common Stock will no longer be available. In addition, registration of our Common Stock under the Exchange Act will be terminated, and we will no longer file reports with the SEC. Termination of registration of our Common Stock under the Exchange Act will reduce the information we are required to furnished to our stockholders and the SEC, and would make certain provisions of the Exchange Act, such as the short-swing trading provisions of Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act and the requirement to furnish a proxy statement in connection with stockholders' meetings pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, no longer applicable to us. As a result, the Rollover Holders will, indirectly through Parent, benefit from any regulatory compliance cost savings realized by the Surviving Corporation following our ceasing to be a publicly traded company.

As a private company, we will no longer have continued pressure to meet the quarterly expectations of analysts and investors. In contrast, as a publicly traded company, we currently faces pressure from analysts and investors to make decisions that may produce better short-term results, but that may not maximize long-term value. Further, we will have more freedom to focus on long-term strategic planning in a highly competitive business with increasing competition, and we will have more flexibility to change our capital spending strategies, pricing strategies and make other changes to our business without the scrutiny of analysts and investors. This added flexibility may enable us to achieve better financial and operational results than it can presently achieve as a publicly traded company.

The IDG Funds, Parent and Merger Sub have advised us that, except for the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, they do not have any current plans, proposals or negotiations that relate to or would result in any of the following:

an extraordinary corporate transaction, such as a merger, reorganization or liquidation, involving our company or any of our subsidiaries;

the sale or transfer of a material amount of our assets or the assets of any of our subsidiaries; or

Table of Contents

any other material changes in our business.

At the effective time of the merger, Merger Sub's certificate of incorporation will become the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation, until amended, and Merger Sub's bylaws will become the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation, until amended, except that our name will remain unchanged. At that time, the directors of Merger Sub will become the directors of the Surviving Corporation.

The IDG Funds and some of our directors and executive officers have interests in the merger that are different from, or in addition to, the interests of our stockholders generally, including:

Dr. Quan Zhou is one of our directors and a general partner of IDG Capital Partners, which is affiliated with the IDG Funds. Dr. Zhou is also a managing member of the general partner of IDG Technology Venture Investments, L.P. and its successor funds and is a director of the general partner of each of IDG-Accel China Growth Fund I, IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II and IDG-Accel China Capital Fund. The IDG Funds collectively own approximately 19.4% of our Common Stock. In connection with the merger, the IDG Funds have agreed to roll over on a tax-free basis all 4,725,223 shares of their Common Stock into equity shares of Parent.

Dr. Yang Zhao, Dr. Paul Zavracky and Ms. Patricia Niu intend to roll over, on a tax-free basis, 169,943, 37,422 and 45,971 shares of Common Stock owned by them, respectively, into equity shares of Parent. In addition, Dr. Zavracky and Ms. Niu intend to apply a portion of the proceeds they will receive in consideration of their Company Options and restricted stock units to purchase an additional 43,276 and 17,289 equity shares of Parent, respectively, at a price of \$4.225 per share.

the Merger Agreement provides for the vesting and cash-out of all Company Options, restricted stock awards and restricted stock units.

our executive officers as of the effective time of the merger will become the initial executive officers of the Surviving Corporation.

Our directors and executive officers are entitled to continued indemnification and insurance coverage under the Merger Agreement, and our directors and executive officers are entitled to continued indemnification under the terms of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

These interests are discussed in more detail in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading entitled " Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger," beginning on page 70.

Following the merger, the primary detriments of the merger to the Rollover Holders include the fact that following the merger all of the risks of any possible decrease in our earnings, growth or value, and all other risks, will be borne by Parent and its shareholders. Additionally, the investment by the IDG Funds and the Rollover Holders in Parent will not be liquid, with no public trading market for such securities, and the equity shares of Parent may be subject to contractual restrictions on transfer.

Parent does not currently own any interest in our company. Following the consummation of the merger, Parent will own 100% of our outstanding Common Stock, and will have a corresponding interest in our net book value (which we calculated as stockholders' equity less net intangible assets) and net earnings. Each shareholder of Parent will have an interest in our net book value and net earnings in proportion to such shareholder's ownership interest in Parent.

The following table provides the direct and indirect interests of the Rollover Holders in our net loss and net book value prior to and immediately after the merger, based on our net book value of \$75,337,334 and \$77,176,588 at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively, and our net loss

of \$2,463,917 and \$987,939 for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and the year ended December 31, 2012, respectively.

		В	efore the merg	, ,			1	After the merg	ger	
		Net book	Net book	Net loss for the three months	Net loss for the year		Net book	Net book	Net loss for the three months	Net loss for the year
		value as of	value as of	ended	ended		value as of	value as of	ended	ended
	Ownership	March 31,	December 31,	March 31,D	ecember 30,	wnership	March 31,	December 31,	March 31, D	ecember 31,
Stockholder in	terest(1)(2)(3)2013 (\$)	2012 (\$)	2013 (\$)	2012 (\$) in	nterest(4)	2013 (\$)	2012 (\$)	2013	2012
IDG	19.4%	14,651,725	15,009,426	(479,187)	(192,136)	97.99%	73,824,469	75,626,788	(2,414,439)	(968,100)
Yang Zhao	4.0%	2,983,696	3,056,538	(97,582)	(39,127)	0.66%	498,820	510,998	(16,314)	(6,541)
Paul Zavracky	0.9%	642,324	658,005	(21,007)	(8,423)	0.31%	236,866	242,649	(7,747)	(3,106)
Patricia Niu	0.9%	710,999	728,358	(23,253)	(9,324)	0.25%	185,682	190,215	(6,073)	(2,435)
Yongyao Cai	0.4%	282,248	289,138	(9,231)	(3,701)	0.10%	78,229	80,139	(2,559)	(1,026)
Noureddine										
Hawat	0.0%	27,089	27,750	(886)	(355)	0.02%	16,164	16,559	(529)	(212)
Alexander										
Drinbinksy	0.3%	209,726	214,846	(6,859)	(2,750)	0.06%	46,823	47,966	(1,531)	(614)
Eric Chojnacki	0.0%	34,835	35,685	(1,139)	(457)	0.02%	18,310	18,757	(599)	(240)
James Fennelly	0.1%	77,641	79,536	(2,539)	(1,018)	0.04%	33,391	34,206	(1,092)	(438)
Dong An	0.1%	73,032	74,815	(2,389)	(958)	0.02%	18,512	18,964	(605)	(243)
Lei Zhang	0.1%	39,796	40,768	(1,302)	(522)	0.07%	55,000	56,343	(1,799)	(721)
Wei Zhang	0.4%	280,000	286,835	(9,157)	(3,672)	0.13%	98,832	101,245	(3,232)	(1,296)
Haidong Liu	0.4%	267,698	274,234	(8,755)	(3,510)	0.13%	94,907	97,224	(3,104)	(1,245)
Leyue Jiang	0.0%	25,811	26,441	(844)	(338)	0.04%	28,595	29,293	(935)	(375)
John Newton	0.0%	21,039	21,552	(688)	(276)	0.08%	58,704	60,138	(1,920)	(770)
Jose Rios						0.03%	22,014	22,552	(720)	(289)
Cheryl Merino	0.0%	7,157	7,331	(234)	(94)	0.03%	22,014	22,552	(720)	(289)

(1)

Calculation of pre-merger percentage ownership for IDG is based on ownership information set forth in a Schedule 13D/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 25, 2013 by IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P., IDG Accel China Grown Fund II Associates L.P., IDG-Accel China Investors II L.P., IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP II Associates Ltd., IDG Technology Venture Investments, LP, IDG Technology Venture Investment III, L.P., IDG Technology Venture Investment III, LLC, Chi Sing Ho and Quan Zhou.

(2)

Calculation of pre-merger percentage ownership for Rollover Holders other than IDG is based on ownership information set forth in a Schedule 13D/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on August 6, 2013 by Yang Zhao, Paul Zavracky, Patricia Niu, Yongyao Cai, Noureddine Hawat, Alexander Drinbinksy, Eric Chojnacki, James Fennelly, Dong An, Lei Zhang, Wei Zhang, Haidong Liu, Leyue Jiang, John Newton, Jose Rios and Cheryl Merino.

(3)

Percentage ownership based on 24,296,504 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of May 10, 2013.

(4)

Calculation of post-merger percentage ownership assumes that:

Sponsor will invest \$86.3 million in shares of Parent pursuant to the Equity Commitment Letter at a price per share equal to the merger consideration; and

each Rollover Holder will, to the maximum extent permitted under the Contribution Agreement, satisfy the purchase price for shares of Parent pursuant to the Contribution Agreement by the contribution of shares of Common Stock.

How We May be Affected if the Merger is not Completed

If the Merger Agreement is not approved by our stockholders or if the merger is not completed for any other reason, stockholders will not receive any payment for their shares of Common Stock in connection with the merger. Instead, we will remain a publicly traded company, our Common Stock will continue to be listed and traded on the NASDAQ, provided that we continue to meet NASDAQ's listing requirements, and

we will remain subject to SEC reporting obligations. Therefore, our stockholders will continue to be subject to similar risks and opportunities as they currently are with respect to their ownership of our Common Stock. Accordingly, if the merger is not completed, there can be no assurance as to the effect of these risks and opportunities on the future value of your shares of Common Stock, including the risk that the market price of our Common Stock may decline to the extent that the current market price reflects a market assumption that the merger will be completed.

Under certain circumstances set forth in the Merger Agreement, we may be required to pay Parent a termination fee of \$1.77 million, or Parent may be required to pay us a reverse termination fee of \$3.54 million, in each case, as described under *"The Merger Agreement Termination Fees"* beginning on page 111 of this proxy statement.

If the merger is not completed, from time to time, our Board will evaluate and review, among other things, our business, operations, dividend policy and capitalization and make such changes as it

deems appropriate and continue to seek to identify strategic alternatives to enhance stockholder value. If the Merger Agreement is not approved by our stockholders or if the merger is not completed for any other reason, there can be no assurance that any other transaction acceptable to us will be offered, or that our business, prospects or operational results will not be adversely impacted.

Prospective Financial Information

We do not as a matter of course make public forecasts or projections as to future performance or earnings covering extended periods or issue guidance beyond the current quarter.

However, we have presented below for your information certain forward-looking financial information that was generated for internal use and was available to IDG and certain other potential bidders, to RBC, and to the Special Committee to aid its evaluation of the merger. Such financial information includes the following:

In connection with our normal budget planning process, during the fourth quarter of 2012, our management prepared an operating budget covering each of the quarters of 2013, which we refer to as the "preliminary 2013 operating budget." The preliminary 2013 operating budget was included in the management slide deck that we shared with potential bidders, beginning on December 6 and 7, 2012.

Our estimated financial results for 2012 and our preliminary financial projections for 2013 and 2014, which we refer to as the "preliminary 2012-2014 projections," were discussed with the Special Committee on December 19 and 21, 2012. RBC relied upon the estimated financial results for 2012 and the preliminary financial projections for 2013 in its presentations to the Special Committee on those dates. The estimated financial results for 2012 were preliminary in nature pending the completion of our fiscal year, but reflected our actual financial results for the first three quarters of 2012. The financial projections for 2013 and 2014 were also preliminary in nature, were still under development by the Company at the time they were reviewed with the Special Committee, and were superseded by the four-year projections that are presented below. These figures were not provided to IDG or to any other potential bidder, nor were they relied upon by the Special Committee in its decision to recommend the approval of the merger or by RBC in its fairness opinion. The estimated financial results for 2013, the preliminary financial projections for 2013 and RBC's related preliminary analysis were relied upon by the Special Committee solely for the purpose of determining whether the IDG proposal at \$4.00 per share was sufficiently attractive to warrant the initiation of negotiations with IDG in December 2012.

In preparation for our Board's approval of the 2013 operating budget in January 2013, management made adjustments to the preliminary 2013 operating budget, consisting primarily of reductions in operating expenses to reduce the operating loss projected for 2013. We refer to this revised operating budget as the "revised 2013 operating budget." The revised 2013 operating budget was reviewed by our Board at its meeting on January 11, 2013, and was also made available to RBC. It was not delivered to IDG or any prospective bidder.

Later in January 2013, our management developed an updated forecast for 2014 and forecasts for 2015 and 2016, which, together with a forecast for 2013 that was based substantially upon the revised 2013 operating budget, we refer to as the "four-year projections." The four-year projections reflected a number of changes in presentation compared to the preliminary 2012-2014 projections and the revised 2013 operating budget. The four-year projections were provided to RBC and IDG on or about January 17, 2013 and reviewed by the Board at its meeting on February 20, 2013 and subsequently relied upon by the Committee in its deliberations.

Table of Contents

In preparing its opinion regarding the fairness of the merger, from a financial point of view, to our stockholders other than the Rollover Holders (as such opinion is described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration,*" beginning on page 45), RBC relied on the four-year projections, which it further modified to reflect a reduced sales forecast for the first quarter of 2013, consistent with the guidance we issued on March 8, 2013, and to reflect changes in presentation. We refer to this revised forecast as the "revised four-year projections." The revised four-year projections were delivered to the Special Committee on April 22, 2013 and were relied upon by RBC in rendering its opinion, as further described in this section of the proxy statement under " *Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration.*"

We did not provide RBC, IDG or any other party with projections of our free cash flow. However, at the request of RBC, in order to facilitate the discounted cash flow analysis RBC performed in connection with its preparation of its opinion (as described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration Discounted Cash Flow Analysis*" beginning on page 45), we provided certain assumptions and components used to calculate free cash flow, which are described below.

The forward-looking information presented below includes estimates and relies upon assumptions that involve substantial judgment and are therefore highly subjective. Additionally, the forward-looking information was not prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, or GAAP, and excludes certain non-cash costs and expenses that would be required to be included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP, as more fully explained below and in the footnotes to such forward-looking information. Because the treatment of non-cash expenses was not consistent among the preliminary 2013 operating budget, the four-year projections, and the revised four-year projections, and because of changes in the underlying management estimates, principally related to projected levels of operating expenses, the results reflected in the three sets of projections for a given period are not necessarily directly comparable with one another.

The material estimates and assumptions used in developing the forward-looking information presented below are described below.

Preliminary 2013 operating budget

The preliminary 2013 operating budget was initially developed by management during the fourth quarter of 2012 as part of our normal annual budget planning process. This process began with detailed, bottoms-up sales forecasts and spending proposals from each department for 2013. These were then reviewed and adjusted by our executive officers, using their collective judgment and experience, with a view to balancing competing spending priorities in light of our corporate goals and reasonable assumptions about our future growth.

Because the preliminary 2013 operating budget was developed primarily to assist management in managing discretionary expense spending, it excluded the impact of certain non-cash costs and expenses, including amortization of intangible assets, and projected operating (loss) income and projected net (loss) income were presented on a non-GAAP basis, excluding the impact of these items, and of stock-based compensation expense.

Key estimates and assumptions that were used in developing the preliminary 2013 operating budget included the following:

Revenue. The 2013 revenue forecast took into account our management's assessment of general market conditions; individual customers' purchasing patterns and existing and planned product development programs; the future market success of these customers' product offerings in which

Table of Contents

our products were being utilized and the state of our relationships with these customers; the status of new design wins and competitions; the timing of our planned new product introductions; the size of the markets that could be addressed by our planned new products; and the rate and extent of market penetration we might achieve in these markets. We assumed that our sensor business revenues from Samsung would continue to decline markedly in 2013, and that revenue from our second largest customer, Autoliv, would also decline, but that these decreases would be more than offset by increased revenues from new design wins and new product introductions in the second half of the year. We assumed that revenue from our system solutions would improve modestly, to a level commensurate with 2011.

Cost of goods sold. Key assumptions used to develop our projected cost of goods sold for 2013 included our management's estimates of the unit volume and mix of product sales during the year; the impact of downward pressure due to competition on prices for our existing products; the cost structure and market prices attainable for our new products; and the timing of our introduction of new products that we hoped would carry higher margins.

Operating expenses. Projected research and development expense was based primarily on our planned new product development projects, and management's estimate of the engineering resources and costs necessary to complete these projects. Sales and marketing expenses were estimated following a review of departmental proposals for specific marketing projects and for headcount increases to strengthen our sales and marketing team, and also took into account added commission expense associated with projected revenue growth. Management assumed that growth in our general and administrative expenses would be minimal, consistent with inflation and modest merit increases for our staff.

Preliminary 2012-2014 projections

In preparation for the Special Committee's meetings on December 19 and 21, 2012, we prepared estimated financial results for 2012, reflecting our actual financial results for the first three quarters of 2012, and a two-year forecast covering 2013 and 2014. The forecast for 2013 was generally consistent with, and based on key assumptions generally consistent with, those used in developing the preliminary 2013 operating budget, with adjustments relating primarily to a reduction in operating expenses. The longer term forecast for 2014 was based on assumptions similar to those described below with respect to the four-year projections. These projections were preliminary in nature, were still under development at the time they were reviewed with the Special Committee on December 19 and 21, 2013, and were superseded by the revised 2013 operating budget and the four-year projections that are presented below.

Revised 2013 operating budget

The preliminary 2013 operating budget was revised by management in January 2013, principally to reduce the amount of planned operating expenses in light of the substantial operating loss projected in the preliminary 2013 operating budget, and to reflect a slight increase in cost of goods sold. With those exceptions, the key assumptions underlying the revised 2013 operating budget were consistent with those used in developing the preliminary 2013 operating budget.

The presentation of the revised 2013 operating budget differed from that of the preliminary 2013 operating budget in that depreciation and amortization were separately provided for and operating (loss) income and net (loss) income were presented on a GAAP basis, giving effect to these items.

Four-year projections

In January 2013 our management generated a revised forecast for 2014 and forecasts for 2015 and 2016. These forecasts were top-down estimates based on assumptions that were consistent with our long



Table of Contents

term strategy but were, of necessity, more general in nature than those used to develop the preliminary 2013 operating plan.

In the four-year projections, projected operating (loss) income and projected net (loss) income were presented on a non-GAAP basis, excluding the impact of stock-based compensation.

Key estimates and assumptions that were used in developing longer-term projections for 2014 through 2016 that were included in the four-year projections included the following:

Revenue. Management's long-term revenue forecasts took into account its assessment of general levels in demand for sensors and estimates of the size of the markets addressed by our planned new products and the rate and extent of market penetration we might achieve in these markets. Management assumed that we would significantly increase our revenue and grow our market share in a growing China mobile market through the introduction of new sensor products, such that by 2016 we would capture one third of this market; that we would begin to achieve significant revenue from our gas flow meter products starting in 2014; and that revenue in our automotive and industrial markets would experience significant growth beginning in 2015 as a result of planned new product introductions.

Cost of goods sold. Management's long-range projections of cost of goods sold were based largely on its estimates of the manufacturing cost for our new products and assumptions about future sales volumes and our ability to reduce materials costs and achieve improvements in manufacturing efficiencies over time, and also took into account the estimated impact of depreciation related to planned capital expenditures for manufacturing facilities and equipment.

Operating expenses. Operating expenses were forecast to grow to support our projected higher levels of business activity, but at a rate slower than our projected revenue growth. Management's estimate of research and development expenses also took into account its assessment of the level of headcount necessary to support our new product development plans. Sales and marketing expenses were estimated based on assumptions about the rate of increase in the number of our applications engineers and other sales staff, as well as estimates of commission expenses based on our current commission structure and projected revenues. Management assumed that growth in our general and administrative expenses would continue to be minimal, consistent with inflation and modest merit increases for our staff.

Revised four-year projections

The revised four-year projections were modified to reflect management's reduced sales forecast and related cost of goods sold for the first quarter of 2013, consistent with the guidance we issued on March 8, 2013. Also, the revised four-year projections were presented on a non-GAAP basis that excluded the impact of amortization and stock-based compensation. Otherwise, they were based on assumptions and estimates consistent with those employed in developing the four-year projections.

Preliminary 2013 operating budget

			ŀ	FY2013			
	Q1	Q2		Q3	Q4	C	CY2013
			(in t	housands)			
Non-GAAP Statement of Operations Data:							
Revenue:							
Sensors	\$ 12,639	\$ 13,644	\$	15,646	\$ 19,817	\$	61,746
Systems	2,804	2,068		2,645	2,823		10,341
Total revenue	15,443	15,712		18,291	22,640		72,087
Cost of goods sold:							
Sensors	8,286	8,568		9,882	12,469		39,205
Systems	1,569	1,156		1,468	1,547		5,740
Total cost of goods sold	9,855	9,724		11,350	14,016		44,945
Gross profit:							
Sensors	4,354	5,076		5,764	7,348		22,541
Systems	1,234	912		1,177	1,277		4,601
Total gross profit	5,588	5,988		6,941	8,624		27,142
Operating expenses(1):							
Research and development	2,631	2,653		2,621	2,393		10,298
Sales and marketing	1,617	1,702		1,743	1,834		6,896
General and administrative	2,934	3,005		2,979	3,009		11,926
Total operating expenses(1)	7,183	7,359		7,342	7,236		29,119
Stock-based compensation	409	409		409	409		1,637
Operating (loss) income(2)	(1,185)	(962)		9	1,798		(340)
Income taxes	63	53		52	72		240
Noncontrolling interest	47	39		38	53		176
Net (loss) income(2)	\$ (1,295)	\$ (1,053)	\$	(81)	\$ 1,672	\$	(757)
Other data:							
Depreciation	\$ 865	\$ 935	\$	1,027	\$ 1,087	\$	3,914

(1)

Excludes amortization; includes stock-based compensation; depreciation is provided for in general and administrative expenses.

(2)

Projected operating loss (income) and projected net (loss) income are presented on a non-GAAP basis, excluding the impact of amortization and stock-based compensation.

Preliminary 2012-2014 projections

	2012	2013	2014		
Non-GAAP Statement of Operations Data					
Revenue:					
Sensors	\$ 55,615	\$ 61,746	\$	78,000	
Systems	9,363	10,341		11,400	
Total revenue	\$ 64,979	72,087		89,400	
Cost of goods sold:					
Sensors	36,074	39,205		50,414	
Systems	5,016	5,740		5,700	
Total cost of goods sold	\$ 41,090	44,945		56,114	
Gross profit:	10 5 4 1	00.541		07.507	
Sensors	19,541	22,541		27,587	
Systems	4,347	4,601		5,700	
Total gross profit	23,888	27,142		33,287	
Operating expenses(1):					
General and administrative	10,941	12,013		11,693	
Sales and marketing	5,292	6,016		8,527	
Research and development	6,718	9,400		11,450	
Total operating expenses	22,951	27,429		31,670	
Stock-based compensation	1,504	1,637		1,865	
Operating income(2)	2,441	1,350		3,482	
Interest Income	242	,		- , -	
Other Non-Operating Income	142				
Pre-Tax Income	\$ 2,826	\$ 1,350	\$	3,482	
Income taxes	244	240		400	
Noncontrolling interest	108	176		200	
Net income(2)	\$ 2,474	\$ 934	\$	2,882	
Other Non-Operating Income	142				
Depreciation	\$ 3,616	\$ 3,914	\$	3,231	
EBITDA(3)	\$ 6,092	\$ 5,087	\$	6,513	

(1)

Excludes amortization.

(2)

Operating income and net income are presented on a non-GAAP basis, excluding the impact of amortization and stock-based compensation.

(3)

Also excludes income taxes of \$244, \$240 and \$400 in 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively.

Revised 2013 operating budget

				2013			
	Q1	Q2		Q3	Q4	C	CY2013
			(in t	housands)			
Non-GAAP Statement of Operations Data:							
Revenue	\$ 15,443	\$ 15,712	\$	18,291	\$ 22,640	\$	72,086
Cost of goods sold	9,865	9,780		11,350	14,015		45,011
Gross profit	5,578	5,932		6,941	8,624		27,076
Operating expenses(1):							
Research and development	2,054	2,328		2,266	2,347		8,995
Sales and marketing	1,286	1,373		1,342	1,463		5,463
General and administrative	2,485	2,514		2,492	2,472		9,964
Depreciation	481	508		519	525		2,033
Amortization	430	430		430	430		1,720
Total operating expenses	6,736	7,154		7,048	7,237		28,175
Operating (loss) income	(1,158)	(1,222)		(107)	1,388		(1,099)
Other income	30	30		30	30		120
Income taxes	46	39		83	150		318
Noncontrolling interest	17	(10)		12	20		38
		, í					
Net (loss) income	\$ (1,190)	\$ (1,221)	\$	(172)	\$ 1,248	\$	(1,336)

(1)

Includes stock-based compensation.

Four-year projections

					FY	2013									
		Q1		Q2		Q3	Q4	С	Y2013	F	Y2014	I	FY2015	F	Y2016
							(in the	ousa	ands)						
Non-GAAP Statement of															
Operations Data:															
Revenue:															
Sensors		2,639	\$ 1	13,644		5,646	\$ 19,817		61,746	\$	78,000	\$	90,575	\$	105,844
Systems		2,804		2,068		2,645	2,823		10,341		11,400		12,743		14,730
Total revenue	1	5,443	1	15,712	1	8,291	22,640		72,087		89,400		103,318		120,574
Cost of goods sold:															
Sensors		8,286		8,568		9,882	12,469		39,205		48,324		54,664		63,506
Systems		1,569		1,156		1,468	1,547		5,740		5,700		5,919		6,251
Total cost of goods sold		9,855		9,724	1	1,350	14,016		44,945		54,024		60,583		69,758
Gross profit:															
Sensors		4,354		5,076		5,764	7,348		22,541		29,677		35,911		42,338
Systems		1,234		912		1,177	1,277		4,601		5,700		6,824		8,479
Total gross profit		5,588		5,988		6,941	8,624		27,142		35,377		42,735		50,816
Operating expenses:															
Research and development		2,054		2,328		2,266	2,347		8,995		11,635		13,087		14,604
Sales and marketing		1,286		1,373		1,342	1,463		5,463		7,530		8,791		9,894
General and administrative		2,485		2,514		2,492	2,472		9,964		10,005		10,267		10,474
Depreciation		479		507		518	528		2,027		2,489		2,730		2,955
Amortization		430		430		430	430		1,720		1,744		1,760		1,760
Total operating expenses(1)		6,735		7,152		7,048	7,235		28,169		33,403		36,635		39,687
Stock-based compensation		399		399		399	399		1,595		1,865		1,920		1,920
Operating (loss) income(1)		(748)		(765)		293	1,788		568		3,838		8,020		13,049
Income taxes		46		39		83	150		318		400		710		1,213
Noncontrolling interest		17		(10)		12	20		38		200		240		280
Net (loss) income(1)	\$	(810)	\$	(795)	\$	198	\$ 1,618	\$	211	\$	3,238	\$	7,070	\$	11,556
Other data:															
Total depreciation and															
amortization(2)	\$	1,307	\$	1,378	\$	1,476	\$ 1,490	\$	5,651	\$	6,296	\$	6,663	\$	6,938
Change in working capital								\$	2,400	\$	2,887	\$	2,229	\$	2,882
Capital expenditures	\$	4,261	\$	1,486	\$	351	\$ 256	\$	6,353	\$	5,000	\$	4,000	\$	6,000
Payment of debt								\$	1,000	\$	2,500	\$	13,930		

(1)

Projected operating expense includes stock-based compensation. Operating (loss) income and net (loss) income is presented on a non-GAAP basis, excluding the impact of stock-based compensation.

(2)

Includes manufacturing depreciation included in cost of goods sold and depreciation and amortization included in operating expenses.

Revised four-year projections

				FY	Y2013									
	Q1		Q2		Q3	Q4	С	CY2013	F	Y2014	F	FY2015	1	FY2016
						(in the	ous	ands)						
Non-GAAP Statement of														
Operations Data:														
Revenue:														
Sensors		\$ 1	13,644	\$ 1	15,646	\$ 19,817				78,000	\$)	\$	105,844
Systems			2,068		2,645	2,823				11,400		12,743		14,730
Total revenue	\$ 12,000		15,712	1	18,291	22,640	\$	68,644		89,400		103,318		120,574
Cost of goods sold:														
Sensors			8,568		9,882	12,469				48,324		54,664		63,506
Systems			1,156		1,468	1,547				5,700		5,919		6,251
Total cost of goods sold	7,656		9,724	1	11,350	14,016		42,746		54,024		60,583		69,758
Gross profit:	.,		- /-		,	,		,		- ,-		,		,
Sensors			5,076		5,764	7,348				29,677		35,911		42,338
Systems			912		1,177	1,277				5,700		6,824		8,479
Total gross profit	4,344		5,988		6,941	8,624		25,898		35,377		42,735		50,816
Operating expenses(1):														
Research and development	2,054		2,328		2,266	2,347		8,995		11,635		13,087		14,604
Sales and marketing	1,286		1,373		1,342	1,463		5,463		7,530		8,791		9,894
General and administrative	2,966		3,023		3,011	2,997		11,997		12,494		12,997		13,429
Total operating expenses(1)	6,306		6,724		6,619	6,807		26,455		31,659		34,875		37,927
Operating (loss) income(2)	(1,563)	(337)		722	2,216		1,038		5,582		9,780		14,809
Income taxes	46		39		83	150		318		400		710		1,213
Noncontrolling interest	17		(10)		12	20		38		200		240		280
Net (loss) income(2)	\$ (1,626)\$	(366)	\$	627	\$ 2,046	\$	681	\$	4,982	\$	8,830	\$	13,316
Other data:														
Total depreciation and														
amortization	\$ 1,308	\$	1,379	\$	1,477	\$ 1,492	\$	5,656	\$	6,434	\$	6,770	\$	7,075
Change in working capital(3)							\$	2,400	\$	3,473	\$	2,229	\$	2,882
Capital expenditures	\$ 4,261	\$	1,486	\$	351	\$ 256	\$	6,353	\$	5,000	\$	4,000	\$	6,000

(1)

Projected total operating expenses for each of the quarters of 2013 and the full years of 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 include projected stock-based compensation expense of \$399, \$399, \$399, \$1,595, \$1,865, \$1,920 and \$1,920, respectively and exclude projected amortization expense of \$430, \$430, \$430, \$1,720, \$1,744, \$1,760, and \$1,760, respectively. Stock-based compensation is excluded in determining operating (loss) income and net (loss) income below. See footnote 2.

(2)

Operating (loss) income and net (loss) income are presented on a non-GAAP basis, excluding the impact of amortization and stock-based compensation.

(3)

RBC, with the approval of our management, adjusted the change in working capital for full year 2014 to \$3,473.

2017 Free Cash Flow Assumptions

We did not provide RBC, IDG or any other party with projections of our free cash flow. However, at the request of RBC, in order to facilitate its discounted cash flow analysis (as described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC Regarding the Fairness of the Merger Consideration Discounted Cash Flow Analysis*," beginning on page 49), our management provided to RBC the following assumptions and calculation components for fiscal year 2017 (\$ dollars in thousands):

Total revenue growth		13.0%
Gross margin		43.1%
EBIT margin		11.8%
EBITDA margin		17.6%
Total stock-based compensation expense and non-controlling interest		\$ 1,640
Tax rate		9.5%
Change in working capital		\$ 2,601
Capital expenditures		\$ 4,000
	67	

Table of Contents

Our future financial results may materially differ from those expressed in the forward-looking information presented above, due to factors that are beyond our ability to control or predict. We cannot assure you that any of these projections will be realized or that our future financial results will not materially vary from the projections. The projections do not take into account any circumstances or events occurring after the date they were prepared and have not been updated since their respective dates of preparation. The forward-looking information do not give effect to any changes or expenses as a result of the merger or any other effects of the merger. They should not be utilized as public guidance and will not be provided in the ordinary course of our business in the future.

Furthermore:

while presented with numerical specificity, the projections necessarily are estimates that are based on numerous assumptions, many of which are beyond our control, including with respect to industry performance, general business, economic, regulatory, market and financial conditions, as well as matters specific to our business, which assumptions may not prove to have been, or may no longer be, accurate;

the projections were prepared in the context of the business, economic, regulatory, market and financial conditions that existed at the time of their preparation, and have not been updated to reflect revised prospects for our business, changes in general business, economic, regulatory, market and financial conditions, or any other transaction or event that has occurred or that may occur and that was not anticipated at the time they were prepared; and

the four-year projections and revised four-year projections cover multiple years, and such estimates become inherently less reliable as they extend further into the future.

The projections were not prepared with a view toward public disclosure or compliance with published guidelines of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants for preparation and presentation of prospective financial information or U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our independent registered certified public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, has neither examined nor compiled the foregoing projections and, accordingly, Ernst & Young LLP does not express an opinion or any other form of assurance with respect thereto. The inclusion of this forward-looking information should not be regarded as an indication that our Board, the Special Committee, RBC, IDG or any other recipient of this information considered, or now considers, the forecasts and projections included therein to be a reliable prediction of future results, nor is it included because we or they believe it should influence your decision whether to vote for or against the merger proposal.

For the foregoing and other reasons, readers of this proxy statement are cautioned that the inclusion in this proxy statement of the forward-looking information described above should not be regarded as a representation that the projections will be achieved and that readers should not place undue reliance on the projections.

Financing

Parent estimates that the total amount of funds required to consummate the merger and related transactions and pay all other related fees, expenses and other amounts payable by Parent or the Surviving Corporation pursuant to the Merger Agreement will be approximately \$89.2 million. Parent expects this amount to be provided from the following sources:

an aggregate cash equity investment by the Sponsor of up to \$86.3 million, which is described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Financing Equity Financing;*"

the Rollover Holders' acquisition of equity shares of Parent in exchange for cash consideration and/or contributions of Common Stock beneficially owned by these Rollover Holders, which is described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading "*Financing Rollover Financing*"; and

with respect to the payment of certain transaction-related fees and expenses, from our cash balances and the cash balances of IDG.

The financing described above, when funded in accordance with the related Equity Commitment Letter and the Contribution Agreement, as applicable and as described herein, shall provide the cash proceeds sufficient for the consummation of the merger and the payment of all fees, expenses and other amounts payable pursuant to the Merger Agreement.

Equity Financing

On April 22, 2013, Parent and Sponsor entered into an equity commitment letter, referred to as the "Equity Commitment Letter," pursuant to which Sponsor will purchase (or cause to be purchased), at or immediately prior to the consummation of the merger, up to \$86.3 million of the equity shares of Parent. Parent has, in turn, agreed to use the invested funds only to: (i) fund, to the extent necessary, the aggregate merger consideration needed to acquire all of the Common Stock not already owned by IDG (other than shares held by us as treasury stock, owned by Parent, Merger Sub or any of our wholly owned subsidiaries, and shares that may be contributed by the Rollover Holders to Parent prior to the effective time of the Merger, pursuant to the Contribution Agreement); (ii) fund all other amounts payable pursuant to the Merger Agreement in satisfaction of all restricted stock awards, restricted stock units and Company Options; and (iii) pay all fees, expenses and other amounts payable pursuant to the Merger Agreement.

Under the terms of the Equity Commitment Letter, Sponsor will not have any obligation, under any circumstances, to contribute more than \$86.3 million to Parent and/or Merger Sub. If Parent does not require the entire amount of such equity commitment to fund the merger and pay all other related fees and expenses, Parent may reduce the amount of the equity commitment to the level sufficient to satisfy its obligations under the Merger Agreement, provided that the Surviving Corporation remains solvent (on both a stand-along and consolidated basis) once Parent has performed all of its obligations under the Merger Agreement. The Sponsor's funding of the equity commitment is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of all closing conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, excluding those closing conditions in our favor (see *"The Merger Agreement Conditions to the Merger,"* beginning on page 108 of this proxy statement). Although we are not a party to the Equity Commitment Letter, we are an express third-party beneficiary of such letter, and generally have the right to seek specific performance under the same circumstances in which we would be permitted to seek specific performance under the Merger Agreement, and require that Parent enforce the equity commitment described herein.

Rollover Financing

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, on April 22, 2013, Parent and the Rollover Holders entered into a contribution agreement (the "Contribution Agreement"). Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, at or prior to the effective time of the merger: (i) each Rollover Holder will acquire equity shares of Parent in exchange for some or all of their shares of Common Stock, and/or cash consideration; and (ii) Sponsor or one or more of its affiliates will acquire (for a per share consideration equal to the merger consideration) any outstanding shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Rollover Holders not exchanged for equity shares of Parent.

At least 10 days prior to the closing of the merger, each Rollover Holder, other than Sponsor, must notify Sponsor and Parent as to the number of shares of Common Stock and the amount of cash consideration such Rollover Holder will contribute in exchange for the their equity shares of Parent. Any cash consideration contributed by the Rollover Holders in exchange for equity shares of Parent must be deposited with Parent at least seven days before the anticipated effective time of the merger. The Rollover Holders may satisfy this obligation by giving irrevocable instructions to: (i) Sponsor, to pay over to Parent any portion of any amount owed by Sponsor to a Rollover Holder for the purchase

of such Rollover Holder's shares of Common Stock pursuant to the terms of the Contribution Agreement; and/or (ii) us, to pay over to Parent any portion of any cash to be received by such Rollover Holders in exchange for Company Options, restricted stock awards and/or restricted stock units, pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement.

Subject to the satisfaction or waiver of all of the closing conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement (other than conditions that, by their nature, are to be satisfied at the closing of the merger, but subject to the satisfaction of such conditions at the closing), the Rollover Holders' contribution of cash and/or Common Stock in exchange for equity shares of Parent (the "Contribution Closing,") will take place within 48 hours prior to the closing of the merger. If, for any reason, the Contribution Closing takes place but the merger fails to occur as contemplated by the Merger Agreement, Parent and Sponsor will promptly return all Common Stock and cash contributions to the Rollover Holders, as necessary to restore such Rollover Holder to the position that he, she, or it was in immediately prior to the Contribution Closing.

The Contribution Agreement, and the obligation of the Rollover Holders to contribute, transfer, assign and deliver their Common Stock, will terminate immediately upon the earlier of: (i) the closing of the merger; (ii) the valid termination of the Merger Agreement in accordance with its terms; and (iii) the mutual written consent of Parent, our company, and all Rollover Holders party to the Contribution Agreement. Although we are not a party to the Contribution Agreement, we are an express third-party beneficiary of such agreement, and have the right to seek specific performance (including an injunction or injunctions), to prevent breaches by the parties thereto.

Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger

In considering the recommendation of our Board (with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining) with respect to the Merger Agreement, you should be aware that some of our directors, executive officers and other employees have interests in the merger that are different from, or in addition to, the interests of our stockholders generally. The Special Committee and our Board were aware of these potential or actual conflicts of interest and considered them when they resolved to recommend that our stockholders vote for the adoption of the Merger Agreement. The material interests are summarized below. See " *Background of the Merger*," and " *Reasons for the Merger; Recommendations of the Special Committee and the Board of Directors; Fairness of the Merger*" in this section of the proxy statement, beginning on pages 21 and 35, respectively.

Contribution Agreement and Rollover Holders

In connection with the Merger Agreement, the Rollover Holders, which collectively beneficially own approximately 25.9% of the Common Stock, entered into the Contribution Agreement with Parent, as such agreement is further described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading "*Financing Rollover Financing*," beginning on page 69. Under the terms of the Contribution Agreement, these Rollover Holders (including our executive officers, as well as Dr. Zhou, acting indirectly through the IDG Funds) will acquire equity shares of Parent in exchange for cash consideration and/or contributions of Common Stock beneficially owned by these Rollover Holders. Such cash consideration and the "roll over" of the Common Stock to Parent will aid Parent's ability to finance the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including the merger, while simultaneously allowing the Rollover Holders to: (i) maintain an indirect equity interest in the Surviving Corporation (through their commitments to exchange or roll over their Common Stock into equity shares of Parent); and (ii) immediately realize in cash the value of a portion of their Common Stock (to the extent such Common Stock is not "rolled over" into equity shares of Parent), on the same terms and conditions available to our unaffiliated stockholders.



Table of Contents

The Rollover Holders, as the ultimate beneficial owners of the Surviving Corporation following the effective time of the merger, will continue to indirectly benefit from our future earnings and growth, if any. As a result of Sponsor's commitment to provide up to \$86.3 million in exchange for equity shares of Parent (pursuant to the Equity Commitment Letter, as described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Financing Equity Financing*," beginning on page 69), and the IDG Funds' intention to "roll over" their entire 19.4% stake in the Common Stock, IDG will own approximately 98% of Parent's equity interests upon the effective time of the merger, and will effectively control the Surviving Corporation from and after such time.

Treatment of Company Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

Upon the consummation of the merger, each Company Option, including those held by the Rollover Holders and our directors, will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive cash in an amount equal to: (a) the product of (i) the total number of shares of Common Stock subject to such Company Option immediately prior to the consummation of the merger (without regard to vesting), and (ii) the excess, if any, of \$4.225 over the exercise price per share of Common Stock subject to such Company Option, less (b) any amounts that are required to be withheld or deducted under applicable tax provisions. Such amount will be paid as soon as reasonably practicable after the consummation of the merger. No holder of a Company Option that has an exercise price per share of Common Stock that is equal to or greater than the merger consideration will be entitled to any payment with respect to such cancelled Company Option before or after the effective time of the merger. Like other holders of Company Options, each Rollover Holder (other than IDG, which does not hold any Company Options) and each of our directors holding Company Options at the effective time of the merger will have the right to receive cash in the amounts set forth above.

At the effective time of the merger, the restricted stock awards and restricted stock units that we have granted and are outstanding, including those held by the Rollover Holders and our directors, will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, which amount will be paid net of any applicable taxes, as soon as reasonably practicable after the effective time of the merger. Like other holders of our restricted stock awards and restricted stock units, each Rollover Holder (other than IDG, which does not hold such securities) and each of our directors holding such securities at the effective time of the merger will have the right to receive cash in the amounts set forth above.

Merger Consideration

The following table reflects the amount of cash that each of our directors and executive officers will receive as a result of the merger, based on their holdings as of August 6, 2013, as well as the aggregate amounts our executive officers, all of whom are Rollover Holders, will invest in Parent:

	Payment in respect of Common Stock to be Settled (\$)(1)	Payment in respect of Company Options to be Settled (\$)(2)	Payment in respect of Common Stock Subject to Restricted Stock Awards to be Settled (\$)(3)	Payment in respect of Common Stock Subject to Restricted Units to be Settled (\$)(4)	Gross Proceeds	Investment in Parent (\$)(5)	Net Proceeds (\$)
Executive Officers:							
Yang Zhao, Ph.D.	1,904,013(6)	1,095,031	147,875		3,146,919	718,009	2,428,910
Patricia Niu	367,178	510,375		73,938	951,490	267,274	684,217
Paul M. Zavracky	200,789	706,575		126,750	1,034,114	340,949	693,165
Directors:							
Quan Zhou, Ph.D.	91,539(7)			77,461	169,000		169,000
Michael Tung	63,375(8)	40,200		63,375	166,950		166,950
Roger W. Blethen	63,375	334,575		63,375	461,325		461,325
Lawrence A. Kaufman, Ph.D.	63,375	62,200		63,375	188,950		188,950
All current directors and executive officers as a group (7 persons)	2,605,769	2,855,331	147,875	468,274	6,077,249	1,326,232	4,751,017

(1)

Except as otherwise noted, represents the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the individual multiplied by the merger consideration.

(2)

Represents the product of (i) the total number of shares of Common Stock subject to Company Options held by the individual, multiplied by (ii) the excess, if any, of the merger consideration over the exercise price per share of Common Stock subject to such Company Option.

(3)

Represents the number of shares of Common Stock subject to granted and outstanding restricted stock awards held by the individual multiplied by the merger consideration.

(4)

Represents the number of shares of Common Stock subject to granted and outstanding restricted stock units held by the individual multiplied by the merger consideration.

(5)

Represents aggregate purchase price of equity shares of Parent which the individual is obligated to purchase, at a price per share equal to the merger consideration, pursuant to the Contribution Agreement. Under the terms of the Contribution Agreement, the individual may satisfy the purchase price for Parent's equity shares through (i) a cash payment, (ii) by contributing an equal number of shares of Common Stock or (iii) a combination of (i) and (ii). To the extent that the individual elects to satisfy the purchase price for equity shares of Parent by contributing shares of Common Stock, the amount of cash merger consideration to be received by such individual will be reduced by an amount equal to the product of the number of shares of Common Stock contributed multiplied by the merger consideration. The individual's receipt of Parent equity shares in return for the contribution of a like number of shares of Common Stock will not be taxable for United States federal income tax purposes. For additional details regarding the terms of the Contribution Agreement, see the subheading titled " *Financing Rollover Financing*," beginning on page 69 of this proxy statement.

(6)

Includes merger consideration payable with respect to 18,596 shares of Common Stock held by Dr. Zhao, as Trustee of the Yang Zhao Children's Grantor Retained Annuity Trust.

(7)

Excludes merger consideration to be paid with respect to 4,146,394 shares of which the record owner is IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P., 339,108 shares of which the record owner is IDG-Accel China Investors II L.P., 150,000 shares of which the record owner is IDG Technology Venture Investments, LP., 71,393 shares of which the record owner is IDG Technology Venture Investments, LLC, and 18,328 shares of which the record owner is IDG Technology Venture Investment III, L.P., which, in each case, will be contributed to Parent pursuant to the Contribution Agreement in

return for an equal number of equity shares of Parent. Dr. Zhou is a director and executive officer of IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP II Associates Ltd., which is the ultimate general partner of both IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P. and IDG-Accel China Investors II L.P.; a managing member of IDG Technology Venture Investment III, LLC, which is the general partner of IDG Technology Venture Investment III, L.P.; and a managing member of IDG Technology Venture Investments, LLC, which is the general partner of IDG Technology Venture Investments, LP. By virtue of his role in directing the management and operations of the ultimate general partners of each of the above record owners, Dr. Zhou may be deemed to beneficially own these shares. Dr. Zhou disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares, except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein, if any.

Table of Contents

(8)

Excludes merger consideration to be paid with respect to 1,285,551 shares held by InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc., and 1,072,069 shares held by InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc. (II) LCD, which we refer to as the InveStar Funds. VentureStar-InveStar Capital, Inc., a Cayman Islands limited liability company, acts as investment manager of InveStar Funds and exercises investment control over the shares held by such entities. Mr. Tung is the chief financial officer and managing partner of VentureStar-InveStar Capital Inc. and as such may be deemed to beneficially own the shares held by InveStar Funds. Mr. Tung disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein, if any.

Special Committee Compensation

In consideration of their service on the Special Committee, the members of the Special Committee are entitled to receive cash fees in the amount of \$2,500 for each meeting of the Special Committee that they attend, and the Chairman of the Special Committee, Roger W. Blethen, is entitled to receive an additional one-time cash fee in the amount of \$7,500. Each of Mr. Tung and Dr. Kaufman has received \$57,500 in respect of these fees, and Mr. Blethen has received \$65,000 in respect of these fees, including his one-time cash fee as Chairman of the Special Committee. An additional \$15,000 is owed to each member of the Special Committee on account of these fees for meetings held during the second calendar quarter of 2013. On April 22, 2013 our Board approved an additional cash payment to each member of the Special Committee in the amount of \$63,375 in consideration of his service on the Special Committee, and such amounts also remain payable. These amounts were paid to our Special Committee members in July, 2013.

Employment Matters

Our executive officers immediately prior to the effective time of the merger will, from and after the effective time of the merger, be the initial officers of the Surviving Corporation, until their successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with the Surviving Corporation's certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

Director and Officer Indemnification and Insurance

Our directors and executive officers are entitled to continued indemnification and insurance coverage under the Merger Agreement and the organizational documents of the Surviving Corporation. Under the Merger Agreement, the Surviving Corporation will maintain in effect for six years from the effective time of the merger the current directors' and officers' liability insurance policies, as presently maintained by us, with respect to matters occurring at or prior to the effective time of the merger, including acts or omissions occurring in connection with the Merger Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby.

Additionally, from and after the effective time of the merger, each of Parent and the Surviving Corporation will indemnify and hold harmless (and will advance expenses as incurred to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law to) the present and former officers and directors of our company and our subsidiaries, and any person who served or serves, at the request or for the benefit of our company or our subsidiaries, as a director, officer, partner, member, manager, trustee, employee or other fiduciary of any employee benefit plan, enterprise or other person against any and all costs or expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses), judgments, fines, losses, claims, damages, liabilities and amounts paid in settlement in connection with any actual or threatened claim, action, suit, proceeding or investigation, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, arising out of, relating to or in connection with, any acts or omissions occurring or alleged to have occurred prior to or at the effective time of the merger in connection with such person's service as a director or officer of our company or any of our subsidiaries or in such other capacity.



Table of Contents

Quantification of Payments and Benefits to the Executive Officers

The table below sets forth the amount of payments and benefits that each of our executive officers will receive in connection with the merger, assuming that the merger is consummated.

		Perquisites/	
Name	Equity (\$)(1)	Benefits (\$)(2)	Total (\$)
Yang Zhao, Ph.D.	3,146,919(3)	70,000	3,216,919
Patricia Niu	951,490(4)	70,000	1,021,490
Paul Zavracky, Ph.D.	1,034,114(5)	70,000	1,104,114

(1)

Does not reflect effect of investment in equity shares of Parent pursuant to the Contribution Agreement. For additional details regarding the terms of the Contribution Agreement, see the subheading titled " *Financing Rollover Financing*," beginning on page 69, in this section of proxy statement.

(2)

In connection with the negotiation of the Merger Agreement and related documents, we agreed to pay up to \$70,000 in aggregate legal fees to WilmerHale as special legal counsel for our executive officers. The payment of these fees is not contingent upon the consummation of the merger. The amount shown is an aggregate, and does not reflect any allocation among the executive officers.

(3)

Includes:

\$662,500 to be paid with respect to outstanding unvested options to purchase an aggregate 380,000 shares of Common Stock; and

\$147,875 to be paid with respect to shares of Common Stock subject to an outstanding unvested restricted stock award.

(4)

Includes:

\$368,156 to be paid with respect to outstanding unvested options to purchase an aggregate 181,250 shares of Common Stock; and

\$73,938 to be paid with respect to outstanding unvested restricted stock units relating to 17,500 shares of Common Stock.

(5)

Includes:

\$331,250 to be paid with respect to outstanding unvested options to purchase an aggregate 190,000 shares of Common Stock; and

\$126,750 to be paid with respect to outstanding unvested restricted stock units relating to 30,000 shares of Common Stock.

Advisory Vote on Specified Compensation

As required by Item 402(t) of Regulation S-K and Section 14A(b) of the Exchange Act, we are providing our stockholders with the opportunity to approve the Golden Parachute Proposal.

We believe that the compensation that may become payable to our executive officers in connection with the completion of the merger is reasonable and demonstrates that our executive compensation program was designed appropriately and structured to ensure the retention of talented executives and a strong alignment of their interests with the long-term interests of our stockholders. This vote is not intended to address any specific item of compensation, but rather the overall compensation that may become payable our executive officers in connection with the completion of the merger. In addition, this vote is separate and independent from the vote of our stockholders on the Merger Proposal and

Table of Contents

the Adjournment Proposal. Accordingly, our stockholders may vote to approve the executive compensation and vote against the Merger Proposal, and vice versa. As required by Section 14A(b) of the Exchange Act, we are asking our stockholders to vote on the adoption of the following resolution:

"RESOLVED, that the compensation that may be paid or become payable to the executive officers named in this proxy statement in connection with the completion of the merger, as disclosed under the table under "Special Factors Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger Quantification of Payments and Benefits to the Executive Officers," including the associated narrative discussion, is hereby APPROVED."

This vote is advisory and, therefore, it will not be binding on us, nor will it overrule any prior decision or require our Board (or any committee thereof) to take any action. Approval of the Golden Parachute Proposal is not a condition to the completion of the merger. Because we are contractually obligated to pay such executive compensation, the compensation will be payable, subject only to the conditions applicable thereto, if the Merger Proposal is approved and regardless of the outcome of the advisory vote.

A majority of the votes properly cast at the special meeting will be required to approve this Golden Parachute Proposal. Assuming a quorum is present at the special meeting, abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on the approval of the Golden Parachute Proposal.

More information regarding the compensation that may become payable to our executive officers in connection with the completion of the merger is set forth in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading" *Interests of Certain Persons in the Merger Quantification of Payments and Benefits to the Executive Officers*," beginning on page 74 of this proxy statement.

The Board, with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining, unanimously recommends a vote "FOR" this Golden Parachute Proposal.

Directors and Officers of the Surviving Corporation

From and after the effective time of the merger, the directors of the Surviving Corporation will consist of the directors of Merger Sub as of immediately prior to such effective time, and the officers of the Surviving Corporation will consist of our executive officers as of immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, in all cases until their successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with the Surviving Corporation's certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences of the Merger

The following is a general summary of material U.S. federal income tax consequences to holders of shares of our Common Stock upon the exchange of such shares for cash pursuant to the merger. This summary does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to a decision by an unaffiliated stockholders to dispose of shares of Common Stock in the merger, including tax considerations that arise from rules of general application to all taxpayers or to certain classes of investors or that are generally assumed to be known by investors. This summary is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (which we refer to as the "Code"), U.S. Treasury regulations, administrative rulings and court decisions, all as in effect as of the date hereof and all of which are subject to differing interpretations and/or change at any time (possibly with retroactive effect). This summary is not binding on the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (which we refer to as the "IRS"), and the IRS may challenge any of the conclusions set forth below and a U.S. court may sustain such a challenge. This summary assumes that holders own shares of Common Stock as capital assets, within the meaning of section 1221 of the Code, at all relevant times.



Table of Contents

This summary is not a complete description of all the tax consequences of the merger and, in particular, may not address U.S. federal income tax considerations for holders of shares of Common Stock received in connection with the exercise of compensatory Company Options, the grant of compensatory restricted stock, the grant of compensatory restricted stock units or otherwise received as compensation, holders that validly exercise their rights under Delaware law to object to the merger, or holders subject to special treatment under U.S. federal income tax law (such as insurance companies, banks, tax-exempt entities, financial institutions, broker-dealers, partnerships, S corporations or other pass-through entities, mutual funds, traders in securities who elect the mark-to-market method of accounting, tax-deferred or other retirement accounts, holders subject to the U.S. federal alternative minimum tax, U.S. persons that have a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar, certain former citizens or residents of the United States or holders that hold shares of Common Stock as part of a hedge, straddle, integration, constructive sale or conversion transaction). This summary also does not address the U.S. federal income tax consequences that would result if we were deemed a PRC "resident enterprise" under PRC tax laws, as discussed below in this section of the proxy statement, under the subheading " Material PRC Income Tax Consequences of the Merger" beginning on page 79.

This summary only addresses the U.S. federal income tax consequences of the merger and does not address any tax consequences arising as a result of transactions effected prior to, concurrently with, or after the merger (whether or not any such transactions are undertaken in connection with the merger), including, without limitation, the effect on the tax treatment of the Rollover Holders of the acquisition by Parent or Sponsor of any Common Stock under the Contribution Agreement. In addition, this summary does not discuss any tax consequences to any of our stockholders that will directly or indirectly hold an ownership interest in Parent or the Surviving Corporation after the merger, or holders of Company Options, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units or warrants to purchase shares of Common Stock. Furthermore, this summary does not discuss any aspect of state, local or foreign tax law that may be applicable to any holder of shares of our Common Stock, or any U.S. federal income tax considerations.

We have not sought and will not seek any opinion of counsel or any ruling from the IRS with respect to the matters discussed herein. We urge our stockholders to consult their own tax advisors with respect to the specific tax consequences to them in connection with the offer and the merger in light of their own particular circumstances, including the tax consequences under state, local, foreign and other tax laws.

Consequences to U.S. Holders

Except as otherwise set forth below, the following discussion is limited to the U.S. federal income tax consequences relevant to U.S. Holders. The term "U.S. Holder" means a beneficial owner of shares of Common Stock that is an individual citizen or resident of the United States, a domestic corporation (or any other entity or arrangement treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes), any estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source, or any trust: (i) if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust, and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust; or (ii) that has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as a U.S. person.

If a partnership (including any entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds shares of our Common Stock, the tax treatment of a holder that is a partner in the partnership generally will depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Such holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences of exchanging the shares of Common Stock pursuant to the offer or pursuant to the merger.

Payments with Respect to Shares of Common Stock

The exchange of shares of our Common Stock for cash pursuant to the merger will be a taxable transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes, and a U.S. Holder who receives cash for shares of Common Stock pursuant to the merger will generally recognize gain or loss, if any, equal to the difference between the amount of cash received and the holder's adjusted tax basis in the shares of Common Stock. Gain or loss must be determined separately for each block of shares (i.e., shares acquired at the same cost in a single transaction). Such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss, and will be long-term capital gain or loss if such U.S. Holder's holding period for the shares of Common Stock is more than one year at the time of the exchange of such holder's shares of Common Stock for cash. Long-term capital gains recognized by an individual holder generally are subject to tax at a lower rate than short-term capital gains or ordinary income. There are limitations on the deductibility of capital losses. Holders of Common Stock should consult their tax advisors regarding the determination and allocation of their tax basis in their Common Stock surrendered in the merger.

Medicare Contribution Tax

A U.S. Holder that is an individual or estate, or a trust that does not fall into a special class of trusts that is exempt from such tax, will be subject to an additional 3.8% tax on the lesser of: (i) such holder's "net investment income" (or undistributed "net investment income" in the case of an estate or trust) for the relevant taxable year; and (ii) the excess of such holder's modified adjusted gross income for the taxable year over a certain threshold (which in the case of individuals currently is between \$125,000 and \$250,000, depending on the individual's circumstances). A U.S. Holder's net investment income generally will include gains from the sale or other disposition of capital assets. U.S. Holders that are individuals, estates or trusts should consult their tax advisors regarding the effect, if any, of this tax on their ownership and disposition of their shares of Common Stock.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Payments made with respect to shares of Common Stock exchanged for cash in the merger may be subject to information reporting, and such payments will be subject to U.S. federal backup withholding tax unless the U.S. Holder (i) furnishes an accurate tax identification number or otherwise complies with applicable U.S. information reporting or certification requirements (typically, by completing and signing an IRS Form W-9) or (ii) is a corporation or other exempt recipient and demonstrates such fact. Backup withholding is not an additional tax and any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules may be refunded or credited against a U.S. Holder's U.S. federal income tax liability, if any, provided that such U.S. Holder furnishes the required information to the IRS in a timely manner.

Consequences to Non-U.S. Holders

The following is a discussion of certain U.S. federal income tax consequences that will apply to a Non-U.S. Holder of shares of Common Stock. The term "Non-U.S. Holder" means a beneficial owner of shares of Common Stock that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is an individual, corporation (or any other entity or arrangement treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes), estate or trust that, in each case, is not a U.S. Holder.

Payments with Respect to Shares of Common Stock

Payments made to a Non-U.S. Holder with respect to shares of Common Stock exchanged for cash pursuant to the merger generally will be exempt from U.S. federal income tax, unless:

the gain on shares of Common Stock, if any, is effectively connected with the conduct by the Non-U.S. Holder of a trade or business in the United States (and, if required by an applicable



Table of Contents

income tax treaty, is attributable to the Non-U.S. Holder's permanent establishment or fixed base in the United States);

the Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who was present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year in which the merger occurs and certain other conditions are met; or

we are or have been a United States real property holding corporation, or a "USRPHC," for U.S. federal income tax purposes at any time during the shorter of the five-year period ending on the date of exchange of the shares of Common Stock or the period that the Non-U.S. Holder held shares of Common Stock.

Unless an applicable income tax treaty provides otherwise, gain described in the first bullet point above will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income basis in the same manner as if the Non-U.S. Holder were a resident of the United States. Non-U.S. Holders that are foreign corporations also may be subject to a 30% branch profits tax (or applicable lower treaty rate). Gain described in the second bullet point above generally will be subject to tax at a flat rate of 30% (or such lower rate as may be specified under an applicable income tax treaty) on any gain from the exchange of the shares of Common Stock, net of applicable U.S. source losses from sales or exchanges of other capital assets recognized by the Non-U.S. Holder during the year. Non-U.S. Holders are urged to consult any applicable income tax treaties that may provide for different rules.

With respect to the third bullet point above, the determination of whether we are a USRPHC depends on the fair market value of our U.S. real property interests relative to the fair market value of our other trade or business assets and our foreign real property interests. Based on our financial statements and operations, we do not believe we currently are, nor within the past five years have been, a USRPHC. Moreover, since the shares of our Common Stock are regularly traded on an established securities market (within the meaning of applicable U.S. Treasury regulations), even if we constitute a USRPHC, any gain realized on the receipt of cash for shares of our Common Stock pursuant to the merger generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax if the Non-U.S. Holder owns (actually or constructively) five percent or less of the shares of Common Stock at all times during the five-year period ending on the date of disposition.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

In general, a Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to backup withholding and information reporting with respect to a payment made with respect to shares of Common Stock exchanged for cash in the merger if the Non-U.S. Holder has provided an IRS Form W-8BEN (or an IRS Form W-8ECI if the Non-U.S. Holder's gain is effectively connected with the conduct of a U.S. trade or business). If shares are held through a foreign partnership or other flow-through entity, certain documentation requirements also apply to the partnership or other flow-through entity. Backup withholding is not an additional tax and any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules may be refunded or credited against a Non-U.S. Holder's U.S. federal income tax liability, if any, provided that such Non-U.S. Holder furnishes the required information to the IRS in a timely manner.

Consequences to Rollover Holders

None of the Rollover Holders is expected to recognize any gain or loss in the merger for U.S. federal income tax purposes because none of the Rollover Holders is expected to be disposing of shares of Common Stock in the merger.

Consequences to Us, Parent and Merger Sub

None of our company, Parent or Merger Sub is expected to recognize any gain or loss in the merger for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Table of Contents

Material PRC Income Tax Consequences of the Merger

Under the EIT Law, which took effect on January 1, 2008, enterprises established outside of the PRC whose "de facto management bodies" are located in the PRC are considered PRC tax "resident enterprises," and thus generally will be subject to the enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% on their global income as well as tax reporting obligations in the PRC. In 2007, the State Council adopted the Regulation on the Implementation of PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, effective as of January 1, 2008, which generally defines the "de facto management body" as an establishment that has substantial management and control over the business, personnel, accounts and properties of an enterprise. Under the EIT Law and the above-mentioned implementation regulation, PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 10% is applicable to any gain generated by a "non-resident enterprise" from transfer of its equity in a PRC resident enterprise, provided that the "non-resident enterprise:" (i) does not have an establishment or place of business in the PRC; or (ii) has an establishment or place of business in the PRC, but the relevant income is not effectively connected with such establishment or place of business.

In addition, under the PRC Individual Income Tax Law, a PRC resident individual who disposes of a capital asset in or outside of China is subject to PRC individual income tax at the rate of 20%, and a non-PRC resident individual who disposes of a capital asset in China is also subject to individual income tax at the same rate (subject to applicable tax treaty relief, if any).

We do not believe that we should be considered a PRC tax resident enterprise under the EIT Law or that the gain generated from disposal of shares of our Common Stock by holders of such Common Stock that are not PRC residents should otherwise be considered as income sourced from the PRC and subject to PRC tax.

In addition, under the Circular on Strengthening the Administration of Enterprises Income Tax on Non-resident Enterprises' Equity Transfer Income ("Circular 698"), issued by the PRC State Administration of Taxation ("SAT"), which became effective as of January 1, 2008, and the Bulletin on Certain Issues regarding Administration of Income Tax on Non-resident Enterprises ("Bulletin 24"), issued by SAT, which became effective on April 1, 2011, where a non-resident enterprise indirectly holds and transfers equity of a PRC resident enterprise held through an offshore holding company, which was located in a tax jurisdiction that (a) has an effective tax burden less than 12.5% or (b) does not impose income tax on the income arising out of the disposition, the non-resident enterprise is required to file with the relevant PRC taxation authority having jurisdiction over the PRC resident enterprise whose equity is indirectly transferred certain information about the transfer. Where such taxation authority, upon review and examination of the documents submitted by the non-resident enterprise and approval of SAT, deems such offshore holding company to be a vehicle incorporated for the purpose of tax evasion and has no reasonable commercial purpose, it has the power to disregard the existence of the overseas holding company and re-characterize the offshore share transfer transaction and, as a result, gains derived from such offshore share transfer transaction may be subject to PRC withholding tax at the rate of 10%.

There is uncertainty as to the application of Circular 698 to the merger. While it appears that Circular 698 was not intended to apply to stock transfers of publicly traded companies through the open market and does not apply to individual transferors, there is very little guidance and practical experience regarding its application in similar cases. Circular 698 may be determined by the PRC tax authorities to be applicable to the merger where non-resident corporate stockholders were involved, if our company is determined by the PRC tax authorities to lack reasonable commercial purpose and serve for tax evasion purposes. As a result, the non-resident corporate holders of our Common Stock may be at risk of being taxed by the PRC tax authorities under Circular 698.

Table of Contents

You should consult your own tax advisor for a full understanding of the tax consequences of the merger to you, including any PRC tax consequences.

Regulatory Approvals

Mergers and acquisitions that may have an impact in the United States are subject to review by the U.S. Department of Justice and the Federal Trade Commission to determine whether they comply with applicable antitrust laws. Under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvement Act of 1976, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder (the "HSR Act"), mergers and acquisitions that meet certain jurisdictional thresholds may not be completed until the expiration of a waiting period that follows the filing of notification forms by both parties to the transaction with the Department of Justice and the Federal Trade Commission. Together with Parent, we have determined that the merger does not meet the jurisdictional thresholds of the HSR Act. As a result, neither we nor Parent or Merger Sub are required to file notification forms with the Department of Justice or the Federal Trade Commission, and no waiting period will apply to the merger as a consequence of the HSR Act.

In connection with the merger, we will be required to make certain filings with, and comply with certain laws of, various federal and state governmental agencies, including:

filings with the SEC under the Exchange Act, including this proxy statement on Schedule 14A and the related Schedule 13E-3;

the filing of the certificate of merger and related documentation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware pursuant to the DGCL, after the approval of the Merger Proposal by our stockholders and the satisfaction or waiver of all other conditions to the closing of the merger; and

certain notice filings with the NASDAQ.

It is currently expected that no prior regulatory approvals, including under antitrust laws and regulations, will be required in order to complete the merger.

At any time before or after the effective time of the merger, the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice or the Federal Trade Commission could take action under antitrust laws, including seeking to prevent the merger, to rescind the merger or to conditionally approve the merger upon the divestiture of our assets or the assets of Parent, or subject to regulatory conditions or other remedies. In addition, U.S. state attorneys general could take action under the antitrust laws as they deem necessary or desirable in the public interest, including, without limitation, seeking to enjoin the completion of the merger or permitting completion subject to regulatory conditions. Private parties may also seek to take legal action under antitrust laws under some circumstances. There can be no assurance that a challenge to the merger on antitrust grounds will not be made or, if such a challenge is made, that it would not be successful.

Fees and Expenses

Parent and Merger Sub currently estimate that they have incurred or will incur a total of approximately \$1.0 million in fees and expenses in connection with the merger and the related transactions, as set forth in the table below:

	Estimated Amount	
Legal, accounting and other professional fees	\$	900,000
Miscellaneous		100,000
Total	\$	1,000,000
		80

Table of Contents

We currently estimate that we have incurred or will incur a total of approximately \$3.7 million in fees and expenses in connection with the merger and the related transactions, as set forth in the table below:

	Estimated Amount	
Financial advisory fees and expenses	\$	2,000,000
Legal, accounting and other professional fees		1,165,000
Special Committee fees and expenses		425,000
SEC filing fees		11,521
Proxy solicitation, printing and mailing costs		27,500
Transfer agent and paying agent fees and expenses		10,000
Miscellaneous		60,979

Total

\$ 3,700,000

These fees and expenses will not reduce the merger consideration to be received by our stockholders and do not include legal fees and other expenses related to any litigation in connection the merger (as described in this section of the proxy statement below, under the subheading "*Litigation*"). In general, all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the Merger Agreement, the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement will be paid by the party incurring such expense. Upon termination of the Merger Agreement under certain circumstances, we may be required to pay Parent the Company Termination Fee of \$1.77 million or Parent may be required to pay us the Parent Termination Fee of \$3.54 million, in each case as described under the caption "*The Merger Agreement Termination Fees*" beginning on page 111 of this proxy statement.

Anticipated Accounting Treatment of the Merger

As the surviving corporation in the merger, we will account for the merger as a business combination using the purchase method of accounting for financial accounting purposes, whereby the estimated purchase price would be allocated to our assets and liabilities based on their relative fair values following FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 805, Business Combinations.

Litigation

On May 14, 2013, a putative class action captioned *Spencer v. Zhao et al.*, C.A. No. 13-1771-BLS, was filed in Massachusetts Superior Court in Suffolk County against us and our directors, as well as David Yang, a former director, and Merger Sub. An amended complaint was filed on June 4, 2013, removing David Yang as a defendant. The amended complaint alleges, among other things, that:

our directors breached their fiduciary duties of care, loyalty, good faith, candor and independence owed to our stockholders by engaging in an unfair process that resulted in the proposed merger at an inadequate price;

given our "recent strong performance, innovative technological developments, as well as [our] future growth prospects, the consideration shareholders will receive is inadequate and undervalues the Company;"

the consideration provided under the proposed transaction "is particularly inadequate in light of the Company's substantial liquidity" and that "the Company holds more than \$28 million in investments (\$25.6 million of which are short-term investments) and \$34 million in cash and cash equivalents;"

Table of Contents

the proposed merger is an attempt by IDG, which has allegedly established significant influence over us, to take advantage of a momentary drop in our financial performance to acquire our outstanding shares of Common Stock for inadequate consideration;

certain of our corporate insiders, including Dr. Zhao, have entered voting agreements to deter other potential purchasers and will unfairly benefit from the consummation of the merger to the detriment of our public stockholders, including by having the opportunity to roll over their Common Stock into shares of Parent (and thereby maintain indirect ownership of the Surviving Corporation);

"the Company's officers and directors stand to gain unique benefits from the Proposed Transaction" and that the defendants "successfully negotiated for the accelerated vesting of all unvested stock options, restricted stock awards and restricted stock units currently held by the Company's officers and directors upon the consummation of the Proposed Transaction;"

Dr. Zhao and other members of management "were allowed to dominate discussions with all those potential bidders solicited during the sales process" and that "management deterred other interested parties so that a deal with IDG could be reached;"

our directors breached their fiduciary duties by agreeing to deal protection provisions in the Merger Agreement that preclude other bidders from making a successful competing offer for us, including a no-solicitation provision, a provision that requires our Board to, among other things, determine that an unsolicited bid is or could reasonably be expected to lead to a Superior Proposal before we may enter into discussions or provide any information to a rival bidder, matching rights, and a provision that requires us to pay the \$1.77 million Company Termination Fee in order to enter into a transaction pursuant to a Superior Proposal;

together with Merger Sub, we aided and abetted our directors' alleged breaches of fiduciary duty;

the preliminary version of this proxy statement that we filed with the SEC on May 21, 2013 fails to provide our stockholders with material information and/or provides them with materially misleading information, thereby rendering our stockholders unable to make an informed decision as to how to vote at the special stockholder meeting, particularly with respect to:

assumptions underlying our management's projections;

the financial analyses underlying RBC's fairness opinion; and

various aspects of the sale process.

The litigation seeks relief: (i) declaring the litigation to be a class action and certifying plaintiff as the class representative and his counsel as class counsel; (ii) enjoining, preliminarily and permanently, the proposed merger; (iii) in the event that the proposed merger is consummated prior to the entry of any final judgment, rescinding it or awarding plaintiff and the class rescissory damages; (iv) directing that defendants account to plaintiff and the other members of the class for all damages caused by them and account for all profits and any special benefits obtained as a result of their breach of their fiduciary duties; (v) awarding plaintiff the costs of the litigation, including a reasonable allowance for the fees and expenses of plaintiff's attorneys and experts; and (vi) granting plaintiff and the other members of the class such further relief as the court deems just and proper. We and three of our directors, Roger W. Blethen, Lawrence A. Kaufman and Michael Tung, accepted service of process in the litigation as of June 5, 2013, and subsequently moved the court to set a deadline of August 9, 2013 for us to answer or otherwise respond to the amended complaint. The court granted that motion on June 28, 2013. Beginning on June 21, 2013, the parties exchanged expedited discovery.

Table of Contents

While we and the other defendants believe that the allegations made in the lawsuit are without merit, we, together with these other defendants, entered into the MOU solely in an effort to minimize the expense and uncertainty of litigation. Pursuant to the MOU, the parties agreed to settle the lawsuit subject to certain conditions and without admitting any liability. The MOU establishes a framework to resolve the allegations against us and the other defendants in connection with the merger and includes an agreement to negotiate and execute a final settlement agreement which would provide for: (i) the conditional certification, for settlement purposes only, of a non-opt-out class pursuant to Rule 23 of the Massachusetts Rule of Civil Procedure consisting of all holders of our Common Stock (excluding defendants in the lawsuit and certain related persons) from and including November 20, 2012 through and including the closing of the merger, together with their predecessors and successors and assigns; and (ii) the release and settlement by our stockholders of all claims against us and the other defendants in connection with the merger. The asserted claims will not be released and settled until approved by the Massachusetts Superior Court. In exchange for such settlement and release and pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the parties agreed, after arm's-length negotiations, that we would supplement this proxy statement with the Supplemental Disclosures. Plaintiff recites in the MOU that he believes that the proxy statement, when supplemented by the Supplemental Disclosures, will permit our stockholders to make a fully informed decision with respect to whether or not to approve the merger.

The settlement is contingent upon plaintiff's completion of confirmatory discovery. Plaintiff has the right to withdraw from the settlement in the event that he determines, following confirmatory discovery, that the settlement is not fair, reasonable, adequate or in the best interests of our stockholders. The settlement is also contingent upon approval by the Massachusetts Superior Court. In addition, in connection with the settlement and as provided in the MOU, the parties contemplate that plaintiff's counsel will seek an award of attorneys' fees and expenses as part of the settlement. The settlement will not affect the amount of the merger consideration that our stockholders are entitled to receive in the merger.

There can be no assurance that the parties will ultimately enter into a final settlement agreement or that the court would approve the settlement even if the parties were to enter into such final settlement agreement. In such event, the proposed settlement as contemplated by the MOU may be terminated, in which case we will continue to vigorously defend against the allegations made in the lawsuit. Because the settlement might not be approved by the court and the settlement may be terminated, the outcome of this lawsuit is uncertain and cannot be predicted with any certainty. An adverse judgment for monetary damages could have a material adverse effect on our operations and liquidity. A preliminary injunction could delay or jeopardize the completion of the merger, and an adverse judgment granting permanent injunctive relief could indefinitely prevent completion of the merger.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

We caution you that any statement in this proxy statement (including the annexes that constitute a part of this proxy statement) which is not historical fact, or which might otherwise be considered an opinion, projection, future expectation, plan or prospect, could constitute forward-looking statements. All statements regarding our expected future financial position, results of operations, cash flows, dividends, financing plans, business strategy, budget, projected costs or cost savings, capital expenditures, competitive positions, growth opportunities for existing products or products under development, plans and objectives of management for future operations, markets for stock, evaluation of strategic alternatives (including the merger), and statements regarding consummation of the merger, are forward-looking statements. In addition, forward-looking statements include statements that incorporate forward-looking terminology such as "anticipate," "are confident," "believe," "continue," "estimate," "expect," "intend," "plan," "project," "should" or "will" and other similar expressions.

Table of Contents

These forward-looking statements are based on information presently available to our management, and are inherently subjective, uncertain and subject to change, due to any number of known and unknown risks and uncertainties. Therefore, actual events may differ materially from what is expressed in such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause events not to occur as expressed in the forward-looking statements in this proxy statement (including the related annexes) include, but are not limited to: unanticipated delays; the occurrence of any event, change or other circumstances that could give rise to the termination of the Merger Agreement; the effect of the announcement of the merger on our business relationships, operating results and business generally; diversion of management attention from the operations of the business as a result of preparations for the proposed merger; the risk that the pendency of the merger results in potential difficulties in employee retention; the inability to complete the merger due to the failure to obtain the stockholder approval of the Merger Proposal; the failure to satisfy other closing conditions; other risk factors detailed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, included with these proxy materials as Annex D, and constituting a part of this proxy statement; and the matters discussed under "Risk Factors" and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-O for the quarter ended March 31, 2013, included in these proxy materials as Annex E, and constituting a part of this proxy statement. Many of these factors are beyond our ability to control or predict. Stockholders, potential investors and other readers are urged to consider these factors in evaluating the forward-looking statements and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements included herein are made only as of the date of this proxy statement, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update such forward-looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances except to the extent required by law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of any material change in any information previously disclosed, we will, where relevant and if required by applicable law: (i) update such information through a supplement to this proxy statement; and (ii) amend the Schedule 13E-3 filed in connection with the merger, in each case, to the extent necessary.

THE PARTIES TO THE MERGER

MEMSIC, Inc.

We are a Delaware corporation incorporated in February 1999. Headquartered in Andover, Massachusetts, we provide advanced semiconductor sensor and integrated sensing system solutions based on MEMS technology and mixed signal circuit design. Our products include accelerometers, magnetic sensors and electronic compass solutions, integrated high performance inertial measurement units for industrial and avionics applications, MEMS flow sensing systems, and wireless sensing network systems. A detailed description of our business is contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, which is included with these proxy materials as Annex D, and constitutes part of this proxy statement. See "*Where You Can Find More Information*" beginning on page 130 of this proxy statement. In addition, see "*Important Information Regarding MEMSIC*" beginning on page 114 of this proxy statement for further information about us and our directors and executive officers.

Our principal executive offices are located at One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, Massachusetts 01810.

MZ Investment Holdings Limited and MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited

Parent is a newly formed exempted company with limited liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Parent is an affiliate of IDG. For additional information regarding Parent and its affiliates, see "Important Information Regarding Parent, Merger Sub, IDG, and the Individual Rollover Holders Parent, Merger Sub and the IDG Filing Persons" beginning on page 128 of this proxy statement.

Table of Contents

Parent has not engaged in any business other than in connection with the merger and related transactions.

Merger Sub is a newly formed Delaware corporation. Merger Sub is a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent and was formed solely for the purpose of engaging in the merger and related transactions. For additional information regarding Merger Sub and its affiliates, see "*Important Information Regarding Parent, Merger Sub, IDG, and the Individual Rollover Holders Parent, Merger Sub and the IDG Filing Persons*" beginning on page 128 of this proxy statement. Merger Sub has not engaged in any business other than in connection with the merger and related transactions.

The principal executive offices of both Parent and Merger Sub are located at c/o IDG Capital Management (HK) Limited, Unit 5505, The Centre, 99 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong.

THE SPECIAL MEETING

Date, Time and Place

This proxy statement is being furnished to our stockholders as part of the solicitation of proxies by our Board for use at the special meeting to be held on September 16, 2013, starting at 10:00 a.m. local time at the offices of Foley Hoag LLP located at Seaport West, 155 Seaport Boulevard, Boston, Massachusetts 02210, or at any adjournment or postponement thereof.

This proxy statement and the form of proxy are first being mailed to stockholders on or about August 9, 2013.

Purpose of the Special Meeting

The purpose of the special meeting is to allow our stockholders to consider and vote upon proposals to:

approve the Merger Proposal;

approve the Golden Parachute Proposal;

approve the Adjournment Proposal; and

transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof, including to consider any procedural matters incident to the conduct of the special meeting.

The vote on each proposal is separate from the vote on any other proposal and will be tabulated separately.

Our stockholders must vote for the Merger Proposal in order for the merger to occur. If our stockholders fail to approve the Merger Proposal, the merger will not occur.

Because the vote on the Golden Parachute Proposal is advisory in nature only, it will not be binding on us or on Parent. Because we are contractually obligated to pay the related compensation, the compensation will be payable, subject only to the conditions applicable thereto, if the Merger Agreement is adopted, regardless of the outcome of the advisory vote.

The only items of business that our Board intends to present at the special meeting are set forth in this proxy statement. As of the date of this proxy statement, we are not aware of any other matters to be presented at the meeting. If any other matter or matters are properly brought before the meeting, the person(s) named as your proxyholder(s) will have the discretion to vote your shares on those matters in accordance with their best judgment and as they deem advisable.

Table of Contents

Recommendation of the Board

Upon the unanimous recommendation of the Special Committee, the Board, with Drs. Zhao and Zhou abstaining, unanimously recommends that stockholders vote "FOR" each of the Merger Proposal, the Golden Parachute Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal.

Record Date and Quorum

The holders of record of Common Stock as of the close of business on August 6, 2013, the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the special meeting, are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the special meeting. As of May 10, 2013, there were 24,296,504 shares of Common Stock outstanding. The holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share on each proposal presented for a vote at the special meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof.

The presence at the special meeting, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the shares of Common Stock outstanding on the record date will constitute a quorum, permitting us to conduct our business at the special meeting. Any shares of Common Stock held by us in treasury or held by any of our subsidiaries are not considered to be outstanding for purposes of determining a quorum. Once a share is represented at the special meeting, it will be counted for the purpose of determining the presence of a quorum at the special meeting and any adjournment or postponement of the special meeting. However, if a new record date is set for the adjourned or postponed special meeting, then a new quorum will have to be established. Proxies received but marked as abstentions will be included in the calculation of the number of shares considered to be present at the special meeting. "Broker non-votes," as described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading *" Voting; Proxies; Revocation Providing Voting Instructions by Proxy,"* will not be considered to be present.

If a quorum is not present, the special meeting may be adjourned to another time and another place by a majority of the votes cast upon the question or, if no stockholder is present, by any officer entitled to preside at or act as secretary of the special meeting. If a quorum is not present, we expect to propose to adjourn the special meeting to solicit additional proxies and intend to cause any proxies we have received at the time of the special meeting to be voted in favor of an adjournment.

Required Vote

In order to complete the merger, the holders of a majority of the shares of our Common Stock outstanding as of the close of business on the record date must vote "FOR" the Merger Proposal. A failure to vote your shares of Common Stock, an abstention from voting or a broker non-vote will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the Merger Proposal.

Approval of the Golden Parachute Proposal, the Adjournment Proposal and any other business properly presented for a vote at the meeting requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes properly cast on the proposal. Neither abstentions nor broker non-votes will be counted as votes cast on any proposal. Accordingly, if a quorum is present, a failure to vote, an abstention from voting or a broker non-vote on these proposals will have no effect on the outcome on the vote on the proposal.

Except for the members of the Special Committee, in their capacities as directors, none of our directors or executive officers has made any recommendation either in support of or in opposition to the Merger Proposal, the Golden Parachute Proposal or the Adjournment Proposal. Drs. Zhao and Zhou are not members of the Special Committee, and they abstained from our Board's vote to approve and recommend the Merger Agreement and the merger. Our directors and executive officers have informed us that, as of date of this proxy statement, they intend to vote in favor of each of the Merger Proposal, the Golden Parachute Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal. Pursuant to the terms of the



Table of Contents

Voting Agreement, each of our executive officers is contractually obligated to vote in favor of the Merger Proposal.

Voting; Proxies; Revocation

Attendance

All holders of shares of Common Stock as of the close of business on the record date, including stockholders of record and beneficial owners of Common Stock registered in the name of a bank, broker or other nominee, or "street name," are invited to attend the special meeting. If you are a stockholder of record, please be prepared to provide proper identification, such as a driver's license. If you hold your shares in "street name," you will need to provide proof of ownership, such as a recent account statement or letter from your bank, broker or other nominee, along with proper identification.

Voting in Person

Stockholders of record will be able to vote in person at the special meeting. If you are not a stockholder of record, but instead hold your shares in "street name" through a bank, broker or other nominee, you must provide a proxy executed in your favor from your bank, broker or other nominee in order to be able to vote in person at the special meeting.

Providing Voting Instructions by Proxy

To ensure that your shares are represented at the special meeting, we recommend that you provide voting instructions promptly by proxy, even if you plan to attend the special meeting in person.

If you are a stockholder of record, and you complete, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card by mail so that it is received before the special meeting, your shares will be voted in the manner directed by you on your proxy card.

If you submit a valid proxy without indicating how you wish to vote, your proxy will be voted in favor of the approval of each of the Merger Proposal, the Golden Parachute Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal and in accordance with the recommendation of our Board on any other matter properly brought for a vote at the special meeting.

If you do not return your proxy card, your shares will not be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the special meeting (unless you are a record holder as of the record date and attend the special meeting in person), which will have the same effect as a vote against the Merger Proposal but will not, in the presence of a quorum, affect the outcome of the vote on any other proposal.

If your shares are held by a bank, broker or other nominee on your behalf in "street name," your bank, broker or other nominee will send you instructions regarding how to provide voting instructions for your shares. Many banks and brokerage firms have a process for their customers to provide voting instructions by telephone or via the Internet, in addition to providing voting instructions in writing.

In accordance with the rules of the NASDAQ, banks, brokers and other nominees who hold shares of Common Stock in "street name" for their customers do not have discretionary authority to vote the shares on the Merger Proposal, the Golden Parachute Proposal or the Adjournment Proposal. Accordingly, if banks, brokers or other nominees do not receive specific voting instructions from the beneficial owner of such shares, they may not vote such shares with respect to the Merger Proposal, the Golden Parachute Proposal or the Adjournment Proposal. Under such circumstances, a "broker non-vote" would arise. Broker non-votes, if any, will not be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the special meeting and will have the same effect as a vote "AGAINST" the Merger Proposal, but, in the presence of a quorum, will have no effect on outcome of

Table of Contents

the vote on any other proposal. For shares of Common Stock held in "street name," only shares of Common Stock affirmatively voted "FOR" the Merger Proposal, the Golden Parachute Proposal or the Adjournment Proposal will be counted as a favorable vote for such proposal.

Revocation of Proxies

Your proxy is revocable. If you are a stockholder of record, you may revoke your proxy at any time before the vote is taken at the special meeting by:

submitting a new proxy with a later date, by completing, signing, dating and returning to us a new proxy card, by mail;

attending the special meeting; or

sending written notice of revocation to our Corporate Secretary, at:

MEMSIC, Inc. One Tech Drive, Suite 325 Andover, Massachusetts 01810 Attention: Corporate Secretary

Please note that if you want to revoke your proxy by mailing a new proxy card to us or by sending us a written notice of revocation, you should ensure that you send your new proxy card or written notice of revocation in sufficient time for us to receive it before the day of the special meeting.

If you hold your shares in "street name" through a bank, broker or other nominee, you will need to follow the instructions provided by your bank, broker or other nominee in order to revoke your prior voting instructions or submit new voting instructions.

Adjournments and Postponements

Although it is not currently expected, the special meeting may be adjourned or postponed for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies in favor of the Merger Proposal. In the event that there is present, in person or by proxy, sufficient favorable voting power to secure our stockholders' approval of the Merger Proposal, we do not anticipate that we will adjourn or postpone the special meeting unless our counsel advises that failure to do so could reasonably be expected to result in a violation of applicable law. Any valid proxies that we receive in which no voting instructions are provided on the Adjournment Proposal will be voted in favor of an adjournment in these circumstances. Any adjournment or postponement of the special meeting for the purpose of soliciting additional proxies would allow our stockholders who have already submitted their proxies to revoke them at any time prior to their use at the special meeting, as adjourned or postponed.

The Adjournment Proposal relates only to an adjournment of the special meeting for purposes of soliciting additional proxies in favor of the Merger Proposal. Any other adjournment of the special meeting (such as an adjournment required because of the absence of a quorum) would be voted upon pursuant to the discretionary authority granted by the proxy.

If the special meeting is adjourned or postponed, we are not required to give notice of the time and place of the adjourned meeting unless the adjournment is for more than 30 days, or our Board fixes a new record date for the special meeting.

Solicitation of Proxies

We will bear the cost of soliciting proxies. This includes the charges and expenses of banks, brokers and other nominees for forwarding solicitation material to beneficial owners of our outstanding Common Stock. Our directors, officers and employees may solicit proxies in person or by mail, e-mail,

Table of Contents

telephone, via the Internet or through other means of communication. Our directors, officers and employees will not receive any additional compensation for their services, but we will reimburse them for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses, if any. We have retained AST Phoenix Advisors, a proxy solicitation firm, to assist us in the solicitation of proxies for the special meeting and will pay AST Phoenix Advisors a customary fee, plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.

Questions and Additional Information

If you have questions about the merger or how to submit your proxy, or if you need additional copies of this proxy statement or the proxy card or voting instructions, please call our proxy solicitor, AST Phoenix Advisors, at (877) 478-5038. Banks and brokers should contact AST Phoenix Advisors by calling (212) 493-3910.

Multiple Stockholders Sharing the Same Address

If you and other residents at your mailing address own shares of Common Stock through a bank, broker or other nominee, you may have elected to receive only one copy of this proxy statement. If you and other residents at your mailing address are stockholders of record, you may have received only one copy of this proxy statement unless you provided our transfer agent with contrary instructions.

This practice, known as "householding," is designed to reduce our printing and postage costs. We will promptly provide any stockholder residing at a shared mailing address that received only one copy of the proxy statement with an additional copy of this proxy statement and proxy card upon your written request to MEMSIC, Inc., One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, Massachusetts 01810, Attention: Corporate Secretary, or upon your oral request, which can be made by calling (978) 738-0900. If you are a stockholder of record and wish to discontinue householding or change your householding election, you may do so by calling (800) 937-5449 (toll free) or 718-921-8124 (direct), or by writing to American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, 6201 15th Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11219. If you hold your shares through a bank, broker or other nominee and wish to discontinue householding or to change your householding election, you may do so by contacting such bank, broker or other nominee.

THE MERGER AGREEMENT

This section of the proxy statement describes the material terms of the Merger Agreement but does not purport to describe all of the terms of the Merger Agreement. The following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text of the Merger Agreement, which is attached as Annex A to this proxy statement and constitutes part of this proxy statement. You should read the Merger Agreement in its entirety because it, and not this proxy statement, is the legal document that governs the merger. This description of the Merger Agreement has been included to provide you with information regarding its terms.

Explanatory Note Regarding the Merger Agreement

The following summary of the Merger Agreement, and the copy of the Merger Agreement attached hereto as Annex A to this proxy statement, are intended to provide information regarding the terms of the Merger Agreement and are not intended to modify or supplement any factual disclosures about us in our public reports filed with the SEC. In particular, the Merger Agreement and the related summary are not intended to be, and should not be relied upon as, disclosures regarding any facts and circumstances relating to us or any of our subsidiaries or affiliates. The Merger Agreement contains representations and warranties by us, Parent and Merger Sub which were made only for purposes of that agreement and as of specified dates. The representations, warranties and covenants in the Merger Agreement were made solely for the benefit of the parties to the Merger Agreement; may be subject to limitations agreed upon by the contracting parties, including being qualified by confidential disclosures

Table of Contents

made for the purposes of allocating contractual risk between the parties to the Merger Agreement instead of establishing these matters as facts; and may apply contractual standards of materiality or material adverse effect that generally differ from those applicable to investors. In addition, information concerning the subject matter of the representations, warranties and covenants may change after the date of the Merger Agreement, which subsequent information may or may not be fully reflected in our public disclosures. Moreover, the description of the Merger Agreement below does not purport to describe all of the terms of such agreement, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of such agreement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Annex A and constitutes part of this proxy statement.

Additional information about us may be found elsewhere in this proxy statement and in our other public filings. See "Where You Can Find Additional Information" beginning on page 130 of this proxy statement.

Structure of the Merger

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement and in accordance with the DGCL, at the effective time of the merger, Merger Sub will merge with and into our company and we will survive the merger as a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent. As a result of the merger, the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease. At the effective time, the certificate of incorporation and bylaws of the Surviving Corporation will be amended in their entirety (except with respect to the name of the Surviving Corporation) to read as the certificate of incorporation and bylaws, respectively, of Merger Sub immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, until thereafter amended as provided thereby or under applicable law.

From and after the effective time of the merger, the directors of the Surviving Corporation will consist of the directors of Merger Sub as of immediately prior to such effective time, and the officers of the Surviving Corporation will consist of our officers as of immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, in all cases until their successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with the Surviving Corporation's certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

When the Merger Becomes Effective

Unless the Merger Agreement shall have been terminated pursuant to its terms, the closing of the merger will take place at 10:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time) at the offices of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom, 42/F, Edinburgh Tower, The Landmark, 15 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong on a date to be specified by us and by Parent, which will be no later than the third business day immediately following the day on which the last closing condition to the merger has been satisfied, or, if permissible, waived. As soon as practicable on the closing date, we, together with Merger Sub, will file or cause to be filed a certificate of merger with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, and the merger will become effective at such time that the certificate of merger becomes effective, or such other date and time as may be set forth in the certificate of merger.

Effect of the Merger on the Common Stock

Except as provided below, at the effective time, each outstanding share of Common Stock will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, without interest and less any applicable withholding taxes. At the effective time, each share of Common Stock that is held by (i) us, as treasury stock, (ii) Parent or Merger Sub, whether directly or indirectly, and including shares contributed to Parent by the Rollover Holders immediately prior to the closing pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, or (iii) any of our subsidiaries, will be cancelled and retired, will cease to

Table of Contents

exist as of the effective time of the merger, and no merger consideration will be delivered with respect thereto.

Common Stock that is issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time and held by stockholders that have properly exercised and perfected and not withdrawn or lost their appraisal rights under Section 262 will not have their shares automatically converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, but will instead be entitled to such consideration as determined by Section 262. If a stockholder seeking such appraisal rights fails to perfect or shall have effectively withdrawn or lost such stockholder's right to appraisal and payment under the DGCL, such stockholder's Common Stock will be deemed to have been converted into the right to receive the merger consideration and such shares of Common Stock will not be deemed to be dissenting shares. We have agreed to give Parent prompt notice of any written demands received that we receive for appraisal of any Common Stock, and any withdrawals of such demands, and the opportunity to participate in all negotiations and proceedings with respect to such demands. We will not, except with the prior written consent of Parent, or as required by applicable law, make any payment with respect to any demands for appraisal or settle or offer to settle any such demands.

Upon consummation of the merger, each share of common stock of Merger Sub, \$0.0001 par value per share, of Merger Sub issued and outstanding immediately prior to the effective time will be converted into and become one validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable share of common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, of the Surviving Corporation.

Treatment of Company Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

Company Stock Options. Upon the consummation of the merger, each Company Option, including those held by the Rollover Holders, will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive cash in an amount equal to: (a) the product of (i) the total number of shares of Common Stock subject to such Company Option immediately prior to the consummation of the merger (without regard to vesting), and (ii) the excess, if any, of \$4.225 over the exercise price per share of Common Stock subject to such Company Option, less (b) any amounts that are required to be withheld or deducted under applicable tax provisions. Such amount will be paid as soon as reasonably practicable after the consummation of the merger. No holder of a Company Option that has an exercise price per share of Common Stock that is equal to or greater than the merger consideration will be entitled to any payment with respect to such cancelled Company Option before or after the effective time of the merger.

Company Restricted Stock Awards. Upon the consummation of the merger, each of our restricted stock awards that granted and outstanding, including those held by the Rollover Holders and our directors, will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, which amount will be paid net of any applicable taxes, as soon as reasonably practicable after the effective time of the merger.

Company Restricted Stock Units. Upon the consummation of the merger, each of our restricted stock units that are granted and outstanding, including those held by the Rollover Holders and our directors, will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, which amount will be paid net of any applicable taxes, as soon as reasonably practicable after the effective time of the merger.

Payment of the Merger Consideration

At the effective time of the merger, Parent will deposit, or cause to be deposited, with a bank or trust company designated by Parent and reasonably acceptable to us (such bank or trust company being hereinafter referred to as the "Paying Agent") for the benefit of our stockholders, cash in an amount sufficient to pay the aggregate merger consideration that our stockholders are entitled to receive under the Merger Agreement, as described elsewhere in this section under the subheadings " *Effect of the Merger on the Common Stock*" and ' *Treatment of Company Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units.*"



Table of Contents

As promptly as practicable after the effective time of the merger, the Surviving Corporation will cause the Paying Agent to mail to each of our registered stockholders entitled to receive the merger consideration a customary letter of transmittal and instructions for use in effecting the surrender of any stock certificates (or effective affidavits of loss in lieu thereof) and/or such other documents as may be required in exchange for the merger consideration. **No stockholder should surrender any stock certificates until the stockholder receives the letter of transmittal and other materials for such surrender.** Upon surrender of a stock certificate (or effective affidavit of loss in lieu thereof) and/or such other necessary documents to the Paying Agent together with a duly executed letter of transmittal, each stockholder holding Common Stock represented by such certificate will be entitled to receive in exchange therefor a check or wire transfer in an amount (subject to any required tax withholdings) equal to (a) the number of shares of Common Stock represented by such certificate so surrendered will be cancelled. The Paying Agent will also issue and deliver to each holder of uncertificated shares of Common Stock a check or wire transfer for the amount of cash (subject to any required tax withholdings) that such holder is entitled to receive with respect to shares that will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive the merger consideration, and such uncertificated shares will then be cancelled. No interest will be paid or accrue on any amount payable in respect of the Common Stock.

If any portion of the merger consideration is to be paid to a person other than the person in whose name the surrendered stock certificate or the transferred uncertificated share is registered, it will be a condition to such delivery that such stock certificate will be properly endorsed or will otherwise be in proper form for transfer or such uncertificated share will be properly transferred and that the person requesting such payment will pay any transfer or other tax required as a result of such payment to a person other than the registered holder of such stock certificate or uncertificated share or establish to the satisfaction of Parent that such taxes have been paid or are not applicable. Until surrendered, from and after the effective time of the merger, any stock certificate will be deemed to represent only the right to receive upon surrender the merger consideration, without interest.

As promptly as practicable after the effective time of the merger, the Surviving Corporation will pay the aggregate merger consideration payable with respect to Company Options, our restricted stock awards and our restricted stock units through, to the extent applicable, the Surviving Corporation's payroll (subject to any required tax withholdings) in the amounts described elsewhere in this section under the subheading " *Treatment of Company Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units.*" To the extent evidence has been timely provided to the Surviving Corporation that an election under Section 83(b) of the Code was properly made with respect to any of our restricted stock awards, the merger consideration payable with respect to such shares will be paid in the manner described with respect to shares of Common Stock, rather than as described in this paragraph.

After the effective time of the merger, there will be no further registration of transfers of shares of the Common Stock on the transfer books of the Surviving Corporation. If, after the effective time of the merger, stock certificates of the Common Stock are presented to the Paying Agent, Parent or Surviving Corporation for transfer or any other reason, such shares will, except for any dissenting shares or other shares to be cancelled without consideration (as described elsewhere in this section under the subheading " *Effect of the Merger on the Common Stock*"), be cancelled and exchanged for the merger consideration to which the holders thereof are entitled pursuant to the Merger Agreement.

If your stock certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed, the Paying Agent will deliver to you the applicable merger consideration for the shares represented by that certificate if:

you make an affidavit claiming such certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed; and

to the extent required by the Surviving Corporation, you post a bond in a reasonable and customary amount and upon such reasonable terms as the Surviving Corporation may determine

Table of Contents

is necessary as indemnity against any claim that may be made against it with respect to such stock certificate.

You should not send your certificates now and should send them only pursuant to instructions set forth in the letters of transmittal to be mailed to stockholders promptly after the completion of the merger. In all cases, the merger consideration will be paid only in accordance with the procedures set forth in the merger agreement and such letters of transmittal.

The Merger Agreement provides that one year after the effective time of the merger, the Paying Agent will deliver to the Surviving Corporation any funds made available to the Paying Agent that have not been distributed to the former holders of shares of Common Stock, and that any holders of stock certificates or uncertificated shares who have not complied with the above-described procedures to receive payment of the merger consideration during such one-year period may thereafter look only to the Surviving Corporation for payment of the merger consideration. None of Parent, the Surviving Corporation or the Paying Agent will be liable for any amount delivered to a public official pursuant to any applicable abandoned property, escheat or similar law. If any stock certificates or uncertificated shares representing shares of Common Stock outstanding prior to the effective time of the merger have not been surrendered for payment by the date on which any merger consideration would escheat to or become the property of any governmental authority, then any merger consideration in respect of the shares of Common Stock represented by such stock certificates or uncertificated shares will become the property of the Surviving Corporation free and clear of all claims or interests of any holders of such stock certificates or uncertificated shares to the extent permitted by law.

Representations and Warranties

The Merger Agreement contains representations and warranties of made by us, Parent and Merger Sub. The assertions embodied in those representations and warranties were made solely for purposes of the Merger Agreement and may be subject to important qualifications and limitations agreed to by the parties in connection with negotiating the terms of the Merger Agreement. Moreover, these representations and warranties have been qualified by: (i) certain disclosures made in a disclosure letter delivered by Parent and us in connection with the negotiation of the Merger Agreement, which disclosures are not reflected in the Merger Agreement; (ii) our public disclosure with the SEC since January 1, 2010 and prior to the date of the Merger Agreement; and (iii) a contractual standard of materiality or material adverse effect that may be different from that generally applicable to public disclosures to stockholders. The representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement were used primarily for the purposes of allocating risk between the parties and establishing the circumstances in which a party to the Merger Agreement may have the right not to close the merger, and not to establish matters of fact, and should therefore not be read or relied upon as statements of factual information. The representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement and the description of them in this proxy statement should be read in conjunction with the other information contained in our reports, statements and filings that we publicly file with the SEC. This description of the representations and warranties is included to provide our stockholders with additional information regarding the terms of the Merger Agreement.

The representations and warranties made by us to Parent and Merger Sub include representations and warranties with respect to, among other things:

the due organization, existence, and good standing of our company and our subsidiaries;

our authority and the authority of our subsidiaries to carry on our respective businesses;

our subsidiaries and other entities in which we own any non-controlling equity interest;

our capitalization;

Table of Contents

the absence of preemptive or other rights with respect to our securities, and any other securities that give their holders the right to vote with our stockholders;

the absence of contractual obligations that require us to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire the equity securities of any of our subsidiaries;

our corporate power and authority to execute, deliver, perform our obligations and consummate the transactions under the Merger Agreement, and the enforceability of the Merger Agreement against us;

the Special Committee's and our Board's declaration of advisability with respect to, and recommendation of, the Merger Agreement and the merger;

the Board's authorization and approval of the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the merger;

the receipt of RBC's fairness opinion;

the absence of any violation of, or conflict with, our governing documents, the laws applicable to us, and certain of our agreements, arising from our execution, delivery and performance of the Merger Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby;

compliance with applicable laws, licenses and permits;

the timeliness and accuracy of our SEC filings since January 1, 2010 (including with respect to the accuracy of the financial statements included therein);

our disclosure controls and procedures and internal controls over financial reporting;

the absence of material liabilities required to be set forth on our balance sheet under generally accepted accounting principles, off-balance sheet arrangements, and transactions that would be required to be disclosed under Item 404 of Regulation S-K;

compliance with the applicable provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002;

the absence of any Company Material Adverse Effect, as defined in the Merger Agreement, or certain other changes or events since December 31, 2012;

the absence of any legal proceedings and governmental orders against us;

labor and employment matters;

real property and title to assets;

intellectual property matters;

tax matters;

the absence of secured creditors;

our material contracts and the absence of any default under, or breach or violation of, any such material contract;

insurance matters;

the absence of a stockholder rights agreement and the inapplicability of any anti-takeover laws with respect to the merger;

environmental matters;

our customers and suppliers;

the absence of any undisclosed broker's or finder's fees;

Table of Contents

the absence of untrue statements in information to be provided to the SEC (including with respect to this proxy statement or the related Schedule 13E-3); and

an acknowledgement by us that Parent and Merger Sub made no representations or warranties except for the representations and warranties contained in Article IV of the Merger Agreement.

Many of the representations and warranties we made in the Merger Agreement are qualified as to "materiality" or "Company Material Adverse Effect." For purposes of the Merger Agreement, a "Company Material Adverse Effect" means any event, circumstance, change or effect that, individually or in the aggregate with all other events, circumstances, changes and effects, is: (i) materially adverse to our business, condition (financial or otherwise), assets, liabilities, or results of operations, including our subsidiaries taken as a whole; or (ii) reasonably expected to prevent or materially delay our consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, or otherwise be materially adverse to our ability to perform our material obligations under the Merger Agreement. In no event will any event, circumstance, change or effect, to the extent that it results from any of the following, constitute a Company Material Adverse Effect:

changes in general economic, business, political or financial conditions or changes in securities markets in general that do not have a disproportionate adverse effect (relative to other industry participants) on us and our subsidiaries, considered as a whole;

the pendency or public announcement of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement;

changes caused by acts of terrorism or war (whether or not declared);

changes in law or any applicable accounting regulations or principles or the interpretations thereof;

changes in the price or trading volume of the Common Stock (provided that any event, condition, change, occurrence or development of a state of circumstances that may have caused or contributed to such change in price or trading volume will not be excluded under this proviso);

fluctuations in the value of any currency;

any failure by us to meet public or internal revenue, earnings or other projections (provided that any event, condition, change, occurrence or development of a state of circumstances that may have caused or contributed to such failure will not be excluded under this proviso);

the taking of any action required by the Merger Agreement or approved or permitted in writing by Parent, or the failure to take any action prohibited by the Merger Agreement;

any suits, action or legal, administrative, arbitration or other proceeding or governmental investigation made or brought by any holder of our Common Stock (on the holder's own behalf or on our behalf) arising out of or related to the Merger Agreement or any of the transactions.

The representations and warranties made by Parent and Merger Sub to us include representations and warranties with respect to, among other things:

their due organization, existence and good standing;

Parent's ownership of Merger Sub;

the operations of Parent and Merger Sub;

their corporate power and authority to execute, deliver, perform their obligations and consummate the transactions under the Merger Agreement, and the enforceability of the Merger Agreement against them;

Table of Contents

the absence of any violation of, or conflict with, the governing documents of Parent or Merger Sub, the laws applicable to Parent and Merger Sub, and certain agreements of Parent and Merger Sub, arising from Parent's and Merger Sub's execution, delivery and performance of the Merger Agreement and their consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby;

governmental consents and approvals;

the execution and delivery to us of true and correct copies of the Equity Commitment Letter and the Contribution Agreement (each as further described under *"Special Factors Financing,"* beginning on page 68 of this proxy statement);

the sufficiency and availability of funds to the finance the payment of the merger consideration, subject to certain conditions;

the execution and validity of the Limited Guaranty (as further described under "Agreements Involving Common Stock Limited Guaranty," beginning on page 113 of this proxy statement) provided by the Sponsor, and the absence of any default thereunder;

the absence of legal proceedings against Parent and Merger Sub;

the absence of undisclosed shares of Common Stock, other securities of, any rights to acquire Common Stock or other securities of, or any other economic interest in our company that are beneficially owned by Parent or Merger Sub;

the absence of certain agreements or arrangements involving Parent, Merger Sub or any of their affiliates, in each case relating to the merger;

the absence of untrue statements in information to be provided to the SEC (including with respect to this proxy statement or the related Schedule 13E-3);

the absence of any undisclosed broker's or finder's fees; and

an acknowledgement by Parent and Merger Sub that we made no representations or warranties except for the representations and warranties contained in Article III of the Merger Agreement.

Conduct of Business Pending the Merger

The Merger Agreement contains covenants related to the conduct of our business from the date of the Merger Agreement until the effective time of the merger. You are urged to read carefully and in its entirety Section 5.01 of the Merger Agreement (entitled "Conduct of Business by the Company Pending the Merger"), which is attached to this proxy statement as Annex A and constitutes part of this proxy statement. Subject to certain exceptions in the Merger Agreement and the disclosure letter delivered by Parent and us in connection with the negotiation of the Merger Agreement, between the date of the Merger Agreement and the effective time of the merger, unless Parent gives its prior written consent (which cannot be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), we have agreed to: (i) conduct our business and the businesses of our subsidiaries in a lawfully permitted manner in the ordinary and course of business and in a manner consistent with past practice; and (ii) use our commercially reasonable efforts to preserve substantially intact our business organization and the business organization of our subsidiaries, to keep available the services of our current relationships (and those of our subsidiaries) with governmental authorities, customers, suppliers and other persons with which we or any of our subsidiaries have material relations.

In addition, subject to certain exceptions in the Merger Agreement and the disclosure letter delivered by Parent and us in connection with the negotiation of the Merger Agreement, between the date of the Merger Agreement and the effective time of the merger, unless Parent gives its prior

Table of Contents

written consent (which may not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), neither we nor any of our subsidiaries will, directly or indirectly, do any of the following:

amend or otherwise change our certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or equivalent organizational documents;

issue, sell, transfer, lease, sublease, license, pledge, dispose of, grant or encumber, or authorize the issuance, sale, transfer, lease, sublease, license, pledge, disposition, grant or encumbrance of:

any shares of any class of shares of our company or any of our subsidiaries (other than in connection with the exercise or performance of any Company Options, restricted stock awards or restricted stock units granted prior to the date of the Merger Agreement or granted on or after the date of the Merger Agreement as permitted by permitted by the Merger Agreement, or any options, warrants, convertible securities or other rights of any kind to acquire any shares of, or any other ownership interest (including any phantom interest) in, our company or any of our subsidiaries (except as permitted by the Merger Agreement); or

any property or assets (whether real, personal or mixed, and including leasehold interests and intangible property) of our company or any of our subsidiaries, except in the ordinary course of business and in a manner consistent with past practice;

declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution, payable in cash, stock, property or otherwise, with respect to any of our respective shares, or split, combine or reclassify any of our respective shares, other than dividends paid by any of our wholly owned subsidiaries to its parent in the ordinary course of business;

reclassify, combine, split, subdivide or redeem, or purchase or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, any of our respective shares, or any options, warrants, convertible securities or other rights exchangeable into or convertible or exercisable for any of our respective shares, other than:

the forfeiture or repurchase of common shares pursuant to the terms of equity awards outstanding on the date of the Merger Agreement or granted after the date of the Merger Agreement as permitted by the Merger Agreement;

the surrender of any Common Stock by our current or former directors, officers, employees, consultants or other service providers (or those of our subsidiaries) in payment of withholding Taxes with respect to any equity awards; or

the cashless or net exercise of options (including in payment of any exercise price or withholding taxes);

effect or commence any liquidation, dissolution, scheme of arrangement, merger, consolidation, amalgamation, restructuring, reorganization or similar transaction involving us or any of our subsidiaries, or create any new subsidiaries, other than the merger, consolidation, amalgamation or other combination of any of our wholly owned subsidiaries with any of our other wholly owned subsidiaries;

enter into, or propose in writing to any third party to enter into, any transaction involving any earn-out, installment or similar payment to or from us or any of our subsidiaries, by or to any third party, other than the purchase and sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of business;

acquire (including by merger, consolidation, scheme of arrangement, amalgamation or acquisition of stock or assets or any other business combination) or make any capital contribution or investment in any corporation, partnership, other business organization or any

Table of Contents

division thereof (other than any of our wholly owned subsidiaries or pursuant to contracts or obligations outstanding on the date of the Merger Agreement) or acquire (other than in the ordinary course of business) any significant amount of assets;

incur, assume, or guarantee any indebtedness, or issue any debt securities, in excess of \$300,000 in the aggregate, or alter, amend or modify the terms of any indebtedness in a manner materially adverse to us and our subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or make any loans or advances in excess of \$50,000 individually or \$300,000 in the aggregate;

create or grant any material lien (other than permitted liens) on any of our assets or the assets of our subsidiaries;

make any commitment with respect to, any single capital expenditure which is in excess of \$150,000 or make capital expenditures which are, in the aggregate, in excess of \$300,000 for us and our subsidiaries taken as a whole, other than expenditures that are necessary to maintain existing assets in good repair, consistent with past practice;

enter into any new employment or compensatory agreements, or amend any such agreements, with any of our directors, officers, employees or consultants, or those of our subsidiaries, other than:

the hiring, promotion, demotion or termination of at-will employees or consultants below officer level with an annual salary of less than \$150,000 (or its RMB equivalent), provided, that, subject to our Board's fiduciary obligations as determined by our Board in its good faith judgment after consultation with outside legal counsel, we will not demote or terminate the employment of any employee who is a Rollover Holder absent Parent's consent;

the renewal or replacement of existing agreements on substantially similar terms; or

the hiring of at-will employees to fulfill open positions disclosed to Parent prior to the date of the Merger Agreement);

grant or provide any rights to severance or termination payments or benefits to any of our directors, officers or employees or those of any of our subsidiaries;

increase the compensation, bonus or pension, welfare or other benefits of, pay any bonus to, or make any new equity awards to any of our directors, officers or employees, or those of any of our subsidiaries, or to any other person, other than:

annual salary increases in the ordinary course of business, not to exceed 4% for any employee who is not a Rollover Holder, and commensurate increases in other compensation and benefits based on salary; and

equity awards permitted by the Merger Agreement;

establish, adopt, amend or terminate in a manner adverse to us, any company employee plan or amend the terms of any outstanding award under any stock incentive plan in a manner adverse to us;

accelerate the vesting or payment, or fund or in any other way secure the payment, of compensation or benefits under any company employee plan or employee agreement to the extent not already required in any such plan (it being understood that the vesting of all equity awards will be accelerated in full in connection with the merger);

change any actuarial or other assumptions used to calculate funding obligations with respect to any company employee plan or change the manner in which contributions to such plans are

Table of Contents

made or the basis on which such contributions are determined, except as may be required by generally accepted accounting principles;

forgive any loans to our directors, officers or employees or those of any of our subsidiaries;

issue or grant any Company Option or other equity award to any person under any stock incentive plan, except in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice;

make any changes with respect to any credit practice, method of financial accounting, or financial accounting policies or procedures, including changes affecting our reported consolidated assets, liabilities or results of operations and those of our subsidiaries, except as required by generally accepted accounting principles;

pay, discharge or satisfy any material debt, other than the payment, discharge or satisfaction of such debt as due in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice;

enter into, amend, modify or consent to the termination of any material contract (or any contract that would be a material contract if it had been entered into prior to the date of the Merger Agreement) except, in each case, as otherwise permitted by the Merger Agreement, or waive or consent to the termination of our or any of our subsidiaries' rights thereunder, except in each case in the ordinary course of business;

enter into any contract between us or any of our subsidiaries, on the one hand, and any of our respective affiliates, directors or executive officers, on the other hand, other than:

reasonable expense reimbursement to our personnel in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice; and

as permitted by the Merger Agreement;

terminate or cancel, let lapse, or amend or modify in any material respect, other than renewals in the ordinary course of business, any material insurance policies maintained by it which are not promptly replaced by a comparable amount of insurance coverage;

commence or settle any material legal action;

engage in the conduct of any new line of business material to us and our subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

make, revoke or change any material tax election (except as required by applicable law), materially amend any tax return or waive any statute of limitations with respect to any material tax claim or assessment, enter into any material closing agreement with respect to taxes, surrender any right to claim a material refund of taxes, settle or finally resolve any material controversy with respect to taxes, or materially change any method of tax accounting, or fail to duly and timely file all tax returns and other material documents required to be filed with any taxing authority in accordance with past practice; or

publicly announce an intention or enter into any binding agreement to do any of the foregoing.

Other Covenants and Agreements

Access and Information

From the date of the Merger Agreement until the effective time of the merger, subject to applicable law and upon reasonable advance notice from Parent, we (and our subsidiaries) will:

provide to Parent and Parent's representatives reasonable access (during normal business hours) to our offices, properties, books, records and personnel;

Table of Contents

furnish to Parent and Parent's representatives any reasonably requested and existing financial, operating or other data; and

instruct our employees and representatives to reasonably cooperate with Parent and Parent's representatives.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, we are not required to:

furnish, or provide access to, any information to any person not a party to the confidentiality agreement between us and Sponsor; or

provide access to or furnish any information, if doing so would:

violate any contract or agreement with any third party;

violate any applicable law; or

waive (or cause any of our subsidiaries to waive) any privilege or work product protection with respect to such information.

With respect to the information disclosed pursuant to these terms, the parties will comply with, and will cause their respective representatives to comply with, all of their respective obligations under the confidentiality agreement between us and Sponsor, or any other similar agreement entered into between us and any person to whom we (or any of our subsidiaries or any of their representatives) provide information pursuant to these terms.

No Solicitation

We agreed that, immediately upon the execution of the Merger Agreement, we would cease and cause to be terminated all existing discussions or negotiations with any parties conducted prior to such time with respect to a Competing Transaction. We further agreed that neither we nor any of our subsidiaries nor any of our directors or officers, or those of any of our subsidiaries will, and that we will direct our agents, advisors and other representatives (including any investment banker, attorney or accountants) retained by us or any of our subsidiaries, not to, in each case, directly or indirectly:

solicit, initiate or knowingly encourage (including by way of furnishing nonpublic information in a manner designed to knowingly encourage), or take any other action to facilitate, any inquiries or the making of any proposal or offer (including a proposal or offer to our stockholders) that constitutes, or would reasonably be expected to lead to, any Competing Transaction;

enter into, maintain or continue discussions or negotiations with, or provide any nonpublic information to, any person or entity (excluding our directors, officers, employees, financial advisors, attorneys, advisors and other representatives) in furtherance of such inquiries or to obtain a proposal or offer for a Competing Transaction;

except as otherwise provided below, agree to, approve, endorse or recommend any Competing Transaction or enter into any letter of intent or contract or commitment contemplating or otherwise relating to any Competing Transaction; or

authorize or permit any of our officers or directors, or those of our subsidiaries, or direct any investment banker, financial advisor, attorney, accountant or other representative retained by or acting directly or indirectly under our direction or the direction of any of our subsidiaries, to take any of the above actions.

Table of Contents

IDG and each other party that conducted substantive due diligence on us signed a nondisclosure and standstill agreement, which we refer to as the "standstill agreement," that provided, in substance, that without our written consent such party would not, for a period of eighteen months from the date of the agreement: (i) directly or indirectly acquire, offer to acquire, propose (publicly or otherwise) to acquire, announce any intention to acquire, or assist or encourage any other person to acquire or agree to acquire, directly or indirectly any of our securities or assets; (ii) participate in any tender or exchange offer, merger or other business combination involving us, any recapitalization, restructuring, liquidation, dissolution or other extraordinary transaction with respect to us or any solicitation of proxies or consents to vote any of our voting securities; (iii) form, join or participate in a "group" as defined in Section 12(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, as amended, in connection with any of the foregoing; (iv) otherwise act, alone or in concert with others, to seek to control or influence our management, Board or policies; (v) take any action which might force us to make a public announcement regarding any of the matters set forth above; or (vi) enter into any discussions or arrangements with any third party with respect to any of the foregoing.

The Merger Agreement provides that we may not release any party to such a standstill agreement whom we have reason to believe is seeking to make or has made a proposal or offer regarding a Competing Transaction from, or waive any provision of, any such standstill agreement, unless our Board (or the applicable committee thereof) determines in good faith (after consultation with its outside legal counsel) that the failure to take such action would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with the fiduciary duties of the Board (or such committee) under applicable law.

The effect of these provisions of the Merger Agreement and the standstill agreements is that if any party previously contacted by us that executed a standstill agreement were to make, or if we were to believe that any such party was seeking to make, a proposal or offer regarding a Competing Transaction, the Special Committee could waive the provisions of the standstill agreement to permit such proposal or offer to be made, if the Special Committee determined in good faith, after consultation with its outside legal counsel, that the failure to take such action would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with the fiduciary duties of the Board or Special Committee under applicable law, and provided that we had otherwise complied in full with our non-solicitation covenants under the Merger Agreement.

We agreed to notify Parent as promptly as practicable (and in any event within 48 hours after we have knowledge thereof), orally and in writing, of any proposal or offer, or any inquiry or contact with any person, regarding a Competing Transaction or that would reasonably be expected to lead to a Competing Transaction, specifying:

the material terms and conditions of the proposal or offer (including material amendments or proposed material amendments) and providing, if applicable, copies of any written requests, proposals or offers, including proposed agreements;

the identity of the party making such proposal or offer or the inquiry or contact; and

whether the Board (or an applicable committee thereof) has formed any intention to provide confidential information to such person.

We are obligated to keep Parent informed, on a reasonably current basis (and in any event within 48 hours of the occurrence of any material changes, developments, discussions or negotiations) of the status and terms of any such proposal, offer, inquiry, contact or request and of any material changes in the status and terms of any such proposal, offer, inquiry, contact or request (including the material terms and conditions thereof). We must provide Parent with 48 hours prior notice (or such lesser prior notice as is provided to the members of the Board or members of the Special Committee) of any meeting of our Board or the Special Committee, at which the Board or Special Committee is reasonably expected to consider any Competing Transaction.

Table of Contents

Notwithstanding the restrictions described above, our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) may furnish information to, and enter into discussions with, a person who has made an unsolicited, written, bona fide proposal or offer regarding a Competing Transaction if our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) has:

determined, in its good faith judgment (after consultation with its financial advisor and outside legal counsel), that such proposal or offer constitutes or could be reasonably expected to lead to a Superior Proposal;

determined, in its good faith judgment (after consultation with its outside legal counsel), that, in light of such Superior Proposal or potential Superior Proposal, failure to furnish such information or enter into discussions would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with its fiduciary obligations under applicable laws;

provided written notice to Parent of its intent to furnish information or enter into discussions with such person at least one business day prior to taking any such action; and

obtained from such person an executed confidentiality agreement on terms no less favorable to us in the aggregate than those contained in the confidentiality agreement between us and Sponsor.

We must concurrently make available to Parent any information concerning us or our subsidiaries that we provide to any third party pursuant to the above provisions and which was not previously provided to Parent.

Notwithstanding the provisions described above, the Merger Agreement does not prohibit our Board from disclosing to our stockholders a position contemplated by Rule 14e-2(a) and Rule 14d-9 under the Exchange Act, and nothing in the Merger Agreement prohibits us, our Board or any committee of the Board from issuing a "stop, look and listen" statement or other communication pending disclosure of its position, as contemplated by Rule 14e-2(a) and Rule 14d-9 under the Exchange Act. Additionally, our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) may, at any meeting at which, or in any written consent in which, it adopts resolutions authorizing the termination of the Merger Agreement to pursue a Superior Proposal, adopt further resolutions authorizing, agreeing to, approving, endorsing or recommending to our stockholders any Superior Proposal and any definitive agreement or agreements relating thereto.

Change of Recommendation

Our Board agreed to recommend to our stockholders that they approve and adopt the Merger Agreement, and to include that recommendation, which we refer to as the "Company Recommendation," in this proxy statement. Except as provide below, our Board may not:

change, withhold, withdraw, qualify or modify, or publicly propose to change, withhold, withdraw, qualify or modify, in a manner adverse to Parent or Merger Sub, the Company Recommendation; or

adopt, approve or recommend, or publicly propose to adopt, approve or recommend, any Competing Transaction.

However, if our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) determines, in its good faith judgment, prior to the time of the special meeting and after consultation with its outside legal counsel, that the failure to make a change in the Company Recommendation would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with its fiduciary obligations under applicable law, our Board may effect such a change in the Company Recommendation and, in the case of such a change in the Company Recommendation

Table of Contents

to recommend a Superior Proposal, authorize us to terminate the Merger Agreement. If the change in the Company Recommendation relates to a Competing Transaction, among other things, we must:

provide at least four business days' advance written notice to Parent advising Parent that the Board (or applicable committee thereof) has received a Superior Proposal, specifying the material terms and conditions of the Superior Proposal, identifying the person making the Superior Proposal and indicating that the Board intends to effect a change in the Company Recommendation; and

negotiate with Parent and Parent's representatives in good faith (to the extent Parent desires to negotiate) to make adjustments in the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, the Limited Guaranty (such as that described in *"Agreements Involving Common Stock Limited Guaranty"*) and other financing commitments (such as those described in *"Special Factors Financing"*) so that such third-party proposal or offer would cease to constitute a Superior Proposal.

Our obligation to call, give notice of, convene and hold the stockholders' meeting will not be limited or otherwise affected by the commencement, disclosure, announcement or submission to us of any Competing Transaction, or by any change in the Company Recommendation. We will not submit any Competing Transaction to a vote of our stockholders.

A "Competing Transaction" means any of the following (other than the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement):

any merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, scheme of arrangement, amalgamation, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction involving us or any of our subsidiaries as a result of which a third party would acquire assets that, individually or in the aggregate, constitute 20% or more of our consolidated assets (including our subsidiaries, taken as a whole), or to which 20% or more of our total consolidated revenue, operating income or EBITDA (including our subsidiaries, taken as a whole), are attributable (in each case as determined by the Board, or an applicable committee thereof, in good faith);

any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other disposition to a third party of assets or businesses that constitute or represent 20% or more of our total consolidated revenue, operating income, EBITDA or assets (including our subsidiaries, taken as a whole, and in each case as determined by our Board, or an applicable committee thereof, in good faith);

any sale, exchange, transfer or other disposition of 20% or more of our capital stock to a third party; or

any general offer, tender offer or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in a third party beneficially owning 20% or more of our capital stock.

A "Superior Proposal" means a written, bona fide proposal or offer made by a third party to consummate any of the following transactions:

a merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, or other similar transaction involving us pursuant to which our stockholders immediately preceding such transaction would hold less than 50% of the equity interest in the surviving or resulting entity of such transaction;

the acquisition by any person or group (including by means of a general offer, tender offer or an exchange offer or a two-step transaction involving a tender offer followed with reasonable promptness by a merger or consolidation involving us), directly or indirectly, of ownership of a majority of the then outstanding shares of our Common Stock; or

the acquisition by any person or group, directly or indirectly, of assets that, individually or in the aggregate, constitute a majority of our consolidated assets (including our subsidiaries, taken as a

Table of Contents

whole), or to which a majority of our total consolidated revenue, operating income or EBITDA (including our subsidiaries, taken as a whole), are attributable;

in each case on terms that our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) determines, in its good faith judgment (after consulting with its financial advisor and outside legal counsel, and taking into consideration, among other things, all of the terms and conditions of such proposal or offer and the terms of the Merger Agreement), to be more favorable to our stockholders (other than the Rollover Holders) than the merger. Any such offer will not be deemed to be a Superior Proposal if the transaction contemplated by such offer is not reasonably capable of being completed on the terms proposed without unreasonable delay.

Filings and Other Actions

Promptly after the SEC confirms that it has no further comment on this proxy statement or the Schedule 13E-3 to be filed in connection with the merger, we will establish a record date for determining the stockholders entitled to vote at the special meeting, and mail (or cause to be mailed) this proxy statement to our stockholders as of such record date. We are obligated to mail this proxy statement to our stockholders regardless of whether our Board:

determines that the Merger Agreement is no longer advisable;

recommends that stockholders reject the Merger Agreement; or

has effected and has not withdrawn (including through an applicable committee of the Board) a change in the Company Recommendation.

In the event our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) does effect a change in the Company Recommendation, we may disclose such fact in any solicitation made to our stockholders, and, unless our Board thereafter reaffirms the Company Recommendation, we will not be required to solicit proxies in favor of the Merger Proposal. In the absence of any change in the Company Recommendation, the Merger Agreement provides that:

our Board will recommend that our stockholders approve and adopt the Merger Agreement and include such recommendation in this proxy statement; and

we will use commercially reasonable efforts to solicit stockholder proxies in favor of the Merger Proposal, and take all other action necessary or advisable to secure the approval of the Merger Proposal by the affirmative vote of stockholders representing at least a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, in accordance with the DGCL.

Parent must cause all shares of Common Stock beneficially owned directly or indirectly by Sponsor, Parent, Merger Sub or any of their respective subsidiaries or affiliates to be voted in favor of the Merger Proposal.

Employee Matters

From and after the effective time of the merger, Parent will honor, in accordance with their terms all of our employee plans, employee agreements and all accrued benefits vested thereunder, it being understood and agreed that Parent and the Surviving Corporation will not be prohibited from amending or terminating any such plans or agreements in accordance with their terms and under applicable law. Parent will also use commercially reasonable efforts to effectively place our employees in the same position they had been in prior to consummation of the merger with respect to "group health plans" (as such term is defined under the Code) and related matters, such as deductibles, co-payments, the waiver of pre-existing conditions, and limitations as to waiting periods, physical examinations, or exclusions. Any accrued but unused vacation and sick leave of our employees will be

Table of Contents

"carried over" and recognized in accordance with the terms of our related corporate policies from and after the effective time of the merger.

Indemnification of Directors and Officers; Insurance

For a period of six years from the effective time of the merger, Parent and the Surviving Corporation will, unless required by applicable law, maintain in effect the exculpation, indemnification and advancement of expenses provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws (or comparable organizational documents), and those of our subsidiaries, as in effect immediately prior to the effective time of the merger, and will not amend, repeal or otherwise modify any such provisions in any manner that would adversely affect the rights thereunder of any individuals who, at or prior to the effective time of the merger, were current or former directors, officers, employees, fiduciaries or agents of any of such entities.

From and after the effective time of the merger, Parent and the Surviving Corporation will, and will cause our subsidiaries to, indemnify, hold harmless and advance expenses (as incurred, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law) to, any of our present and former officers and directors, and those of our subsidiaries, as well as to any person who served or serves, at the request or for the benefit of our company or any of our subsidiaries, as a director, officer, partner, member, manager, trustee, employee or other fiduciary of any employee benefit plan, enterprise or other person, against certain costs, expenses and damages, including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, arising out of, relating to or in connection with, any acts or omissions occurring or alleged to have occurred prior to or at the effective time of the merger, in connections with such person's service as a director or officer of our company, any of our subsidiaries or in another capacity. Upon being served with any summons, citation, subpoena, complaint, indictment, information, or other document relating to any action which may result in the payment or advancement of any amounts pursuant to the indemnification provisions of the Merger Agreement, the person seeking indemnification must promptly notify the Surviving Corporation. The Surviving Corporation will have the right to participate in any such action or, at its option and expense, assume the defense of such action with counsel reasonably acceptable to the party seeking indemnification. The person seeking indemnification will have the right to effectively participate in the defense and/or settlement of such action. The Surviving Corporation (or such subsidiary) may not settle or compromise any such action with respect to any individual person seeking indemnification without the prior written consent of such person unless such settlement or compromise:

includes an unconditional release of the person seeking indemnification with respect to any and all claims that were or could have been brought in such action;

contains no admission or finding of guilt or fault by the person seeking indemnification; and

imposes no liability or penalty upon the person seeking indemnification.

Notwithstanding anything in the foregoing to the contrary, no indemnification will be made in respect of any action as to which a person seeking indemnification shall have been adjudged, in a final, non-appealable decision, by a court, tribunal or other governmental authority of competent jurisdiction:

to be liable to us or any of our subsidiaries, unless and to the extent that such court, tribunal or other governmental authority shall determine upon application that in view of all the circumstances of the case such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification; or

that such person's actions, or omissions to act:

constitute a violation of law, unless such person had reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was lawful or had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful; or

Table of Contents

were not taken in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of our company or any of our subsidiaries, as applicable.

For a period of six years from the effective time of the merger, the Surviving Corporation will maintain in effect the directors' and officers' liability insurance policies we had maintained with respect to matters occurring at or prior to the effective time of the merger (including acts or omissions occurring in connection with the Merger Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby), provided that the Surviving Corporation shall not pay in excess of 300% of the annual premiums paid by us prior to the effective time of the merger. Prior to the effective time of the merger, we may, and, at Parent's request, we will, purchase a six-year "tail" prepaid policy (or policies) on terms and conditions no less advantageous than our existing directors' and officers' liability insurance policies. If we obtain such "tail" prepaid policy (or policies), Parent and the Surviving Corporation will be required to maintain or replace our existing directors' and officers' liability insurance policies.

Notification of Certain Matters

We, on the one hand, and Parent and Merger Sub, on the other, will promptly notify the other in writing of:

any notice or other communication from any person alleging that the consent of such person is or may be required in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (including the merger);

any notice or other communication from any governmental authority in connection with such transaction;

any actions commenced or, to our knowledge or the knowledge of Parent, threatened against us (or any of our subsidiaries) or Parent (or any of Parent's subsidiaries), as the case may be, that, if pending on the date of the Merger Agreement, would have been required to have been disclosed by such person, or that relate to such person's ability to consummate the transactions; and

the occurrence of any breach of any representation or warranty or failure to perform any covenant or agreement on the part of such person, as set forth in the Merger Agreement, the occurrence of which would cause any of the closing conditions to not be satisfied.

In each case, the notice to be delivered pursuant to the foregoing shall be accompanied by copies of appropriate supporting documentation.

Financing

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, Parent entered into each of the Equity Commitment Letter and the Contribution Agreement (as each agreement is further described under "Special Factors Financing," beginning on page 68 of this proxy statement), in order to secure the financing required to consummate the merger (and any related transactions), and to pay all other related fees, expenses and other amounts payable by Parent or the Surviving Corporation pursuant to the Merger Agreement. As parties to the Merger Agreement, Parent and Merger Sub have agreed to take (or cause to be taken), all actions necessary proper or advisable to obtain the proceeds available to Parent under such agreements, including:

satisfying, or causing to be satisfied, on a timely basis all conditions applicable to, and within the control of, Parent, Merger Sub or their respective representatives set forth in the Equity Commitment Letter and the Contribution Agreement; and

Table of Contents

causing the financing available to Parent under the Equity Commitment Letter and the Contribution Agreement to be funded at the closing of the merger, such that Parent and the Surviving Corporation will be able to pay all of the amounts payable by them in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including the merger.

Without our prior written consent, neither Parent nor Merger Sub may agree to any amendment or modification to, or grant any waiver of any condition or other provision of, the Equity Commitment Letter and/or the Contribution Agreement, to the extent any such amendment, modification or waiver would:

reduce the aggregate amount of cash proceeds available to fund the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement; or

impose new or additional conditions that would be reasonably likely to:

prevent or materially delay or impair the ability of Parent or Merger Sub to consummate the merger and the other transactions; or

adversely impact the ability of Parent or Merger Sub to enforce their respective rights against the other parties to the Equity Commitment Letter and/or the Contribution Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Parent may amend, supplement, modify, or waive its rights under, the Equity Commitment Letter and the Contribution Agreement, or replace such financing sources with alternative financing, including debt financing, to the extent such amendment, supplement, modification, waiver or replacement does not:

expand upon the conditions contained in the Equity Commitment Letter and the Contribution Agreement that would in any way delay or prevent or cause any delay of the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (including the merger); or

result in financing terms that are materially less favorable, in the aggregate, to us, Parent and Merger Sub, than those in the Equity Commitment Letter and the Contribution Agreement, each as in effect at the time.

In the event that any portion of the financing expected to be provided under the Equity Commitment Letter and the Contribution Agreement becomes or could become unavailable in the manner or from the sources contemplated therein, Parent will immediately notify us in writing, and, as promptly as practicable, arrange, obtain, negotiate and enter into definitive agreements with respect to alternative financing. Such alternative financing must be sufficient to consummate the merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, and may not contain terms and conditions that are materially less favorable, in the aggregate, to us, as compared to the Equity Commitment Letter and the Contribution Agreement (each as in effect at the time).

We have agreed to use our commercially reasonable efforts to provide to Parent and Merger Sub all reasonable and customary cooperation as may be requested in writing by Parent or Parent's representatives in connection with any alternative financing, provided that:

such requested cooperation does not unreasonably interfere with our ongoing operations; and

neither we, our subsidiaries, nor our respective representatives will be required to become subject to any obligations or liabilities with respect to the any definitive agreements in connection with any alternative financing (including pledge and security documents), prior to the closing of the merger.

Upon our written request, Parent has agreed to promptly reimburse us for all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by us and our subsidiaries in connection with our collective

Table of Contents

cooperation in connection with the arrangement of the alternative financing. Additionally, Parent has agreed to indemnify us, our subsidiaries, and our respective representatives for certain losses and liabilities suffered or incurred in connection with our cooperation with respect to the alternative financing. However, Parent's obligations to reimburse any cost or expense incurred by us or our subsidiaries have been "capped" at \$350,000, and in no event will we (or any of our subsidiaries) be required to incur costs or expenses exceeding \$350,000 in carrying out our duties to provide cooperation with respect to the alternative financing.

Conditions to the Merger

Each party's obligation to complete the merger is subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions:

approval of the Merger Proposal by the affirmative vote of stockholders representing at least a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, in accordance with the DGCL;

no governmental authority of competent jurisdiction having enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any injunction in the United States, the People's Republic of China, or any other jurisdiction where such an injunction would reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect (as such term is defined in the Merger Agreement, and as described elsewhere in this section of the proxy statement, under the subheading "*Representations and Warranties*" beginning on page 93); and

procurement of all relevant regulatory approvals, except where a failure to obtain such approval(s) would not result in a Company Material Adverse Effect or prevent the consummation of the Merger.

Our obligation to complete the merger is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions:

the representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub in the Merger Agreement relating to: (i) their authority relative to the Merger Agreement; (ii) the sufficiency of their financing to pay the aggregate merger consideration and other fees and expenses; (iii) the availability of their financing at the consummation of the merger; and (iv) the net worth and capitalization of the Surviving Corporation, must be true and correct both when made and at the closing date of the merger;

all of the remaining representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub in the Merger Agreement must be true and correct both when made and as of the closing date of the merger, except with respect to certain representations and warranties made as of a specified date, and to the extent any failures of these representations and warranties to be true and correct, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to prevent the consummation of the merger or any other transactions set forth in the Merger Agreement;

Parent and Merger Sub must have performed or complied, in all material respects, with all agreements and covenants that they are required to perform or comply with under the Merger Agreement prior to the closing date of the merger; and

Parent must have delivered to us an executed officer's certificate stating that the conditions set forth above have been satisfied.

The respective obligations of Parent and Merger Sub to complete the merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the following conditions:

our representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement relating to: (i) the approval of the Merger Agreement by our Board and the Special Committee; (ii) our corporate authority

Table of Contents

relative to the Merger Agreement; and (iii) the inapplicability of any anti-takeover measures to the merger, must be true and correct in all respects both when made and as of the closing date of the merger (except with respect to certain representations and warranties made as of a specified date);

our representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement relating to our capitalization must be true and correct in all material respects both when made and as of the closing date of the merger (except with respect to certain representations and warranties made as of a specified date);

all of our remaining representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement must be true and correct both when made and as of the closing date of the merger, except with respect to certain representations and warranties made as of a specified date, and to the extent any failures of these representations and warranties to be true and correct, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect (as defined in the Merger Agreement and described in this section of the proxy statement, under the subheading " *Representations and Warranties*" beginning on page 93);

we must have performed or complied, in all material respects, with all agreements and covenants that we are required to perform or comply with under the Merger Agreement prior to the effective time of the merger;

we must have delivered to Parent an executed officer's certificate stating that the conditions set forth above have been satisfied; and

since the date of the Merger Agreement, there must have not occurred and be continuing any Company Material Adverse Effect.

Prior to the termination of the Merger Agreement, neither we, nor Parent or Merger Sub, may rely on the failure of any closing condition set forth in the Merger Agreement to be satisfied if such failure was caused by that party's failure to act in good faith to comply with the Merger Agreement.

Termination

The Merger Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the effective time:

upon our mutual written agreement with Parent, with the approval of each of our respective boards of directors (and in our case, acting upon the recommendation of the Special Committee);

by us or by Parent, if:

the merger has not been consummated on or before April 22, 2014, provided that if the merger has not been consummated because a regulatory approval has not been obtained, but all other conditions to the merger would be satisfied, then Parent or we may extend the termination date by up to two three month periods (not to extend beyond April 22, 2014 in any event) by written notice to the other party, provided further that the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this provision will not be available to any party whose failure to fulfill any of its obligations under the Merger Agreement is the primary cause of, or primarily resulted in or materially contributed to the failure to consummate the merger by the termination date, which we refer to as an "Outside Date Termination;"

any governmental authority of competent jurisdiction has enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any injunction that will have become final and non-appealable, provided that the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this provision will not be available to any party whose failure to fulfill any of its obligations under the Merger Agreement is the primary cause of, or primarily resulted in or materially contributed to the enactment, issuance, promulgation, enforcement or entry of such injunction; or

the vote required to approve and adopt the Merger Agreement has not been obtained at the special meeting, provided that the right to terminate the Merger Agreement pursuant to this provision will not be available to Parent if Parent did not cause all shares of Common Stock beneficially owned directly or indirectly by Sponsor, Parent, Merger Sub or any of their respective subsidiaries or affiliates to be voted in favor of adoption of the Merger Agreement, which we refer to as a "Stockholder Vote Termination."

by us, if:

(i) we have received a Superior Proposal, (ii) we have complied with our obligations with respect to such Superior Proposal, (iii) our Board (or an applicable committee thereof) concurrently approves, and we substantially concurrently with the termination of the Merger Agreement enter into, a definitive agreement with respect to such Superior Proposal, and (iv) prior to, or substantially concurrently with, such termination we pay to Parent the Company Termination Fee, as described in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading "*Termination Fees*" beginning on page 111, which we refer to as a "Superior Proposal Termination;"

a breach or failure in any material respect of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement of Parent or Merger Sub set forth in the Merger Agreement has occurred, which breach or failure would give rise to the failure of a closing condition of the Merger Agreement to be satisfied prior to April 22, 2014; provided, however, that we will not have this right to terminate the Merger Agreement if our material breach of the Merger Agreement has been the primary cause of, primarily resulted in or materially contributed to the failure of any such condition's capability to be satisfied, which we refer to as a "Parent Breach Termination;" or

the merger has not been consummated within five business days of the satisfaction or waiver of all the closing conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, provided that we have delivered to Parent an irrevocable commitment in writing that we are ready, willing and able to consummate the closing during such period at least two business days prior to such termination, which we refer to as a "Failure to Close Termination."

by Parent, if:

a breach or failure, in any material respect, of any of our representations, warranties, covenants or agreements, as set forth in the Merger Agreement, has occurred which breach or failure would give rise to the failure of a closing condition of the Merger Agreement to be satisfied prior to April 22, 2014. Parent will not have this right to terminate the Merger Agreement if a material breach of the Merger Agreement by Parent or Merger Sub has been the primary cause of, primarily resulted in or materially contributed to the failure of any such condition's capability to be satisfied, which we refer to as a "Company Breach Termination;"

our Board has effected and has not withdrawn a change in the Company Recommendation, or failed to include the Company Recommendation in this proxy statement, provided that Parent will not have this right to terminate the Merger Agreement if Parent's or Merger Sub's breach of any provision of the Merger Agreement would give rise to the failure of a closing condition of Parent and Merger Sub, which we refer to as a "Change in Recommendation Termination;" or

a breach, in any material respect, of any provision of our non-solicitation obligations in the Merger Agreement has occurred; provided that Parent will not have this right to terminate the Merger Agreement if Parent's or Merger Sub's breach of any provision of the Merger

Agreement would give rise to the failure of a closing condition of Parent and Merger Sub, which we refer to as a "Non-Solicitation Termination."

Termination Fees

Company Termination Fee

We have agreed to pay Parent a termination fee of \$1.77 million, which we refer to as the "Company Termination Fee," less any amounts described in this section of the proxy statement under " *Expense Reimbursement*," beginning on page 112, paid or payable by us, if the Merger Agreement is terminated:

by Parent as a Change in Recommendation Termination or a Non-Solicitation Termination;

by us as a Superior Proposal Termination; or

by Parent as a Company Breach Termination or by either of us or Parent as an Outside Date Termination or a Stockholder Vote Termination, if:

in the case of Stockholder Vote Termination, after the date of the Merger Agreement and prior to the special meeting, a bona fide Competing Transaction is made known to us, or is publicly announced or publicly made known, and has not been withdrawn; or

in the case of an Outside Date Termination or a Company Breach Termination, after the date of the Merger Agreement and before the effectiveness of such termination, a bona fide Competing Transaction is made known to us, or is publicly announced or publicly made known, and has not been withdrawn;

and, in each case, within twelve months after any such termination we, or any of our subsidiaries, consummate a Competing Transaction, whether or not it is the same Competing Transaction (provided that for purposes of determining whether the Company Termination Fee shall be payable, all references to "20%" in the definition of "Competing Transaction" will be deemed to be references to "50%").

Parent Termination Fee

Parent is required to pay us a termination fee of \$3.54 million, which we refer to as the "Parent Termination Fee," if the Merger Agreement is terminated by us as a Parent Breach Termination or a Failure to Close Termination.

In the event that we fail to pay the Company Termination Fee, or Parent fails to pay the Parent Termination Fee, when due and in accordance with the requirements of the Merger Agreement, either party, as the case may be, will be required to reimburse the other party for all costs and expenses reasonably incurred by the other party in connection with the collection of that fee, together with interest on such unpaid fee, commencing on the date that the Company Termination Fee or Parent Termination Fee became due, at a rate equal to the rate of interest publicly announced by Bank of America Corporation, from time to time, in The City of New York, as such bank's prime rate plus 1.00%. Such collection expenses will not otherwise diminish in any way the payment obligations under the Merger Agreement. Any such cost, expense or interest will be payable by us or Parent only in the event the other party has obtained a final, non-appealable judgment for the failure to pay the relevant termination fee.

We have also agreed with Parent and Merger Sub that:

the agreements made with respect to fees following termination are integral parts of the transactions;

Table of Contents

the damages resulting from termination of the Merger Agreement under circumstances where a Company Termination Fee or Parent Termination Fee is payable are uncertain and incapable of accurate calculation and therefore, the termination fees are not a penalty but rather constitute amounts akin to liquidated damages in a reasonable amount that will compensate the recipient of such termination fee, as the case may be, for the efforts and resources expended and opportunities forgone while negotiating the Merger Agreement and in reliance on the Merger Agreement and on the expectation of the consummation of the transactions; and

without the agreements as to termination fees, the parties would not have entered into the Merger Agreement.

Expense Reimbursement

In the event that the Merger Agreement is terminated by Parent as a Change in Recommendation Termination, we will, within five business days following receipt of an invoice therefor, reimburse Parent for up to \$700,000 of Parent's reasonable and documented out-of-pocket fees and expenses actually incurred on or prior to the termination of the Merger Agreement in connection with the transactions contemplated thereby, including the financing.

Expenses

Except as set forth in the Merger Agreement, all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the Merger Agreement and the transactions will be paid by the party incurring such expenses, whether or not the merger is consummated, except that all fees payable under or pursuant to antitrust or competition laws will be borne by Parent, whether or not the transactions are consummated.

Specific Performance

We have agreed with Parent and Merger Sub that irreparable damage would occur in the event any provision of the Merger Agreement is not performed, and each of the parties to the Merger Agreement is entitled to specific performance of the terms of such agreement. Each of the parties to the Merger Agreement has waived any defenses in any action for specific performance (including the defense that a remedy at law would be adequate), and any legal requirement to post a bond or other security as a prerequisite to obtaining equitable relief.

The parties acknowledge that the payment of the termination fees described in this section of the proxy statement under *"Termination Fees"* will not be construed to diminish or otherwise impair in any way any party's rights to specific performance under the Merger Agreement. Nevertheless, neither we, on the one hand, nor Parent or Merger Sub, on the other hand, will be permitted to receive both a remedy of specific performance that results in the closing of the merger and payment of any termination fee.

AGREEMENTS INVOLVING COMMON STOCK

Voting Agreement

In connection with the Merger Agreement, we entered into the Voting Agreement with Parent, the IDG Funds and certain other Rollover Holders. Pursuant to the Voting Agreement, the IDG Funds and those Rollover Holders party thereto committed to vote the shares of Common Stock over which they have voting control in favor of the adoption of the Merger Agreement, against certain Competing Transactions, and against any action, agreement or transaction that could reasonably be expected to materially impede, frustrate, interfere with, delay, postpone, adversely affect or prevent the consummation of the merger or the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. During the term of the Voting Agreement and subject to stated exceptions, the stockholders who are parties

Table of Contents

thereto may not offer for sale, sell, transfer, tender, pledge, encumber, assign or otherwise dispose of, or enter into any contract, option or other arrangement or understanding with respect to, or consent to the offer for sale, sale, transfer, tender, pledge, encumbrance, assignment or other disposition of, enter into a loan of, or otherwise grant a proxy or power of attorney (other than as set forth in the Voting Agreement) with respect to, such Common Stock.

The Voting Agreement will terminate immediately upon the earlier of: (i) the closing of the merger; (ii) the termination of the Merger Agreement in accordance with its terms; (iii) the delivery of a written agreement between us (at the direction of the Special Committee, acting on our behalf) and Parent; and (iv) subject to certain condition, the making of any change, amendment, waiver or other modification, to any provision of the Merger Agreement that decreases the amount or changes the form of the merger consideration, or otherwise imposes any material restrictions or additional conditions on the payment of the merger consideration to our stockholders.

Limited Guaranty

Pursuant to the Limited Guaranty made by Sponsor in our favor, Sponsor has agreed to guarantee certain obligations of Parent under the Merger Agreement, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, in an amount up to \$3.89 million. Such Limited Guaranty includes Sponsor's obligation to pay any Parent Termination Fee, and other specified costs and expenses, not to exceed \$350,000, that may become payable by Parent to reimburse us in connection with: (i) the collection of, and enforcement of Parent's obligation to pay, the Parent Termination Fee; and (ii) our cooperation in obtaining any alternative financing to fund the merger, if necessary. In no event will Sponsor's liability under the Limited Guaranty for the payment of the amounts described herein exceed \$3.89 million in the aggregate.

The Limited Guaranty will terminate and Sponsor will have no further obligations under the Limited Guaranty as of the earliest of: (i) the effective time of the merger; and (ii) the date that is ninety (90) days from the date of the termination of the Merger Agreement, in accordance with its terms, if we have not presented a bona fide written claim for payment of any guaranteed obligations to Sponsor by such date. If we have presented such a bona fide claim by such date, the Limited Guaranty will terminate upon the date that the claim is finally satisfied or otherwise resolved.

Contribution Agreement

On April 22, 2013, Parent and the Rollover Holders entered into the Contribution Agreement. Pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, at or prior to the effective time of the merger, each Rollover Holder will acquire equity shares of Parent in exchange for some or all of their shares of Common Stock, and/or cash consideration, and Sponsor will acquire (for a per share consideration equal to the merger consideration) any outstanding shares of Common Stock not exchanged for equity shares of Parent. For further information and detail regarding the Contribution Agreement, see *"Special Factors Financing Rollover Financing,"* beginning on page 69 of this proxy statement.

PROVISIONS FOR UNAFFILIATED STOCKHOLDERS

No provision has been made: (i) to grant our unaffiliated stockholders access to our corporate files, or the corporate files of any other party to the merger or any of their respective affiliates; or (ii) to obtain counsel or appraisal services at our expense or the expense of any other party or affiliate.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING MEMSIC

Company Background

We are headquartered in Andover, Massachusetts, and provide advanced semiconductor sensor and integrated sensing system solutions based on MEMS technology and mixed signal circuit design. Our products include accelerometers, magnetic sensors and electronic compass solutions, integrated high performance inertial measurement units for industrial and avionics applications, MEMS flow sensing systems, and wireless sensing network systems.

If the Merger Agreement is adopted by our stockholders at the special meeting and the merger is completed as contemplated, we will survive the merger and will continue our operations as a private company and a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent.

Information as of the date of this proxy statement respecting our directors and executive officers is set forth below. During the past five years, neither we nor any of our directors and executive officers, as listed below, have been convicted in a criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations or similar misdemeanors). Additionally, during such five-year period, neither we nor our directors and executive officers have been party to any judicial or administrative proceeding (except for matters that were dismissed without sanction or settlement) that resulted in a judgment, decree or final order enjoining the person from future violations of, or prohibiting activities subject to, federal or state securities laws, or a finding of any violation of federal or state securities laws. With the exception of Ms. Patricia Niu, our Chief Financial Officer and a citizen of the People's Republic of China, each of our directors and executive officers listed below is a citizen of the United States. All of our directors and executive officers can be reached at MEMSIC, Inc., One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, MA 01810, or by phone at 978-738-0900.

Directors and Executive Officers

Our Board presently consists of five members. The persons listed below are our directors and executive officers as of the date of this proxy statement. Each executive officer will serve until a successor is elected by our Board or until the earlier of his or her resignation or removal.

Directors

		Term	
Name	Age	Expires	Position
CLASS I DIRECTORS			
Lawrence A. Kaufman, Ph.D.*(1)(2)(3)	72	2014	Director
CLASS II DIRECTORS			
Roger W. Blethen $*(1)(2)(3)$	61	2015	Lead Director
Yang Zhao, Ph.D.	50	2015	President, Chief Executive Officer and
			Chairman of the Board
CLASS III DIRECTORS			
Michael Tung*(1)(2)	57	2013	Director
Quan Zhou, Ph.D.	55	2013	Director

*

Member of the Special Committee

(1)

Member of Audit Committee

(2)

Member of Nominating and Governance Committee

(3)

Member of Compensation Committee

Table of Contents

Dr. Lawrence A. Kaufman, Ph.D. has served as a director since 2008. Dr. Kaufman has been the president and chief executive officer of Lightwave Power Inc., a provider of nanotechnology-based light management products, since May 2008. From 2006 to 2007, Dr. Kaufman was a partner in The GulfStream Group. Prior to joining The GulfStream Group, Dr. Kaufman founded Sionex Corporation, a venture-backed company that develops miniature chemical sensors, and served as its president and chief executive officer from 2000 to 2003 and as Executive Vice President from 2003 to 2005. Dr. Kaufman currently serves as a director of Top Banana, a non-profit education company and is an advisor to Water Analytics, Inc., a company selling waste water analytical instrumentation and to UNC Corporation, a company developing new types of batteries. Dr. Kaufman received a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute and a Ph.D. in Solid State Physics from Tufts University. We believe that Dr. Kaufman's educational background in solid state physics, his knowledge of many facets of the electronics industry, and his management experience gained from his employment as a senior operating executive and director of companies in a wide range of businesses qualify him to serve as a member of our Board.

Roger W. Blethen has served as a director since 2005. In March 2008, our Board also designated Mr. Blethen as our lead director. In 2001, Mr. Blethen was appointed chairman of the board of LTX-Credence Corporation, a provider of semiconductor test solutions to major integrated-circuit manufacturers in December 2008. Mr. Blethen also served as chairman of the board of LTX Corporation from December 2001 until its merger with Credence in August 2008. He was the chief executive officer of LTX Corporation from September 1996 to November 2005 and the president of LTX Corporation from 1994 to 1996. Mr. Blethen serves as Chairman of Ottawa-based Diablo Technologies Inc. Mr. Blethen received his B.S. in Electrical Engineering from Northeastern University in 1974. We believe that Mr. Blethen's educational background in electrical engineering, his broad knowledge of the semiconductor industry, gained from his long tenure as a senior operating executive and director of LTX Corporation and as a director of Diablo Technologies, and the skills, judgment and experience he has accumulated in these capacities and as a chief executive officer qualify him to serve as a member of our Board.

Dr. Yang Zhao, Ph.D. is our founder and has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since our inception and as Chairman of the Board since 2007. Dr. Zhao has over 20 years of experience in MEMS technology and related business development. Prior to founding our company in 1999, Dr. Zhao served in various management positions at Analog Devices, Inc. for seven years, where he was instrumental in developing Analog Devices' MEMS product line and forming industry-wide strategic relationships. Dr. Zhao is well-recognized in the field of MEMS technology. He has been named as an inventor on 22 U.S. patents in IC circuit, processing, packaging and MEMS technology. Dr. Zhao holds a B.S. degree in physics from Peking University, as well as a master's degree and a Ph.D. in electrical engineering from Princeton University where he studied under Professor Daniel Tsui, who won the 1998 Nobel Prize in physics. He is currently a member of the board at the School of Engineering of Peking University. We believe that Dr. Zhao's educational background in electrical engineering and MEMS technology, his prior management experience and his extensive knowledge of our history and culture, our products, technology and personnel, and our markets and customers, qualify him to serve as a member of our Board.

Michael Tung has served as a director since 2004. Mr. Tung joined VentureStar-InveStar Capital Inc. as chief financial officer and Managing Partner in 2002 and is responsible for managing its investment portfolio companies. Mr. Tung has over 20 years of experience in finance, taxation, accounting and general management. He served as chief financial officer for more than 10 years in various organizations, including Acer America Corp., Foxconn Corporation and Fibera Inc. (a start-up company). Mr. Tung worked as Senior Audit Manager of KPMG for 10 years. Mr. Tung received a B.S. degree in Accounting from Tam Kay University. We believe that Mr. Tung's educational

background in accounting and finance, his broad experience in finance, taxation, accounting and general management and his knowledge of our industry, gained from his employment as an executive of VentureStar-InveStar Capital and as a chief financial officer of companies engaged in businesses similar to ours, qualify him to serve as a member of our Board.

Dr. Quan Zhou, Ph.D. was appointed as a director in March 2011. Dr. Zhou is a co-founder of IDG Capital Partners and has held this position since 1995. He is currently a managing member of the general partner of IDG Technology Venture Investments, L.P. and its successor funds and is serving as a director of the general partner of IDG-Accel China Growth Fund I and IDG-Accel China Capital Fund and their respective successive funds. Dr. Zhou received his bachelor degree in science from the University of Science and Technology of China in 1981 and a Ph.D. in fiber optics from Rutgers University in 1989.

Executive Officers

Name	Age	Position	Officer Since
Dr. Yang Zhao	50	President and Chief Executive Officer	1999
Patricia Niu	46	Chief Financial Officer	2008
Dr. Paul Zavracky	64	President of North American and European	2011
		Operations	

In addition to Dr. Zhao, for whom information is provided above in this section of the proxy statement (under the subheading " *Directors and Executive Officers*,"), the following persons are our executive officers.

Patricia Niu has served as our Chief Financial Officer since June 2008. From 2003 to 2008, Ms. Niu held positions as our Vice President of Finance and Corporate Controller. Ms. Niu has over 18 years of experience in corporate finance and four years of experience in commercial banking. Prior to joining us, Ms. Niu served as the International Business Unit Controller at Key3Media Events, Inc. from 2001 to 2002 and Audit Supervisor and Senior Financial Analyst at Fresenius Medical Care, N.A. from 1995 to 2001. From 1989 through 1995, Ms. Niu was a commercial lender at Bank of China, Head Office in Beijing, China and The Savings Bank in Wakefield, Massachusetts. Ms. Niu received an M.B.A. from Northeastern University in Boston in 1994 and a B.A. from Beijing Foreign Studies University in China in 1989.

Dr. Paul M. Zavracky, Ph.D. has served as our President of North American and European Operations since January 1, 2011. Dr. Zavracky also served as a member of our Board from 1999 until his resignation on December 31, 2010. Dr. Zavracky's more than 30 years of business experience includes research at MIT Lincoln Laboratory, teaching at a major university, and management of successful venture funded companies. From 2006 to 2010, he served Northeastern University as the Dean of the School of Technological Entrepreneurship. From 1998 to 2006, he was the president and chief operating officer of The MicroOptical Corporation, a start-up company he co-founded. Between 1991 and 1998, he was a tenured professor of electrical engineering at Northeastern University. Before joining Northeastern University, Dr. Zavracky was the chief operating officer of Kopin Corporation, a venture backed company that he and a small group of colleagues from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology's Lincoln Labs started. He led the effort in establishing Kopin's SOI materials capability as an enabling technology for liquid crystal microdisplays. Dr. Zavracky spent five years at The Foxboro Company as principal scientist and technical group leader establishing a MEMS program beginning in 1980. Dr. Zavracky also spent five years at Coulter Corporation managing the government system group working on electrophotographic film and five years at MIT Lincoln Laboratory where he was involved in the development of materials for solar energy applications. He obtained his Ph.D. in Physics at Tufts University. He holds Bachelors and Master's degrees in Physics from Northeastern University. He has more than 100 publications and 67 issued patents.



Prior Public Offerings

During the past three years, we have not made an underwritten public offering of our Common Stock for cash, registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or exempt from registration under Regulation A promulgated under such Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Historical Selected Financial Information

Audited financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, may be found on pages D-56 to D-60 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, attached to this proxy statement as Annex D. Unaudited balance sheets, comparative year-to-date income statements (including related earnings per share data) and statements of cash flows for the quarters ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, may be found on pages E-1 to E-5 of our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, attached to this proxy statement as Annex E. Such financial statements should be read together with the notes thereto, as included in Annexes D and E.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

The following table provides, for the periods presented, our ratio of earnings to fixed charges. We did not have any shares of preferred stock outstanding during any of the periods presented. Accordingly, for the periods presented, our ratios of earnings to combined fixed charges and preferred stock dividends are the same as our ratios of earnings to fixed charges. In the three months ended March 31, 2013 and the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, earnings were insufficient to cover fixed charges, and the extent of such deficiencies in each period is shown below. You should read these ratios in connection with our consolidated financial statements, including the notes to those statements, included elsewhere in this proxy statement.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

	Three Months Ended March 31,		Fiscal Year Ended December 31,				
		2013	2012	2	012		2011
	(dollars in thousands)						
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges(1)			113.1				
Deficiency	\$	2,422		\$	938	\$	6,030

(1)

For the purpose of computing our ratio of earnings to fixed charges, "earnings" consist of pre-tax income from continuing operations, plus fixed charges (excluding capitalized interest), plus amortization of capitalized interest, and less the non-controlling interest in pre-tax income of subsidiaries that have not incurred fixed charges. "Fixed charges" consist of interest expensed and capitalized, amortized premiums, discounts and capitalized expenses related to indebtedness and an estimate of the interest within rental expense.

Book Value Per Share

Our book value (or stockholders' equity) per share as of March 31, 2013 was approximately \$3.49 (calculated based on 24,296,504 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of May 10, 2013).

Market Price and Dividend Information

Our Common Stock is traded on The NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol "MEMS." On May 10, 2013, there were 24,296,504 shares of Common Stock outstanding.

The following table shows, for the periods indicated, the reported high and low sales prices of our Common Stock on The NASDAQ Global Market.

		Market Price			
	I	High		Low	
Year Ended December 31, 2011		-			
First Quarter	\$	3.90	\$	2.87	
Second Quarter	\$	3.70	\$	2.75	
Third Quarter	\$	3.60	\$	2.22	
Fourth Quarter	\$	3.30	\$	1.97	
Year Ended December 31, 2012					
First Quarter	\$	5.44	\$	2.45	
Second Quarter	\$	4.64	\$	2.05	
Third Quarter	\$	2.60	\$	1.48	
Fourth Quarter	\$	3.44	\$	1.59	
Year Ending December 31, 2013					
First Quarter	\$	3.59	\$	2.41	
Second Quarter	\$	4.15	\$	2.64	
Third Quarter (through August 5, 2013)	\$	4.16	\$	4.09	

On November 20, 2012, the last full trading day before the public announcement that IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P., one of the IDG Funds, had submitted a non-binding proposal to acquire us for \$4.00 per share, the closing sale price of our Common Stock was \$1.74 per share. On April 22, 2013, the last full trading day before the public announcement of the Merger Agreement, the closing price per share of our Common Stock was \$2.71 per share. On August 5, 2013, the last trading day for which closing price information was practically available before the filing of this proxy statement, the closing sale price of our Common Stock was \$4.16 per share. Our stockholders should obtain a current market quotation for the Common Stock before making any decisions with respect to the merger.

We have not paid dividends on our Common Stock and do not expect to pay any dividends in the foreseeable future. The following restrictions apply to our ability to pay dividends:

under the Merger Agreement, we agreed not to pay dividends on our Common Stock before the effective time of the merger; and

under Section 170 of the DGCL, we may issue dividends out of only our surplus, as defined in and computed in accordance with Sections 154 and 244 of the DGCL, or if there is no such surplus, out of our net profits for the fiscal year in which the dividend is declared or the preceding fiscal year.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth certain information as of August 5, 2013 (except as otherwise indicated in a footnote) with respect to beneficial ownership of our Common Stock, by:

each of our directors;

each person known by us to beneficially own more than 5% of our Common Stock (including any "group" as set forth in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act);

each executive officer; and

all of our current directors and executive officers as a group.

Except as indicated in the footnotes, the persons listed have sole voting and investment power over the shares beneficially owned. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under

Table of Contents

the Exchange Act and is based on 24,296,504 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of May 10, 2013. Amounts under the heading "Right to Acquire" represent shares of Common Stock subject to incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options and restricted stock units that may be acquired immediately or within 60 days of August 5, 2013. For purposes of calculating percentages in the table below, shares listed opposite the name of a person under the heading "Right to Acquire" are deemed outstanding and beneficially owned by such person, group or entity, but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of any other person. To our knowledge, except as set forth in the footnotes to this table and subject to applicable community property laws, each person named in the table has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares set forth opposite such person's name. Except as otherwise indicated, the address of each of the persons listed in this table is c/o MEMSIC, Inc., One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, Massachusetts 01810.

	Beneficial Ownership			
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Shares Outstanding	Right to Acquire	Total	% of Outstanding
5% Stockholders:	oustanding	inequire	2000	oustanding
Rollover Group(1)	5,499,628	1,081,575	6,581,203	25.9%
IDG(2)	4,725,223		4,725,223	19.4%
c/o IDG Capital Management Ltd.				
Unit 1509, The Center				
99 Queen's Road				
Central, Hong Kong				
Entities Affiliated with InveStar Capital, Inc.(3)	2,357,620		2,357,620	9.7%
333 W. San Carlos Street				
San Jose, California 95110				
Prudence Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited(4)	1,228,852		1,228,852	5.1%
Suite 505, Bank of America Tower				
12 Harcourt Road				
Central, Hong Kong				
Executive Officers:				
Yang Zhao, Ph.D.(5)	485,654	496,250	981,904	4.0%
Patricia Niu	86,906	143,750	230,656	*
Paul M. Zavracky	47,524	161,000	208,524	*
Directors:				
Quan Zhou, Ph.D.(2)(6)	4,746,889		4,746,889	19.5%
Michael Tung(3)	2,372,620	36,000	2,408,620	9.9%
Roger W. Blethen	15,000	111,000	126,000	*
Lawrence A. Kaufman, Ph.D.	15,000	32,000	47,000	*
All current directors and executive officers as a group (7 persons)	7,769,593	980,000	8,749,593	34.6%

*

The amount shown is less than 1.0% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock.

(1)

According to a Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on May 2, 2013, as amended on June 26, 2013 and August 6, 2013, the IDG Funds, our executive officers, ten of our other employees and three individuals employed by MEMSIC WUXI may be deemed to constitute a "group" within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act by virtue of such parties' execution of the Contribution Agreement and, in certain cases, the Voting Agreement. For purposes of this schedule only, we refer to such parties as the "Rollover Group." Additional information regarding our employees that are members of this Rollover Group (other than our executive officers) may be found under *"Important Information Regarding Parent, Merger Sub, IDG and the Individual Rollover*

Table of Contents

Holders The Individual Rollover Holders" beginning on page 128 of this proxy statement. Together with our executive officers, such individuals have beneficial ownership of 774,549 shares of Common Stock and also have the rights to acquire 1,081,575 additional shares of Common Stock that are subject to various Company Options within 60 days of August 5, 2013. For ownership information with respect to the IDG Funds, which compose part of the Rollover Group, please see footnote (2), below.

(2)

According to a Schedule 13D amendment filed with the SEC on July 25, 2013, IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P. is the record owner of 4,146,394 shares of Common Stock, IDG-Accel China Investors II L.P. is the record owner of 339,108 shares of Common Stock, IDG Technology Venture Investments, LP is the record owner of 150,000 shares of Common Stock, and IDG Technology Venture Investment III, L.P. is the record owner of 18,328 shares of Common Stock. In addition, IDG Technology Venture Investments, LLC is the record owner of 71,393 shares of Common Stock, and may be deemed to be record owner of the 150,000 shares of which the record owner is IDG Technology Venture Investments, LP, by virtue of being the general partner of IDG Technology Venture Investments, LP. Dr. Quan Zhou, Ph.D., one of our directors, and Mr. Chi Sing Ho may be deemed to have voting and dispositive power with respect to the 4,725,223 shares listed above by virtue of their service as: (i) directors and executive officers of IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP II Associates Ltd., which is the ultimate general partner of both IDG-Accel China Growth Fund GP II L.P.; (ii) managing members of IDG Technology Venture Investment III, L.P.; which is the general partner of IDG Technology Venture Investment III, L.P.; and (iii) the managing members of IDG Technology Venture Investment III, LLC, which is the general partner of IDG Technology Venture Investments, LP. By virtue of acting together to direct the management and operations of the ultimate general partners of each of the above record owners, Mr. Ho may be deemed to have shared voting and dispositive power with respect to these shares with Dr. Zhou.

(3)

Includes 1,285,551 shares held by InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc., and 1,072,069 shares held by InveStar Semiconductor Development Fund, Inc. (II) LCD, together the "InveStar Funds." InveStar Capital, Inc., a Cayman Islands limited liability company, acts as investment manager of InveStar Funds and exercises investment control over the shares held by such entities. Michael Tung is the chief financial officer and managing partner of VentureStar-InveStar Capital Inc. and Mr. Tung may be deemed to beneficially own the shares held by InveStar Funds and each disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares except to the extent of any pecuniary interest therein. TSMC International Investment Ltd. holds a 97% interest in the InveStar Funds.

(4)

Based on a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 7, 2013.

(5)

Dr. Zhao is the Chairman of our Board and our President and Chief Executive Officer. His holdings include 18,596 shares of Common Stock held as Trustee of the Yang Zhao Children's Grantor Retained Annuity Trust and 104,218 shares of restricted stock award granted on April 4, 2011, of which 69,218 shares are vested and 17,500 shares shall vest on each of the third and fourth anniversaries of the date of grant.

(6)

According to a Schedule 13D amendment filed with the SEC on July 25, 2013, Dr. Zhou individually has beneficial ownership of 21,666 shares of Common Stock, in addition to the Common Stock that Dr. Zhou is deemed to beneficially own as a result of his service to the IDG Funds and related entities.

Transactions in Common Stock

Transactions During the Past 60 Days

In addition to the Merger Agreement and the agreements entered into in connection therewith, including the Contribution Agreement and the Voting Agreement (as discussed in *"Agreements Involving Common Stock,"* beginning on page 112 of this proxy statement), all of which remain valid and binding obligations on the parties thereto, the following transactions in our Common Stock have been effected by us, Parent, Merger Sub or the Rollover Holders during the past 60 days:

On June 29, 2013, we purchased 2,815 shares of Common Stock from Ms. Patricia Niu for \$4.10 per share (the closing price of our Common Stock on June 28, 2013), for the purpose of allowing Ms. Niu to cover certain tax liabilities related to the vesting of certain restricted stock units;

On June 29, 2013, we purchased 4,898 shares of Common Stock from Dr. Paul Zavracky for \$4.10 per share (the closing price of our Common Stock on June 28, 2013), for the purpose of allowing Dr. Zavracky to cover certain tax liabilities related to the vesting of certain restricted stock units;

On July 5, 2013, Ms. Patricia Niu acquired 10,000 shares of our Common Stock, at a price of \$.30 per share, through the exercise of Company Options granted to her in the course of her employment;

On July 5, 2013, Ms. Patricia Niu acquired an additional 25,000 shares of our Common Stock, at a price of \$1.54 per share, through the exercise of Company Options granted to her in the course of her employment;

On August 5, 2013, Mr. Yongyao Cai sold 3,215 shares of Common Stock for \$4.16 per share (the market price of our Common Stock at the time of sale), for the purpose of covering certain tax liabilities related to the vesting of Mr. Cai's restricted stock units;

On August 5, 2013, Mr. Alexander Dribinsky sold 1,593 shares of Common Stock for \$4.16 per share (the market price of our Common Stock at the time of sale), for the purpose of covering certain tax liabilities related to the vesting of Mr. Dribinsky's restricted stock units;

On August 5, 2013, Mr. James Fennelly sold 974 shares of Common Stock for \$4.16 per share (the market price of our Common Stock at the time of sale), for the purpose of covering certain tax liabilities related to the vesting of Mr. Fennelly's restricted stock units;

On August 5, 2013, Ms. Lei Zhang sold 993 shares of Common Stock for \$4.16 per share (the market price of our Common Stock at the time of sale), for the purpose of covering certain tax liabilities related to the vesting of Ms. Zhang's restricted stock units;

On August 5, 2013, Ms. Cheryl Merino sold 1,442 shares of Common Stock for \$4.16 per share (the market price of our Common Stock at the time of sale), for the purpose of covering certain tax liabilities related to the vesting of Ms. Merino's restricted stock units; and

On August 5, 2013, Mr. John Newton sold 3,215 shares of Common Stock for \$4.16 per share (the market price of our Common Stock at the time of sale), for the purpose of covering certain tax liabilities related to the vesting of Mr. Newton's restricted stock units.

Table of Contents

Our Transactions in the Common Stock During the Past Two Years

Other than: (i) as disclosed in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading "*Transactions in Common Stock Transactions During the Past 60 Days*" beginning on page 121 of this proxy statement; (ii) our purchase of 4,782 shares of Common Stock from Dr. Zhao on April 9, 2013 (at the market price of \$2.86 per share), made for the purpose of allowing Dr. Zhao to cover certain tax liabilities related to the vesting of a restricted stock award; and (iii) our receipt of 5,000 shares of our Common Stock on January 17, 2013, at no cost to us, resulting from our termination of a former employee, for cause, in December, 2012, we did not repurchase any shares of Common Stock in 2011 or 2012 and have not otherwise repurchased any shares of Common Stock in 2013.

The Individual Rollover Holders' Transactions in the Common Stock During the Past Two Years

Other than: (i) the granting and vesting of Company Options and restricted stock units granted by us to those Rollover Holders that are employed by us and by MEMSIC WUXI; (ii) Ms. Patricia Niu's acquisition of 10,000 shares of our Common Stock, for \$.30 per share, upon her exercise of Company Options on July 5, 2013; and (iii) Ms. Patricia Niu's acquisition of 25,000 shares of our Common Stock, for \$1.54 per share, upon her exercise of Company Options on July 5, 2013, there have been no purchases of our Common Stock by such employee Rollover Holders during the past two years. These Rollover Holders include our executive officers, ten of our other employees and three employees of MEMSIC WUXI. Information regarding our executive officers is available in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Directors and Executive Officers*," beginning on page 114. Profiles of the remaining Rollover Holders that are employed by us and by MEMSIC WUXI are available under "*Important Information Regarding Parent, Merger Sub, IDG, and the Individual Rollover Holders The Individual Rollover Holders*," beginning on page 128 of this proxy statement.

Parent's, Merger Sub's and IDG's Transactions in the Common Stock During the Past Two Years

Other than as disclosed in this section of the proxy statement under the subheading " *Transactions in Common Stock Transactions During the Past 60 Days*" beginning on page 121 of this proxy statement, none of Parent, Merger Sub or IDG have effected any transaction in our Common Stock during the past two years.

APPRAISAL RIGHTS

The following discussion summarizes the material terms of the law pertaining to appraisal rights under the DGCL and is qualified in its entirety by the full text of Section 262, which is attached to this proxy statement as Annex C. This summary of appraisal rights is not a complete summary of the law pertaining to appraisal rights under the DGCL. It does not constitute legal or other advice, nor does it constitute a recommendation that stockholders should, or should not, exercise their appraisal rights under Section 262.

Under Section 262, our stockholders who do not vote in favor of the adoption of the Merger Agreement and who otherwise follow the procedures set forth in Section 262 will be entitled to have their shares appraised by the Delaware Court of Chancery and to receive payment in cash of the "fair value" of the shares, exclusive of any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger, as determined by the Court, together with interest, if any, to be paid upon the amount determined to be the fair value.

Under Section 262, where a merger agreement is to be submitted for adoption at a meeting of stockholders, the corporation, not less than 20 days prior to the meeting, must notify each of its stockholders entitled to appraisal rights that appraisal rights are available and include in the notice a copy of Section 262. This proxy statement shall constitute such notice, and the full text of Section 262 is attached to this proxy statement as Annex C.



Table of Contents

ANY STOCKHOLDER WHO WISHES TO EXERCISE APPRAISAL RIGHTS, OR WHO WISHES TO PRESERVE SUCH HOLDER'S RIGHT TO DO SO, SHOULD CAREFULLY REVIEW THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION AND ANNEX C BECAUSE FAILURE TO TIMELY AND PROPERLY COMPLY WITH THE PROCEDURES SPECIFIED WILL RESULT IN THE LOSS OF APPRAISAL RIGHTS. MOREOVER, BECAUSE OF THE COMPLEXITY OF THE PROCEDURES FOR EXERCISING THE RIGHT TO SEEK APPRAISAL OF OUR COMMON STOCK, WE BELIEVE THAT, IF A STOCKHOLDER CONSIDERS EXERCISING SUCH RIGHTS, SUCH STOCKHOLDER SHOULD SEEK THE ADVICE OF LEGAL COUNSEL.

The Appraisal Process

Stockholders wishing to exercise the right to seek an appraisal of their shares must do ALL of the following in accordance with the provisions of Section 262, each as discussed below:

deliver to us a written demand for appraisal before the vote on the Merger Agreement at the special meeting;

vote AGAINST the Merger Proposal or otherwise abstain from voting on such matter;

continuously hold the shares from the date of making the demand through the effective time of the merger (as a stockholder will lose appraisal rights if the stockholder transfers the shares before the effective time of the merger); and

File a petition in the Delaware Court of Chancery requesting a determination of the fair value of the shares within 120 days after the effective time of the merger (as the Surviving Corporation is under no obligation to file any petition, and has no intention of doing so).

Filing Written Demand; Withdrawal

Any of our stockholders wishing to exercise appraisal rights must, before the vote on the adoption of the Merger Agreement at the special meeting at which the proposal to adopt the Merger Agreement will be submitted to the stockholders, deliver to us a written demand for the appraisal of such stockholder's shares, and not vote in favor of adopting the Merger Agreement. A stockholder wishing to exercise appraisal rights must be a record holder of the shares on the date the written demand for appraisal is made, and must continue to hold the shares of record through the effective date of the merger, because appraisal rights will be lost if the shares are transferred prior to the effective date of the merger.

The written demand for appraisal must be in addition to and separate from any abstention or vote against the Merger Proposal. The demand must reasonably inform us of the identity of the holder as well as the intention of the holder to demand an appraisal of the "fair value" of such stockholder's Common Stock. A stockholder's failure to make the written demand prior to the taking of the vote on the Merger Proposal at the special meeting of stockholders will constitute a waiver of appraisal rights.

All written demands for appraisal pursuant to Section 262 should be sent or delivered to us at:

MEMSIC, Inc. One Tech Drive, Suite 325 Andover, Massachusetts 01810 Attn: Corporate Secretary

At any time within 60 days after the effective date of the merger, any stockholder who has not commenced an appraisal proceeding or joined a proceeding as a named party may withdraw his, her or its demand for appraisal and accept the consideration offered pursuant to the Merger Agreement by delivering to the Surviving Corporation a written withdrawal of the demand for appraisal. However, any

Table of Contents

such attempt to withdraw the demand made more than 60 days after the effective date of the merger will require written approval of the Surviving Corporation. No appraisal proceeding in the Delaware Court of Chancery will be dismissed as to any stockholder without the approval of the Delaware Court of Chancery, and such approval may be conditioned upon such terms as the Court deems just; provided, however, that any stockholder who has not commenced an appraisal proceeding or joined such proceeding as a named party may withdraw his, her or its demand for appraisal and accept the merger consideration offered pursuant to the Merger Agreement within 60 days after the effective date of the merger. Subject to the proviso in the immediately preceding sentence, if the Surviving Corporation does not approve a request to withdraw a demand for appraisal when its approval is required, or if the Delaware Court of Chancery does not approve the dismissal of an appraisal proceeding, the stockholder will be entitled to receive only the appraised value determined in any such appraisal proceeding, which value could be less than, equal to or more than the merger consideration being offered pursuant to the Merger Agreement.

Voting

A stockholder that intends to seek appraisal rights must not vote in favor of the adoption of the Merger Agreement. Because an executed proxy that is submitted and does not contain voting instructions will, unless revoked, be voted in favor of the Merger Proposal, it will constitute a waiver of the stockholder's right of appraisal and will nullify any previously delivered written demand for appraisal. Therefore, a stockholder who wishes to exercise appraisal rights must submit a proxy containing instructions to vote against the Merger Proposal or to abstain from voting on the adoption of the Merger Agreement. Neither voting against the Merger Proposal, nor abstaining from voting or failing to vote on such proposal to adopt the Merger Agreement, will, in and of itself, constitute a written demand for appraisal satisfying the requirements of Section 262.

Stockholders Entitled to Appraisal

Any of our stockholders wishing to exercise appraisal rights must be record holders of the Common Stock on the date the written demand for appraisal is made, and must continue to hold the shares of record through the effective time of the merger as appraisal rights will be lost if the shares are transferred prior to such effective time.

Only a record holder of the Common Stock is entitled to demand an appraisal of the shares registered in that holder's name. A demand for appraisal in respect of the Common Stock should be executed by or on behalf of the holder of record, fully and correctly, as the holder's name appears on the holder's stock certificates, should specify the holder's name and mailing address and the number of shares registered in the holder's name, and must state that the person intends thereby to demand appraisal of the holder's shares in connection with the merger. If the shares of Common Stock of a stockholder seeking appraisal are owned of record in a fiduciary capacity, such as by a trustee, guardian or custodian, execution of the demand must be made in that capacity, and if the shares are owned of record by more than one person, as in a joint tenancy and tenancy-in-common, the demand must be executed by or on behalf of all joint owners. An authorized agent, including an agent for two or more joint owners, may execute a demand for appraisal on behalf of a holder of record; however, the agent must identify the record owner or owners and expressly disclose that, in executing the demand, the agent is acting as agent for the record owner or owners. If the shares are held in "street name" by a broker, bank or nominee, the broker, bank or nominee may exercise appraisal rights with respect to the shares held for one or more beneficial owners while not exercising the rights with respect to the shares held for other beneficial owners; in such case, however, the written demand should set forth the number of shares as to which appraisal is sought, and where no number of shares is expressly mentioned the demand will be presumed to cover all shares of capital stock held in the name of the record owner. Stockholders who hold their shares in brokerage accounts or other nominee forms and

who wish to exercise appraisal rights are urged to consult their brokers to determine the appropriate procedures for the making of a demand for appraisal by such a nominee.

Notice by the Surviving Corporation

Within ten days after the effective time of the merger, the Surviving Corporation must notify each stockholder that has made a written demand for appraisal pursuant to Section 262, and who has not voted in favor of the Merger Proposal, that the merger has become effective.

Filing a Petition for Appraisal

Within 120 days after the effective time of the merger, but not thereafter, the Surviving Corporation, or any holder of capital stock who has complied with Section 262 and is entitled to appraisal rights under Section 262, may commence an appraisal proceeding by filing a petition in the Delaware Court of Chancery demanding a determination of the fair value of the shares held by all dissenting holders. As the surviving corporation in the merger, we are under no obligation to and have no present intention to file a petition, and holders should not assume that the Surviving Corporation will file a petition. Accordingly, it is the obligation of our stockholders to initiate all necessary action to perfect their appraisal rights in respect of shares of capital stock within the time prescribed in Section 262. Within 120 days after the effective date of the merger, any stockholder that has complied with the requirements for exercise of appraisal rights will be entitled, upon written request, to receive from the Surviving Corporation a statement setting forth the aggregate number of shares not voted in favor of the Merger Proposal, the demands for appraisal that have been received, as well as the aggregate number of holders of such shares seeking appraisal. The statement must be mailed within ten days after a written request therefor has been received by Surviving Corporation or within ten days after the expiration of the period for delivery of demands for appraisal, whichever is later. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a person who is the beneficial owner of shares of Common Stock held either in a voting trust or by a nominee on behalf of such person may, in such person's own name, file a petition or request from the Surviving Corporation the statement described in this paragraph.

If a petition for an appraisal is timely filed by a stockholder and a copy thereof is served upon the Surviving Corporation, the Surviving Corporation will then be obligated within 20 days to file with the Delaware Register in Chancery a duly verified list containing the names and addresses of all stockholders who have demanded an appraisal of their shares and with whom agreements as to the value of their shares have not been reached. After notice to the stockholders as required by the court, the Delaware Court of Chancery is empowered to conduct a hearing on the petition to determine those stockholders who have complied with Section 262 and who have become entitled to appraisal rights thereunder. The Delaware Court of Chancery may require the stockholders who demanded payment for their shares to submit their stock certificates to the Delaware Register in Chancery for notation thereon of the pendency of the appraisal proceeding; and if any stockholder fails to comply with the direction, the Delaware Court of Chancery may dismiss the proceedings as to such stockholder.

Determination of Fair Value

After the Delaware Court of Chancery determines the identity of stockholders entitled to appraisal, the appraisal proceeding shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of the Delaware Court of Chancery, including any rules specifically governing appraisal proceedings. Through such proceeding, the Court shall determine the "fair value" of the shares, exclusive of any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger, together with interest, if any, to be paid upon the amount determined to be the fair value. Unless the Court in its discretion determines otherwise for good cause shown, interest from the effective date of the merger through the date of payment of the judgment shall be compounded quarterly and shall accrue at 5% over the Federal

Table of Contents

Reserve discount rate (including any surcharge) as established from time to time during the period between the effective date of the merger and the date of payment of the judgment.

In determining fair value, the Delaware Court of Chancery will take into account all relevant factors. In *Weinberger v. UOP, Inc.*, the Supreme Court of Delaware discussed the factors that could be considered in determining fair value in an appraisal proceeding, stating that "proof of value by any techniques or methods which are generally considered acceptable in the financial community and otherwise admissible in court" should be considered, and that "fair price obviously requires consideration of all relevant factors involving the value of a company." The Delaware Supreme Court stated that, in making this determination of fair value, the Court must consider market value, asset value, dividends, earnings prospects, the nature of the enterprise and any other facts that could be ascertained as of the date of the merger that throw any light on future prospects of the merged corporation. Section 262 provides that fair value is to be "exclusive of any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger." In *Cede & Co. v. Technicolor, Inc.*, the Delaware Supreme Court stated that such exclusion is a narrow exclusion that "does not encompass known elements of value," but which rather applies only to the speculative elements of value arising from such accomplishment or expectation. Similarly, in *Weinberger*, the Supreme Court of Delaware stated that "elements of future value, including the nature of the enterprise, which are known or susceptible of proof as of the date of the merger and not the product of speculation, may be considered."

Stockholders considering seeking appraisal should be aware that the fair value of their shares as so determined could be more than, the same as or less than the merger consideration they would receive pursuant to the merger if they did not seek appraisal of their shares and that an investment banking opinion (such as the one delivered by RBC to the Special Committee and attached to this proxy as Annex B) as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, of the consideration payable in a sale transaction, such as the merger, is not an opinion as to, and does not otherwise address, fair value under Section 262. Although we believe that the merger consideration is fair, no representation is made as to the outcome of the appraisal of fair value as determined by the Delaware Court of Chancery, and stockholders should recognize that such an appraisal could result in a determination of a value higher or lower than, or the same as, the merger consideration. Neither we nor Parent or Merger Sub anticipate offering more than the merger consideration to any stockholder exercising appraisal rights, and reserve the right to assert, in any appraisal proceeding, that for purposes of Section 262, the "fair value" of a share of capital stock is less than the applicable merger consideration. In addition, the Delaware courts have decided that the statutory appraisal remedy, depending on factual circumstances, may or may not be a dissenting stockholder's exclusive remedy.

If a petition for appraisal is not timely filed, then the right to an appraisal will cease. The costs of the action (which do not include attorneys' fees or the fees and expenses of experts) may be determined by the Court and taxed upon the parties as the Court deems equitable under the circumstances. Upon application of a stockholder, the Court may order all or a portion of the expenses incurred by a stockholder in connection with an appraisal proceeding, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and the fees and expenses of experts utilized in the appraisal proceeding, to be charged pro rata against the value of all the shares entitled to be appraised.

If any stockholder who demands appraisal of shares of capital stock under Section 262 fails to perfect, successfully withdraws or loses such holder's right to appraisal, the stockholder's shares of Common Stock will be deemed to have been converted at the effective time of the merger into the right to receive the merger consideration pursuant to the Merger Agreement. A stockholder will fail to perfect, or effectively lose, the holder's right to appraisal if no petition for appraisal is filed within 120 days after the effective date of the merger. In addition, as indicated above, a stockholder may withdraw his, her or its demand for appraisal in accordance with Section 262 and accept the merger consideration offered pursuant to the Merger Agreement.



MULTIPLE STOCKHOLDERS SHARING ONE ADDRESS

In accordance with Rule 14a-3(e)(1) under the Exchange Act, one proxy statement may be delivered to two or more stockholders who share an address, unless our transfer agent has received contrary instructions from one or more of such stockholders. This practice, known as "householding," is designed to reduce our printing and postage costs. We will promptly provide any stockholder residing at a shared mailing address that received only one copy of the proxy statement with an additional copy of this proxy statement and proxy card upon your written request to MEMSIC, Inc., One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, Massachusetts 01810, Attention: Corporate Secretary, or upon your oral request, which can be made by calling (978) 738-0900. If you are a stockholder of record and wish to discontinue householding or change your householding election, you may do so by calling (800) 937-5449 (toll free) or 718-921-8124 (direct), or by writing to American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, 6201 15th Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11219. If you hold your shares through a bank, broker or other nominee and wish to discontinue householding or to change your householding election, you may do so by contacting such bank, broker or other nominee.

SUBMISSION OF STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

If the merger is completed, we may not hold an annual meeting of stockholders in 2013. If the merger is not completed, you will continue to be entitled to attend and participate in our annual meetings of stockholders, and we will hold a 2013 annual meeting of stockholders, in which case we will provide notice of or otherwise publicly disclose the date on which such 2013 annual meeting will be held. If the 2013 meeting is held, stockholder proposals will be eligible for consideration for inclusion in the proxy statement and form of proxy for our 2013 annual meeting of stockholders in accordance with Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act and our Bylaws, as described below.

Any proposal that a stockholder wishes to include in proxy materials for our 2013 annual meeting of stockholders, if any, pursuant to SEC Rule 14a-8 must have been received no later than January 25, 2013 (unless the meeting date is changed by more than 30 days from the anniversary of the 2012 annual meeting, in which case a proposal must be received a reasonable time before we print proxy materials). Stockholder proposals must comply with the requirements of Rule 14a-8, as amended, and any other applicable rules established by the SEC, and should be directed to our Corporate Secretary at MEMSIC, Inc., One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, MA 01810.

In addition, our bylaws establish an advance notice procedure with regard to including stockholder proposals to be brought before an annual meeting of stockholders. For a stockholder's proposal to be brought before our 2013 annual meeting, if any, the stockholder must give written notice to our Corporate Secretary at our principal executive offices not less than sixty (60) days and not more than ninety (90) days prior to the date set for the annual meeting, regardless of any postponements, deferrals or adjournments of that meeting to a later date. Our bylaws also specify requirements as to the form and content of a stockholder's notice.

Pursuant to SEC Rule 14a-4(c)(1), if our Corporate Secretary receives any stockholder proposal at the address listed above after April 17, 2013, unless the date of the 2013 annual meeting of stockholders is changed by more than 30 days from the anniversary of the 2012 annual meeting, in which case a proposal must be received a reasonable time before we print proxy materials, which proposal is intended to be presented at the 2013 annual meeting without inclusion in the proxy statement for the meeting, the proxies designated by the Board will have discretionary authority to vote on such proposal.



IMPORTANT INFORMATION REGARDING PARENT, MERGER SUB, IDG, AND THE INDIVIDUAL ROLLOVER HOLDERS

Parent, Merger Sub and the IDG Filing Persons

During the last five years, none of the persons listed below has been convicted in a criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations or similar misdemeanors) or has been party to any judicial or administrative proceeding (except for matters that were dismissed without sanction or settlement) that resulted in a judgment, decree or final order enjoining such person from future violations of, or prohibiting activities subject to, federal or state securities laws, or a finding of any violation of federal or state securities laws.

IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P. is a limited partnership organized under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Its general partner is IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II Associates L.P., a Cayman Islands limited partnership. The registered offices of IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P. is located at c/o Intertrust SPV (Cayman) Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands, and its telephone number is +852 2529 1016.

IDG-Accel China Investors II L.P. is a limited partnership organized under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Its general partner is IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II Associates Ltd., a Cayman Islands limited liability company. The registered offices of IDG-Accel China Investors II L.P. is located at c/o Intertrust SPV (Cayman) Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Island, and its telephone number is +852 2529 1016.

IDG Technology Venture Investments, LP is a limited partnership organized under the laws of the State of Delaware. Its general partner is IDG Technology Venture Investments, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company. The registered offices of IDG-Accel Technology Venture Investments, LP is located at c/o Corporation Service Company, 1013 Centre Road, Wilmington, County of New Castle, Delaware 19805-1297, and its telephone number is +852 2529 1016.

IDG Technology Venture Investments, LLC is a limited liability company organized under the laws of the State of Delaware. Its principal executive offices is located at c/o Corporation Service Company, 1013 Centre Road, Wilmington, County of New Castle, Delaware 19805-1297, and its telephone number is +852 2529 1016.

IDG Technology Venture Investment III, L.P. is a limited partnership organized under the laws of the State of Delaware. Its general partner is IDG Technology Venture Investment III, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company. The principal executive offices of IDG Technology Venture Investment III, L.P. is located at c/o Corporation Trust Company, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, County of New Castle, Delaware 19801, and its telephone number is +852 2529 1016.

IDG-Accel China Capital II L.P. is a limited partnership organized under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Its general partner is IDG-Accel China Capital II Associates L.P., a Cayman Islands limited partnership. The registered offices of IDG-Accel China Capital II L.P. is located at c/o Intertrust SPV (Cayman) Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Island, and its telephone number is +852 2529 1016.

The Individual Rollover Holders

Biographical information regarding all individual Rollover Holders, other than our executive officers whose information is provided under *"Important Information Regarding MEMSIC Directors and Executive Officers,"* is set forth below. Such individual Rollover Holders include fourteen employees employed by us and MEMSIC WUXI. Together with our executive officers, the individual Rollover Holders listed below collectively have beneficial ownership of 774,405 shares of Common Stock. Information regarding the various IDG entities that are also Rollover Holders is set forth under

Table of Contents

"Important Information Regarding Parent, Merger Sub, IDG, and the Individual Rollover Holders Parent, Merger Sub and the IDG Filing Persons."

During the last five years, no Rollover Holder listed below has been convicted in a criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations or similar misdemeanors) or has been party to any judicial or administrative proceeding (except for matters that were dismissed without sanction or settlement) that resulted in a judgment, decree or final order enjoining such person from future violations of, or prohibiting activities subject to, federal or state securities laws, or a finding of any violation of federal or state securities laws. The principal business address and telephone number for each of the following Rollover Holders is c/o MEMSIC, Inc., One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, MA 01810, 978-738-0900.

Yongyao Cai has served as our Director of Technology since September of 2007. Mr. Cai is a citizen of the People's Republic of China.

Wei Zhang is the General Manager of MEMSIC WUXI and has served in that role since 2009. From 2007 to 2009, he was the Vice President of Quality of MEMSIC WUXI. Mr. Zhang is a citizen of the People's Republic of China.

Haidong Liu has served as a Product Line Manager of MEMSIC WUXI since January, 2013. Prior to that, Mr. Liu served MEMSIC WUXI as its Deputy General Manager of Research and Development (from 2008 to 2011), and its Vice President of Components Engineering (from 2011 to 2013). He is a citizen of the People's Republic of China.

Alexander Dribinsky works for us as an ASIC Design Manager, and has served in such role since October, 2004. Mr. Dribinsky is a citizen of the United States of America.

Dr. Dong An, Ph.D. has worked for us as a Principal Algorithm Software Engineer since January, 2010, joining us upon our acquisition of the non-military portion of Crossbow Technology Inc.'s inertial navigation systems business, its wireless sensor network Mote, and its eKo environmental monitoring business. From 2004 to 2010, Dr. An was an Embedded Algorithms and Software Specialist Inertial Engineer for Crossbow Technology, Inc. in California. He is a citizen of the People's Republic of China.

James Fennelly rejoined us as our Business Development Manager in August, 2009 after having spent approximately four years as an independent entrepreneur. From 2004 to 2005, Mr. Fennelly served as our Sales Manager of North America. Mr. Fennelly is a citizen of the United States of America.

Dr. Eric Chojnacki, Ph.D. joined us as an Engineer in November, 2010. From 2006 to 2010, Dr. Chojnacki worked as a Research Associate at Cornell University's Laboratory for Accelerator-Based Sciences and Education. He is a citizen of the United States of America.

Lei Zhang is our Vice President of Sales. Prior to joining us in August, 2010, Ms. Zhang spent approximately four years as the Director of Product Line Management of FINISAR (Shanghai), a supplier of optical communication components and subsystems. She is a citizen of the United States of America.

Noureddine Hawat has been our Senior Director of Engineering since March, 2010. From 1998 to 2010, he was the Director of Product Engineering for Custom One Design, Inc., a Massachusetts fabless semiconductor company. Mr. Hawat is a citizen of the United States of America.

Leyue Jiang has been an Engineer with MEMSIC WUXI since January of 2008. Mr. Jiang is a citizen of the United States of America.

Cheryl Merino rejoined us as our Human Resources Director in July, 2012, after having served as our Human Resources Manager from March, 2008 to October, 2011. Before her return, Ms. Merino was the Human Resources Manager for Maine Industrial Tire, LLC. She is a citizen of the United States of America.

Table of Contents

John Newton has been our Vice President of Marketing since May, 2012. He previously held the same title for Custom One Design, Inc. from 2006 to 2010, and was also the Vice President of Products for Arctic Sand Technologies, Inc., a power management company, from 2011 to 2012. Mr. Newton is a citizen of the United States of America.

Jose Rios is our Engineering Director. Prior to joining us in October, 2012, he served as the Engineering Manager of Systron Donner Inertial, a provider of quartz MEMS inertial systems for aerospace and defense applications, from February, 2006 to October, 2012. Mr. Rios is a citizen of the United States of America.

As Rollover Holders, the individuals listed above will, together with our executive officers and IDG, contribute to Parent a combination of cash consideration and Common Stock in exchange for equity shares of Parent, prior to the effective time of the merger and pursuant to the terms of the Contribution Agreement.

Certain Transactions Between the Parties

Aside from our payment of compensation and our provision of customary benefits to our directors, executive officers and the other Rollover Holders who are employed by us or MEMSIC WUXI (as identified in this proxy statement), there have been no transactions or series of transactions of an aggregate value exceeding \$60,000 between us and such individuals occurring during the two years preceding the date of this proxy statement.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other documents with the SEC under the Exchange Act. Our SEC filings made electronically through the SEC's EDGAR system are available to the public at the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov. You may also read and copy any document we file with the SEC at the SEC's public reference room located at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. Please call the SEC at (800) SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of the public reference room and with respect to obtaining copies of our filings from the SEC at prescribed rates.

We will make available a copy of our public reports, without charge, upon written request to Investor Relations, MEMSIC, Inc., One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, Massachusetts 01810. Each such request must set forth a good faith representation that, as of the record date, the person making the request was a beneficial owner of Common Stock entitled to vote at the special meeting. In order to ensure timely delivery of such documents prior to the special meeting, any such request should be made to us promptly. A copy of any exhibit may be obtained upon written request by a stockholder (for a fee limited to our reasonable expenses in furnishing such exhibit) to Investor Relations, MEMSIC, Inc., One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, Massachusetts 01810.

The full text of RBC's written opinion, dated April 22, 2013, is attached as Annex B to this proxy statement and constitutes part of this proxy statement. We urge you to read the full text of the opinion. RBC has consented to the inclusion in this proxy statement of the full text of its opinion.

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, filed with SEC on March 22, 2013, and our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2013 filed with the SEC on May 15, 2013, are attached to this proxy statement as Annexes D and E, respectively, and are included in and constitute part of, this proxy statement (except with respect to any reference in such documents to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995).

Because the merger is a "going private" transaction, we, among others, have filed with the SEC a Schedule 13E-3 with respect to the merger. The Schedule 13E-3, including any amendments and

Table of Contents

exhibits filed or incorporated by reference as a part of it, is available for inspection as set forth above. The Schedule 13E-3 will be amended to report promptly any material change in the information set forth in the most recent Schedule 13E-3 filed with the SEC.

RBC has consented to the inclusion as exhibits to Schedule 13E-3 filed by us, Parent, Merger Sub and the Rollover Holders in connection with the proposed merger, of presentations made by RBC to the Special Committee.

This proxy statement does not constitute an offer to sell, or a solicitation of an offer to buy, any securities, or the solicitation of a proxy, in any jurisdiction to or from any person to whom it is not lawful to make any offer or solicitation in that jurisdiction. The delivery of this proxy statement should not create an implication that there has been no change in our affairs since the date of this proxy statement or that the information herein is correct as of any later date.

Parent, Merger Sub, RBC and the Rollover Holders have supplied, and we have not independently verified, the information in this proxy statement related to Parent, Merger Sub, RBC and the Rollover Holders.

Stockholders should not rely on information other than that contained in this proxy statement, including the annexes which constitute part of this proxy statement, and the other reports we file with the SEC. We have not authorized anyone to provide information that is different from that contained in this proxy statement. This proxy statement is dated August 6, 2013. No assumption should be made that the information contained in this proxy statement is accurate as of any date other than that date, and the mailing of this proxy statement will not create any implication to the contrary. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of any material change in any of the information previously disclosed, we will, where relevant and if required by applicable law: (i) update such information through a supplement to this proxy statement; and (ii) amend the Schedule 13E-3 filed in connection with the merger, in each case, to the extent necessary.

Annex A

Execution Copy

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

among

MZ Investment Holdings Limited,

MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited

and

MEMSIC, Inc.

Dated as of April 22, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

<u>Article I</u> THE MERGER

	<u>THE MERGER</u>	
SECTION 1.01	The Merger	
		<u>A-2</u>
SECTION 1.02	Closing; Closing Date	<u>A-2</u>
SECTION 1.03	Effective Time	<u>A-2</u>
SECTION 1.04	Effects of the Merger	<u>A-2</u>
SECTION 1.05	Certificate of Incorporation	<u>A-2</u>
SECTION 1.06	<u>Bylaws</u>	<u>A-2</u>
SECTION 1.07	Directors and Officers	<u>A-2</u>
	Article II	
EFF	ECT ON ISSUED SECURITIES; EXCHANGE OF CERTIFICATES	
SECTION 2.01	Effect of Merger on Issued Securities	
		<u>A-3</u>
SECTION 2.02	Treatment of Company Options, Restricted Shares and RSUs	<u>A-3</u>
SECTION 2.03	Dissenting Shares	<u>A-4</u>
SECTION 2.04	Exchange of Stock Certificates, etc.; Paying Agent	<u>A-4</u>
SECTION 2.05	No Transfers	<u>A-6</u>
	Article III	
R	EPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY	
SECTION 3.01	Organization and Qualification	
		<u>A-7</u>
SECTION 3.02	Certificate of Incorporation	<u>A-7</u>
SECTION 3.03	Capitalization	A-7
SECTION 3.04	Authority Relative to This Agreement; Fairness	<u>A-8</u>
SECTION 3.05	Subsidiaries	<u>A-9</u>
SECTION 3.06	No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents	<u>A-9</u>
SECTION 3.07	Permits: Compliance with Laws	<u>A-9</u>
SECTION 3.08	<u>SEC Filings; Financial Statements</u>	<u>A-10</u>
SECTION 3.09	Absence of Certain Changes or Events	<u>A-11</u>
SECTION 3.10	Absence of Litigation	<u>A-11</u>
SECTION 3.11	Labor and Employment Matters	<u>A-12</u>
SECTION 3.12	Real Property; Title to Assets	<u>A-13</u>
SECTION 3.13	Intellectual Property	<u>A-13</u>
SECTION 3.14	Taxes	<u>A-14</u>
SECTION 3.15	No Secured Creditors; Solvency	<u>A-15</u>
SECTION 3.16	Material Contracts	<u>A-15</u>
SECTION 3.17	Insurance	A-17
SECTION 3.18	Anti-Takeover Provisions	A-17
SECTION 3.19	Environmental Matters	<u>A-17</u>
SECTION 3.20	Suppliers; Customers	<u>A-18</u>
SECTION 3.21	Company Information	<u>A-18</u>
SECTION 3.22	Brokers	<u>A-18</u>
SECTION 3.23	No Additional Representations	<u>A-18</u>
	A-i	

Page

		Page
	<u>Article IV</u>	
	INTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT AND MERGER SUB	
SECTION 4.01	Corporate Organization	
		<u>A-19</u>
SECTION 4.02	Authority Relative to This Agreement	<u>A-19</u>
SECTION 4.03	No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents	<u>A-19</u>
SECTION 4.04	Financing: Equity Rollover	<u>A-20</u>
SECTION 4.05	Limited Guarantees	<u>A-21</u>
SECTION 4.06	Litigation	<u>A-21</u>
SECTION 4.07	Availability of Funds	<u>A-21</u>
SECTION 4.08	Ownership of Securities	<u>A-21</u>
SECTION 4.09	Absence of Other Agreements	<u>A-22</u>
SECTION 4.10	Parent Information	<u>A-22</u>
SECTION 4.11	Brokers	<u>A-22</u>
SECTION 4.12	No Additional Representations	<u>A-22</u>
	Article V	
SECTION 5 01	CONDUCT OF BUSINESS PENDING THE MERGER	
<u>SECTION 5.01</u>	Conduct of Business by the Company Pending the Merger	A 22
	A	<u>A-23</u>
	Article VI	
SECTION 6 01	ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS Proxy Statement and Schedule 13E-3	
<u>SECTION 6.01</u>	Proxy Statement and Schedule 13E-3	A 25
SECTION 6.02	Company Stockholders' Meeting	<u>A-25</u> <u>A-26</u>
<u>SECTION 6.02</u>	Access to Information	<u>A-20</u> <u>A-27</u>
<u>SECTION 6.03</u>	No Solicitation of Transactions	<u>A-27</u> <u>A-27</u>
<u>SECTION 6.05</u>	Directors' and Officers' Indemnification and Insurance	<u>A-27</u> <u>A-31</u>
<u>SECTION 6.06</u>	Notification of Certain Matters	<u>A-31</u> <u>A-33</u>
<u>SECTION 6.07</u>	Financing	<u>A-33</u>
<u>SECTION 6.08</u>	Further Action; Reasonable Best Efforts	<u>A-35</u>
<u>SECTION 6.09</u>	Obligations of Merger Sub	<u>A-36</u>
<u>SECTION 6.10</u>	Participation in Litigation	<u>A-36</u>
SECTION 6.11	Resignations	<u>A-37</u>
SECTION 6.12	Public Announcements	<u>A-37</u>
SECTION 6.13	Stock Exchange Delisting	<u>A-37</u>
SECTION 6.14	Takeover Statutes	<u>A-37</u>
SECTION 6.15	Rule 16b-3	<u>A-37</u>
SECTION 6.16	[RESERVED]	<u>A-37</u>
SECTION 6.17	Employee Benefit Plans	<u>A-37</u>
<u>blenon on </u>	Article VII	<u>11 57</u>
	CONDITIONS TO THE MERGER	
SECTION 7.01	Conditions to the Obligations of Each Party	
<u>5201101, 1.01</u>	conditions to me conjutions of David Party	A-38
SECTION 7.02	Conditions to the Obligations of Parent and Merger Sub	<u>A-38</u>
SECTION 7.03	<u>Conditions to the Obligations of the Company</u>	<u>A-39</u>
SECTION 7.04	Frustration of Closing Conditions	<u>A-40</u>
22011011/101	A-ii	<u></u>
	1 × 11	

		Page		
	Article VIII			
	TERMINATION			
SECTION 8.01	Termination by Mutual Consent			
		A-40		
SECTION 8.02	Termination by Either the Company or Parent	A-40		
SECTION 8.03	Termination by the Company	A-41		
SECTION 8.04	Termination by Parent	A-41		
SECTION 8.05	Effect of Termination	A-41		
SECTION 8.06	Fees Following Termination	A-42		
SECTION 8.07	Limitations on Liability	A-43		
	Article IX			
GENERAL PROVISIONS				
SECTION 9.01	Non-Survival of Representations, Warranties and Agreem	ents		
		<u>A-43</u>		
SECTION 9.02	Notices	<u>A-43</u>		
SECTION 9.03	Certain Definitions	<u>A-44</u>		
SECTION 9.04	<u>Severability</u>	<u>A-48</u>		
SECTION 9.05	Entire Agreement; Assignment	<u>A-48</u>		
SECTION 9.06	Parties in Interest	<u>A-48</u>		
SECTION 9.07	Specific Performance	<u>A-48</u>		
SECTION 9.08	Governing Law; Dispute Resolution	<u>A-49</u>		
SECTION 9.09	Waiver of Jury Trial	<u>A-49</u>		
SECTION 9.10	Amendment	<u>A-50</u>		
SECTION 9.11	Waiver	<u>A-50</u>		
SECTION 9.12	Interpretation	<u>A-50</u>		
SECTION 9.13	Counterparts	<u>A-50</u>		
	A-iii			

Defined Term	Location of Definition
Action	Section 3.10(a)
Affiliate	Section 9.03
Agreement	Preamble
Alternative Financing	Section 6.07(b)
Article VII	Section 6.07(e)
Book-Entry Shares	Section 2.04(b)
Business Day	Section 9.03
Certificate of Merger	Section 1.03
Change in the Company Recommendation	Section 6.04(c)
Closing	Section 1.02
Closing Date	Section 1.02 Section 1.02
Common Share	Section 2.01(a)
Common Shares	Section 2.01(a) Section 2.01(a)
Company	Preamble
Company Board	Recitals
Company Disclosure Letter	Section 9.03
	Section 9.03
Company Employee Agreement Company Employee Plan	Section 9.03
Company Licensed Intellectual Property Company Material Adverse Effect	Section 3.13(c) Section 9.03, Section 7.02(a)
Company Option	Section 9.03, Section 7.02(a) Section 2.02(a)
Company Owned Intellectual Property	Section 3.13(a)
Company Personnel	Section 3.11(b)
Company Recommendation	Section 3.04(b) Section 3.08(a)
Company SEC Reports	Section 9.03
Company Subsidiary	Section 9.05 Section 8.06(a)
Company Termination Fee	
Competing Transaction	Section 8.06(a) Section 9.03
Confidentiality Agreement Contract	Section 9.03
Contribution Agreement	Recitals
control	Section 9.03
_	Section 9.05 Section 6.05(c)
Damages	Section 1.03
Delaware Secretary of State DGCL	Recitals
Dissenting Shares	Section 2.03(a)
Effective Time	Section 1.03
Environmental Laws	Section 9.03
Environmental Permits	Section 9.03
Equity Commitment Letter	Section 4.04(a)
Equity Financing	Section 4.04(a) Section 4.04(a)
Evaluation Date	Section 3.08(f)
Exchange Act	Section 3.06(b)
Exchange Fund	Section 2.04(a)
Financial Advisor	Section 3.04(c)
Financing	
Financing Commitments	Section 4.04(a) Section 4.04(a)
GAAP	Section 3.08(b)
Governmental Authority	Section 9.03
Hazardous Materials	Section 9.03
Hazardous Walthais	
	A-iv

Defined Term	Location of Definition
Indebtedness	Section 9.03
Indemnified Parties	Section 6.05(c)
Injunction	Section 7.01(b)
Insolvent	Section 9.03
Insured Parties	Section 6.05(b)
Intellectual Property	Section 9.03
knowledge	Section 9.03
Law	Section 3.06(a)
Liens	Section 9.03
Limited Guarantee	Recitals
Material Company Permits	Section 3.07(a)
Material Contracts	Section 3.16(a)
Material Subsidiaries	Section 3.05
Merger	Recitals
Merger Consideration	Section 2.01(a)
Merger Sub	Preamble
NASDAQ	Section 3.06(b)
Notice of Superior Proposal	Section 6.04(c)
Parent	Preamble
Parent Termination Fee	Section 8.06(b)
Paying Agent	Section 2.04(a)
Permitted Liens	Section 9.03
person	Section 9.03
PRC	Section 3.07(a)
Preferred Shares	Section 3.03(a)
Proxy Statement	Section 6.01
Reg S-K	Section 9.03
Reg S-X	Section 9.03
Release	Section 9.03
Representatives	Section 6.03(a)
Requisite Company Vote	Section 3.04(a)
Requisite Regulatory Approvals	Section 3.06(b)
resident enterprise	Section 3.14(c)
Restricted Share	Section 2.02(b)
Rollover Holders	Recitals
Rollover Shares	Recitals
RSU	Section 2.02(c)
SAFE	Section 3.07(a)
SAIC	Section 3.07(a)
SAT	Section 3.07(a)
SEC	Section 3.06(b)
Section 6.05	Section 6.05(f)
Securities Act	Section 3.08(a)
Special Committee	Recitals
Sponsor	Section 4.04(a)
Stock Certificate	Section 2.01(a)
Stock Incentive Plans	Section 9.03
Stockholders	Recitals
Stockholders' Meeting	Section 6.02(a)
subsidiaries	Section 9.03
	A-v

A-v

Defined Term	Location of Definition	
subsidiary	Section 9.03	
Superior Proposal	Section 6.04(f)	
Surviving Corporation	Section 1.01	
Takeover Statute	Section 3.18	
Tax Returns	Section 3.14(a)	
Taxes	Section 9.03	
Termination Date	Section 8.02(a)	
Third Party	Section 9.03	
Transactions	Recitals	
Voting Agreement	Recitals	
	A-vi	

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER, dated as of April 22, 2013 (this "Agreement"), among MZ Investment Holdings Limited, an exempted company with limited liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands ("Parent"), MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited, a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent ("Merger Sub"), and MEMSIC, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company").

WHEREAS, upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement and in accordance with the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "DGCL"), Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the "Merger"), with the Company surviving the Merger and becoming a wholly owned subsidiary of Parent as a result of the Merger;

WHEREAS, the board of directors of the Company (the "Company Board"), acting upon the unanimous recommendation of a special committee of the Company Board comprised solely of independent and disinterested directors (the "Special Committee"), has (i) determined that this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger (collectively, the "Transactions"), are advisable to, and in the best interest of, the Company and holders of the Company's common stock (the "Stockholders"), (ii) approved the execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and consummation of the Transactions, and (iii) resolved to recommend that the Stockholders adopt this Agreement, in each case upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein;

WHEREAS, the board of directors of each of Parent and Merger Sub has determined that this Agreement and the Transactions are advisable and in the best interests of its shareholders or stockholders, as the case may be, and has approved this Agreement and the Transactions, and Parent, as the sole stockholder of Merger Sub, has adopted this Agreement, in each case upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein;

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, and as a condition and inducement to Parent and Merger Sub's willingness to enter into this Agreement, certain beneficial owners of the Common Shares of the Company (the "Rollover Holders") are entering into a contribution agreement (the "Contribution Agreement") pursuant to which the Rollover Holders are agreeing, among other things, to contribute the Common Shares owned by such Rollover Holders (the "Rollover Shares") to Parent immediately prior to the Effective Time;

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, and as a condition and inducement to Parent's and Merger Sub's willingness to enter into this Agreement, certain beneficial owners of the Common Shares are entering into a voting agreement in favor of Parent (the "Voting Agreement");

WHEREAS, concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, and as a condition to and inducement to the Company's willingness to enter into this Agreement, IDG-Accel China Capital II L.P. is entering into a limited guaranty in favor of the Company with respect to certain payment obligations of Parent under this Agreement (the "Limited Guarantee"); and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to make certain representations, warranties, covenants and agreements in connection with the Merger and also to prescribe certain conditions to the Merger as specified herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and agreements herein contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are

hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, Parent, Merger Sub and the Company hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

THE MERGER

SECTION 1.01 *The Merger*. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, and in accordance with the DGCL, at the Effective Time, Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company. As a result of the Merger, the separate corporate existence of Merger Sub will cease and the Company shall continue as the surviving corporation in the Merger (the "Surviving Corporation").

SECTION 1.02 *Closing; Closing Date.* Unless this Agreement shall have been terminated pursuant to Article VIII, and unless otherwise mutually agreed in writing between the Company, Parent and Merger Sub, the closing for the Merger (the "Closing") shall take place at 10:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time) at the offices of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom, 42/F, Edinburgh Tower, The Landmark, 15 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong on a date to be specified by the Company and Parent (the "Closing Date"), which shall be no later than the third (3rd) Business Day immediately following the day on which the last to be satisfied or, if permissible, waived of the conditions set forth in Article VII (other than those conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of those conditions) shall be satisfied or, if permissible, waived in accordance with this Agreement.

SECTION 1.03 *Effective Time.* Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, as soon as practicable on the Closing Date, the Company and Merger Sub shall file or cause to be filed a certificate of merger (the "Certificate of Merger") with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware (the "Delaware Secretary of State") with respect to the Merger, in such form as required by, and executed and acknowledged in accordance with, the relevant provisions of the DGCL. The Merger shall become effective at such time as the Certificate of Merger becomes effective or at such other date and time as may be set forth in the Certificate of Merger (the effective time of the Merger being hereinafter referred to as the "Effective Time").

SECTION 1.04 *Effects of the Merger*. At and after the Effective Time, the Merger shall have the effects set forth in this Agreement, the Certificate of Merger and section 259 of the DGCL.

SECTION 1.05 *Certificate of Incorporation.* At the Effective Time, (except with respect to the name of the Surviving Corporation) the certificate of incorporation of the Surviving Corporation shall be amended in its entirety to read as the certificate of incorporation of Merger Sub as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, until thereafter amended as provided therein or by applicable Law.

SECTION 1.06 *Bylaws*. At the Effective Time, (except with respect to the name of the Surviving Corporation) the bylaws of the Surviving Corporation shall be amended in their entirety to read as the bylaws of Merger Sub as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, until thereafter amended as provided therein, by the certificate of incorporation or by applicable Law.

SECTION 1.07 *Directors and Officers.* From and after the Effective Time, the directors of the Surviving Corporation shall consist of the directors of Merger Sub as of immediately prior to the Effective Time, until their successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with the Surviving Corporation's certificate of incorporation and bylaws. From and after the Effective Time, until their successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified, or until their successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified, or until their successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified, or until their successors are duly elected or appointed and qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal in accordance with the Surviving Corporation's certificate of incorporation and bylaws.

ARTICLE II

EFFECT ON ISSUED SECURITIES; EXCHANGE OF CERTIFICATES

SECTION 2.01 *Effect of Merger on Issued Securities.* At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger, and without any action on the part of Parent, Merger Sub, the Company or the holders of any securities of the Company:

(a) (i) Each share of common stock, par value US\$0.00001 per share, of the Company (each, a "Common Share" and, collectively, the "Common Shares"), issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, other than any Common Shares to be cancelled pursuant to *Section 2.01(b)* and any Dissenting Shares, shall be converted into the right of its holder to receive US\$4.225 in cash per Common Share without interest (the "Merger Consideration") payable in the manner provided in *Section 2.04*. All of such Common Shares that have been converted into the right to receive Merger Consideration as provided in this *Section 2.01(a)* shall no longer be outstanding and shall be automatically cancelled and cease to exist as of the Effective Time. Each certificate (or evidence of shares in book-entry form) that, immediately prior to the Effective Time, represented any such Common Shares (each such certificate or evidence, a "Stock Certificate") shall cease to have any rights with respect thereto, except the right to receive the Merger Consideration to be paid in consideration therefor upon surrender of such Stock Certificate in accordance with *Section 2.04(b)*.

(b) Each Common Share held by the Company as treasury stock or, directly or indirectly, by Parent, Merger Sub, or any wholly owned Company Subsidiary, including the Rollover Shares contributed to Parent immediately prior to the Closing in accordance with the Contribution Agreement, immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be cancelled and retired and shall cease to exist as of the Effective Time, and no consideration shall be delivered with respect thereto.

(c) Each share of common stock, par value US\$0.0001 per share, of Merger Sub issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be converted into and become one (1) validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable share of common stock, par value US\$0.0001 per share, of the Surviving Corporation. Such shares of common stock shall be the only issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of the Surviving Corporation, which shall be reflected in the stock ledger of the Surviving Corporation.

SECTION 2.02 *Treatment of Company Options, Restricted Shares and RSUs.* (a) As of the Effective Time, each option to purchase Common Shares (a "Company Option") pursuant to any of the Stock Incentive Plans or otherwise that is then outstanding and unexercised, whether or not vested (a "Company Option"), shall be cancelled and converted into the right to receive cash in an amount equal to (i) the total number of Common Shares subject to such Company Option immediately prior to the Effective Time (without regard to vesting) multiplied by (ii) the excess, if any, of (x) the Merger Consideration over (y) the exercise price payable per Common Share under such Company Option, which amount shall be paid, net of any applicable withholding Taxes, as soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Time. No holder of a Company Option that has an exercise price per Common Share that is equal to or greater than the Merger Consideration shall be entitled to any payment with respect to such cancelled Company Option before or after the Effective Time.

(b) As of the Effective Time, each restricted share granted pursuant to any of the Stock Incentive Plans or otherwise that is then outstanding (a "Restricted Share") shall be cancelled and converted into the right to receive the Merger Consideration, which amount shall be paid, net of any applicable withholding Taxes, as soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Time.

(c) As of the Effective Time, each restricted stock unit granted pursuant to any of the Stock Incentive Plans or otherwise that is then outstanding (a "RSU") shall be cancelled and converted

into the right to receive the Merger Consideration, which amount shall be paid, net of any applicable withholding Taxes, as soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Time.

SECTION 2.03 Dissenting Shares.

(a) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Common Shares that are issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, and are held by Stockholders who are entitled to appraisal rights under section 262 of the DGCL and have properly exercised and perfected their respective demands for appraisal of such Common Shares in the time and manner provided in section 262 of the DGCL and, as of the Effective Time, have neither effectively withdrawn nor lost their rights to such appraisal and payment under the DGCL (the "Dissenting Shares"), shall not be converted into or represent the right to receive the Merger Consideration as described in this *Article II*, but shall, by virtue of the Merger, be entitled to only such consideration as shall be determined pursuant to section 262 of the DGCL; provided that if any such Stockholder shall have failed to perfect or shall have effectively withdrawn or lost such Stockholder's right to appraisal and payment under the DGCL, such Stockholder's Common Shares shall be deemed to have been converted as of the Effective Time into the right to receive the Merger Consideration as described in this *Article II*, and such Common Shares shall not be deemed to be Dissenting Shares.

(b) The Company shall give Parent: (i) prompt notice of any written demands received by the Company for appraisal of any Common Shares and any withdrawals of such demands; and (ii) the opportunity to participate in all negotiations and proceedings with respect to such demands. The Company shall not, except with the prior written consent of Parent, or as required by applicable Law, make any payment with respect to any demands for appraisal or settle or offer to settle any such demands.

SECTION 2.04 Exchange of Stock Certificates, etc.; Paying Agent.

(a) *Exchange Fund.* At the Effective Time, Parent shall deposit, or cause to be deposited, with a bank or trust company that may be designated by Parent and that is reasonably acceptable to the Company to act as paying agent (the "Paying Agent"), for the benefit of the holders of Common Shares, immediately prior to the Effective Time (excluding any Common Shares to be cancelled pursuant to *Section 2.01(b)* and any Dissenting Shares), cash in an amount sufficient to pay the aggregate Merger Consideration (such cash being hereinafter referred to as the "Exchange Fund"). Except as contemplated by *Section 2.04(f)*, the Exchange Fund shall not be used for any other purpose.

(b) *Exchange Procedures for Stockholders.* As promptly as practicable after the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall cause the Paying Agent to mail to each person who was, at the Effective Time, a registered Stockholder entitled to receive the Merger Consideration pursuant to *Section 2.01(a)*: (i) a letter of transmittal (which shall be in reasonable and customary form and shall specify that delivery shall be effected, and risk of loss and title to the Stock Certificates held by such person shall pass, only upon proper delivery of Stock Certificates (or effective affidavits of loss in lieu thereof) to the Paying Agent); and (ii) instructions for use in effecting the surrender of any Stock Certificates (or effective affidavits of loss in lieu thereof) and/or such other documents as may be required in exchange for the Merger Consideration. Upon surrender of a Stock Certificate (or effective affidavit of loss in lieu thereof) and/or such other documents as may be required pursuant to such instructions to the Paying Agent in accordance with the terms of such letter of transmittal, duly executed in accordance with the instructions thereto, each Stockholder holding Common Shares represented by such Stock Certificate shall be entitled to receive in exchange therefor a check or wire transfer in an amount (subject to any required tax withholdings) equal to (x) the number of Common Shares represented by such Stock Certificate multiplied by (y) the Merger Consideration, and the Stock Certificate so surrendered shall forthwith be

cancelled. As promptly as practicable after the Effective Time, the Paying Agent shall issue and deliver to each holder of uncertificated Common Shares represented by a book entry ("Book-Entry Shares") a check or wire transfer for the amount of cash that such holder is entitled to receive pursuant to *Section 2.01(a)* in respect of such Book-Entry Shares (subject to any required tax withholdings), without such Stockholder being required to deliver a Stock Certificate or an executed letter of transmittal to the Paying Agent, and such Book-Entry Shares shall then be cancelled. No interest shall be paid or will accrue on any amount payable in respect of the Common Shares pursuant to the provisions of this *Article II*. In the event of a transfer of ownership of Common Shares that is not registered in the transfer record of the Company, it shall be a condition of payment that such Stock Certificate so surrendered shall be properly endorsed or shall be otherwise in proper form for transfer or such Book-Entry Share shall be properly transferred and that the person requesting such payment shall have paid any transfer and other Taxes required by reason of the payment of the Merger Consideration to a person other than the registered holder of the Stock Certificate or Book-Entry Share surrendered or shall have established to the satisfaction of Parent that such Tax either has been paid or is not applicable. Until surrendered as contemplated by this *Section 2.04(b)*, each Stock Certificate shall be deemed at any time after the Effective Time to represent only the right to receive upon such surrender the applicable Merger Consideration as contemplated by this *Article II*, without interest.

(c) Payments for Company Options, Restricted Shares and RSUs. As promptly as practicable after the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall pay the aggregate Merger Consideration payable with respect to Company Options, Restricted Shares and RSUs through, to the extent applicable, the Surviving Corporation's payroll (subject to any required tax withholdings) to the holders of Company Options, Restricted Shares and RSUs; provided, however, that to the extent evidence has been timely provided to the Surviving Corporation that an election under Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, was properly made with respect to any Restricted Shares, the Merger Consideration payable with respect to such Restricted Shares shall be paid in the manner described in Section 2.04(b) rather than this Section 2.04(c).

(d) *Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Stock Certificates.* In the event any Stock Certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed, upon the making of an affidavit of that fact by the person claiming such Stock Certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed and, if required by the Surviving Corporation, the posting by such person of a bond in reasonable and customary amount and upon such reasonable terms as the Surviving Corporation may determine are necessary as indemnity against any claim that may be made against it with respect to such Stock Certificate, the Paying Agent will issue in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed Stock Certificate a check or wire transfer in the amount (subject to any required tax withholdings) equal to (x) the number of Common Shares represented by such Stock Certificate multiplied by (y) the Merger Consideration, and such Stock Certificate shall forthwith be cancelled.

(e) Adjustments to Merger Consideration. The Merger Consideration shall be adjusted to reflect appropriately the effect of any share split, reverse share split, share dividend (including any dividend or distribution of securities convertible into Common Shares), extraordinary cash dividends, reorganization, recapitalization, reclassification, combination, exchange of shares or other like change with respect to Common Shares occurring on or after the date hereof and prior to the Effective Time.

(f) *Investment of Exchange Fund.* The Exchange Fund, pending its disbursement to the Stockholders, shall be invested by the Paying Agent as directed by Parent or, after the Effective Time, by the Surviving Corporation in (a) short-term direct obligations of the United States of America, (b) short-term obligations for which the full faith and credit of the United States of America is pledged to provide for the payment of principal and interest, or (c) certificates of deposit, bank repurchase agreements or banker's acceptances of commercial banks with capital

exceeding US\$1 billion acceptable to Parent. Earnings from investments shall be the sole and exclusive property of Parent, *provided*, *however*, that no such investment or losses thereon shall affect the Merger Consideration payable to the holders of the Common Shares, and Parent shall promptly replace or cause to be replaced any funds deposited with the Paying Agent that are lost through any investment so as to ensure that the Exchange Fund is at all times maintained at a level sufficient for the Paying Agent to pay the Merger Consideration.

(g) *Termination of the Exchange Fund.* Any portion of the Exchange Fund (including any income or proceeds thereof or of any investment thereof) that remains undistributed to the Stockholders one (1) year after the Effective Time shall be delivered to the Surviving Corporation, and any Stockholder who has not theretofore complied with this *Article II* shall thereafter look only to the Surviving Corporation for the cash to which they are entitled pursuant to *Section 2.01(a)* and *2.02*. Any portion of the Exchange Fund remaining unclaimed by Stockholders as of a date which is immediately prior to such time as such amounts would otherwise escheat to or become property of any Governmental Authority shall, to the extent permitted by applicable Law, become the property of the Surviving Corporation free and clear of any claims or interest of any person previously entitled thereto.

(h) *No Liability.* None of the Paying Agent, Parent or the Surviving Corporation shall be liable to any Stockholders for any such Common Shares (or dividends or distributions with respect thereto) or cash delivered to a public official pursuant to any abandoned property, escheat or similar Law.

(i) *Withholding Rights.* Each of Parent, the Surviving Corporation and the Paying Agent shall be entitled to deduct and withhold from the consideration otherwise payable by it to any recipient pursuant to this Agreement such amounts as it is required to deduct and withhold with respect to the making of such payment under any provision of United States federal, state, local or foreign Tax Law. To the extent that amounts are so deducted and withheld by Parent, the Surviving Corporation or the Paying Agent, as the case may be, and paid to the appropriate taxing authority, such withheld amounts shall be treated for all purposes of this Agreement as having been paid to the person in respect of which such deduction and withholding was made by Parent, the Surviving Corporation or the Paying Agent, as the case may be.

SECTION 2.05 *No Transfers.* At the Effective Time, (a) the stock transfer books of the Company shall be closed and thereafter there shall be no further registration of transfers on the stock transfer books of the Surviving Corporation of the Common Shares that were outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, and (b) the Stockholders holding Common Shares outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time, and (b) the Stockholders holding Common Shares outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall cease to have any rights with respect to such Common Shares, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or by Law. On or after the Effective Time, any Stock Certificates presented to the Paying Agent, Parent or Surviving Corporation for transfer or any other reason shall be canceled and (except for Common Shares cancelled pursuant to *Section 2.01(b)* and any Dissenting Shares) exchanged for the cash consideration to which the holders thereof are entitled pursuant to this *Article II*.

ARTICLE III

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY

Except as set forth in the Company SEC Reports prior to or contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement (other than statements contained in the "*Risk Factors*" and "*Forward-Looking Statements*" sections thereof to the extent they are general, nonspecific, forward-looking or cautionary in nature, in each case, other than specific factual information contained therein) or the Company Disclosure Letter (it being understood that any matter disclosed in any section of the Company Disclosure Letter will be deemed to be disclosed in any other section of the Company Disclosure Letter to the extent that it is reasonably apparent from the face of such disclosure that such disclosure is applicable to such other section), the Company hereby represents and warrants to Parent and Merger Sub that:

SECTION 3.01 Organization and Qualification. (a) Each of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries is a legal entity validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization and has the requisite corporate or similar organizational power and authority to own, lease, operate and use its properties and assets and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted, except where the failure to be in good standing or, in the case of a Company Subsidiary, to validly exist or to have such power and authority would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(b) Each of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries is duly qualified or licensed to do business, and is in good standing, in each jurisdiction where the character of the properties and assets owned, leased, operated or used by it or the nature of its business makes such qualification or licensing necessary, except where the failure to be so qualified or licensed or in good standing would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(c) A true and complete list of all Company Subsidiaries and all other entities in which the Company and/or any Company Subsidiary owns any non-controlling equity interest (other than marketable securities), together with the jurisdiction of organization of each such Company Subsidiary and entity and the percentage of the outstanding issued share capital or registered capital, as the case may be, of each such Company Subsidiary, is set forth in Section 3.01(c) of the Company Disclosure Letter. There are no other corporations, associations or other entities through which the Company or any Company Subsidiary conducts business, or other entities in which the Company or any Company Subsidiary controls or owns, of record or beneficially, any direct or indirect equity interest or right (contingent or otherwise) to acquire any such equity interest (other than marketable securities). Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is a participant in (nor is any part of their businesses conducted through) any joint venture, partnership or similar arrangement.

SECTION 3.02 *Certificate of Incorporation.* The Company has furnished to Parent a true, complete and correct copy of the certificates or articles of incorporation, bylaws or equivalent organizational documents, each as amended or modified to date, of the Company and each Company Subsidiary as in effect as of the date of this Agreement. Such certificates or articles of incorporation, bylaws or equivalent organizational documents are in full force and effect as of the date hereof. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is in material violation of any of the provisions of its certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or equivalent.

SECTION 3.03 *Capitalization.* (a) The authorized share capital of the Company consists of 45,000,000 Common Shares of a par value of US\$0.00001 per share and 5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock of a par value of US\$0.00001 per share ("Preferred Shares"). As of the date of this Agreement, (i) 24,288,854 Common Shares are issued and outstanding, all of which have been duly authorized and

are validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, (ii) no Preferred Shares are issued or outstanding, and (iii) 7,264,402 Common Shares are reserved for future issuance pursuant to the Stock Incentive Plans. Except as set forth in *Section 3.03* of the Company Disclosure Letter, as of the date of this Agreement, there are no options, warrants or preemptive, conversion, redemption, share appreciation, repurchase or other rights, agreements, arrangements or commitments of any character issued or granted by the Company or any Company Subsidiary relating to the issued or unissued share capital of the Company or any Company Subsidiary or obligating the Company or any Company Subsidiary to issue or sell any shares or securities of, or other equity interests in, the Company or any Company Subsidiary. The Company does not have outstanding any bonds, debentures, notes or other obligations the holders of which have the right to vote (or convertible into or exercisable for securities having the right to vote) with the Stockholders on any matter.

(b) There are no outstanding contractual obligations of the Company or any Company Subsidiary to repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any Common Shares or any share capital or registered capital, as the case may be, of any Company Subsidiary, or to make any investment (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or otherwise) in any Company Subsidiary or any other person.

SECTION 3.04 *Authority Relative to This Agreement; Fairness.* (a) The Company has all necessary corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder and, subject to the adoption of this Agreement by the affirmative vote of Stockholders representing at least a majority of the issued and outstanding Common Shares in accordance with the DGCL (the "Requisite Company Vote"), to consummate the Merger. The execution, delivery and performance by the Company of this Agreement and the consummation by the Company of the Merger have been duly authorized by the Company Board, and no other corporate action on the part of the Company is necessary to authorize the execution and delivery by the Company of this Agreement and the consummation by it of the Merger, in each case, subject only to the Requisite Company Vote. This Agreement has been duly and validly executed and delivered by the Company and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub, constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and similar Laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights, and to general equity principles.

(b) The Special Committee is composed of three (3) members of the Company Board who are not members of the Company's management. As of the date of this Agreement, the Company Board, acting upon the unanimous recommendation of the Special Committee, has (i) determined that the Merger, on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein, is fair to, and in the best interest of, the Company and its Stockholders, (ii) approved and declared advisable this Agreement, the Merger and the Transactions and (iii) resolved to recommendation"). As of the date of this Agreement, the Company Board, acting upon the unanimous recommendation of the Special Committee, the "Company Recommendation"). As of the date of this Agreement, the Company Board, acting upon the unanimous recommendation of the Special Committee, has directed that this Agreement be submitted to the Stockholders for adoption.

(c) The Special Committee has received the written opinion of RBC Capital Markets, LLC (the "Financial Advisor"), dated the date of this Agreement, to the effect that, as of the date hereof, the Merger Consideration is fair, from a financial point of view, to the Stockholders (other than the Rollover Holders), a copy of which opinion will be delivered to Parent promptly after the date of this Agreement, solely for informational purposes. The Financial Advisor has consented or agreed to consent to the inclusion of a copy of such opinion in the Proxy Statement. It is agreed and understood that such opinion may not be relied on by Parent or Merger Sub.

SECTION 3.05 *Subsidiaries*. Section 3.5 of the Company Disclosure Letter sets forth a complete and correct list of the Company's "significant subsidiaries" (as defined in Rule 1-02 of Reg S-X (such subsidiaries of the Company, the "Material Subsidiaries"). All equity interests of the Material Subsidiaries held by the Company or any Company Subsidiary are validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and were not issued in violation of any preemptive or similar rights, purchase option, call or right of first refusal or similar rights. All such equity interests owned by the Company or any Company Subsidiary are held free and clear of any Liens or any other limitations or restrictions on the right to vote, pledge, sell or otherwise dispose of such equity interests.

SECTION 3.06 *No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents.* (a) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company do not, and the performance of this Agreement by the Company and the consummation by the Company of the Merger do not and will not, (i) conflict with or violate the certificate of incorporation or bylaws of the Company or any equivalent organizational documents of any Company Subsidiary, (ii) assuming that all consents, approvals, authorizations and other actions described in *Section 3.06(b)* have been obtained and all filings and obligations described in *Section 3.06(b)* have been made and that the Requisite Company Vote is obtained, conflict with or violate any statute, law, ordinance, regulation, rule, code, executive order, injunction, judgment, decree or other order ("Law") applicable to the Company or any Company Subsidiary or by which any property or asset of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is bound or affected, (iii) result in any breach of, or constitute a default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would become a default) under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, or result in the creation of a Lien (other than Permitted Liens) on any property or asset of the Company Subsidiary pursuant to, any Material Contract, or (iv) require any consent, approval or other authorization of, or filing with or notification to, any party under any Material Contract, other than any such matter described in clause (ii), (iii) or (iv) which would not, individually or in the aggregate, reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company do not, and the performance of this Agreement by the Company and the consummation by the Company of the Merger will not, require any consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or filing with or notification to, any Governmental Authority, except (i) for compliance with the applicable requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder (including the joining of the Company in the filing of a Schedule 13E-3, the filing of a Schedule 14A (including the Proxy Statement), and the filing or furnishing of one or more amendments or supplements to the Schedule 13E-3 and such Proxy Statement to respond to comments of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), if any, on such documents), (ii) for compliance with the rules and regulations of the Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC ("NASDAQ"), (iii) for the filing of the Certificate of Merger and related documentation with the Delaware Secretary of State pursuant to the DGCL, (iv) for compliance with the HSR Act, any applicable Law analogous to the HSR Act or otherwise regulating antitrust, competition or merger or acquisition control matters and in each case existing in foreign jurisdictions set forth on *Section 3.06(b)* of the Company Disclosure Letter and any other consents, approvals, authorizations or permits of, or filings with or notifications to, a Governmental Authority and set forth in *Section 3.06(b)* of the Company Disclosure Letter (collectively, the "Requisite Regulatory Approvals"), and (v) where the failure to obtain or make, as applicable, any such consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or filing with or notification to, any Governmental Authority would not reasonably be expected to, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.07 *Permits; Compliance with Laws.* (a) Each of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries is in possession of all material grants, authorizations, licenses, permits, easements, variances, exceptions, consents, certificates, approvals and orders of any Governmental Authority

necessary for it to own, lease, operate and use its properties and assets or to carry on its business as it is now being conducted (the "Material Company Permits"). No action by a Governmental Authority seeking the suspension or cancellation of any of the Material Company Permits is pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened. Each of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries is not in material violation or breach of, or in material default under, any Material Company Permit. All approvals of, and filings and registrations and other requisite formalities with, Governmental Authorities in the People's Republic of China ("PRC") required in respect of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries and their capital structure and operations, including but not limited to registrations with the State Administration for Industry and Commerce ("SAIC"), the State Administration of Foreign Exchange ("SAFE") and the State Administration of Taxation ("SAT"), and their respective local counterparts, have been duly completed in accordance with applicable PRC Laws regarding the contribution and payment of its registered capital.

(b) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is or has been in conflict with, or in default, breach or violation of, in any material respect, any Law applicable to the Company or any Company Subsidiary, including (i) any Laws applicable to its business and (ii) any Laws related to the protection of personal data. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has received any written notice of any material non-compliance with any applicable Laws that has not been cured.

SECTION 3.08 *SEC Filings; Financial Statements.* (a) The Company has timely filed all forms, reports and documents required to be filed by it with the SEC since the January 1, 2010 (the "Applicable Date") (the forms, reports and other documents filed since the Applicable Date and those filed subsequent to the date hereof, including any amendments thereto, together with all information incorporated by reference therein in accordance with applicable SEC regulations, collectively, the "Company SEC Reports"). The Company SEC Reports (i) were prepared in accordance in all material respects with either the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or the Exchange Act, as the case may be, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and (ii) did not, at the time they were filed, or, if amended, as of the date of such amendment, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. No Company Subsidiary is subject to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act.

(b) Each of the consolidated financial statements (including, in each case, any notes thereto) contained in or incorporated by reference into the Company SEC Reports was prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") applied on a consistent basis throughout the periods indicated (except as may be indicated in the notes thereto or to the extent required by GAAP) and each fairly presents, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position, results of operations, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows of the Company and its consolidated Company Subsidiaries as at the respective dates thereof and for the respective periods indicated therein (subject, in the case of unaudited interim statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments and the exclusion of certain notes in accordance with the rules of the SEC relating to unaudited financial statements), in each case in accordance with GAAP, Reg S-X of the SEC and the rules and standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

(c) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has any material liabilities (whether accrued, absolute, determined, determinable, fixed or contingent) of a nature required by GAAP to be sent forth on a balance sheet of the Company or to be disclosed in the Company SEC Reports, except liabilities (i) reflected or reserved against in the consolidated balance sheet

included in the Company's annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012 (including the notes thereto), included in the Company SEC Reports, (ii) incurred pursuant to this Agreement or in connection with the Transactions, or (iii) incurred since September 30, 2012 in the ordinary course of business.

(d) Since the Applicable Date, there has been no transaction, or series of similar transactions, agreements, arrangements or understandings, to which the Company or any Company Subsidiary was a party, that would be required to be disclosed under Item 404 of Reg S-K, other than the Transactions.

(e) None of the Company or any Company Subsidiary has any off-balance sheet arrangement (as defined in Item 303 of Reg S-K) that would be required to be disclosed under Item 303 of Reg S-K.

(f) The Company has timely filed all certifications and statements required by (x) Rule 13a-14 or Rule 15d-14 under the Exchange Act or (y) 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) with respect to any Company SEC Report. The Company is in material compliance with all provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 which are applicable to it. The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures required by Rule 13a-15 or Rule 15d-15 under the Exchange Act; such controls and procedures are reasonably designed to ensure that all material information concerning the Company and the Company Subsidiaries is made known on a timely basis to the individuals responsible for the preparation of the Company's SEC filings. The Company's certifying officers have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by the Company's most recently filed annual report under the Exchange Act (such date, the "Evaluation Date"). The Company presented in its most recently filed annual report under the Exchange Act the conclusions of the Certifying officers about the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that have materially affected, or are likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting. As used in this *Section 3.08*, the term "file" shall be broadly construed to include any manner in which a document or information is furnished or supplied to the SEC.

SECTION 3.09 *Absence of Certain Changes or Events.* Since December 31, 2012, except in connection with the Transactions, (a) the Company and the Company Subsidiaries have conducted their businesses in all material respects in the ordinary course and in a manner consistent with past practice and (b) there has not been any Company Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 3.10 *Absence of Litigation.* (a) There is no litigation, suit, claim, action, demand letter, or any judicial, criminal, administrative or regulatory proceeding, hearing, investigation, or formal or informal regulatory document production request proceeding (an "Action") pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened against the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or any property or asset of the Company or any Company Subsidiary (including any share, security or equity interest held by the Company or any Company Subsidiary), before any Governmental Authority that, if determined adversely to the Company or any Company Subsidiary, would reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(b) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary nor any material property or asset of the Company or any Company Subsidiary (including any share, security or equity interest held by the Company or any Company Subsidiary) is subject to any continuing order of, consent decree, settlement agreement or other similar written agreement with, or, to the knowledge of the Company, continuing investigation by, any Governmental Authority, or any order, writ, judgment, injunction, decree, determination or award of any Governmental Authority.

SECTION 3.11 *Labor and Employment Matters.* (a) The Company and each Company Subsidiary is in material compliance with all labor and employment Laws, including all such Laws relating to (i) wages, hours and any similar mass layoff Law, collective bargaining, discrimination, civil rights, safety and health, and workers' compensation; (ii) the collection and payment of withholding and/or social security taxes and any similar tax; and (iii) deductions, payments and contribution of retirement insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance, birth and nursery insurance, pension fund insurance and any other social benefit payments required by applicable Law.

(b) There are no controversies pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened between the Company or any Company Subsidiary and any of their respective current or former employees, contractors, subcontractors, agents or other persons engaged by the Company or any Company Subsidiary in connection with their businesses (collectively, "Company Personnel") that would reasonably be expected to result in a material liability of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. As of the date of this Agreement, neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is a party to or bound by any collective bargaining agreement or other labor union contract applicable to persons employed by the Company or any Company Subsidiary. As of the date of this Agreement, there are no labor unions, works councils or other organizations representing or purporting to represent any employees of the Company or any Company Subsidiary or, to the knowledge of the Company or any Company Subsidiary. There are no unfair labor practice complaints pending, or to the knowledge of the Company or any Company Subsidiary. There are no unfair labor practice complaints pending, or to the knowledge of the Company, threatened, against the Company or any Company Subsidiary before any Governmental Authority that would reasonably be expected to result in a material liability of the Company and the Company or any Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole. There is no strike, slowdown, work stoppage or lockout, or similar activity or, to the knowledge of the Company Personnel, nor has there been any such occurrence during the two (2) years preceding the date of this Agreement.

(c) Each Company Employee Plan and each Company Employee Agreement is and has at all times been operated and administered by the Company and the Company Subsidiaries in material compliance with the provisions thereof and all applicable Law. Each contribution or other payment that is required to have been accrued or made by the Company or any Company Subsidiary under or with respect to any Company Employee Plan has been duly accrued and made on a timely basis, except as would not be material to the Company. There are no claims or legal proceedings pending, or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened against any Company Employee Plan or against the assets of any Company Employee Plan, other than claims for benefits pursuant to the terms of such Company Employee Plan.

(d) No Company Employee Plan or Company Employee Agreement exists that, as a result of the execution of this Agreement by the Company, the receipt of the Requisite Company Vote, or the consummation by the Company of the Transactions (whether alone or in connection with any subsequent event(s)), will entitle any Company Personnel to (i) compensation or benefits (including any severance payment or benefit) or any increase in compensation or benefits upon any termination of employment on or after the date of this Agreement, (ii) accelerate the time of payment or vesting (other than the acceleration of vesting of all outstanding Company Options, Restricted Shares and RSUs, which will occur upon consummation of the Transactions) or result in any payment or funding of compensation or benefits under, or increase the amount payable or result in any other material obligation pursuant to, any of the Company Employee Plans or Company Employee Agreements, (iii) cause the Company or any Company Subsidiary to record additional compensation expense on its income statement with respect to any outstanding

Company Option, Restricted Share or RSU (other than as a result of any acceleration of vesting), or (iv) limit, in any way, the Surviving Corporation's ability to amend or terminate any Company Employee Plan or Company Employee Agreement.

(e) With respect to each Company Employee Plan, if and to the extent applicable: (i) all employer and employee contributions required by applicable Law or by the terms of such Company Employee Plan have been made or, if applicable, accrued, in accordance with normal accounting practices; (ii) the fair market value of the assets of each funded Company Employee Plan, the liability of each insurer for any Company Employee Plan funded through insurance or the book reserve established for any Company Employee Plan, together with any accrued contributions, is sufficient to procure or provide for the accrued benefit obligations, as of the Effective Time, with respect to all current and former participants in such plan according to the actuarial assumptions and valuations most recently used to determine employer contributions to such Company Employee Plan, and no transaction contemplated by this Agreement shall cause such asset or insurance obligations to be less than such benefit obligations; and (iii) each Company Employee Plan required to be registered with applicable Governmental Authorities has been so registered and has been maintained in good standing.

SECTION 3.12 *Real Property; Title to Assets.* (a) Each of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries has good and marketable title to, or, in the case of leased properties and assets, valid leasehold or subleasehold interests in all of its properties and assets, tangible and intangible, real, personal and mixed, used or held for use in its business, free and clear of any Liens, other than Permitted Liens. As of the date of this Agreement, there are no pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened, condemnation or imminent domain proceedings that would affect any part of the properties or assets of each of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, whether leased, subleased or owned, tangible or intangible, real, personal or mixed, in each case used or held for use in its business.

(b) All current leases and subleases of real property entered into by the Company or a Company Subsidiary are in full force and effect, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and similar Laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights, and to general equity principles, and there is not, under any of such leases, any existing material default or event of default (or event which, with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a material default) by the Company or any Company Subsidiary or, to the knowledge of the Company, by the other party to such lease or sublease, or person in the chain of title to such leased premises. There are no contractual or legal restrictions that preclude the Company or any Company Subsidiary from using the real property leased or subleased by the Company or such Company Subsidiary for the purposes for which it is currently being used. To the knowledge of the Company, as of the date of this Agreement, there are no material latent defects or material adverse physical conditions affecting the real property, and improvements thereon, leased by the Company or any Company Subsidiary.

SECTION 3.13 Intellectual Property. The Company and the Company Subsidiaries either own or have the right to use all Intellectual Property that is material to and used in the conduct of its business. To the knowledge of the Company, the conduct of the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries as currently conducted does not infringe upon or violate in any material respect the Intellectual Property rights (including patent rights) or other proprietary rights, including rights of privacy, publicity and endorsement, of any third party, and, except as would not, individually or in the aggregate have a Company Material Adverse Effect, no claim has been asserted in writing against the Company or any Company Subsidiary or to the knowledge of the Company, is currently threatened, against the Company or any Company Subsidiary and

the Company Subsidiaries as currently conducted infringes upon or may infringe upon or violates the Intellectual Property rights of any third party.

(a) With respect to each item of Intellectual Property owned by the Company or a Company Subsidiary ("Company Owned Intellectual Property") that is material to the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, the Company or a Company Subsidiary is the owner of the entire right, title and interest in and to such Company Owned Intellectual Property (subject to the terms of any license agreements with customers, distributors, resellers and the like), and is entitled to use such Company Owned Intellectual Property in the continued operation of its business.

(b) The Company Owned Intellectual Property is valid and enforceable, except as would not be material to the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, and has not been adjudged invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, and to the knowledge of the Company, no person is engaging in any activity that infringes upon the Company Owned Intellectual Property in a manner that would materially affect the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

(c) With respect to each item of Intellectual Property licensed to the Company or a Company Subsidiary ("Company Licensed Intellectual Property") that is material to the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, the Company or a Company Subsidiary has the right to use such Company Licensed Intellectual Property in the continued operation of its business in accordance with the terms of the license agreement governing such Company Licensed Intellectual Property. Except as would not have a Company Material Adverse Effect, and subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and similar Laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights, and to general equity principles, each license of the Company Licensed Intellectual Property is valid and enforceable, is binding on all parties to such license, and is in full force and effect, and to the knowledge of the Company, no other party to any license of the Company Licensed Intellectual Property to the Company is in breach thereof or default thereunder.

(d) All registrations with and applications to any Governmental Authority in respect of the Company Owned Intellectual Property (other than with respect to inventions for which no patent application has been filed) material to the conduct of the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries as presently conducted that are necessary for the protection of such Intellectual Property rights under applicable Laws have been made and are valid and in full force and effect.

(e) Neither the execution of this Agreement nor the consummation of any Transaction shall materially adversely affect any of the Company's or any Company Subsidiary's rights with respect to the Company Owned Intellectual Property or the Company Licensed Intellectual Property, in each case that is material to the conduct of the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries as presently conducted.

The representations and warranties contained in this Section 3.13 are the only representations and warranties being made by the Company with respect to any infringement, misappropriation or other violation of the Intellectual Property Rights of any person.

SECTION 3.14 *Taxes.* (a) Except for any failure to file or pay or errors or omissions that, individually or in the aggregate, are not reasonably likely to have a Company Material Adverse Effect: (i)each of the Company and each Company Subsidiary has timely filed all federal, state and foreign income and franchise tax returns ("Tax Returns") required to be filed by it and has paid and discharged all material Taxes required to be paid or discharged (whether or not shown to be due on any Tax Return), other than such payments as are being contested in good faith by appropriate

proceedings; (ii)all such Tax Returns are true, accurate and complete in all material respects; (iii)each of the Company and each Company Subsidiary has properly and timely withheld, collected and deposited all material Taxes that, in the Company's reasonable judgment, are required to be withheld, collected and deposited by it under applicable Law; (iv)there are no Tax liens upon any property or assets of the Company or any Company Subsidiary except for current Taxes not yet due; and (v)no unresolved written notice or written inquiry has been received from any jurisdiction in which Tax Returns have not been filed by the Company or any Company Subsidiary to the effect that the filing of Tax Returns in such jurisdiction may be required by the Company or any Company Subsidiary.

(b) As of the date hereof, (i) no taxing authority has asserted in writing or, to the knowledge of the Company, is threatening to assert against the Company or any Company Subsidiary any deficiency or claim for any material amount of Taxes; and (ii) neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has granted any waiver of any statute of limitations with respect to, or any extension of a period for the assessment of, any material amount of Tax, which waiver or extension is currently in effect.

(c) The Company does not take the position for Tax purposes that it is a "resident enterprise" of the PRC and neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary takes the position for Tax purposes that it is a tax resident in any jurisdiction other than its jurisdiction of formation.

SECTION 3.15 *No Secured Creditors; Solvency.* (a) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has any secured creditors, except (i) with respect to Permitted Liens and (ii) with respect to other arrangements involving less than US\$300,000 in the aggregate.

(b) Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has taken any steps to seek protection pursuant to any insolvency or bankruptcy Law nor does the Company have any knowledge that its creditors intend to initiate involuntary insolvency or bankruptcy proceedings or any knowledge of any fact which would reasonably be expected to lead a creditor to do so. The Company and the Company Subsidiaries, individually and on a consolidated basis, are not, as of the date hereof, Insolvent.

SECTION 3.16 *Material Contracts.* (a) Subsections (i) through (xii) of *Section 3.16(a)* of the Company Disclosure Letter list the following Contracts to which the Company or any Company Subsidiary is a party as of the date of this Agreement and that have material remaining unfulfilled obligations (other than indemnity and contribution obligations under which no material claims are outstanding as of the date of this Agreement) as of the date of this Agreement (such Contracts as are required to be set forth in *Section 3.16(a)* of the Company Disclosure Letter being the "Material Contracts"), and none of the Company or any Company Subsidiary is a party to or bound by any Material Contracts not listed in *Section 3.16(a)* of the Company Disclosure Letter:

(i) each Contract that would be required to be filed by the Company pursuant to Item 15 of Form 10-K under the Exchange Act;

(ii) each Contract which is reasonably expected to involve consideration of more than US\$150,000, in the aggregate, over the remaining term of such Contract, other than (A) at-will employment or service arrangements and (B) purchase orders entered into in the ordinary course of business;

(iii) all Contracts relating to any credit, loan or facility arrangement, guarantee or other security arrangement, or Indebtedness (whether or not incurred, assumed, guaranteed or secured by any asset of the Company or any Company Subsidiary), in each case involving outstanding borrowings in excess of US\$100,000, other than trade accounts receivable arising in the ordinary course of business;

(iv) all joint venture Contracts, strategic cooperation or partnership arrangements, or other agreements involving a sharing of profits, losses, costs or liabilities by the Company or any Company Subsidiary with any Third Party, other than insurance, indemnification and contribution Contracts arising in the ordinary course of business;

(v) all Contracts relating to the purchase or sale of any Common Shares or other securities of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, other than the Stock Incentive Plans and any Contracts arising thereunder, such as any option, restricted stock, restricted stock unit or similar equity compensation Contract;

(vi) all Contracts constituting a lease, sublease, license agreement, occupancy agreement, land grant contract or other Contract with respect to any leased real property material to the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(vii) all Contracts that limit, or purport to limit, the ability of the Company or any Company Subsidiary to compete in any line of business or with any person or entity or in any geographic area or during any period of time;

(viii) all Contracts that prohibit the payment of dividends or distributions in respect of the capital stock of the Company or any of its wholly owned Company Subsidiaries, prohibit the pledging of the capital stock of any wholly owned Company Subsidiary or prohibit the issuance of any guaranty by the Company or any wholly owned Company Subsidiary, other than Contracts where the breach or violation of any such prohibition would not be material to the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(ix) all Contracts for employment with any executive officer or prospective executive officer of the Company (other than pursuant to any Company Employee Plan);

(x) all Contracts with any directors or officers (other than pursuant to any Company Employee Plan) or stockholders of the Company reporting beneficial ownership as of the date of this Agreement of more than 5% of the Common Shares on a Schedule 13G or 13D filed with the SEC (other than Parent and Merger Sub and their respective Affiliates), or any person known by the Company to be any of their respective Affiliates (other than the Company or any Company Subsidiary) or immediate family members;

(xi) all Contracts providing for any indemnification, earn-out, installment or other contingent obligations (other than Company Employee Plans) to or from the Company or any Company Subsidiary, by or to any Third Party, in each case involving obligations or payments that could reasonably be expected to exceed US\$100,000;

(xii) all Contracts providing for the acquisition from another person or disposition to another person, directly or indirectly (by merger, license or otherwise), of assets (other than dispositions of products and services of the Company in the ordinary course of business) or capital stock or other equity interests of another person where the aggregate consideration under such Contract (or series of related Contracts) exceeds US\$100,000;

(xiii) all Contracts that are license agreements material to the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, pursuant to which the Company or any Company Subsidiary licenses in Intellectual Property or licenses out Intellectual Property owned by the Company or the Company Subsidiary, as the case may be (other than (1) license agreements for commercially available software on standard terms and (2) license agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business with customers, distributors, resellers and sales representatives);

(xiv) all Contracts providing for any change of control payments; and

(xv) all other Contracts, whether or not made in the ordinary course of business, which are material to the business of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or the absence of which would, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect.

(b) Except as would not have a Company Material Adverse Effect, (i) each Material Contract is a legal, valid and binding agreement, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and similar Laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights, and to general equity principles; (ii) the Company and the Company Subsidiaries have performed all obligations required to be performed by them to date under each Material Contract; (iii) to the knowledge of the Company, no other party is in material breach or violation of, or material default under, any Material Contract; (iv) the Company and the Company and the Company, no fact or event exists that would reasonably be expected to give rise to any claim of material default under any Material Contract; (v) the Company has not received, as of the date of this Agreement, any notice in writing from any person that such person intends to terminate any Material Contract; and (vi) neither the execution of this Agreement nor the consummation of any Transaction shall constitute a default under, give rise to cancellation rights under, or otherwise adversely affect any of the material rights of the Company or any Company Subsidiary under any Material Contract. The Company has furnished or made available to Parent true and complete copies of all Material Contracts, including any amendments thereto.

SECTION 3.17 *Insurance*. All material insurance policies of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries are in full force and effect, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and similar Laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights, and to general equity principles. The Company and the Company Subsidiaries maintain insurance coverage with reputable insurers in such amounts and covering such risks as are in accordance with normal industry practice for companies engaged in businesses similar to that of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries (taking into account the cost and availability of such insurance), including, but not limited to, directors and officers insurance. Neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary is in material breach or default of or has taken any action or failed to take any action which, with notice or the lapse of time, would constitute such a material breach or default of, or permit the termination or material modification of, any such insurance policies. To the knowledge of the Company, the Company and the Company Subsidiaries will be able to renew their existing insurance coverage as and when such coverage expires or to obtain similar coverage from similar insurers as may be necessary to continue their business without a significant increase in cost (other than such increases in cost as may be customary for companies engaged in businesses similar to that of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries).

SECTION 3.18 *Anti-Takeover Provisions*. The Company is not party to a stockholder rights agreement, "poison pill" or similar agreement or plan. The Company Board has taken all necessary action so that any takeover, anti-takeover, moratorium, "fair price", "control share" or other similar Laws applicable to the Company, including, without limitation, provisions of the DGCL (each, a "Takeover Statute") does not, and will not, apply to this Agreement or the Transactions.

SECTION 3.19 *Environmental Matters.* Except as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Company Material Adverse Effect, (i) the Company and the Company Subsidiaries are now and have been in compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws, and possess and are now and have been in compliance with all applicable Environmental Permits necessary to operate their businesses as presently operated, (ii) to the knowledge of the Company, there have been no releases of Hazardous Materials at or on any property owned or operated by the Company or any Company Subsidiary, (iii) neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has received from a Governmental Authority a written request for information pursuant to Section 104(e) of the Comprehensive Environmental

Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 or similar state or foreign statute, or any written notification alleging that it is liable for any release or threatened release of Hazardous Materials at any location, except with respect to any such notification or request for information concerning any such release or threatened release, to the extent such matter has been resolved with the appropriate foreign, federal, state or local regulatory authority or otherwise, and (iv) neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary has received any written claim or complaint, or is presently subject to any Action, relating to non-compliance with Environmental Laws or any other liabilities pursuant to Environmental Laws, and to the knowledge of the Company, no such matter has been threatened in writing.

SECTION 3.20 *Suppliers; Customers.* The Company has not received, as of the date of this Agreement, any written notice from any material supplier or customer of the Company or any Company Subsidiary that such supplier or customer, as the case may be, intends to materially reduce, terminate, cancel or not renew, its relationship with the Company or any of the Company Subsidiaries.

SECTION 3.21 *Company Information.* None of the information supplied or to be supplied in writing to Parent by or on behalf of the Company or any Company Subsidiary for inclusion or incorporation by reference (excluding information regarding Parent, Merger Sub or any of their Affiliates, other than the Company and the Company Subsidiaries) in (a) Schedule 13E-3 will, at the time such document is filed with the SEC, or at any time such document is amended or supplemented, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading, or (b) the Proxy Statement will, at the date it is first mailed to the Stockholders or at the time of the Stockholders' Meeting, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make ende, not misleading. Assuming the completeness and accuracy of the information supplied by Parent and Merger Sub for inclusion in the Proxy Statement, the Proxy Statement will comply as to form in all material respects with the applicable requirements of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makes no representation with respect to information supplied or to be supplied by or on behalf of Parent or Merger Sub for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the Schedule 13E-3 or the Proxy Statement.

SECTION 3.22 *Brokers.* Except for the Financial Advisor, no broker, finder or investment banker is entitled to any brokerage, finder's or other fee or commission in connection with the Transactions based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of the Company.

SECTION 3.23 No Additional Representations. Except for the representations and warranties contained in this Article III, none of the Company, its Affiliates or their Representatives makes any representation or warranty, express or implied, at law or in equity, with respect to the Company or its Subsidiaries or their businesses, assets or properties, or with respect to any other information provided to Parent, Merger Sub, their Affiliates or their Representatives in connection with the Transactions. None of the Company, its Affiliates or their Representatives will have or be subject to any liability or indemnification or other obligation to Parent, Merger Sub, their Affiliates or their Representatives resulting from the distribution, or making available, to such Persons, or such Persons' use of, any such information, including any documents, projections, forecasts or other materials made available to Parent, Merger Sub, their Affiliates or their Representatives and Merger Sub, their Affiliates or their Representations. The Company hereby acknowledges that Parent and Merger Sub make no representations or warranties except for the representations and warranties contained in Article IV.

ARTICLE IV

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PARENT AND MERGER SUB

As an inducement to the Company to enter into this Agreement, Parent and Merger Sub hereby, jointly and severally, represent and warrant to the Company that:

SECTION 4.01 Corporate Organization.

(a) Each of Parent and Merger Sub is a legal corporation duly incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is incorporated and has the requisite corporate power and authority and all necessary governmental approvals to own, lease, operate and use its properties and assets and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted, except where the failure to be so organized, existing or in good standing or to have such power, authority and governmental approvals would not, individually or in the aggregate, prevent or materially delay consummation of any of the Transactions by Parent or Merger Sub or otherwise be materially adverse to the ability of Parent or Merger Sub to perform their obligations under this Agreement.

(b) Parent and Merger Sub were formed solely for the purpose of engaging in the Transactions. Parent owns of record and beneficially all of the outstanding equity securities of Merger Sub, free and clear of any Lien. Except for obligations or liabilities incurred in connection with its formation and related to the Transactions (including in connection with arrangement of the Financings), neither Parent nor Merger Sub has incurred or will, prior to the Effective Time, incur, directly or indirectly, through any Subsidiary or Affiliate, any obligations or liabilities, or has engaged or will, prior to the Effective Time, engage in any business activities of any type or kind whatsoever or has entered or, prior to the Effective Time, will enter into any agreements or arrangements with any person.

(c) Parent has heretofore made available to the Company complete and correct copies of the memorandum and articles of association of Parent and Merger Sub, each as amended to date, and each as so delivered is in full force and effect.

SECTION 4.02 *Authority Relative to This Agreement.* Each of Parent and Merger Sub has all necessary corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this Agreement, to perform its obligations hereunder and to consummate the Transactions. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub and the consummation by Parent and Merger Sub of the Transactions have been duly and validly authorized by all necessary corporate action, and no other corporate proceedings on the part of Parent or Merger Sub are necessary to authorize the execution and delivery by Parent and Merger Sub of this Agreement or to consummate the Transactions. This Agreement has been duly and validly executed and delivered by Parent and Merger Sub and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Company, constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of each of Parent and Merger Sub, enforceable against each of Parent and Merger Sub in accordance with its terms, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganization, moratorium and similar Laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally and to general equity principles.

SECTION 4.03 No Conflict; Required Filings and Consents. (a) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub do not, and the performance of this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub and the consummation by Parent and Merger Sub of the Transactions do not and will not, (i) conflict with or violate the memorandum and articles of association (or equivalent organizational documents) of either Parent or Merger Sub, (ii) assuming that all consents, approvals, authorizations and other actions described in *Section 4.03(b)* have been obtained and all filings and obligations described in *Section 4.03(b)* have been made, conflict with or violate any Law applicable to Parent or Merger Sub or by which any property or asset of either of them is bound or affected, or

(iii) result in any breach of, or constitute a default (or an event which, with notice or lapse of time or both, would become a default) under, or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, or result in the creation of a Lien on any property or asset of Parent or Merger Sub pursuant to, any Contract or obligation to which Parent or Merger Sub is a party or by which Parent or Merger Sub or any property or asset of either of them is bound or affected, except, with respect to clauses (ii) and (iii), for any such conflicts, violations, breaches, defaults or other occurrences which would not, individually or in the aggregate, prevent or materially delay consummation of any of the Transactions by Parent or Merger Sub or otherwise be materially adverse to the ability of Parent and Merger Sub to perform their obligations under this Agreement.

(b) The execution and delivery of this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub do not, and the performance of this Agreement by Parent and Merger Sub and the consummation by Parent and Merger Sub of the Transactions will not, require any consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or filing with or notification to, any Governmental Authority, except (i) for compliance with the applicable requirements of Section 13 of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, (ii) for compliance with the rules and regulations of NASDAQ, (iii) for the filing of the Certificate of Merger and related documentation with the Delaware Secretary of State pursuant to the DGCL, and (iv) for the Requisite Regulatory Approvals, and (v) where the failure to obtain or make, as applicable, any such consent, approval, authorization or permit of, or filing with or notification to, any Governmental Authority would not be expected to, individually or in the aggregate, prevent or materially delay consummation of any of the Transactions by Parent or Merger Sub or otherwise be materially adverse to the ability of Parent or Merger Sub to perform their obligations under this Agreement.

SECTION 4.04 *Financing; Equity Rollover.* (a) Parent has delivered to the Company true and complete copies of (i) an executed equity commitment letter from IDG-Accel China Capital II L.P. (the "Sponsor") (the "Equity Commitment Letter"), pursuant to which the Sponsor has committed to purchase, or cause the purchase of, for cash, subject to the terms and conditions in the Equity Commitment Letter, equity securities of Parent, up to the aggregate amount set forth therein (the "Equity Financing"), and (ii) the Contribution Agreement (together with the Equity Commitment Letter, the "Financing Commitments"), pursuant to which, subject to the terms and conditions therein, the Rollover Holders have committed to contribute to Parent, immediately prior to the Effective Time, the number of Common Shares set forth therein and to consummate the Transactions, in consideration of equity securities of Parent (together with the Equity Financing, the "Financing").

(b) (i) The Financing Commitments are in full force and effect and are the legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligations of each party thereto, (ii) none of the Financing Commitments has been amended or modified and (iii) the respective commitments contained in the Financing Commitments have not been withdrawn or rescinded in any material respect, provided that Parent and Merger Sub may replace, amend or supplement the Financing Commitments to the extent permitted by *Section 6.07*. No withdrawal, termination, repudiation, rescission, amendment or modification of the Financing Commitments is contemplated. Parent has paid all commitment and other fees in connection with the Equity Commitment Letter that are due and payable.

(c) Assuming (A) the Financing is funded in accordance with the Financing Commitments, and (B) the satisfaction of the conditions to the obligation of Parent and Merger Sub to consummate the Merger as set forth in *Sections 7.01* and *7.02*, the proceeds contemplated by the Equity Financing will be sufficient for Merger Sub and the Surviving Corporation to pay (1) the aggregate Merger Consideration, and (2) any other amounts required to be paid in connection with the consummation of the Transactions upon the terms and conditions contemplated hereby and all related fees and expenses associated therewith.

(d) The Financing Commitments contain all of the conditions precedent to the obligations of the parties thereunder to make the Financing available to Parent or Merger Sub on the terms and conditions therein.

SECTION 4.05 *Limited Guarantees.* Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, Parent has caused each of the Sponsors to deliver to the Company a duly executed Limited Guarantee. Assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by the Company, each of the Limited Guarantees is in full force and effect and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the corresponding Sponsor, and no event has occurred, which, with or without notice, lapse of time or both, would constitute a default on the part of a Sponsor under the relevant Limited Guarantee.

SECTION 4.06 *Litigation*. As of the date hereof, (i) there are no Actions pending or, to the knowledge of Parent and Merger Sub, threatened against Parent, Merger Sub or any of their respective Affiliates, other than any such Action that would not, individually or in the aggregate, prevent or materially delay the consummation of the Transactions by Parent or Merger Sub, and (ii) neither Parent nor Merger Sub nor any of its Affiliates is a party to or subject to the provisions of any Law which would reasonably be expected to prevent or materially delay the consummation of the Transactions by Parent or Merger Sub.

SECTION 4.07 Availability of Funds.

(a) Parent will have available at the Effective Time the funds necessary to consummate the Merger and the other Transactions.

(b) Neither Parent nor Merger Sub is entering into the Transactions with the intent to hinder, delay or defraud either present or future creditors. Assuming the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in *Section 7.01* and *Section 7.02* and the accuracy of the representations of the Company set forth in Article III hereof, immediately after giving effect to the Transactions (including payment of all related fees and expenses and other obligations), as of the Effective Time, (A) the aggregate "fair saleable value" of the assets of the Surviving Corporation, on both a stand-alone and consolidated basis, as of such date, will exceed the value of all "liabilities" of the Surviving Corporation, on both a stand-alone and consolidated basis, including contingent liabilities, as such quoted terms are generally determined in accordance with applicable Law governing determinations of the insolvency of debtors, and the amount that will be required to pay the probable liabilities of the Surviving Corporation, on both a stand-alone and consolidated basis, (B) the Surviving Corporation, on both a stand-alone and consolidated basis, (B) the Surviving Corporation, on both a stand-alone and consolidated basis, will not have, as of such date, an unreasonably small amount of capital for the operation of the businesses in which it is engaged or proposed to be engaged following such date, and (C) the Surviving Corporation, on both a stand-alone and consolidated basis, will be able to pay its liabilities, including contingent and other liabilities, as they mature. For purposes of this definition, not having "an unreasonably small amount of capital for the operation of the businesses in which it is engaged" means that the Surviving Corporation, on both a stand-alone and consolidated basis, will be able to generate enough cash from operations, asset dispositions or refinancing, or a combination thereof, to meet its obligations as they become due.

SECTION 4.08 Ownership of Securities.

(a) Other than as a result of this Agreement and the Contribution Agreement, except as reported in a Schedule 13D filed on or before the date of this Agreement, none of Parent, Merger Sub or any of their Affiliates beneficially owns (as such term is used in Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act) any Common Shares or other securities of, or any other economic interest in, the Company or the Company Subsidiaries or any options, warrants or other rights to acquire Common Shares or other securities of the Company Subsidiaries.

(b) None of Parent, Merger Sub or any of their Affiliates has entered into any plan, or is under any outstanding contractual obligation, to purchase or acquire any Common Shares or other capital stock or other securities of the Company or any of the Company Subsidiaries, other than pursuant to this Agreement.

SECTION 4.09 *Absence of Other Agreements.* Except for the Voting Agreements and the Contribution Agreements, or, only with respect to paragraph (b) of this Section 4.09, reasonable incentive compensation arrangements otherwise disclosed in the Schedule 13E-3 or Proxy Statement, none of Parent, Merger Sub and their respective Affiliates has entered into any Contract, arrangement or understanding, whether oral or written, or has authorized, committed or agreed to enter into any Contract, arrangement or understanding, whether oral or written, pursuant to which: (a) any holder of Company Shares would be entitled to receive consideration of a different amount or nature than the consideration set forth in the Proxy Statement or pursuant to which any holder of Common Shares has agreed or would agree to vote to adopt this Agreement or has agreed or would agree to (i) remain as an employee of the Surviving Corporation or any of its subsidiaries following the Effective Time at a compensation level in excess of such employee's current compensation level (other than pursuant to any employment contract with the Company in effect as of the date hereof), (ii) contribute any portion of such employee's Common Shares, Company Options or other equity awards, or (iii) receive any capital stock or equity securities of Parent, the Surviving Corporation, any subsidiary of Parent or any Affiliate of Parent.

SECTION 4.10 *Parent Information*. None of the information supplied or to be supplied in writing to the Company by or on behalf of Parent or Merger Sub or any of their respective subsidiaries specifically for inclusion in (a) Schedule 13E-3 will, at the time such document is filed with the SEC, or at any time such document is amended or supplemented, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading, or (b) the Proxy Statement will, at the date it is first mailed to the Stockholders or at the time of the Stockholders' Meeting, contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither Parent nor Merger Sub makes any representation with respect to information supplied or to be supplied by or on behalf of the Company for inclusion or incorporation by reference in the Schedule 13E-3 or the Proxy Statement.

SECTION 4.11 *Brokers.* No broker, finder or investment banker is entitled to any brokerage, finder's or other fee or commission in connection with the Transactions based upon arrangements made by or on behalf of Parent or Merger Sub.

SECTION 4.12 No Additional Representations. Except for the representations and warranties contained in this Article IV, none of Parent, Merger Sub, their Affiliates or their Representatives makes any representation or warranty, express or implied, at law or in equity, with respect to Parent or Merger Sub or their respective businesses, assets or properties, or with respect to any other information provided to the Company, its Affiliates or their respective Representatives in connection with the Transactions. None of Parent, Merger Sub, their Affiliates or their Representatives will have or be subject to any liability or indemnification or other obligations to the Company, its Affiliates or their Representatives resulting from the distribution, or making available, to such Persons, or such Persons' use of, any such information or management presentations in connection with the Transactions. Parent and Merger Sub hereby acknowledge that the Company makes no representations or warranties except for the representations and warranties contained in Article III.

ARTICLE V

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS PENDING THE MERGER

SECTION 5.01 *Conduct of Business by the Company Pending the Merger.* The Company agrees that, between the date of this Agreement and the Effective Time, except as required by applicable Law, as set forth in *Section 5.01* of the Company Disclosure Letter or as expressly contemplated by any other provision of this Agreement, unless Parent shall otherwise consent in writing (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), (i) the businesses of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries shall be conducted only in, and the Company and the Company Subsidiaries shall not take any action except in, a lawfully permitted manner in the ordinary course of business and in a manner consistent with past practice; and (ii) the Company shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to preserve substantially intact the business organization of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, to keep available the services of the current officers, employees, consultants, contractors, subcontractors and agents of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries and to preserve the current relationships of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries with Governmental Authorities, customers, suppliers and other persons with which the Company or any Company Subsidiary has material relations. By way of amplification and not limitation, except as required by applicable Law, as set forth in *Section 5.01* of the Company Disclosure Letter or as expressly contemplated by any other provision of this Agreement, neither the Company nor any Company Subsidiary shall, between the date of this Agreement and the Effective Time, directly or indirectly, do any of the following without the prior written consent of Parent (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned):

(a) amend or otherwise change its certificate or articles of incorporation, bylaws or equivalent organizational documents;

(b) issue, sell, transfer, lease, sublease, license, pledge, dispose of, grant or encumber, or authorize the issuance, sale, transfer, lease, sublease, license, pledge, disposition, grant or encumbrance of, (i) any shares of any class of shares of the Company or any Company Subsidiary (other than in connection with the exercise or performance of any Company Options, Restricted Shares or RSUs granted prior to the date of this Agreement in accordance with the Stock Incentive Plans or granted on or after the date of this Agreement as permitted by *Section* 5.01(i)), or any options, warrants, convertible securities or other rights of any kind to acquire any shares of, or any other ownership interest (including any phantom interest) in, the Company or any Company Subsidiary (except as permitted by *Section* 5.01(i)) or (ii) any property or assets (whether real, personal or mixed, and including leasehold interests and intangible property) of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, except in the ordinary course of business and in a manner consistent with past practice;

(c) declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution, payable in cash, stock, property or otherwise, with respect to any of its shares, or split, combine or reclassify any of its shares, other than dividends paid by a wholly owned Company Subsidiary to its parent in the ordinary course of business;

(d) reclassify, combine, split, subdivide or redeem, or purchase or otherwise acquire, directly or indirectly, any of its shares, or any options, warrants, convertible securities or other rights exchangeable into or convertible or exercisable for any of its shares, other than (i) the forfeiture or repurchase of Common Shares pursuant to the terms of equity awards outstanding on the date of this Agreement or granted after the date of this Agreement as permitted by *Section 5.01(i)*, (ii) the surrender of any Common Shares by current or former directors, officers, employees, consultants or other service providers of the Company or any Company Subsidiary in payment of withholding Taxes with respect to any equity awards, or (iii) the cashless or net exercise of Options (including in payment of any exercise price or withholding Taxes);

(e) effect or commence any liquidation, dissolution, scheme of arrangement, merger, consolidation, amalgamation, restructuring, reorganization or similar transaction involving the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or create any new Company Subsidiaries, other than the merger, consolidation, amalgamation or other combination of any wholly owned Company Subsidiary with any other wholly owned Company Subsidiary;

(f) enter into, or propose in writing to any Third Party to enter into, any transaction involving any earn-out, installment or similar payment to or from the Company or any Company Subsidiary, by or to any Third Party, other than the purchase and sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of business;

(g) (i) acquire (including, without limitation, by merger, consolidation, scheme of arrangement, amalgamation or acquisition of stock or assets or any other business combination) or make any capital contribution or investment in any corporation, partnership, other business organization or any division thereof (other than any wholly owned Company Subsidiary or pursuant to Contracts or obligations outstanding on the date hereof) or acquire (other than in the ordinary course of business) any significant amount of assets; (ii) incur, assume, or guarantee any Indebtedness, or issue any debt securities, in excess of US\$300,000 in the aggregate, or alter, amend or modify the terms of any Indebtedness in a manner materially adverse to the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or make any loans or advances in excess of US\$50,000 individually or US\$300,000 in the aggregate; (iii) create or grant any material Lien (other than Permitted Liens) on any assets of the Company or any Company Subsidiary; or (iv) make any commitment with respect to, any single capital expenditure which is in excess of US\$150,000 or make capital expenditures which are, in the aggregate, in excess of US\$300,000 for the Company and the Company Subsidiaries taken as a whole, other than expenditures that are necessary to maintain existing assets in good repair, consistent with past practice;

(h) (A) enter into any new employment or compensatory agreements, or amend any such agreements (including any Company Employee Agreement), with any director, officer, employee or consultant of the Company or any Company Subsidiary (other than (i) the hiring, promotion, demotion or termination of at-will employees or consultants below officer level with an annual salary of less than US\$150,000 (or its RMB equivalent), provided, that, subject to the Company Board's fiduciary obligations as determined by the Company Board in its good faith judgment after consultation with outside legal counsel, the Company shall not demote or terminate the employment of any employee who is a Rollover Holder absent Parent's consent, (ii) the renewal or replacement of existing agreements on substantially similar terms and (iii) the hiring of at-will employees to fulfill open positions disclosed to Parent prior to the date hereof), (B) grant or provide any rights to severance or termination payments or benefits to any director, officer or employee of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, (C) increase the compensation, bonus or pension, welfare or other benefits of, pay any bonus to, or make any new equity awards to any director, officer or employee of the Company or any Company Subsidiary or any other person (other than (i) annual salary increases in the ordinary course of business, not to exceed 4% for any employee who is not a Rollover Holder and commensurate increases in other compensation and benefits based on salary and (ii) equity awards permitted by Section 5.01(i)), (D) establish, adopt, amend or terminate in a manner adverse to the Company any Company Employee Plan or amend the terms of any outstanding award under any Stock Incentive Plan in a manner adverse to the Company, (E) accelerate the vesting or payment, or fund or in any other way secure the payment, of compensation or benefits under any Company Employee Plan or Company Employee Agreement, to the extent not already required in any such plan (it being understood that the vesting of all equity awards shall be accelerated in full in connection with the Merger), (F) change any actuarial or other assumptions used to calculate funding obligations with respect to any Company Employee Plan or change the manner in which contributions to such plans are made or

the basis on which such contributions are determined, except as may be required by GAAP, or (G) forgive any loans to directors, officers or employees of the Company or any Company Subsidiary;

(i) issue or grant any Company Option or other equity award to any person under any Stock Incentive Plan, except in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice;

(j) make any changes with respect to any credit practice, method of financial accounting, or financial accounting policies or procedures, including changes affecting the reported consolidated assets, liabilities or results of operations of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, except as required by GAAP;

(k) pay, discharge or satisfy any material debt, other than the payment, discharge or satisfaction of such debt as they become due in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice;

(1) enter into, amend, modify or consent to the termination of any Material Contract (or any Contract that would be such a Material Contract if such Contract had been entered into prior to the date hereof) (except, in each case, as otherwise permitted by this *Section 5.01*), or waive or consent to the termination of the Company's or any Company Subsidiary's rights thereunder, except in each case in the ordinary course of business;

(m) enter into any Contract between the Company or any Company Subsidiary, on the one hand, and any of their respective Affiliates, directors or executive officers, on the other hand, other than (i) reasonable expense reimbursement to Company Personnel in the ordinary course of business and consistent with past practice and (ii) as permitted by *Section 5.01(h)* or *Section 5.01(i)*;

(n) terminate or cancel, let lapse, or amend or modify in any material respect, other than renewals in the ordinary course of business, any material insurance policies maintained by it which are not promptly replaced by a comparable amount of insurance coverage;

- (o) commence or settle any material Action;
- (p) engage in the conduct of any new line of business material to the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole;

(q) make, revoke or change any material Tax election (except as required by applicable Law), materially amend any Tax Return or waive any statute of limitations with respect to any material Tax claim or assessment, enter into any material closing agreement with respect to Taxes, surrender any right to claim a material refund of Taxes, settle or finally resolve any material controversy with respect to Taxes, or materially change any method of Tax accounting, or fail to duly and timely file all Tax Returns and other material documents required to be filed with any taxing authority in accordance with past practice; or

(r) publicly announce an intention or enter into any binding agreement to do any of the foregoing.

ARTICLE VI

ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS

SECTION 6.01 *Proxy Statement and Schedule 13E-3.* Promptly following the date hereof, the Company, with the assistance of Parent and Merger Sub, shall prepare and cause to be filed a proxy statement relating to the approval of this Agreement by the Stockholders of the Company (such proxy statement, as amended or supplemented, being referred to herein as the "Proxy Statement") with the SEC. Concurrently with the preparation of the Proxy Statement, the Company and Parent shall jointly

prepare and cause to be filed a Schedule 13E-3 with the SEC. The Company and Parent shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to cause the initial Schedule 13E-3 to be filed with the SEC (with the initial Proxy Statement filed as an exhibit) within twenty (20) Business Days after the date hereof. Each of the Company and Parent shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Schedule 13E-3 to comply as to form in all material respects with the requirements of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. Each of the Company and Parent shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to (i) respond as promptly as reasonably practicable to any comments received from the staff of the SEC with respect to such filings of the Proxy Statement and the Schedule 13E-3, (ii) as promptly as reasonably practicable prepare and file any amendments or supplements necessary to be filed in response to any such comments or as required by Law, (iii) conclude the review of the Proxy Statement and the Schedule 13E-3 by the staff of the SEC and thereafter, in the case of the Company, to mail to the Stockholders, as promptly as reasonably practicable, the Proxy Statement and all other required proxy or other material for meetings such as the Stockholders' Meeting and (iv) to the extent required by applicable Law, as promptly as reasonably practicable prepare, file and distribute to the Stockholders any supplements or amendments to the Proxy Statement or Schedule 13E-3 if any event shall occur which requires such action at any time prior to the Stockholders' Meeting. Each of the Company and Parent shall furnish all information concerning such party and its Affiliates (other than each other) to the other as may be reasonably requested in connection with the preparation, filing and distribution of the Proxy Statement and the Schedule 13E-3. The Company shall promptly notify Parent upon the receipt of any comments from the SEC or its staff or any request from the SEC or its staff for amendments or supplements to the Proxy Statement and Schedule 13E-3 and shall promptly provide Parent with copies of all correspondence between it and its Representatives, on the one hand, and the SEC and its staff, on the other hand. Prior to filing or mailing of the Proxy Statement or Schedule 13E-3 (or any amendment or supplement thereto) or responding to any comments of the SEC with respect thereto, the Company shall provide Parent an opportunity to review and comment on such document or response and shall give reasonable and good faith consideration to any comments made by Parent, Merger Sub and their counsel (it being understood that Parent, Merger Sub and their counsel shall provide any comments thereon as promptly as reasonably practicable). If at any time prior to the Stockholders' Meeting, any information relating to the Company, Parent or any of their respective Affiliates, officers or directors is discovered by the Company or Parent which should be set forth in an amendment or supplement to the Proxy Statement or Schedule 13E-3 so that the Proxy Statement and Schedule 13E-3 shall not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading, the party which discovers such information shall promptly notify the other parties hereto and an appropriate amendment or supplement describing such information shall be filed with the SEC and, to the extent required by applicable Law, disseminated to the Stockholders.

SECTION 6.02 *Company Stockholders' Meeting.* (a) The Company shall, promptly after the SEC confirms that it has no further comments on the Schedule 13E-3 and Proxy Statement, (i) establish a record date for determining Stockholders entitled to vote at the stockholders' meeting, and (ii) mail or cause to be mailed the Proxy Statement to the Stockholders (and concurrently furnish the Proxy Statement under Schedule 14A) as of the record date established for the stockholders' meeting (the "Stockholders' Meeting") for the purpose of voting upon the adoption of this Agreement, regardless of whether the Company Board determines at any time that this Agreement is no longer advisable or recommends that the Stockholders reject it, or whether any other Change in the Company Recommendation has occurred at any time; provided, however, that in the event that a Change in the Company Recommendation has occurred in accordance with *Section 6.04(c)*, (i) the Company may disclose the fact of such Change in the Company Recommendation in any solicitation made by the Company to its stockholders and (ii) the Company shall not be required to solicit proxies in favor of the adoption of this Agreement unless the Company Board thereafter reaffirms the Company

Recommendation. Without the express written consent of Parent, adoption of this Agreement is the only matter (other than procedural matters, including a proposal to adjourn the meeting to solicit additional votes) that shall be proposed to be acted upon by the Stockholders at the Stockholders' Meeting.

(b) Subject to *Section 6.04(c)*, the Company Board shall recommend to Stockholders that they approve and adopt this Agreement, and shall include such recommendation in the Proxy Statement. Subject to the proviso in *Section 6.02(a)*, the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to solicit from its Stockholders proxies in favor of the adoption of this Agreement and to take all other action necessary or advisable to secure the Requisite Company Vote. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing sentence, the Company agrees that its obligations pursuant to this *Section 6.02* shall not be affected by the commencement, public proposal, public disclosure or communication to the Company or any other person of any Competing Transaction, or by any Change in the Company Recommendation.

(c) Parent shall cause all Common Shares beneficially owned directly or indirectly by Sponsor, Parent, Merger Sub or any of their respective Subsidiaries or Affiliates to be voted in favor of the adoption of this Agreement.

SECTION 6.03 *Access to Information.* (a) From the date hereof until the Effective Time and subject to applicable Law, upon reasonable advance notice from Parent, the Company and the Company Subsidiaries shall (i) provide to Parent (and Parent's officers, directors, employees, accountants, consultants, financial and legal advisors, agents, financing sources and other representatives, collectively, "Representatives") reasonable access during normal business hours to the offices, properties, books, records and personnel of such party, (ii) furnish to Parent and its Representatives such existing financial and operating data and other existing information as such persons may reasonably request, and (iii) instruct its employees, legal counsel, financial advisors, auditors and other Representatives to reasonably cooperate with Parent and its Representatives in its investigation; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to (A) furnish, or provide access to, any information to any person not a party or otherwise subject to the Confidentiality Agreement, or (B) provide access to or furnish any information if doing so would (x) violate any Contract with any Third Party or any applicable Law, or (y) waive or cause any Company Subsidiary to waive any privilege or work product protection with respect to such information, provided that the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to permit inspection of or to disclose such information on a basis that does not waive any privilege or work product protection of the Company Subsidiary with respect thereto, including by means of a joint interest or defense agreement.

(b) With respect to the information disclosed pursuant to *Section* 6.03(a), the Parties shall comply with, and shall cause their respective Representatives to comply with, all of their respective obligations under the Confidentiality Agreement or any similar agreement entered into between the Company and any person to whom the Company, any Company Subsidiary or any of their Representatives provides information pursuant to this *Section* 6.03.

(c) No investigation pursuant to this *Section 6.03* shall affect any representation or warranty in this Agreement of any party hereto or any condition to the obligations of the parties hereto.

SECTION 6.04 *No Solicitation of Transactions.* (a) The Company agrees that neither it nor any Company Subsidiary nor any of the directors or officers of the Company or any Company Subsidiary will, and that it will direct its and the Company Subsidiaries' agents, advisors and other Representatives (including any investment banker, attorney or accountant retained by it or any Company Subsidiary), not to, in each case, directly or indirectly, (i) solicit, initiate or knowingly encourage (including by way of furnishing nonpublic information in a manner designed to knowingly encourage), or take any other action to facilitate, any inquiries or the making of any proposal or offer (including any proposal or

offer to its Stockholders) that constitutes, or would reasonably be expected to lead to, any Competing Transaction, (ii) enter into, maintain or continue discussions or negotiations with, or provide any nonpublic information to, any person or entity (excluding, for avoidance of doubt, the directors, officers, employees, financial advisors, attorneys, advisors and other Representatives of the Company) in furtherance of such inquiries or to obtain a proposal or offer for a Competing Transaction, (iii) agree to, approve, endorse or recommend any Competing Transaction or enter into any letter of intent or Contract or commitment contemplating or otherwise relating to any Competing Transaction (in each case, other than (1) a confidentiality agreement entered into in compliance with Section 6.04(b)) and (2) as permitted by Section 6.04(c)), or (iv) authorize or permit any of the officers or directors of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or direct any investment banker, financial advisor, attorney, accountant or other Representative retained by or acting directly or indirectly under the direction of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, to take any action set forth in clauses (a)(i) - (a)(iii) of this Section 6.04. The Company shall not release any Third Party whom the Company has reason to believe is seeking to make or has made a proposal or offer regarding a Competing Transaction from, or waive any provision of, any confidentiality or standstill agreement to which it is a party, unless the Company Board (or the applicable committee thereof) determines in good faith (after consultation with its outside legal counsel) that the failure to take such action would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with the fiduciary duties of the Company Board (or such committee) under applicable Law. The Company shall notify Parent as promptly as practicable (and in any event within forty-eight (48) hours after the Company has knowledge thereof), orally and in writing, of any proposal or offer, or any inquiry or contact with any person, regarding a Competing Transaction or that would reasonably be expected to lead to a Competing Transaction, specifying (x) the material terms and conditions thereof (including material amendments or proposed material amendments) and providing, if applicable, copies of any written requests, proposals or offers, including proposed agreements, (y) the identity of the party making such proposal or offer or the inquiry or contact, and (z) whether the Company Board (or the applicable committee thereof) has formed any intention to provide confidential information to such person. The Company shall keep Parent informed, on a reasonably current basis (and in any event within forty-eight (48) hours of the occurrence of any material changes, developments, discussions or negotiations) of the status and terms of any such proposal, offer, inquiry, contact or request and of any material changes in the status and terms of any such proposal, offer, inquiry, contact or request (including the material terms and conditions thereof). Without limiting the foregoing, the Company shall provide Parent with forty-eight (48) hours prior notice (or such lesser prior notice as is provided to the members of the Company Board or members of the Special Committee) of any meeting of the Company Board (or Special Committee) at which the Company Board (or Special Committee), is reasonably expected to consider any Competing Transaction. The Company immediately shall cease and cause to be terminated all existing discussions or negotiations with any parties conducted heretofore with respect to a Competing Transaction.

(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this *Section 6.04*, the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) may furnish information, including nonpublic information, to, and enter into discussions with, a person who has made an unsolicited, written, bona fide proposal or offer regarding a Competing Transaction (provided that the Company shall have complied with the requirements of *Section 6.04(a)* with respect to such proposal or offer), if the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) has (i) determined, in its good faith judgment (after consultation with a financial advisor of internationally recognized reputation and outside legal counsel), that such proposal or offer consultation with outside legal counsel), that, in light of such Superior Proposal, (ii) determined, in its good faith judgment (after consultation or enter into discussions would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with its fiduciary obligations under applicable Laws, (iii) provided written notice to Parent of its intent to furnish information or enter into discussions with such person at least one (1) Business Day prior to

taking any such action, and (iv) obtained from such person an executed confidentiality agreement on terms no less favorable to the Company in the aggregate than those contained in the Confidentiality Agreement (except that such confidentiality agreement need not include any standstill or similar provisions if the standstill provision in the Confidentiality Agreement shall have been waived by the Company Board or applicable committee thereof) (it being understood that such confidentiality agreement and any related agreements shall not include any provision calling for any exclusive right to negotiate with such party or having the effect of prohibiting the Company from satisfying its obligations under this Agreement); provided that the Company shall concurrently make available to Parent any material information concerning the Company and the Company Subsidiaries that is provided to any such person and that was not previously made available to Parent or its Representatives.

(c) Except as set forth in this Section 6.04(c), neither the Company Board nor any committee thereof shall (i) change, withhold, withdraw, qualify or modify, or publicly propose to change, withhold, withdraw, qualify or modify, in a manner adverse to Parent or Merger Sub, the Company Recommendation, (ii) adopt, approve or recommend, or publicly propose to adopt, approve or recommend, any Competing Transaction (any of such actions under clauses (i) or (ii) being referred to as a "Change in the Company Recommendation"). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) determines, in its good faith judgment, prior to the time of the Stockholders' Meeting and after consultation with outside legal counsel, that failure to make a Change in the Company Recommendation would reasonably be expected to be inconsistent with its fiduciary obligations under applicable Laws, the Company Board may effect a Change in the Company Recommendation and, in the case of a Change in Company Recommendation to recommend a Superior Proposal, authorize the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.03(a), but, if such Change in Company Recommendation relates to Competing Transaction, only (i) if the Company shall have complied in all material respects with the requirements of Sections 6.04(a) and 6.04(b) with respect to such proposal or offer; and (ii) after (A) providing at least four (4) Business Days' written notice to Parent (a "Notice of Superior Proposal") advising Parent that the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) has received a Superior Proposal, specifying the material terms and conditions of such Superior Proposal and identifying the person making such Superior Proposal and indicating that the Company Board intends to effect a Change in the Company Recommendation and the manner in which it intends (or may intend) to do so (it being understood that the Notice of Superior Proposal or any amendment or update thereto or the determination to deliver any such notice shall not constitute a Change in the Company Recommendation), and (B) negotiating with and directing its financial and legal advisors to negotiate with Parent and its Representatives in good faith (to the extent Parent desires to negotiate) to make such adjustments in the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Limited Guarantee and the Financing Commitments (as evidenced by a definitive merger agreement, a definitive limited guarantee, a definitive equity commitment letter and a definitive contribution agreement executed by Parent, Merger Sub and Sponsor, as applicable, and delivered to the Company prior to the expiration of such negotiation period) so that such third-party proposal or offer would cease to constitute a Superior Proposal; provided that any material modifications to such third-party proposal or offer that the Company Board has determined to be a Superior Proposal shall be deemed a new Superior Proposal and the Company shall be required to again comply with the requirements of this Section 6.04(c) (except that the applicable notice period shall be reduced from four (4) Business Days to three (3) Business Days). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the obligation of the Company to call, give notice of, convene and hold the Stockholders' Meeting shall not be limited or otherwise affected by the commencement, disclosure, announcement or submission to it of any Competing Transaction, or by any Change in the Company

Recommendation. The Company shall not submit any Competing Transaction to a vote of the Stockholders.

(d) Section 6.04(a) shall not prohibit the Company Board from disclosing to the Stockholders a position contemplated by Rule 14e-2(a) and Rule 14d-9 promulgated under the Exchange Act. For avoidance of doubt, nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the Company or the Company Board or any committee thereof from issuing a "stop, look and listen" statement or other communication pending disclosure of its position, as contemplated by Rule 14e-2 or Rule 14d-9 under the Exchange Act. For further avoidance of doubt, it shall not be a violation of this Agreement for the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof), at any meeting at which, or in any written consent in which, it shall adopt resolutions authorizing the termination of this Agreement pursuant to *Section 8.03(a)*, to adopt further resolutions authorizing, agreeing to, approving, endorsing or recommending any Superior Proposal and any definitive agreement or agreements relating thereto.

(e) A "*Competing Transaction*" means any of the following (other than the Transactions): (i) any merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, scheme of arrangement, amalgamation, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction involving the Company or any Company Subsidiary as a result of which a Third Party would acquire assets that, individually or in the aggregate, constitute 20% or more of the consolidated assets of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or to which 20% or more of the total consolidated revenue, operating income or EBITDA of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, are attributable (in each case as determined by the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) in good faith); (ii) any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other disposition to a Third Party of assets of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole (in each case as determined by the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) in good faith); (iii) any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other disposition to a Third Party of assets of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole (in each case as determined by the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) in good faith); (iii) any sale, lease as a determined by the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) in good faith); (iii) any sale, exchange, transfer or other disposition of 20% or more of the capital stock of the Company to a Third Party; or (iv) any general offer, tender offer or exchange offer that, if consummated, would result in a Third Party beneficially owning 20% or more of the capital stock of the Company.

(f) A "Superior Proposal" means a written, bona fide proposal or offer made by a Third Party to consummate any of the following transactions: (i) a merger, consolidation, share exchange, business combination, scheme of arrangement, amalgamation, recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction involving the Company pursuant to which the Stockholders immediately preceding such transaction would hold less than 50% of the equity interest in the surviving or resulting entity of such transaction; (ii) the acquisition by any person or group (including by means of a general offer, tender offer or an exchange offer or a two-step transaction involving a tender offer followed with reasonable promptness by a merger or consolidation involving the Company), directly or indirectly, of ownership of a majority of the then outstanding Shares of the Company or (iii) the acquisition by any person or group, directly or indirectly, of assets that, individually or in the aggregate, constitute a majority of the consolidated assets of the Company and the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, or to which a majority of the total consolidated revenue, operating income or EBITDA of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, taken as a whole, are attributable (in each case as determined by the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) in good faith), in each case on terms (including conditions to consummation of the contemplated transaction) that the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) and outside legal counsel, and (y) taking into consideration, among other things, all of the terms and conditions, including all legal, financial, regulatory and other aspects, of such proposal or offer and this Agreement (in each case taking into account any

revisions to this Agreement made or proposed in writing by Parent pursuant to *Section 6.04(c)* or otherwise prior to the time of determination), including financing, regulatory approvals, shareholder litigation, identity of the person or group making the offer, breakup or termination fee and expense reimbursement provisions, expected timing and risk and likelihood of consummation and other relevant events and circumstances), to be more favorable to the Stockholders (in their capacity as Stockholders) (other than the Rollover Holders) than the Merger; provided, however, that any such offer shall not be deemed to be a "Superior Proposal" if the transaction contemplated by such offer is not reasonably capable of being completed on the terms proposed without unreasonable delay.

SECTION 6.05 *Directors' and Officers' Indemnification and Insurance.* (a)The certificate of incorporation and bylaws (or comparable organizational documents) of the Surviving Corporation and each Company Subsidiary shall contain provisions no less favorable with respect to exculpation, indemnification and advancement of expenses than are set forth in the certificate of incorporation and bylaws (or comparable organizational documents) of the Company and each Company Subsidiary as in effect on the date hereof, which provisions shall not be amended, repealed or otherwise modified for a period of six (6) years from the Effective Time in any manner that would affect adversely the rights thereunder of individuals who, at or prior to the Effective Time, were directors, officers, employees, fiduciaries or agents of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, unless such modification shall be required by Law.

(b) The Surviving Corporation shall maintain in effect for six (6) years from the Effective Time the current directors' and officers' liability insurance policies maintained by the Company with respect to matters occurring at or prior to the Effective Time, including acts or omissions occurring in connection with this Agreement and the consummation of the Transactions (the parties covered thereby, the "Insured Parties"); provided, however, that the Surviving Corporation may substitute therefor policies of at least the same coverage containing terms and conditions that are no less favorable to the Insured Parties, and provided, further, that in no event shall the Surviving Corporation be required to expend pursuant to this *Section 6.05(b)* more than an amount per year equal to 300% of current annual premiums paid by the Company for such insurance. In addition, the Company may and, at Parent's request, the Company shall, purchase a six (6)-year "tail" prepaid policy or policies prior to the Effective Time on terms and conditions no less advantageous to the Insured Parties than the existing directors' and officers' liability insurance maintained by the Company. If such "tail" prepaid policies have been obtained by the Company prior to the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall, and Parent shall cause the Surviving Corporation to, maintain such policies in full force and effect, and continue to honor the respective obligations thereunder, and all other obligations of Parent or Surviving Corporation under this *Section 6.05(b)* shall terminate.

(c) Subject to the terms and conditions of this *Section 6.05*, from and after the Effective Time, each of Parent and the Surviving Corporation shall, and shall cause the Company Subsidiaries to, indemnify and hold harmless (and shall advance expenses as incurred to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law to) the present and former officers and directors of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, and any person who served or serves, at the request or for the benefit of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, as a director, officer, partner, member, manager, trustee, employee or other fiduciary of any employee benefit plan, enterprise or other person (all such persons, collectively, the "Indemnified Parties"), against any and all costs or expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses), judgments, fines, losses, claims, damages, liabilities and amounts paid in settlement in connection with any actual or threatened claim, action, suit, proceeding or investigation, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative ("Damages"), arising out of, relating to or in connection with, any acts or omissions occurring or alleged to have occurred prior to or at the Effective Time in connection with such

Indemnified Person's service as a director or officer of the Company or any Company Subsidiary or in such other capacity, including, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law, (i) the approval of this Agreement, the Merger or the other Transactions or arising out of or pertaining to the Transactions and (ii) claims, actions, suits and proceedings to enforce this provision or other rights to exculpation, indemnification and advancement of expenses, provided that such indemnification shall be subject to any limitation imposed from time to time under applicable Law; provided, further, that a person to whom any costs or expenses are advanced shall have provided the Surviving Corporation with (1) documentary evidence of incurrence by such person of such costs or expenses and (2) a written undertaking by such person to repay any and all amounts advanced if it shall ultimately be determined that he or she is not entitled to indemnification under or pursuant to this Section 6.05(c) (which undertaking shall be accepted without regard to the ability of such person to repay such amounts). Notwithstanding anything in the foregoing to the contrary, no indemnification shall be made under this Section 6.05(c) in respect of any Action as to which a person seeking indemnification shall have been adjudged, in a final, non-appealable decision, by a court, tribunal or other Governmental Authority of competent jurisdiction (A) to be liable to the Company or any Company Subsidiary, unless and to the extent that such court, tribunal or other Governmental Authority shall determine upon application that in view of all the circumstances of the case such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification, or (B) that such person's actions, or omissions to act: (1) constitute a violation of Law, unless such person had reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was lawful or had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful, or (2) were not taken in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Company or Company Subsidiary, as applicable.

(d) Upon being served with any summons, citation, subpoena, complaint, indictment, information, or other document relating to any Action which may result in the payment or advancement of any amounts under Section 6.05(c), the person seeking indemnification shall promptly notify the Surviving Corporation, but the failure to provide such notice shall not affect such person's rights under Section 6.05(c) except to the extent that the Surviving Corporation is materially prejudiced thereby. The Surviving Corporation (or a subsidiary nominated by it) shall have the right, but not the obligation, to participate in any such Action and, at its option, assume the defense of such Action with counsel selected by the Surviving Corporation and reasonably acceptable to the party seeking indemnification, at the expense of the Surviving Corporation (or such subsidiary). The person seeking indemnification shall have the right to effectively participate in the defense and/or settlement of such Action, including receiving copies of all correspondence and participating in all meetings and teleconferences concerning the Action. In the event the Surviving Corporation (or a subsidiary nominated by it) assumes the defense of any Action pursuant to this Section 6.05(d), neither the Surviving Corporation nor any of its subsidiaries shall be liable to the person seeking indemnification for any fees of counsel subsequently incurred by such person with respect to the same Action, unless the Surviving Corporation (or such subsidiary) shall not reasonably pursue such defense. The Surviving Corporation (or such subsidiary) shall not settle or compromise any such Action with respect to any individual person seeking indemnification without the prior written consent of such person unless such settlement or compromise (i) includes an unconditional release of the person seeking indemnification with respect to any and all claims that were or could have been brought in such Action, (ii) contains no admission or finding of guilt or fault by the person seeking indemnification and (iii) imposes no liability or penalty upon the person seeking indemnification.

(e) If Parent or the Surviving Corporation or any of their respective successors or assigns (i) shall consolidate with or merge into any other corporation or entity and shall not be the resulting or surviving corporation or entity of such consolidation or merger or (ii) shall transfer all or substantially all of its properties and assets to any person, then, and in each such case, proper

provisions shall be made so that the successors and assigns of Parent or the Surviving Corporation, as the case may be, shall assume all of the obligations set forth in this *Section 6.05*.

(f) The provisions of this *Section 6.05* shall survive the consummation of the Merger and are intended to be for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, each of the Indemnified Parties and their heirs and legal representatives, each of whom shall be a third-party beneficiary of the provisions of this Section 6.05. After the Effective Time, the obligations of Parent and the Surviving Corporation under this Section 6.05 shall not be terminated or modified in such a manner as to adversely affect the rights of any Indemnified Party.

(g) The provisions of this *Section 6.05* are in addition to any other rights an Indemnified Party may have under the certificate of incorporation and bylaws (or comparable organizational documents) of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, or any agreement between an Indemnified Party and the Company or any Company Subsidiary, under the DGCL or other applicable Law, or otherwise. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to, nor shall it be construed to, release, waive or impair any rights to directors' and officers' insurance claims under any policy that is or has been in existence with respect to the Company or any Company Subsidiary or their respective current or former directors and officers, it being understood and agreed that the indemnification and advancement of expenses provided for in this *Section 6.05* is not prior to or in substitution for any such claims under any such policies.

(h) Parent and the Surviving Corporation shall pay all reasonable expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, that may be incurred by any Indemnified Party in enforcing the indemnity and other obligations provided in this *Section 6.05* unless such Indemnified Party is finally judicially determined not to be entitled to indemnification under this *Section 6.05*.

SECTION 6.06 *Notification of Certain Matters.* Each of the Company, on the one hand, and Parent and Merger Sub, on the other, shall promptly notify the other in writing of:

(a) any notice or other communication from any person alleging that the consent of such person is or may be required in connection with the Transactions;

(b) any notice or other communication from any Governmental Authority in connection with the Transactions;

(c) any Actions commenced or, to the knowledge of the Company or the knowledge of Parent, threatened against the Company or any Company Subsidiary or Parent or any of its subsidiaries, as the case may be, that, if pending on the date of this Agreement, would have been required to have been disclosed by such person pursuant to any of such person's representations and warranties contained herein, or that relate to such person's ability to consummate the Transactions; and

(d) any breach of any representation or warranty or failure to perform any covenant or agreement on the part of such person set forth in this Agreement shall have occurred that would cause any of the conditions set forth in *Sections* 7.01, 7.02 and 7.03 not to be satisfied;

together, in each case, with a copy of any such notice, communication or Action; provided, that the delivery of any notice pursuant to this *Section 6.06* shall not be deemed to be an admission that such notice is required and shall not limit or otherwise affect the remedies available hereunder to the party receiving such notice.

SECTION 6.07 *Financing.* (a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, each of Parent and Merger Sub shall take, or cause to be taken, all actions necessary, proper or advisable to arrange and obtain the proceeds of the Financing on the terms and conditions described in the Financing Commitments, including (i) entering into definitive agreements with respect thereto,

(ii) satisfying, or causing to be satisfied, on a timely basis all conditions applicable to, and within the control of, Parent, Merger Sub or their respective Representatives in such definitive agreements and (iii) causing such Financings to be funded at the Closing such that Parent and the Surviving Corporation shall be able to pay all of the amounts payable by them in connection with the Merger and other Transactions.

(b) Neither Parent nor Merger Sub shall agree to any amendment or modification to, or grant any waiver of any condition or other provision of the Financing Commitments without the prior written consent of the Company to the extent any such amendment, modification or waiver would reduce the aggregate amount of cash proceeds available from the Financings to fund the Merger and the other Transactions (as compared to the amount of such aggregate proceeds contemplated under the Financing as in effect on the date hereof) or would impose new or additional conditions that would be reasonably likely to (i) prevent or materially delay or impair the ability of Parent or Merger Sub to consummate the Merger and the other Transactions or (ii) adversely impact the ability of Parent or Merger Sub to enforce their respective rights against the other parties to the Financing Commitments. Parent shall not release or consent to the termination of the obligations of the other parties to the Financing Commitments, except for assignments and replacements of investors in accordance with the express terms of the Financing Commitments. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, Parent shall have the right to amend, replace, supplement or otherwise modify, or waive any of its rights under, the Financing Commitments or any definitive agreements with respect to the Financing, and/or substitute debt or other equity financing for all or any portion of the Equity Financing Commitment from the same and/or alternative financing sources (the "Alternative Financing"); provided that any such amendment, replacement, supplement or other modification to or waiver of any provision of the Financing Commitments or such definitive agreements with respect to the Financing Commitments and/or substitution for all or any portion of the Equity Financing Commitments shall not (i) expand upon the conditions contained therein in any way or prevent or cause any delay of the consummation of the Merger or the other Transactions or (ii) otherwise result in financing terms that are materially less favorable, in the aggregate, to Parent, Merger Sub and the Company than those in the Financing Commitments as in effect on the date hereof.

(c) If any portion of the Financing becomes or could become unavailable in the manner or from the sources contemplated in the Financing Commitments, (i) Parent shall immediately so notify the Company in writing and (ii) Parent and Merger Sub shall arrange and obtain, and negotiate and enter into definitive agreements with respect to, alternative financing from the same or alternative sources in an amount sufficient to consummate the Merger and the other Transactions on terms and conditions not materially less favorable, in the aggregate, to the Company than those in the Financing Commitments as in effect on the date hereof, as promptly as practicable following the occurrence of such event.

(d) Parent shall (i) furnish to the Company complete, correct and executed copies of the agreements for the Financing Commitments or any alternative financing promptly upon their execution, (ii) give the Company prompt notice of any breach or threatened breach of which Parent or Merger Sub is or becomes aware by any party to any of the Financing Commitments, any Alternative Financing commitment or any Alternative Financing agreement of which Parent or Merger Sub is or becomes aware or any termination or threatened termination thereof, and (iii) otherwise keep the Company reasonably informed of the status of its efforts to arrange the Financing (or any Alternative Financing).

(e) For the avoidance of doubt, Parent and Merger Sub acknowledge and agree that neither the obtaining of the Financing nor any Alternative Financing, including any debt financing, is a condition to the obligations of Parent and Merger Sub to consummate the Merger and the other Transactions and reaffirm their obligations to consummate the Merger and the other Transactions irrespective and independently of the availability of the Financing or any alternative financing, subject to fulfillment or waiver of the conditions set forth in *Article VII*.

(f) The Company agrees to use its commercially reasonable efforts to provide, and shall cause each Company Subsidiary and each of their respective officers, employees and representatives to use their commercially reasonable efforts to provide to Parent and Merger Sub, all reasonable and customary cooperation as may be requested in writing by Parent or its Representatives (provided that such requested cooperation does not unreasonably interfere with the ongoing operations of the Company) in connection with any Alternative Financing, including (i) causing the Company's independent accountants to provide reasonable assistance and cooperation to Parent and its Representatives, including participating in drafting sessions and accounting due diligence sessions, assisting in the preparation of any pro forma financial statements, providing consent to Parent to use audit reports relating to the Company and the Company Subsidiaries and providing "comfort letters" in customary form, (ii) executing and delivering customary financing documents, including pledge and security documents, and certificates (including a certificate of the chief financial officer of the Company (or any of the Company Subsidiaries) with respect to the solvency of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries before giving effect to the Alternative Financing, the consummation of the Transactions, any matters relating to Parent or any actions to be taken at or after the Closing), legal opinions, management representation letters or other documents, to the extent reasonably requested by Parent and otherwise reasonably facilitating the pledging of collateral, (iii) providing reasonable access by Parent and any Alternative Financing sources, and their respective officers, employees, consultants and advisors (including legal, valuation, and accounting advisors) to the books and records, properties, officers, directors, agents and representatives of the Company and each of the Company Subsidiaries, (iv) obtaining surveys and title insurance reasonably requested by Parent, (v) taking all actions reasonably necessary to (x) permit the prospective sources involved in the Alternative Financing to evaluate the Company's assets, cash management and accounting systems, policies and procedures relating thereto for the purpose of establishing collateral arrangements and (y) establish bank and other accounts and blocked account Contracts and lock box arrangements in connection with the foregoing and (vi) taking all corporate actions necessary to permit consummation of the Alternative Financing; provided, that none of the Company or any of the Company Subsidiaries or their respective Representatives shall be required to become subject to any obligations or liabilities with respect to definitive financing documents, including pledge and security documents, prior to the Closing. Parent shall, promptly upon request by the Company, reimburse the Company for all reasonable out of pocket costs and expenses incurred by the Company and the Company Subsidiaries in connection with the cooperation of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries contemplated by this Section 6.07 and shall indemnify and hold harmless the Company and the Company Subsidiaries and their respective Representatives from and against any and all liabilities, losses, damages, claims, costs, expenses, interest, awards, judgments and penalties suffered or incurred by them in connection with the arrangement of the Alternative Financing and any information utilized in connection therewith; provided, that under no circumstance shall Parent's obligation to reimburse any cost or expense incurred by the Company or any Company Subsidiary under this Section 6.07 exceed \$350,000, and provided further that in no event shall the Company or any Company Subsidiary be required to incur any costs or expenses pursuant to this Section 6.07(f), which, in the aggregate, exceed \$350,000.

SECTION 6.08 *Further Action; Reasonable Best Efforts.* (a) Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, and subject to the requirements of applicable Law and the instructions of any Governmental Authority, each of the parties hereto shall (i) make promptly its respective filings, and thereafter make any other required submissions, with each relevant Governmental Authority with jurisdiction over enforcement of any applicable antitrust or competition Laws with respect to the Transactions, and (unless the Company shall have made a Change in the Company Recommendation) coordinate and cooperate fully with the other parties in exchanging such information and providing such assistance as the other parties may reasonably request in connection therewith (including

(x) notifying the other parties promptly of any substantive communication (whether verbal or written) it or any of its Affiliates receives from any Governmental Authority in connection with such filings or submissions, (y) permitting the other parties to review in advance, and consulting with the other parties on, any proposed filing, submission or communication (whether verbal or written) by such party to any Governmental Authority, and (z) giving the other parties the opportunity to attend and participate at any meeting with any Governmental Authority in respect of any filing, investigation or other inquiry); and (ii) use its reasonable best efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all appropriate action, and to do, or cause to be done, all things necessary, proper or advisable under applicable Laws or otherwise to consummate and make effective the Transactions, including (x) employing such resources as are necessary to obtain the Requisite Regulatory Approvals and (y) taking any and all steps necessary to avoid or eliminate each and every impediment under any antitrust or competition Law that may be asserted by any Governmental Authority so as to enable the parties hereto to expeditiously consummate the Transactions, including committing to and effecting, by consent decree, hold separate orders, or otherwise, the restructuring, reorganization, sale, divestiture or disposition of such of its assets, properties or businesses; provided, that the Company shall not agree to take any such steps (including any hold separate, restructuring, reorganization, sale, divestiture or disposition) without the prior written consent of Parent; provided further, that none of Parent, Merger Sub or any of their Affiliates shall be required to hold separate, restructure, reorganize, sell, divest, dispose of, or otherwise take or commit to any action that limits its freedom of action with respect to, or its ability to retain, any of its businesses, services or assets if such action would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition or results of operations of the combined businesses of Parent, the Company and their respective Subsidiaries. The parties agree to cooperate in good faith to determine and direct the strategy and process by which the parties will seek the Requisite Regulatory Approvals. If, at any time after the Effective Time, any further action is necessary or desirable to carry out the purposes of this Agreement, the proper officers and directors of each party to this Agreement shall use their reasonable best efforts to take all such action.

(b) Each party hereto shall, upon request by any other party, furnish such other party with all information reasonably available to it concerning itself, its subsidiaries, directors, officers and stockholders and such other matters as may be reasonably necessary or advisable in connection with the Proxy Statement, the Schedule 13E-3, or any other statement, filing, notice or application made by or on behalf of Parent, Merger Sub, the Company or any of their respective subsidiaries to any third party and/or any Governmental Authority in connection with the Merger and the Transactions.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of this *Section 6.08*, the Company and the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) shall not be restricted from taking any action (or refraining from taking any action) to the extent permitted by *Section 6.04*.

SECTION 6.09 *Obligations of Merger Sub.* Parent shall take all action necessary to cause Merger Sub to perform its obligations under this Agreement and to consummate the Merger on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement.

SECTION 6.10 *Participation in Litigation*. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall (a) give prompt notice to Parent of any Actions commenced or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened, against the Company and/or its directors which relate to this Agreement or the Transactions, and (b) give Parent the opportunity to participate in the defense or settlement of any stockholder Action against the Company and/or its directors relating to this Agreement or the Transactions, and no such Action shall be settled or compromised, and the Company shall not take any action to adversely affect or prejudice any such Action, without Parent's prior written consent (which shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned).

SECTION 6.11 *Resignations.* To the extent requested by Parent in writing at least three (3) Business Days prior to Closing, on the Closing Date, the Company shall use reasonable best efforts to cause to be delivered to Parent duly signed resignations, effective as of the Effective Time, of the directors of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries designated by Parent.

SECTION 6.12 *Public Announcements.* Except as may be required by applicable Law, the press release announcing the execution of this Agreement shall be issued only in such form as shall be mutually agreed upon by the Company and Parent. Thereafter, Parent and the Company shall consult with each other before issuing any press release, having any communication with the press, making any other public statement or scheduling any press conference or conference call with investors or analysts with respect to this Agreement or the Transactions and, except in respect of any such press release, communication, other public statement, press conference or conference call as may be required by applicable Law, shall not issue any such press release, have any such communication, make any such other public statement or schedule any such press conference or conference call prior to such consultation. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this *Section 6.12* shall not apply to any release, communication or other announcement made or proposed to be made by the Company pursuant to *Section 6.04(c)*.

SECTION 6.13 *Stock Exchange Delisting.* The Company shall cooperate with Parent and use commercially reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all actions, and do or cause to be done all things, reasonably necessary, proper or advisable on its part under applicable Laws and rules and policies of the NASDAQ to enable the delisting by the Surviving Corporation from the NASDAQ and the deregistration of the Common Shares under the Exchange Act as promptly as practicable after the Effective Time.

SECTION 6.14 *Takeover Statutes.* If any Takeover Statute is or may become applicable to any of the Transactions, the parties shall use their respective reasonable best efforts (a) to take all action necessary so that no Takeover Statute is or becomes applicable to any of the Transactions and (b) if any such Takeover Statute is or becomes applicable to any of the Transactions, to take all action necessary (including, in the case of the Company and the Company Board, grant all necessary approvals) so that the Transactions may be consummated as promptly as practicable on the terms contemplated by this Agreement, including all actions to eliminate or lawfully minimize the effects of such statute, regulation or provision in the Company's certificate of incorporation on the Merger and the other Transactions.

SECTION 6.15 *Rule 16b-3*. Prior to the Effective Time, the Company shall take such steps as may be reasonably necessary or advisable hereto to cause dispositions of Company equity securities (including derivative securities) pursuant to the Transactions by each individual who is a director or officer of the Company to be exempt under Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act.

SECTION 6.16 [RESERVED]

SECTION 6.17 Employee Benefit Plans.

(a) Parent agrees to honor in accordance with their terms all Company Employee Plans and all Company Employee Agreements and all accrued benefits vested thereunder; it being understood and agreed that nothing in this *Section 6.17(a)* shall prevent Parent or the Surviving Corporation from amending or terminating any Company Employee Benefit Plan, Company Employee Agreement or other agreement in accordance with its terms and applicable Law. Nothing contained herein, express or implied: (i) shall be construed to establish, amend, or modify any benefit plan, program, agreement or arrangement, (ii) is intended to confer upon any current or former employee any right to employment or continued employment for any period of time by reason of this Agreement, or any right to a particular term or condition of employment, or (iii) is intended to confer upon any individual (including employees, retirees, or dependents or beneficiaries of employees or retirees) any right as a third-party beneficiary of this Agreement.

(b) For purposes of all Company Employee Plans, programs and arrangements maintained by or contributed to by Parent or any Affiliate of Parent (including, after the Closing, the Surviving Corporation) for the benefit of persons employed by the Company or any Company Subsidiary immediately prior to the Closing (each, an "Existing Company Employee") following the Closing Date, Parent shall, or shall cause its Affiliates to, cause each such Company Employee Plan, program or arrangement to treat the prior service with the Company of each Existing Company Employee (to the same extent such service is recognized under analogous plans, programs or arrangements of the Company prior to the Closing) as service rendered to Parent or its Affiliates, as the case may be, for purposes of eligibility to participate in and vesting thereunder; provided, however, that such crediting of service shall not operate to duplicate any benefit or the funding of such benefit. Parent shall use commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that Existing Company Employees shall also be given credit for any deductible or co-payment amounts paid under the Company's "group health plan" (as defined in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) in respect of the plan year in which the Closing occurs, to the extent that, following the Closing, they participate in any "group health plan" maintained by Parent or any Affiliate of Parent for which deductibles or co-payments are required. Parent shall also use commercially reasonable efforts to cause each "group health plan" maintained by or contributed to by Parent or any of its Affiliates (including, after the Closing, the Surviving Corporation) in which Company Employees participate, to waive any preexisting condition that was waived under the terms of any Company Employee Plan that is a "group health plan" immediately prior to the Closing or limitations as to waiting periods, physical examinations or exclusions which would otherwise be applicable to an Existing Company Employee on or after the Closing. Parent shall cause any accrued but unused vacation and sick leave of the Existing Company Employees to be recognized in accordance with the terms of such Company policies.

ARTICLE VII

CONDITIONS TO THE MERGER

SECTION 7.01 *Conditions to the Obligations of Each Party.* The obligations of the Company, Parent and Merger Sub to consummate the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver (where permissible) of the following conditions:

(a) Stockholder Approval. The Requisite Company Vote shall have been obtained.

(b) *No Injunction.* No Governmental Authority of competent jurisdiction shall have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any Law which is then in effect or is pending, proposed or threatened and has or would have the effect of making the Merger illegal or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the Merger (an "Injunction") in the United States, the PRC or any other jurisdiction where such Injunction would reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect; provided, however, that the party seeking to assert this condition shall have fulfilled its obligations under *Article VI* to resist, lift or resolve such Injunction.

(c) *Regulatory Approvals.* All Requisite Regulatory Approvals shall have been obtained and be in full force and effect, except where the failure to obtain such Requisite Regulatory Approvals would not, individually or in the aggregate, (i) have a Company Material Adverse Effect or (ii) prevent the consummation of the Merger.

SECTION 7.02 *Conditions to the Obligations of Parent and Merger Sub.* The obligations of Parent and Merger Sub to consummate the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver (where permissible) of the following additional conditions:

(a) *Representations and Warranties.* (i) Other than the representations and warranties of the Company contained in *Sections 3.03* (Capitalization), *3.04(a)* and *(b)* (Authority Relative to This

Agreement; Fairness), and 3.18 (Anti-Takeover Provisions), the representations and warranties of the Company contained in this Agreement (disregarding for this purpose any limitation or qualification by "materiality" or "Company Material Adverse Effect") shall be true and correct in all respects as of the date hereof and as of the Closing, as though made on and as of such date and time (except to the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date), except to the extent such failures to be true and correct, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Company Material Adverse Effect; (ii) the representations and warranties set forth in *Section 3.03* (Capitalization) (disregarding for this purpose any limitation or qualification by "materiality" but not "Company Material Adverse Effect") shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date hereof and as of the Closing, as though made on and as of such date and time (except to the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date); and (iii) the representations and warranties set forth in *Sections 3.04(a)* and (b) (Authority Relative to This Agreement; Fairness) and 3.18 (Anti-Takeover Provisions) shall be true and correct in all respects as of the date hereof and as of the Closing, as though made on and as of such date and time (except to the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date). No failure of a representation or warranty of the Company to be true and correct shall be taken into account for purposes of this *Section 7.02(a)*, if, as of the date hereof, Sponsor had actual knowledge of the facts and circumstances causing such failure.

(b) Agreements and Covenants. The Company shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and covenants required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by it on or prior to the Closing.

(c) *Officer Certificate*. The Company shall have delivered to Parent a certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed by a senior executive officer of the Company, certifying as to the satisfaction of the conditions specified in *Sections* 7.02(*a*) and 7.02(*b*).

(d) *Material Adverse Effect*. Since the date of this Agreement, there shall not have occurred and be continuing any Company Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 7.03 *Conditions to the Obligations of the Company.* The obligations of the Company to consummate the Merger are subject to the satisfaction or waiver (where permissible) of the following additional conditions:

(a) Representations and Warranties. (i) Other than the representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub contained in Section 4.02 (Authority Relative to this Agreement), Section 4.04(c) (Financing; Equity Rollover) and Section 4.07 (Availability of Funds), the representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub contained in this Agreement (disregarding for this purpose any limitation or qualification by "materiality") shall be true and correct in all respects as of the date hereof and as of the Closing, as though made on and as of such date and time (except to the extent expressly made as of an earlier date, in which case as of such earlier date), except to the extent such failures to be true and correct, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to prevent the consummation of any of the Transactions and (ii) the representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub contained in Section 4.02 (Authority Relative to this Agreement), Section 4.04(c) (Financing; Equity Rollover) and Section 4.07 (Availability of Funds) shall be true and correct in all respects as of the Closing, as though made on and as of such date and time thereof and as of the Closing, as though not reasonably be expected to prevent the consummation of any of the Transactions and (ii) the representations and warranties of Parent and Merger Sub contained in Section 4.02 (Authority Relative to this Agreement), Section 4.04(c) (Financing; Equity Rollover) and Section 4.07 (Availability of Funds) shall be true and correct in all respects as of the date hereof and as of the Closing, as though made on and as of such date and time.

(b) *Agreements and Covenants.* Parent and Merger Sub shall have performed or complied in all material respects with all agreements and covenants required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by it on or prior to the Closing.

(c) *Officer Certificate.* Parent shall have delivered to the Company a certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed by an executive officer of Parent, certifying as to the satisfaction of the conditions specified in *Sections* 7.03(a) and 7.03(b).

SECTION 7.04 *Frustration of Closing Conditions*. Prior to the Termination Date, none of the Company, Parent or Merger Sub may rely on the failure of any condition set forth in Article VII to be satisfied if such failure was caused by such party's failure to act in good faith to comply with this Agreement.

ARTICLE VIII

TERMINATION

SECTION 8.01 *Termination by Mutual Consent.* This Agreement may be terminated and the Merger and the other Transactions may be abandoned at any time prior to the Effective Time, whether before or after receipt of the Requisite Company Vote, by mutual written consent of Parent and the Company with the approval of their respective boards of directors (in the case of the Company, acting upon the recommendation of the Special Committee, if then in existence).

SECTION 8.02 *Termination by Either the Company or Parent*. This Agreement may be terminated and the Merger and the other Transactions may be abandoned by either the Company or Parent (in the case of the Company, acting upon the recommendation of the Special Committee, if then in existence) by giving written notice of termination to the other party at any time prior to the Effective Time, if:

(a) the Merger shall not have been consummated on or before April 22, 2014 (the "Termination Date"); *provided* that if the condition to the completion of the Merger set forth in *Section 7.01(c)* shall not have been satisfied by the Termination Date (as it may be extended as set forth below), but all other conditions set forth in *Article VII* would be satisfied if the Merger were to occur on such date, then Parent or the Company shall be entitled to extend the Termination Date by a three (3) month period by written notice to the Company or Parent (as applicable) (and the Termination Date may be so extended not more than twice by either party), it being understood that in no event shall the Termination Date be extended to a date that is later than the first anniversary of this Agreement; *provided further*, that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this *Section 8.02(a)* shall not be available to any party (in the case of Parent, including Merger Sub) whose failure to fulfill any of its obligations under this Agreement has been the primary cause of, or primarily resulted in or materially contributed to the failure to consummate the Merger by the Termination Date;

(b) any Governmental Authority of competent jurisdiction shall have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any Injunction that shall have become final and non-appealable and that shall give rise to the failure of the condition set forth in *Section 7.01(b)*; provided, that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this *Section 8.02(b)* shall not be available to any party (in the case of Parent, including Merger Sub) whose failure to fulfill any of its obligations under this Agreement (including the failure to fulfill its obligations under *Article VI* to resist, lift or resolve such Injunction) has been the primary cause of, or primarily resulted in or materially contributed to the enactment, issuance, promulgation, enforcement or entry of such Injunction; or

(c) the Requisite Company Vote shall not have been obtained at the Stockholders' Meeting duly convened therefor and concluded or at any adjournment or postponement thereof; provided that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this *Section* 8.02(c) shall not be available to Parent if Parent is in breach of its obligations under *Section* 6.02(c).

SECTION 8.03 *Termination by the Company*. This Agreement may be terminated by the Company (upon the recommendation of the Special Committee, if then in existence) by giving written notice of termination to Parent, if:

(a) (i) the Company has received a Superior Proposal, (ii) the Company has complied with its obligations pursuant to *Section 6.04* in all material respects with respect to such Superior Proposal, (iii) the Company Board (or applicable committee thereof) concurrently approves, and the Company substantially concurrently with the termination of this Agreement enters into, a definitive agreement with respect to such Superior Proposal and (iv) the Company, prior to, or substantially concurrently with, such termination pays to Parent any fees required to be paid pursuant to *Section 8.06(a)*;

(b) a breach or failure in any material respect of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement of Parent or Merger Sub set forth in this Agreement shall have occurred, which breach or failure would give rise to the failure of a condition set forth in *Section 7.01* or *Section 7.03* and as a result of such breach or failure, such condition would not be capable of being satisfied prior to the Termination Date; provided, however, that the Company shall not have the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this *Section 8.03(b)* if a material breach of this Agreement by the Company has been the primary cause of, primarily resulted in or materially contributed to the failure of any such condition's capability to be satisfied; or

(c) the Merger shall not have been consummated within five (5) Business Days of the satisfaction or waiver of all the conditions set forth in *Section 7.01* and *Section 7.02* (other than those conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied by actions taken at the Closing); provided that the Company has delivered to Parent an irrevocable commitment in writing that it is ready, willing and able to consummate the Closing during such period at least two (2) Business Days prior to such termination.

SECTION 8.04 *Termination by Parent*. This Agreement may be terminated by Parent by giving written notice of termination to the Company, if:

(a) a breach or failure in any material respect of any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement of the Company set forth in this Agreement shall have occurred, which breach or failure would give rise to the failure of a condition set forth in *Section 7.01* or *Section 7.02* and as a result of such breach or failure, such condition would not be capable of being satisfied prior to the Termination Date; provided, however, that Parent shall not have the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this *Section 8.04(a)* if a material breach of this Agreement by Parent or Merger Sub has been the primary cause of, primarily resulted in or materially contributed to the failure of any such condition's capability to be satisfied;

(b) the Company Board effected and has not withdrawn a Change in the Company Recommendation, or failed to include the Company Recommendation in the Proxy Statement; or

(c) a breach in any material respect of any provision of *Section 6.04* by the Company shall have occurred;

provided that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 8.04(b) or Section 8.04(c) shall not be available to Parent if Parent's or Merger Sub's breach of any provision of this Agreement would give rise to the failure of a condition set forth in Section 7.03(a) or Section 7.03(b).

SECTION 8.05 *Effect of Termination*. In the event of the termination of this Agreement pursuant to *Article VIII*, this Agreement shall forthwith become void, and there shall be no liability under this Agreement on the part of any party hereto (or any Representative of any party hereto); provided, however, that the last sentence of *Section 6.07(f)*, the terms of *Section 6.12*, *Article VIII* and

Article IX shall survive any termination of this Agreement. The Limited Guarantee and the Confidentiality Agreement shall not be affected by the termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 8.06 Fees Following Termination.

(a) The Company will pay, or cause to be paid, to Parent an amount equal to \$1,770,000 (the "Company Termination Fee"), less any amounts paid or payable by the Company pursuant Section 8.06(c), if this Agreement is terminated: (i) by Parent pursuant to Section 8.04(b) or Section 8.04(c); (ii) by the Company pursuant to Section 8.03(a) or (iii) by the Company or Parent pursuant to Section 8.02(a), Section 8.02(c) or Section 8.04(a) if, (A) either (1) in the case of termination pursuant to Section 8.02(c), after the date of this Agreement and before the Stockholders' Meeting, a bona fide Competing Transaction shall have been publicly announced or publicly made known, and shall not have been withdrawn or (2) in the case of termination pursuant to Section 8.02(a) or Section 8.04(a), after the date of this Agreement and before such termination, a bona fide Competing Transaction shall have been made known to the Company, or shall have been publicly announced or publicly made known, and shall not have been withdrawn and (B) within twelve (12) months after such termination the Company or any of the Company Subsidiaries consummates a Competing Transaction, whether or not it was the same Competing Transaction (provided that for purposes of this Section 8.06(a), all references to "20%" in the definition of "Competing Transaction" shall be deemed to be references to "50%"). Such payment shall be made, in the case of termination pursuant to clause (i) above, at or prior to the time of such termination and, in the case of termination pursuant to clause (ii) above, as promptly as possible (but in any event within two (2) Business Days following the consummation of any Competing Transaction); provided, in each of clauses (i) and (ii) above, the Company shall not be required to pay the Company Termination Fee if, at the time of the termination giving rise to such payment either Parent or Merger Sub was in breach of any provision of this Agreement that would give rise to a failure of any conditions set forth in Section 7.03(a) or Section 7.03(b). In no event shall the Company be required to pay the Company Termination Fee on more than one occasion.

(b) Parent will pay, or cause to be paid, to the Company an amount equal to 33,540,000 (the "Parent Termination Fee") if this Agreement is terminated by the Company pursuant to *Section* 8.03(b) or *Section* 8.03(c), such payment to be made as promptly as possible (but in any event within two (2) Business Days) following such termination. In no event shall Parent be required to pay the Parent Termination Fee on more than one occasion.

(c) In the event this Agreement is terminated by Parent pursuant to *Section 8.04(b)*, then the Company shall, within five (5) Business Days following receipt of an invoice therefor, reimburse Parent for up to 700,000 of Parent's reasonable and documented out-of-pocket fees and expenses (including reasonable legal fees and expenses) actually incurred by Parent and Merger Sub on or prior to the termination of this Agreement in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby (including the Financing), by wire transfer of same day funds to one or more accounts designated by Parent.

(d) In the event that the Company fails to pay the Company Termination Fee, or Parent fails to pay the Parent Termination Fee, when due and in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement, the Company or Parent, as the case may be, shall reimburse the other party for all costs and expenses reasonably incurred or accrued by the other party (including reasonable fees and expenses of counsel) in connection with the collection under and enforcement of this *Section 8.06*, together with interest on such unpaid Company Termination Fee or Parent Termination Fee, as the case may be, commencing on the date that the Company Termination Fee or Parent Termination Fee, as the case may be, became due, at a rate equal to the rate of interest publicly announced by Bank of America Corporation, from time to time, in The City of New York, as such bank's prime rate plus 1.00%. Such collection expenses shall not otherwise diminish in any

way the payment obligations hereunder. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, any cost, expense or interest provided in this *Section 8.06(d)* shall be payable by the Company or Parent, as the case may be, only in the event the other party shall have obtained a final, non-appealable judgment against the Company or Parent for its failure to pay the Company Termination Fee or the Parent Termination Fee, as the case may be.

(e) Each of the Company, Parent and Merger Sub acknowledges that (i) the agreements contained in this *Section 8.06* are an integral part of the Transactions, (ii) the damages resulting from termination of this Agreement under circumstances where a Company Termination Fee or Parent Termination Fee is payable are uncertain and incapable of accurate calculation and therefore, the amounts payable pursuant to *Section 8.06(a)* or *Section 8.06(b)* are not a penalty but rather constitute amounts akin to liquidated damages in a reasonable amount that will compensate Parent or the Company, as the case may be, for the efforts and resources expended and opportunities foregone while negotiating this Agreement and in reliance on this Agreement and on the expectation of the consummation of the Transactions, and (iii) without the agreements contained in this *Section 8.06*, the parties hereto would not have entered into this Agreement.

(f) Except as set forth in this *Section 8.06*, all costs and expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement and the Transactions shall be paid by the party incurring such expenses, whether or not the Merger is consummated, except that all fees payable under or pursuant to antitrust or competition Laws shall be borne by the Parent, whether or not the Transactions are consummated.

SECTION 8.07 *Limitations on Liability.* The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that the remedies provided for in the last sentence of *Section 6.07(f)*, *Section 8.06* and *Section 9.07* shall be the parties' sole and exclusive remedies for any breaches of this Agreement or any claims relating to the Transactions, other than in the case of fraud. In furtherance of the foregoing, each party hereby waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law, any and all other rights, claims and causes of action (other than fraud), known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, which exist or may arise in the future, that such party may have against the other party or any of its directors, officers, employees, investment bankers, attorneys, accountants and other advisors or representatives arising under or based upon any federal, state, or foreign local law (including any securities law, common law or otherwise) for any breach of the representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement.

ARTICLE IX

GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 9.01 Non-Survival of Representations, Warranties and Agreements. The representations, warranties, covenants and agreements in this Agreement and in any certificate delivered pursuant hereto shall terminate at the Effective Time, except that the covenants and agreements set forth in Articles I and II, Sections 6.05 and 6.12, and this Article IX shall survive the Effective Time.

SECTION 9.02 *Notices.* All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing (in the English language) and shall be deemed duly given (a) on the date of delivery if delivered personally, or if by facsimile or e-mail, upon written confirmation of receipt by facsimile or e-mail, (b) on the first Business Day following the date of dispatch if delivered utilizing a next-day service by an internationally recognized next-day courier, or (c) on the earlier of confirmed receipt or the fifth Business Day following the date of mailing if delivered by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid (or its international equivalent). All notices hereunder shall be delivered to

the addresses set forth below (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified in a notice given in accordance with this Section 9.02):

(i)

if to Parent or Merger Sub: c/o IDG Capital Management (HK) Limited Unit 5505, The Centre 99 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong Attention: Quan Zhou Facsimile: +852 2529 1619 Email: quan_zhou@idgvc.com

with a copy to:

Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP 30th Floor, China World Office 2 1 Jianguomenwai Avenue Beijing 100004, PRC Attention: Peter Huang Facsimile: +86 (10) 6535 5577 Email: peter.huang@skadden.com

(ii)

if to the Company:

MEMSIC, Inc. One Tech Drive, Suite 325 Andover, MA 01810 U.S.A. Facsimile: 978-738-0196

with a copy to:

Foley Hoag LLP Seaport West 155 Seaport Boulevard Boston, MA 02210 United States of America Attention: Robert L. Birnbaum, Esq. Facsimile: 617-832-7000 Email: rbirnbaum@foleyhoag.com

SECTION 9.03 Certain Definitions. (a) For purposes of this Agreement:

"Affiliate" of a specified person means a person who, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such specified person.

"Business Day" means any day on which the principal offices of the SEC in Washington, D.C. are open to accept filings, or, in the case of determining a date when any payment is due, any day on which banks are not required or authorized to close in The City of New York, Hong Kong and Shanghai.

"Company Disclosure Letter" means the disclosure schedule delivered to Parent and Merger Sub by the Company on the date hereof.

"Company Employee Agreement" means any management, employment, severance, change in control, transaction bonus, consulting, repatriation or expatriation agreement or other similar contract between the Company or a Company Subsidiary and any current or former employee, director, officer or independent contractor of the Company or any Company Subsidiary.

"Company Employee Plan" means any written plan, program, policy, practice, Contract or other arrangement providing for compensation, severance, termination pay, deferred compensation, performance awards, share or share-related awards, fringe benefits or other employee benefits or remuneration of any kind, that is or has been maintained, contributed to or required to be contributed to by the Company or any Company Subsidiary for the benefit of any current or former employee, director, officer or independent contractor of the Company or any Company Subsidiary, or with respect to which the Company or any Company Subsidiary has or may have any liability or obligation.

"Company Material Adverse Effect" means any event, circumstance, change or effect that, individually or in the aggregate with all other events, circumstances, changes and effects, is (a) materially adverse to the business, condition (financial or otherwise), assets, liabilities, or results of operations of the Company and the Company Subsidiaries taken as a whole or (b) reasonably expected to prevent or materially delay the consummation by the Company of the Transactions or otherwise be materially adverse to the ability of the Company to perform its material obligations under this Agreement; provided, however, that clause (a) shall not include any event, circumstance, change or effect to the extent resulting from (i) changes in general economic, business, political or financial conditions or changes in securities markets in general that do not have a disproportionate adverse effect (relative to other industry participants) on the Company and the Company Subsidiaries, considered as a whole, (ii) the pendency or public announcement of the Transactions, (iii) changes caused by acts of terrorism or war (whether or not declared), (iv) changes in Law or any applicable accounting regulations or principles or the interpretations thereof, (v) changes in the price or trading volume of the Common Shares (provided that any event, condition, change, occurrence or development of a state of circumstances that may have caused or contributed to such change in price or trading volume shall not be excluded under this proviso), (vi) fluctuations in the value of any currency, (vii) any failure by the Company to meet public or internal revenue, earnings or other projections (provided that any event, condition, change, occurrence or development of a state of circumstances that may have caused or contributed to such failure shall not be excluded under this proviso), (viii) the taking of any action required by the Agreement or approved or permitted in writing by Parent, or the failure to take any action prohibited by this Agreement, (ix) any suits, action or legal, administrative, arbitration or other proceeding or governmental investigation made or brought by any holder of Common Shares (on the holder's own behalf or on behalf of the Company) arising out of or related to this Agreement or any of the Transactions.

"Company Subsidiary" means each person that is a subsidiary of the Company.

"Confidentiality Agreement" means (i) the confidentiality agreement, dated as of December 3, 2012, between Sponsor and the Company.

"Contract" means any note, bond, mortgage, indenture, deed of trust, contract, agreement, lease, license, franchise or other instrument.

"control" (including the terms "*controlled by*" and "*under common control with*") means the possession, directly or indirectly, or as trustee or executor, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of a person, whether through the ownership of voting securities or the possession of voting power, as trustee or executor, by contract or credit arrangement or otherwise.

"Environmental Laws" means all foreign, federal, state, or local laws, statutes, regulations, ordinances, codes, or decrees relating to (a) Releases or threatened Releases of Hazardous Materials, (b) the manufacture, handling, transport, use, treatment, storage or disposal of Hazardous Materials, (c) the environment, or (d) the protection of human health and safety.

"Environmental Permits" means all permits, licenses, registrations, approvals, and other authorizations required under applicable Environmental Laws.

"Governmental Authority" means any government, any agency, self-regulatory body, public, regulatory or taxing authority, instrumentality, department, commission, court, arbitrator, ministry, tribunal or board of any government or political subdivision thereof, in each case, whether foreign or domestic and whether national, supranational, federal, provincial, state, regional, local or municipal.

"Hazardous Materials" means any substance or waste defined and regulated as hazardous, acutely hazardous, or toxic under applicable Environmental Laws.

"HSR Act" means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.

"Indebtedness" means, with respect to any person, (a) all indebtedness of such person, whether or not contingent, for borrowed money, (b) all obligations of such person for the deferred purchase price of property or services, except trade accounts payable arising in the ordinary course of business, (c) all obligations of such person evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures or other similar instruments, (d) all obligations of such person under currency, interest rate or other swaps, and all hedging and other obligations of such person under other derivative instruments (it being understood that the amount of any Indebtedness arising under any arrangement described in this clause (d) shall be the net amount, if any, that would be owed by such Person under such arrangement in the event of a termination (including an early termination) on the date of determination), (e) all indebtedness created or arising under any conditional sale or other title retention agreement with respect to property acquired by such person (even though the rights and remedies of the seller or lender under such agreement in the event of default are limited to repossession or sale of such property), (f) all obligations of such person as lessee under leases that have been or should be, in accordance with GAAP, recorded as capital leases, (g) all mandatory reimbursement or similar obligations, contingent or otherwise, of such person under acceptance, letter of credit or similar facilities, (h) all obligations of such person to purchase, redeem, retire, defease or otherwise acquire for cash any share capital of such person or any warrants, rights or options to acquire such share capital, valued, in the case of redeemable preferred shares, at the greater of its voluntary or involuntary liquidation preference plus accrued and unpaid dividends, (i) all Indebtedness of others referred to in clauses (a) through (h) above guaranteed directly or indirectly in any manner by such person, and (j) all Indebtedness referred to in clauses (a) through (h) above secured by (or for which the holder of such Indebtedness has an existing right, contingent or otherwise, to be secured by) any Liens on property (including accounts and contract rights) owned by such person, even though such person has not assumed or become liable for the payment of such Indebtedness.

"Insolvent" means, with respect to any person (a) the aggregate present "fair saleable value" of such person's assets is less than the value of all "liabilities" of such person, including contingent liabilities, as such quoted terms are generally determined in accordance with applicable Law governing determinations of the insolvency of debtors, and the amount that will be required to pay the probable liabilities of such person on its existing debts as such debts become absolute and mature, (b) such person is unable to pay its debts and liabilities, subordinated, contingent or otherwise, as such debts and liabilities become absolute and mature or (c) such person has an unreasonably small amount of capital for the operation of the businesses in which it is engaged or proposed to be engaged as such business is now conducted and is proposed to be conducted.

"Intellectual Property" means (a) United States, non-United States and international patents, patent applications and statutory invention registrations, (b) trademarks, service marks, trade dress, logos, trade names, corporate names and other source identifiers, and registrations and applications for registration thereof, (c) copyrightable works, copyrights, and registrations and applications for registration thereof, (d) confidential and proprietary information, including trade secrets and know-how, and (e) rights of privacy, publicity and endorsement.

"knowledge" means, with respect to the Company, the actual knowledge of the individuals listed in Section 9.03(a) of the Company Disclosure Letter, and with respect to any other party hereto,

including, for purposes of Section 7.02(a), the Sponsor, the actual knowledge of Quan Zhou or Jason Zhen.

"Liens" means any security interest, pledge, hypothecation, mortgage, lien (including environmental and Tax liens), charge, lease, license, encumbrance, servient easement, adverse claim, reversion, reverter, restrictive covenant, condition or restriction of any kind, including any restriction (other than as imposed by Law) on the use, voting, transfer, receipt of income or other exercise of any attributes of ownership.

"Permitted Liens" means (i) such Liens as are set forth in Section 9.03 of the Company Disclosure Letter, (ii) mechanics', carriers', workmen's, repairmen's or other similar Liens arising or incurred in the ordinary course of business for amounts that are not due and payable or are being contested in good faith, (iii) Liens for Taxes and other governmental charges that are not due and payable or are being contested in good faith which do not and will not materially impair the continued use and operation of the assets to which they relate in the conduct of the business of the Company as currently conducted, (iv) Liens disclosed in the financial statements included in the Company SEC Reports or the notes thereto, (v) recorded or unrecorded easements, covenants, restrictions, rights-of-way, zoning, building restrictions and other similar matters which do not and will not materially impair the continued use and operation of the assets to which they relate in the conduct of the business of the Company as currently conducted, and (vi) other imperfections of title, licenses or Liens, if any, which do not and will not materially impair the continued use and operation of the business of the Company as currently conducted.

"person" means an individual, corporation, partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company, syndicate, person (including a "person" as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Exchange Act), trust, association or other entity or government, political subdivision, agency or instrumentality of a government.

"Release" means any release, spill, emission, leaking, pumping, pouring, injection, deposit, dumping, emptying, disposal, discharge, dispersal, leaching or migration into the indoor or outdoor environment, or into or out of any property.

"Reg S-K" means Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC.

"Reg S-X" means Regulation S-X promulgated by the SEC.

"Stock Incentive Plans" means the Company's 2000 Omnibus Stock Plan, 2007 Stock Incentive Plan and Amended and Restated 2009 Nonqualified Inducement Stock Plan.

"subsidiary" or "subsidiaries" of any person means any corporation, partnership, joint venture or other legal entity: (i) of which voting power to elect a majority of the board of directors or others performing similar functions with respect to such organization is held directly or indirectly by such person or by any one or more of such person's subsidiaries, (ii) of which at least fifty percent (50%) of the equity interests is controlled by such person or by any one or more of such person's subsidiaries, (iii) of which such party or any subsidiary of such party is a general partner, or (iv) that would otherwise be deemed a "subsidiary" under Rule 1-02(w) of Reg S-X.

"Taxes" means any and all taxes (together with any and all interest, penalties and additions to tax) imposed by any Governmental Authority that is a taxing authority, including: taxes on or with respect to income, gains, franchise, profits, windfall profits, gross receipts, property, sales, use, capital stock, payroll, employment (including withholding obligations imposed on employer/payer), social security, workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, net worth, excise, withholding, ad valorem, stamp, transfer, value-added and other similar charges that are in the nature of a tax.

"Third Party" means any person or "group" (as defined under Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act) of persons, other than Parent or any of its Affiliates or Representatives.

(b)

[RESERVED]

SECTION 9.04 *Severability.* If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by any rule of law, or public policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as the economic or legal substance of the Transactions is not affected in any manner adverse to any party. Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in a mutually acceptable manner in order that the Transactions be consummated as originally contemplated to the fullest extent possible.

SECTION 9.05 *Entire Agreement; Assignment.* This Agreement (including the exhibits and schedules hereto), the Company Disclosure Letter, the Limited Guarantee and the Confidentiality Agreement constitute the entire agreement among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior agreements and undertakings, both written and oral, among the parties, or any of them, with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement shall not be assigned (whether pursuant to a merger, by operation of law or otherwise), except that Parent and Merger Sub may assign all or any of their rights and obligations hereunder to (i) any Affiliate of Parent or (ii) any persons providing any Alternative Financing pursuant to the terms thereof for purposes of creating a security interest herein or otherwise assign as collateral in respect of such Alternative Financing, provided that no such assignment shall relieve the assigning party of its obligations hereunder if such assignee does not perform such obligations.

SECTION 9.06 *Parties in Interest.* This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure solely to the benefit of each party hereto and their successors and permitted assigns, and nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer upon any other person any right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement, other than (i) following the Effective Time, the rights of the holders of Common Shares, Company Options, Restricted Shares and RSUs to receive payments in accordance with Article II and (ii) *Section 6.05* and *Section 8.07* (which are intended to be for the benefit of the persons covered thereby and may be enforced by such persons); *provided, however*, that, other than the right to receive payments in accordance with Article II following the Effective Time, in no event shall any Stockholders or holders of Company Options, Restricted Shares or RSUs, in each case in their capacity as such, have any right, benefit or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement; *provided, further*, that prior to the Closing or the termination of this Agreement no consent of any such third-party beneficiary shall be required to amend, waive or otherwise modify any provision of this Agreement).

SECTION 9.07 *Specific Performance.* (a) The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event any provision of this Agreement were not performed by the Company in accordance with the terms hereof and that Parent and Merger Sub shall be entitled to specific performance of the terms hereof (including the Company's obligation to consummate the Merger, subject in each case to the terms and conditions of this Agreement), including an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement by the Company, in addition to any other remedy at law or equity. The Company hereby waives (i) any defenses in any action for specific performance, including the defense that a remedy at law would be adequate and (ii) any requirement under any Law to post a bond or other security as a prerequisite to obtaining equitable relief. If Parent and/or Merger Sub brings any Action to enforce specifically the performance of the terms and provisions hereof by the Company, the Termination Date shall automatically be extended by (x) the amount of time during which such Action is pending, plus twenty (20) Business Days or (y) such other time period established by the court presiding over such Action.

(b) The parties hereto further agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event any provision of this Agreement were not performed by Parent or Merger Sub in accordance with the

terms hereof and that the Company shall be entitled to specific performance of the terms hereof (including Parent and Merger Sub's obligation to consummate the Financings and the Merger, subject in each case to the terms and conditions of this Agreement), including an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches of this Agreement by Parent or Merger Sub, in addition to any other remedy at law or equity. Parent and Merger Sub hereby waive (i) any defenses in any action for specific performance, including the defense that a remedy at law would be adequate and (ii) any requirement under any Law to post a bond or other security as a prerequisite to obtaining equitable relief. If the Company brings any Action to enforce specifically the performance of the terms and provisions hereof by Parent or Merger Sub, the Termination Date shall automatically be extended by (x) the amount of time during which such Action is pending, plus twenty (20) Business Days or (y) such other time period established by the court presiding over such Action.

(c) The parties hereto further acknowledge and agree that (i) the provisions set forth in *Section 8.06* are not intended to and do not adequately compensate for the harm that would result from a breach of this Agreement and shall not be construed to diminish or otherwise impair in any way any party's right to specific performance and (ii) such rights of specific performance are an integral part of the Transactions and without such rights, neither the Company nor Parent would have entered into this Agreement.

(d) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, although the parties hereto may pursue both a remedy of specific performance and the payment of the amounts set forth in *Section 8.06*, neither Parent and Merger Sub, on the one hand, nor the Company, on the other hand, shall be permitted or entitled to receive both a remedy of specific performance that results in a Closing and payment of such amounts.

SECTION 9.08 Governing Law; Dispute Resolution. This Agreement will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the Laws of the State of Delaware, without giving effect to any applicable principles of conflict of laws that would cause the Laws of another jurisdiction to govern this Agreement. Each of the parties hereto irrevocably agrees that any Action with respect to this Agreement and the rights and obligations arising hereunder, or for recognition and enforcement of any judgment in respect of this Agreement and the rights and obligations hereunder brought by the other party hereto or its successors or assigns shall be brought and determined exclusively in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware in and for New Castle County, Delaware. Each of the parties hereto agrees that mailing of process or other papers in connection with any such Action in the manner provided in Section 9.02 or in such other manners as may be permitted by applicable Laws, will be valid and sufficient service thereof. Each of the parties hereto hereby irrevocably submits with regard to any such Action for itself and in respect of its property, generally and unconditionally, to the personal jurisdiction of the aforesaid courts and agrees that it will not bring any Action relating to this Agreement or any of the Transactions in any court or tribunal other than the aforesaid courts. Each of the parties hereto irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert, by way of motion, as a defense, counterclaim or otherwise, in any Action with respect to this Agreement and the rights and obligations arising hereunder, or for recognition and enforcement of any judgment in respect of this Agreement and the rights and obligations arising hereunder (i) any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the aforesaid courts for any reason other than the failure to serve process in accordance with this Section 9.08, (ii) any claim that it or its property is exempt or immune from jurisdiction of any such court or from any legal process commenced in such courts (whether through service of notice, attachment prior to judgment, attachment in aid of execution of judgment, execution of judgment or otherwise) and (iii) to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law, any claim that (x) the Action in such court is brought in an inconvenient forum, (y) the venue of such Action is improper or (z) this Agreement, or the subject matter hereof, may not be enforced in or by such courts.

SECTION 9.09 *Waiver of Jury Trial.* Each party hereto acknowledges and agrees that any controversy which may arise under this Agreement is likely to involve complicated and difficult issues

and, therefore, each such party irrevocably and unconditionally waives any right it may have to a trial by a jury in respect of any Action arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the Transactions. Each party hereto certifies and acknowledges that (a) no Representative of any other party has represented, expressly or otherwise, that such other party would not seek to enforce the foregoing waiver in the event of an Action, (b) such party has considered the implication of this waiver, (c) such party makes this waiver voluntarily and (d) such party has been induced to enter into this Agreement by, among other things, the mutual waivers and certifications in this *Section 9.09*.

SECTION 9.10 *Amendment.* This Agreement may be amended by the parties hereto by action taken by or on behalf of their respective Boards of Directors at any time prior to the Effective Time (in the case of the Company, upon the recommendation of the Special Committee, if then in existence); *provided, however*, that, after the adoption of this Agreement by the Stockholders, no amendment may be made that would reduce the amount or change the type of consideration into which each Common Share shall be converted upon consummation of the Merger. This Agreement may not be amended except by an instrument in writing signed by each of the parties hereto.

SECTION 9.11 *Waiver*. At any time prior to the Effective Time, any party hereto may by action taken by or on behalf of their respective Boards of Directors (in the case of the Company, upon the recommendation of the Special Committee, if then in existence) (a) extend the time for the performance of any obligation or other act of any other party hereto, (b) waive any inaccuracy in the representations and warranties of any other party contained herein or in any document delivered pursuant hereto and (c) waive compliance with any covenant or agreement of any other party or any condition to its own obligations contained herein. Any such extension or waiver shall be valid only if set forth in an instrument in writing signed by the party or parties to be bound thereby. No failure or delay by any party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege.

SECTION 9.12 *Interpretation.* When a reference is made in this Agreement to a Section, Article or Exhibit such reference shall be to a Section, Article or Exhibit of this Agreement unless otherwise indicated. The table of contents and headings contained in this Agreement or in any Exhibit are for convenience of reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. All words used in this Agreement will be construed to be of such gender or number as the circumstances require. Any capitalized terms used in any Exhibit but not otherwise defined therein shall have the meaning set forth in this Agreement. All Exhibits annexed hereto or referred to herein are hereby incorporated in and made a part of this Agreement as if set forth herein. The word "including" and words of similar import when used in this Agreement will mean "including, without limitation," unless otherwise specified.

SECTION 9.13 *Counterparts.* This Agreement may be executed and delivered (including by facsimile transmission, including the delivery by e-mail of a manual signature in PDF or other electronic format) in one or more counterparts, and by the different parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

[The remainder of the page is intentionally left blank.]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Parent, Merger Sub and the Company have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first written above by their respective officers thereunto duly authorized.

MZ Investment Holdings Limited

By: /s/ QUAN ZHOU

Name: Quan Zhou Title: Director

MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited

By: /s/ QUAN ZHOU

Name: Quan Zhou Title: Director

MEMSIC, Inc.

By: /s/ YANG ZHAO

Name:Yang ZhaoTitle:President & CEO

Annex B

April 22, 2013

Special Committee of the Board of Directors MEMSIC, Inc. One Technology Drive, Suite 325 Andover, Massachusetts 01810

Special Committee of the Board of Directors:

You have requested our opinion as to the fairness, from a financial point of view, to certain holders of common stock, par value \$0.00001 per share (each, a "Common Share," and collectively, "Common Shares") of MEMSIC, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), of the Merger Consideration (as defined below) provided for under the terms of the proposed Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Agreement") by and among MZ Investment Holdings Limited, an exempted company with limited liability incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands ("Parent"), MZ Investment Holdings Merger Sub Limited, a Delaware corporation and a wholly owned Delaware subsidiary of Parent ("Merger Sub"), and the Company. Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings used in the Agreement unless otherwise defined herein.

The Agreement provides, among other things, that Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the "Merger") and, at the Effective Time, each Common Share issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time (other than (i) any Common Shares held by (A) the Company as treasury stock, (B) Parent or Merger Sub, directly or indirectly, or (C) any wholly owned Company Subsidiary, and including (1) the Rollover Shares (as defined below) to be contributed to Parent and (2) the Purchased Shares (as defined below) to be acquired by IDG-Accel China Capital II L.P., a limited partnership formed under the laws of the Cayman Islands ("IDG-Accel") or an affiliate thereof, in each case immediately prior to the Closing and in accordance with the Contribution Agreement, all of which Common Shares will be cancelled for no consideration, and (ii) Dissenting Shares), will be converted into the right of its holder to receive \$4.225 in cash per Common Share without interest (the "Merger Consideration"). The Agreement also provides that each share of common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, of Merger Sub issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time will be converted into one share of common stock of the Surviving Corporation.

Pursuant to the Agreement, among other things, concurrently with the execution of the Agreement, (i) certain beneficial owners of Common Shares (the "Rollover Holders") are entering into a contribution agreement (the "Contribution Agreement") pursuant to which, among other things, (A) the Rollover Holders are agreeing to acquire a specified number of newly issued shares of Parent in exchange for Common Shares (the "Rollover Shares") and/or cash consideration to be contributed to Parent immediately prior to the Effective Time and (B) IDG-Accel or an affiliate thereof will purchase from certain Rollover Holders all Common Shares held by such Rollover Holders for a cash payment equal to the Merger Consideration (the "Purchased Shares") and (ii) certain beneficial owners of Common Shares are entering into a voting agreement in favor of Parent (the "Voting Agreement"). The Agreement also provides, among other things that, as of the Effective Time, (a) each Company Option (whether or not vested) will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive an amount in cash equal to the product of the number of Common Shares subject to such Company Option immediately prior to the Effective Time (without regard to vesting) and the excess of the Merger

Consideration over the exercise price payable per Common Share under such Company Option (net of any applicable withholding Taxes), and (b) each restricted share or restricted stock unit granted pursuant to the Company's 2000 Omnibus Stock Plan, 2007 Stock Incentive Plan and Amended and Restated 2009 Nonqualified Inducement Stock Plan or otherwise that is outstanding will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive the Merger Consideration (net of any applicable withholding Taxes). In addition, concurrently with the execution of the Agreement, IDG-Accel is entering into (1) a limited guaranty in favor of the Company with respect to certain payment obligations of Parent under the Agreement (the "Limited Guaranty") and (2) an equity commitment letter with Parent with respect to IDG-Accel's commitment to purchase equity in Parent simultaneous with the closing of the Merger (the "Equity Commitment Letter"). The terms and conditions of the Merger are set forth more fully in the Agreement.

RBC Capital Markets, LLC ("RBCCM"), as part of its investment banking services, is regularly engaged in the valuation of businesses and their securities in connection with mergers and acquisitions, corporate restructurings, underwritings, secondary distributions of listed and unlisted securities, private placements, and valuations for corporate and other purposes.

We are acting as financial advisor to the Special Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the "Special Committee") in connection with the Merger, and we will receive a fee for our services upon delivery of this opinion, which is not contingent upon the successful completion of the Merger. In addition, for our services as financial advisor to the Special Committee in connection with the Merger, if the Merger is successfully completed we will receive an additional larger fee. Further, in the event that the Merger is not completed and our engagement by the Special Committee expires or is terminated and the Company consummates at any time thereafter, pursuant to a definitive agreement or letter of intent or other evidence of commitment entered into within twelve months after such expiration or termination, a transaction or series of related transactions with one or more of certain parties, resulting in a change of control or other sale transaction of the Company, we will be entitled to receive the same contingent transaction fee as if no such expiration or termination had occurred. In addition, the Company has agreed to indemnify us for certain liabilities that may arise out of our engagement.

In the ordinary course of business, RBCCM may act as a market maker and broker in the publicly traded securities of the Company and/or Parent and receive customary compensation, and may also actively trade securities of the Company and/or Parent for our own account and the accounts of our customers, and, accordingly, RBCCM and its affiliates, may hold a long or short position in such securities.

RBCCM may be selected by Parent to provide investment banking and financial advisory and/or financing services that may be required by Parent in the future for which RBCCM may receive compensation regardless of whether the Merger is successfully completed. In addition, prior to its engagement by the Special Committee, the Company had engaged RBCCM to provide financial advisory services with respect to a possible minority investment or sale transaction pursuant to a separate engagement letter dated February 12, 2012, which engagement letter was terminated by means of written notice from the Company to RBCCM dated August 9, 2012.

For the purposes of rendering our opinion, we have undertaken such review and inquiries as we deemed necessary or appropriate under the circumstances, including the following: (i) we reviewed the financial terms of the execution copy of the Agreement dated April 22, 2013 (the "Latest Draft Agreement"); (ii) we reviewed the financial terms of the execution copy of the Contribution Agreement dated April 22, 2013 (the "Latest Contribution Agreement"); (iii) we reviewed the financial terms of the execution copy of the Voting Agreement dated April 22, 2013 (the "Latest Voting Agreement"); (iv) we reviewed the financial terms of the execution copy of the Limited Guaranty dated April 22, 2013 (the "Latest Limited Guaranty"); (v) we reviewed the financial terms of the execution copy of the Limited Guaranty dated April 22, 2013 (the "Latest Limited Guaranty"); (v) we reviewed the financial terms of the execution copy of the Limited Guaranty dated April 22, 2013 (the "Latest Limited Guaranty"); (v) we reviewed the financial terms of the execution copy of the Limited Guaranty dated April 22, 2013 (the "Latest Limited Guaranty"); (v) we reviewed the financial terms of the execution copy of the Limited Guaranty dated April 22, 2013 (the "Latest Limited Guaranty"); (v) we reviewed the financial terms of the execution copy of the Limited Guaranty dated April 22, 2013 (the "Latest Limited Guaranty"); (v) we reviewed the financial terms of the execution copy of the

Equity Commitment Letter dated April 22, 2013 (the "Latest Equity Commitment Letter"); (vi) we reviewed and analyzed certain publicly available financial and other data with respect to the Company and certain other relevant historical operating data relating to the Company made available to us from published sources and from the internal records of the Company; (vii) we conducted discussions with members of the senior management of the Company with respect to the business prospects and financial outlook of the Company as a standalone entity; (viii) we reviewed the reported prices and trading activity for Common Shares; (ix) we reviewed certain information relating to the historical, current and future operations, financial condition and prospects of the Company made available to us by the Company, including financial projections prepared by the management of the Company for the fiscal years ending 2013 through 2016, with certain adjustments thereto based on guidance from the Company's management publicly disclosed on March 8, 2013; and (x) we performed other studies and analyses as we deemed appropriate.

In arriving at our opinion, we performed the following analyses in addition to the review, inquiries, and analyses referred to in the preceding paragraph: (i) we compared selected market valuation metrics of the Company and other comparable publicly traded companies with the financial metrics implied by the Merger Consideration; (ii) we compared the financial metrics of selected precedent transactions with the financial metrics implied by the Merger Consideration; and (iii) we performed a discounted cash flow analysis reflecting certain discount rates and terminal values as we deemed appropriate.

In connection with our engagement, at the direction of the Special Committee, we spoke to a select number of third parties with respect to a possible strategic transaction with the Company.

Several analytical methodologies have been employed and no one method of analysis should be regarded as critical to the overall conclusion we have reached. Each analytical technique has inherent strengths and weaknesses, and the nature of the available information may further affect the value of particular techniques. The overall conclusions we have reached are based on all the analyses and factors presented, taken as a whole, and also on application of our own experience and judgment. Such conclusions may involve significant elements of subjective judgment and qualitative analysis. We therefore give no opinion as to the value or merit standing alone of any one or more parts of the analyses.

In rendering our opinion, we have assumed and relied upon the accuracy and completeness of all the information that was publicly available to us and all of the financial, legal, tax, operating and other information provided to or discussed with us by the Company (including, without limitation, the financial statements and related notes thereto of the Company), and have not assumed responsibility for independently verifying and have not independently verified such information. We have assumed that all projections and forecasts provided to us by the Company were reasonably prepared on bases reflecting the best currently available estimates and good faith judgments of the future financial performance of the Company, as a standalone entity. We express no opinion as to such projections and forecasts or the assumptions upon which they were based.

In rendering our opinion, we have not assumed any responsibility to perform, and have not performed, an independent evaluation or appraisal of any of the assets or liabilities of the Company, and we have not been furnished with any such valuations or appraisals. We have not assumed any obligation to conduct, and have not conducted, any physical inspection of the property or facilities of the Company. We have not investigated, and make no assumption regarding, any litigation or other claims affecting the Company.

We have assumed, in all respects material to our analysis, that all conditions to the consummation of the Merger will be satisfied without waiver thereof. We have further assumed that the executed versions of the Agreement, the Contribution Agreement, the Voting Agreement, the Limited Guaranty and the Equity Commitment Letter will not differ, in any respect material to our opinion, from the

Latest Draft Agreement, Latest Contribution Agreement, Latest Voting Agreement, Latest Limited Guaranty and Latest Equity Commitment Letter, as applicable.

Our opinion speaks only as of the date hereof, is based on the conditions as they exist and information which we have been supplied as of the date hereof, and is without regard to any market, economic, financial, legal, or other circumstances or event of any kind or nature which may exist or occur after such date. We have not undertaken to reaffirm or revise this opinion or otherwise comment upon events occurring after the date hereof and do not have an obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this opinion.

The opinion expressed herein is provided for the information and assistance of the Special Committee in connection with the Merger. We express no opinion and make no recommendation to any stockholder of the Company as to how such stockholder should vote with respect to the Merger or any other proposal to be voted upon by them in connection with the Merger. All advice and opinions (written and oral) rendered by RBCCM are intended for the use and benefit of the Special Committee, acting solely in its capacity as such. Such advice or opinions may not be reproduced, summarized, excerpted from or referred to in any public document or given to any other person without the prior written consent of RBCCM. If required by applicable law, such opinion may be included in any disclosure document filed by the Company with the SEC with respect to the Merger; *provided, however*, that such opinion must be reproduced in full and that any description of or reference to RBCCM be in a form reasonably acceptable to RBCCM and its counsel. RBCCM shall have no responsibility for the form or content of any such disclosure document, other than the opinion itself.

Our opinion does not address the merits of the underlying decision by the Company to engage in the Merger or the relative merits of the Merger compared to any alternative business strategy or transaction in which the Company might engage.

Our opinion addresses solely the fairness of the Merger Consideration, from a financial point of view, to the holders of Common Shares, other than the Rollover Holders. Our opinion does not in any way address other terms or arrangements of the Merger or the Agreement, including, without limitation, the financial or other terms of any other agreement contemplated by, or to be entered into in connection with, the Agreement. Further, in rendering our opinion we express no opinion about the fairness of the amount or nature of the compensation to any of the Company's officers, directors or employees, or class of such persons, relative to the consideration to be paid to the holders of Common Shares.

Our opinion has been approved by RBCCM's Fairness Opinion Committee.

Based on our experience as investment bankers and subject to the foregoing, including the various assumptions and limitations set forth herein, it is our opinion that, as of the date hereof, the Merger Consideration is fair, from a financial point of view, to the holders of Common Shares, other than the Rollover Holders.

Very truly yours,

RBC CAPITAL MARKETS, LLC

SECTION 262 OF THE DELAWARE GENERAL CORPORATION LAW

Appraisal rights.

(a) Any stockholder of a corporation of this State who holds shares of stock on the date of the making of a demand pursuant to subsection (d) of this section with respect to such shares, who continuously holds such shares through the effective date of the merger or consolidation, who has otherwise complied with subsection (d) of this section and who has neither voted in favor of the merger or consolidation nor consented thereto in writing pursuant to § 228 of this title shall be entitled to an appraisal by the Court of Chancery of the fair value of the stockholder's shares of stock under the circumstances described in subsections (b) and (c) of this section. As used in this section, the word "stockholder" means a holder of record of stock in a corporation; the words "stock" and "share" mean and include what is ordinarily meant by those words; and the words "depository receipt" mean a receipt or other instrument issued by a depository representing an interest in 1 or more shares, or fractions thereof, solely of stock of a corporation, which stock is deposited with the depository.

(b) Appraisal rights shall be available for the shares of any class or series of stock of a constituent corporation in a merger or consolidation to be effected pursuant to § 251 (other than a merger effected pursuant to § 251(g) of this title), § 252, § 254, § 255, § 256, § 257, § 258, § 263 or § 264 of this title:

(1) Provided, however, that no appraisal rights under this section shall be available for the shares of any class or series of stock, which stock, or depository receipts in respect thereof, at the record date fixed to determine the stockholders entitled to receive notice of the meeting of stockholders to act upon the agreement of merger or consolidation, were either (i) listed on a national securities exchange or (ii) held of record by more than 2,000 holders; and further provided that no appraisal rights shall be available for any shares of stock of the constituent corporation surviving a merger if the merger did not require for its approval the vote of the stockholders of the surviving corporation as provided in § 251(f) of this title.

(2) Notwithstanding paragraph (b)(1) of this section, appraisal rights under this section shall be available for the shares of any class or series of stock of a constituent corporation if the holders thereof are required by the terms of an agreement of merger or consolidation pursuant to \$ 251, 252, 254, 255, 256, 257, 258, 263 and 264 of this title to accept for such stock anything except:

a. Shares of stock of the corporation surviving or resulting from such merger or consolidation, or depository receipts in respect thereof;

b. Shares of stock of any other corporation, or depository receipts in respect thereof, which shares of stock (or depository receipts in respect thereof) or depository receipts at the effective date of the merger or consolidation will be either listed on a national securities exchange or held of record by more than 2,000 holders;

c. Cash in lieu of fractional shares or fractional depository receipts described in the foregoing paragraphs (b)(2)a. and b. of this section; or

d. Any combination of the shares of stock, depository receipts and cash in lieu of fractional shares or fractional depository receipts described in the foregoing paragraphs (b)(2)a., b. and c. of this section.

(3) In the event all of the stock of a subsidiary Delaware corporation party to a merger effected under § 253 or § 267 of this title is not owned by the parent immediately prior to the merger, appraisal rights shall be available for the shares of the subsidiary Delaware corporation.

(c) Any corporation may provide in its certificate of incorporation that appraisal rights under this section shall be available for the shares of any class or series of its stock as a result of an amendment to its certificate of incorporation, any merger or consolidation in which the corporation is a constituent corporation or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the corporation. If the certificate of incorporation contains such a provision, the procedures of this section, including those set forth in subsections (d) and (e) of this section, shall apply as nearly as is practicable.

(d) Appraisal rights shall be perfected as follows:

(1) If a proposed merger or consolidation for which appraisal rights are provided under this section is to be submitted for approval at a meeting of stockholders, the corporation, not less than 20 days prior to the meeting, shall notify each of its stockholders who was such on the record date for notice of such meeting (or such members who received notice in accordance with § 255(c) of this title) with respect to shares for which appraisal rights are available pursuant to subsection (b) or (c) of this section that appraisal rights are available for any or all of the shares of the constituent corporations, and shall include in such notice a copy of this section and, if 1 of the constituent corporations is a nonstock corporation, a copy of § 114 of this title. Each stockholder electing to demand the appraisal of such stockholder's shares shall deliver to the corporation, before the taking of the vote on the merger or consolidation, a written demand for appraisal of such stockholder intends thereby to demand the appraisal of such stockholder and that the stockholder intends thereby to demand the appraisal of such stockholder's shares. A proxy or vote against the merger or consolidation shall not constitute such a demand. A stockholder electing to take such action must do so by a separate written demand as herein provided. Within 10 days after the effective date of such merger or consolidation, the surviving or resulting corporation shall notify each stockholder of each constituent corporation who has complied with this subsection and has not voted in favor of or consented to the merger or consolidation of the date that the merger or consolidation has become effective; or

(2) If the merger or consolidation was approved pursuant to § 228, § 253, or § 267 of this title, then either a constituent corporation before the effective date of the merger or consolidation or the surviving or resulting corporation within 10 days thereafter shall notify each of the holders of any class or series of stock of such constituent corporation who are entitled to appraisal rights of the approval of the merger or consolidation and that appraisal rights are available for any or all shares of such class or series of stock of such constituent corporation, and shall include in such notice a copy of this section and, if 1 of the constituent corporations is a nonstock corporation, a copy of § 114 of this title. Such notice may, and, if given on or after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, shall, also notify such stockholders of the effective date of the merger or consolidation. Any stockholder entitled to appraisal rights may, within 20 days after the date of mailing of such notice, demand in writing from the surviving or resulting corporation the appraisal of such holder's shares. Such demand will be sufficient if it reasonably informs the corporation of the identity of the stockholder and that the stockholder intends thereby to demand the appraisal of such holder's shares. If such notice did not notify stockholders of the effective date of the merger or consolidation, either (i) each such constituent corporation shall send a second notice before the effective date of the merger or consolidation notifying each of the holders of any class or series of stock of such constituent corporation that are entitled to appraisal rights of the effective date of the merger or consolidation or (ii) the surviving or resulting corporation shall send such a second notice to all such holders on or within 10 days after such effective date; provided, however, that if such second notice is sent more than 20 days following the sending of the first notice, such second notice need only be sent to each stockholder who is entitled to appraisal rights and who has demanded appraisal of such holder's shares in accordance with this subsection. An affidavit of the secretary or assistant secretary or of the transfer agent of the corporation that is required to give

either notice that such notice has been given shall, in the absence of fraud, be prima facie evidence of the facts stated therein. For purposes of determining the stockholders entitled to receive either notice, each constituent corporation may fix, in advance, a record date that shall be not more than 10 days prior to the date the notice is given, provided, that if the notice is given on or after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, the record date shall be such effective date. If no record date is fixed and the notice is given prior to the effective date, the record date shall be the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the notice is given.

(e) Within 120 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, the surviving or resulting corporation or any stockholder who has complied with subsections (a) and (d) of this section hereof and who is otherwise entitled to appraisal rights, may commence an appraisal proceeding by filing a petition in the Court of Chancery demanding a determination of the value of the stock of all such stockholders. Notwithstanding the foregoing, at any time within 60 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, any stockholder who has not commenced an appraisal proceeding or joined that proceeding as a named party shall have the right to withdraw such stockholder's demand for appraisal and to accept the terms offered upon the merger or consolidation. Within 120 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, any stockholder who has complied with the requirements of subsections (a) and (d) of this section hereof, upon written request, shall be entitled to receive from the corporation surviving the merger or resulting from the consolidation a statement setting forth the aggregate number of holders of such shares. Such written statement shall be mailed to the stockholder within 10 days after such stockholder's written request for such a statement is received by the surviving or resulting corporation or within 10 days after expiration of the period for delivery of demands for appraisal under subsection (d) of this section hereof, whichever is later. Notwithstanding subsection (a) of this section, a person who is the beneficial owner of shares of such shock held either in a voting trust or by a nominee on behalf of such person may, in such person's own name, file a petition or request from the corporation the statement described in this subsection.

(f) Upon the filing of any such petition by a stockholder, service of a copy thereof shall be made upon the surviving or resulting corporation, which shall within 20 days after such service file in the office of the Register in Chancery in which the petition was filed a duly verified list containing the names and addresses of all stockholders who have demanded payment for their shares and with whom agreements as to the value of their shares have not been reached by the surviving or resulting corporation. If the petition shall be filed by the surviving or resulting corporation, the petition shall be accompanied by such a duly verified list. The Register in Chancery, if so ordered by the Court, shall give notice of the time and place fixed for the hearing of such petition by registered or certified mail to the surviving or resulting corporation and to the stockholders shown on the list at the addresses therein stated. Such notice shall also be given by 1 or more publications at least 1 week before the day of the hearing, in a newspaper of general circulation published in the City of Wilmington, Delaware or such publication as the Court deems advisable. The forms of the notices by mail and by publication shall be approved by the Court, and the costs thereof shall be borne by the surviving or resulting corporation.

(g) At the hearing on such petition, the Court shall determine the stockholders who have complied with this section and who have become entitled to appraisal rights. The Court may require the stockholders who have demanded an appraisal for their shares and who hold stock represented by certificates to submit their certificates of stock to the Register in Chancery for notation thereon of the pendency of the appraisal proceedings; and if any stockholder fails to comply with such direction, the Court may dismiss the proceedings as to such stockholder.

(h) After the Court determines the stockholders entitled to an appraisal, the appraisal proceeding shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of the Court of Chancery, including any rules specifically governing appraisal proceedings. Through such proceeding the Court shall determine the

fair value of the shares exclusive of any element of value arising from the accomplishment or expectation of the merger or consolidation, together with interest, if any, to be paid upon the amount determined to be the fair value. In determining such fair value, the Court shall take into account all relevant factors. Unless the Court in its discretion determines otherwise for good cause shown, interest from the effective date of the merger through the date of payment of the judgment shall be compounded quarterly and shall accrue at 5% over the Federal Reserve discount rate (including any surcharge) as established from time to time during the period between the effective date of the merger and the date of payment of the judgment. Upon application by the surviving or resulting corporation or by any stockholder entitled to participate in the appraisal proceeding, the Court may, in its discretion, proceed to trial upon the appraisal prior to the final determination of the stockholders entitled to an appraisal. Any stockholder whose name appears on the list filed by the surviving or resulting corporation pursuant to subsection (f) of this section and who has submitted such stockholder's certificates of stock to the Register in Chancery, if such is required, may participate fully in all proceedings until it is finally determined that such stockholder is not entitled to appraisal rights under this section.

(i) The Court shall direct the payment of the fair value of the shares, together with interest, if any, by the surviving or resulting corporation to the stockholders entitled thereto. Payment shall be so made to each such stockholder, in the case of holders of uncertificated stock forthwith, and the case of holders of shares represented by certificates upon the surrender to the corporation of the certificates representing such stock. The Court's decree may be enforced as other decrees in the Court of Chancery may be enforced, whether such surviving or resulting corporation be a corporation of this State or of any state.

(j) The costs of the proceeding may be determined by the Court and taxed upon the parties as the Court deems equitable in the circumstances. Upon application of a stockholder, the Court may order all or a portion of the expenses incurred by any stockholder in connection with the appraisal proceeding, including, without limitation, reasonable attorney's fees and the fees and expenses of experts, to be charged pro rata against the value of all the shares entitled to an appraisal.

(k) From and after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, no stockholder who has demanded appraisal rights as provided in subsection (d) of this section shall be entitled to vote such stock for any purpose or to receive payment of dividends or other distributions on the stock (except dividends or other distributions payable to stockholders of record at a date which is prior to the effective date of the merger or consolidation); provided, however, that if no petition for an appraisal shall be filed within the time provided in subsection (e) of this section, or if such stockholder shall deliver to the surviving or resulting corporation a written withdrawal of such stockholder's demand for an appraisal and an acceptance of the merger or consolidation, either within 60 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation as provided in subsection (e) of this section or thereafter with the written approval of the corporation, then the right of such stockholder to an appraisal shall cease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no appraisal proceeding in the Court of Chancery shall be dismissed as to any stockholder without the approval of the Court, and such approval may be conditioned upon such terms as the Court deems just; provided, however that this provision shall not affect the right of any stockholder who has not commenced an appraisal proceeding or joined that proceeding as a named party to withdraw such stockholder's demand for appraisal and to accept the terms offered upon the merger or consolidation within 60 days after the effective date of the merger or consolidation, as set forth in subsection (e) of this section.

(1) The shares of the surviving or resulting corporation to which the shares of such objecting stockholders would have been converted had they assented to the merger or consolidation shall have the status of authorized and unissued shares of the surviving or resulting corporation.

8 Del. C. 1953, § 262; 56 Del. Laws, c. 50; 56 Del. Laws, c. 186, § 24; 57 Del. Laws, c. 148, §§ 27-29; 59 Del. Laws, c. 106, § 12; 60 Del. Laws, c. 371, §§ 3-12; 63 Del. Laws, c. 25, § 14; 63 Del. Laws, c. 152, §§ 1, 2; 64 Del. Laws, c. 112, §§ 46-54; 66 Del. Laws, c. 136, §§ 30-32; 66 Del. Laws, c. 352, § 9; 67 Del. Laws, c. 376, §§ 19, 20; 68 Del. Laws, c. 337, §§ 3, 4; 69 Del. Laws, c. 61, § 10; 69 Del. Laws, c. 262, §§ 1-9; 70 Del. Laws, c. 79, § 16; 70 Del. Laws, c. 186, § 1; 70 Del. Laws, c. 299, §§ 2, 3; 70 Del. Laws, c. 349, § 22; 71 Del. Laws, c. 120, § 15; 71 Del. Laws, c. 339, §§ 49-52; 73 Del. Laws, c. 82, § 21; 76 Del. Laws, c. 145, §§ 11-16; 77 Del. Laws, c. 14, §§ 12, 13; 77 Del. Laws, c. 253, §§ 47-50; 77 Del. Laws, c. 290, §§ 16, 17.

ANNEX D

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark one)

ý ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended: December 31, 2012

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 Commission file number: 001-33813

Commission file number: 001-33813

MEMSIC, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

DELAWARE

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

04-3457049 (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

One Tech Drive, Suite 325 Andover, MA 01810 Telephone: (978)738-0900

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant's principal executive offices)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Common Stock, \$0.00001 par value Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: **None** Name of each exchange on which registered The Nasdaq Stock Market, LLC (Nasdaq Global Market)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes o No ý

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act. Yes o No \acute{y}

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \circ No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes \circ No o

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

o Large accelerated filer	o Accelerated filer	o Non-accelerated filer	ý Smaller reporting company
		(Do not check if a	
		smaller reporting	
		company)	
Indicate by check mark w	hether the registrant is a shell co	ompany (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of	the Exchange Act). Yes o No ý

As of June 30, 2012 (the last business day of the registrant's most recently completed second fiscal quarter), the aggregate market value of voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant was approximately \$30,724,931.

On March 19, 2013, 24,236,386 shares of our common stock were outstanding.

Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement for our 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or before April 30, 2013 are incorporated by reference in Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

MEMSIC, INC.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

INDEX

PART IItem 1.BusinessItem 1.A.BusinessItem 1.A.Risk FactorsItem 1.A.Risk FactorsUnresolved Staff CommentsD-31Item 2.PropertiesItem 3.Legal ProceedingsItem 4.Mine Safety DisclosuresPART IIItem 5.Item 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesItem 6.Selected Financial DataItem 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsItem 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataItem 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureItem 9.A.Controls and ProceduresD-87Item 9.Other InformationPART IIIVertification
D-4Item 1A.Risk FactorsItem 1A.Risk FactorsItem 1B.Unresolved Staff CommentsItem 2.PropertiesItem 3.Legal ProceedingsItem 4.Mine Safety DisclosuresPART IIItem 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesTem 6.Selected Financial DataItem 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsItem 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataItem 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureD-87Item 9A.Controls and ProceduresD-88
Item 1A.Risk FactorsD-9Item 1B.Unresolved Staff CommentsD-31Item 2.PropertiesD-31Item 3.Legal ProceedingsD-32Item 4.Mine Safety DisclosuresD-32PART IIItem 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity. Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesD-33Item 6.Selected Financial DataD-33Item 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsD-34Item 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataD-54Item 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureD-87Item 9A.Controls and ProceduresD-87Item 9BOther InformationD-88
Item 2.PropertiesD-31Item 3.Legal ProceedingsD-32Item 4.Mine Safety DisclosuresD-32PART IIItem 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesD-33Item 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesD-33Item 6.Selected Financial DataD-33Item 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsD-34Item 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataD-54Item 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureD-87Item 94.Controls and ProceduresD-87Item 9BOther InformationD-88
Item 2.PropertiesD-31Item 3.Legal ProceedingsD-32Item 4.Mine Safety DisclosuresD-32PART IIItem 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesD-33Item 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesD-33Item 6.Selected Financial DataD-33Item 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsD-34Item 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataD-54Item 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureD-87Item 94.Controls and ProceduresD-87Item 9BOther InformationD-88
Item 4.Mine Safety DisclosuresD-32PART IIItem 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesItem 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesItem 6.Selected Financial DataItem 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsItem 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataItem 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureItem 94.Controls and ProceduresItem 9BOther Information
PART II Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities Item 6. Selected Financial Data D-33 Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations D-34 Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data D-54 Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure D-87 Item 9A. Controls and Procedures D-87 Item 9B Other Information D-88
Item 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesItem 5.D-33Item 6.Selected Financial DataItem 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsItem 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataItem 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureItem 9A.Controls and ProceduresItem 9BOther Information
Ltem 6.Selected Financial DataD-33Item 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsD-34Item 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataD-54Item 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureD-87Item 9A.Controls and ProceduresD-87Item 9BOther InformationD-88
Item 6.Selected Financial DataD-33Item 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsD-34Item 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataD-54Item 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureD-87Item 9A.Controls and ProceduresD-87Item 9BOther InformationD-88
Item 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsD-34Item 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataD-54Item 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureD-87Item 9A.Controls and ProceduresD-87Item 9BOther InformationD-88
Item 8.Financial Statements and Supplementary DataD-54Item 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureD-87Item 9A.Controls and ProceduresD-87Item 9BOther InformationD-88
Item 9.Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureD-87Item 9A.Controls and ProceduresD-87Item 9BOther InformationD-88
Item 9A.Controls and ProceduresD-87Item 9BOther InformationD-88
Item 9B Other Information
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
D-89
Item 11. Executive Compensation D-89
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters D-89
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence D-89
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services D-89
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
<u>D-90</u>
<u>Signatures</u> D-94

D-3

PART I

Item 1. Business

We provide advanced semiconductor sensor and system solutions based on integrated micro electro-mechanical systems, or MEMS, technology and mixed signal circuit design. Our revenues have derived primarily from the sale of sensor products, principally accelerometers and magnetic sensors. During 2012, we continued to make progress in our business plan to transform ourselves into a multiple-product company serving diverse markets.

Sensor products.

Our sensors are used primarily for motion and direction sensing applications. We combine proprietary thermal-based MEMS technology and advanced analog mixed signal processing circuitry design into a single chip using a standard complementary metal-oxide semiconductor, or CMOS, process. We believe that this approach allows us to provide sensor solutions at a lower cost, with higher performance and greater functionality than our competitors. In addition, our technology platform allows us to easily integrate additional functions or create new sensors to expand into new applications. We expect that as MEMS technology advances, it will enable electronic systems to become smaller, faster, more energy-efficient and less expensive, and that the market for MEMS sensors will continue to expand as functions and products enabled by MEMS sensor solutions achieve broader penetration in the mobile phone, consumer, automotive, aerospace, medical and industrial markets.

Our accelerometer products are used to measure tilt, shock, vibration and acceleration, and have a wide range of applications such as mobile phones, automotive safety systems, cameras and video projectors. Any product that requires the control or measurement of motion is a potential application for accelerometers. For example, in mobile phones, accelerometers enable a variety of value-added functions such as image orientation, gaming control and text scrolling.

In automotive applications, accelerometers are deployed in airbag, electronic stability control, rollover protection, and navigation systems. Our largest automotive customer is Autoliv, Inc., a leading European automotive safety systems supplier, which uses our accelerometers in its rollover protection and vehicle stability control systems.

In consumer applications, accelerometers are used in image projectors, cameras, global positioning systems, video gaming systems and interactive toys. We are among the leading providers of accelerometers for image projectors, supplying to several Japanese original equipment manufacturers ("OEMs").

Industrial and medical applications include inclination sensing, earthquake detection and cardiac pacemakers.

We also provide MEMS-based magnetic sensors that bring enhanced digital compass capabilities for mobile applications such as cell phones, tablet personal computers ("PCs") and personal navigation devices. Our anisotropic magneto resistance ("AMR") based magnetic sensor is well suited for discrete and integrated mobile solutions due to its high accuracy, good sensitivity across temperature and low power consumption. As the adoption of GPS-enabled smart phones is accelerating worldwide, we have benefited from this trend through sales of our magnetic sensors to a major manufacturer of smart phones. At the same time, we are working on developing new magnetic sensor applications to be used in automotive and industrial markets.

We will continue to capitalize on our proprietary MEMS technology to develop new types of sensors that will broaden our market opportunities. Our introduction of a MEMS-based flow sensor product for use in industrial applications such as gas-flow meters is an example of an extension of our thermal accelerometer product.



System solution products.

Our system solution products consist of wireless sensors that connect the physical environment with enterprise management and information systems to provide advanced monitoring, automation and control solutions for a range of industries, as well as inertial systems that provide end-users and systems integrators with MEMS-based solutions for measurement of static and dynamic motion in a wide variety of challenging environments, including avionics, remotely operated vehicles, agricultural and construction vehicles, automotive test and wind power turbines.

We have also continued to invest in the development of next-generation, multi-sensor and micro-controller unit, or MCU integrated system products at both the integrated circuit level for the consumer and mobile market and at the module level for the high-end industrial, automotive, and general aviation markets. Our next-generation product lines will combine our core competency in cost competitive MEMS sensor IC design and manufacturing with the core competency in multi-sensor system integration that we acquired from Crossbow Technology, Inc. or Crossbow Technology, in 2010.

Our operations.

We conduct research and development at our headquarters in Andover, Massachusetts and at facilities in San Jose, California, Chicago, Illinois and Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, China. Our research and development teams work closely with each other in our product and technology research and development activities. This enables us to access experienced and creative design talent in the United States, while benefiting from competitive engineering and manufacturing costs in China. In addition, our presence in China places us in close proximity to the supply chain for the large Chinese markets for mobile phones and consumer electronics.

Our two subsidiaries in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province, China, are primarily responsible for our manufacturing operations, including product and manufacturing engineering and quality assurance, as well as application engineering, product development and sales to support the Asia market.

We manufacture our accelerometer products utilizing a "semi-fabless" model by outsourcing the production of CMOS wafers and completing the post-CMOS MEMS process in-house. By outsourcing the standard CMOS manufacturing process, we are able to leverage mature semiconductor infrastructure and standard wafer fabrication processes and, in turn, more efficiently manage our capital expenditures. Moreover, we believe that retaining the key MEMS manufacturing process in-house enables us to protect and retain control over our key proprietary technology more effectively and to create a higher barrier to entry.

We manufacture our magnetic sensor products through utilizing sensor wafers that we produce from both internal and external fabrication facilities, or fabs, and outsourcing the packaging process and completing the testing process in-house. By maintaining our own magnetic sensor fab, we can mitigate the risk of shortage of wafer supplies in case the volume of our requirements for magnetic sensors increases rapidly.

We manufacture our wireless system solution products and partial inertial system solution products through outsourcing most of the assembly process to third-party contract assembly vendors and performing final testing and programming functions in-house at our facility in Wuxi. Certain of our inertial system solution products, including FAA-certified products, have been manufactured by Crossbow Technology under a manufacturing agreement that expired on December 31, 2012. We are evaluating other FAA-certified vendors to carry on the manufacturing of our FAA-certified products in the future.

We maintain sales offices in Andover, Massachusetts and San Jose, California, in Shenzhen and Shanghai, China, in Taipei, Taiwan, and in Yokohama, Japan. We sell our products using our direct



sales force, as well as through systems integrators, resellers, distributors and sales representatives worldwide.

Our Competitive Strengths

Our key competitive strengths include the following:

Proprietary technology enabling superior reliability, functionality and pricing. We have proprietary rights to produce MEMS accelerometers based on a unique thermal technology which has higher shock tolerance, lower failure rate and lower cost relative to alternative mechanical solutions. Our accelerometers can be manufactured on a standard CMOS process with on-chip mixed signal processing, which enables us to enhance reliability and reduces our production cost. This standardized process enables us to easily integrate additional functions or create new sensors for MEMS applications beyond accelerometers and expand into the magnetic, touch and flow sensor markets.

Comprehensive system solutions offering. Our sensor solutions involve the development of a fully-integrated sensor system on a chip, together with the reference designs, algorithms, source code and, in some cases, the application content to facilitate rapid commercial introduction. For example, our line of magnetic sensors incorporates our Intelligent Heading Correction algorithms, which automatically calibrate the device and compensate for extraneous magnetic interference, providing high accuracy and promoting ease of use. Our Crossbow acquisition has enhanced our capabilities in designing and developing integrated "smart sensing" solutions. Integrated solutions such as this enable our customers to shorten their product development cycle and allow for rapid adoption of our products in new applications.

Leading market position and established customer relationships. We are a pioneer in providing accelerometers to China's large mobile phone market. We are also among the leading sensor providers in a diverse range of other applications such as keystone screen adjustment sensors for image projectors, supplying to several Japanese OEMs. In addition, our accelerometers are incorporated in vehicle stability control systems for the automotive market, where Autoliv, Inc. is a major customer. We have developed close working relationships with our customers and regularly work together with them on new applications development.

Efficient semi-fabless manufacturing model creating higher entry barrier. The semi-fabless model that we utilize for our accelerometer sensors reduces capital expenditures while retaining manufacturing control over key MEMS-based process steps. We outsource the production of standard CMOS wafers, which we consider to be a commodity, to our foundry service provider, and perform in-house the proprietary post-CMOS MEMS process of building MEMS on top of the standard CMOS wafer. We believe that by performing proprietary manufacturing processes in-house, we create a higher barrier to entry.

Strong technology-driven management team. Our management team has extensive experience in the MEMS and integrated circuit design industry. Our founder and CEO, Dr. Yang Zhao, has been dedicated to the research and development of MEMS sensors since the early 1990's while he was a doctoral student at Princeton University, and is named as an inventor on twelve patents we own and six of our pending patent applications in the United States. Furthermore, our management team has successfully guided us through our rapid business expansion while maintaining focus on the development and expansion of our core technological capabilities.

D-6

Our Strategy

Key elements of our strategy for growth include the following:

Increase penetration of existing markets and customers. We are actively seeking design wins by building on our strong existing relationships with major OEM customers in the automotive and industrial markets in China, Taiwan, Japan, Europe and the United States. Our major OEM accounts have in the past generally focused on a particular OEM system or application, and we intend to take advantage of our strong relationships in these accounts to seek new design-in opportunities in a wider range of OEM systems and applications that capitalize on the more diverse range of technologies and sensor solutions that we can now offer.

Diversify into new sensor and integrated "smart sensing" system products. We have a strong foundation and the capabilities to diversify into new sensor products, including temperature, pressure, flow sensors and gyroscopes. Emerging applications for sensors frequently lack incumbent competitors, providing an opportunity for a first-mover to define the dominant application technology. We also believe that there is an opportunity in integrated sensor products, which combine multiple sensing devices onto one chip, and "smart sensing" systems that integrate sensors with on-board processors and other elements such as wireless communications and software to provide a complete sensing solution.

Maintain cost leadership. We intend to maintain our cost advantage by developing new innovative proprietary technologies, focusing on designing products on readily available foundry processes, and leveraging our low-cost manufacturing capabilities in China. For example, an important goal in integrating the businesses we acquired from Crossbow has been to drive down the manufacturing cost of the acquired products by transitioning manufacturing to our facility in China.

Leverage cross-continental research and development model to strengthen technology platform. We have research and development teams in Andover, Chicago, San Jose and Wuxi that work closely with each other in our product and technology research and development activities. Our U.S. team is responsible for original research and development activities while our China team focuses on implementing the technology developed by our U.S. team. We believe that this cross-continental research and development model keeps us at the forefront of MEMS sensor research while maintaining a competitive cost base.

Engage in selective acquisitions to build new MEMS capabilities. We intend to evaluate and potentially make acquisitions of technologies and businesses that are complementary to our product portfolio, such as our January 2010 acquisition of business lines from Crossbow and our 2008 acquisition of industrial gas-flow meter technology from MEMStron. We believe that there is a large market potential for integrated system-on-chip sensor products which incorporate multiple types of sensors. While we develop our technologies in-house, we are also seeking opportunities to acquire or license key technologies from third parties as well. We believe our strong core technology platform and our newly enhanced smart sensing systems design capabilities will also provide us an advantage in integrating the acquired technologies to create a broader range of sensor solutions products in the market.

Corporate Information

We are a Delaware corporation incorporated in February 1999. Our principal executive offices are located at One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, Massachusetts 01810. Our telephone number is (978) 738-0900 and our website is www.memsic.com. Information contained on our website is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.



Conventions that Apply in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Unless otherwise indicated, references in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to:

"U.S. dollars," "\$," and "dollars" are to the legal currency of the United States;

"China" or the "PRC" are to the People's Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this Annual Report on Form 10-K only, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan; and

"RMB" and "Renminbi" are to the legal currency of the People's Republic of China.

"Yen" and "Japanese Jen" are to the legal currency of Japan

Unless the context indicates otherwise, "we," "us," "our company," "the Company," "our," and "MEMSIC" refer to MEMSIC, Inc. and its subsidiary.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains translations of certain RMB and Yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts at specified rates. Unless otherwise stated, the translations from RMB and Yen to U.S. dollars were made at the buying rate in effect on December 31, 2012 in The City of New York for cable transfers of RMB and Yen as certified for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, which was RMB6.23 to \$1.00 and Yen86.64 to \$1.00, respectively. We make no representation that the RMB, Yen or U.S. dollar amounts referred to in this Annual Report on Form 10-K could have been or could be converted into U.S. dollars or RMB, as the case may be, at any particular rate or at all. See "Risk Factors Risks Related to Doing Business in China Fluctuations in the value of RMB could negatively impact our result of operations" and " Restrictions on currency exchange may limit our ability to receive and use our revenue effectively" for discussions of the effects of fluctuating exchange rates and currency control on the value of our common stock. On December 31, 2012, the buying rate of RMB was RMB6.23 to \$1.00 and the buying rate of Yen was Yen86.64 to \$1.00.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the sections entitled "Risk Factors," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and "Business," contains forward-looking statements. These statements may relate to, but are not limited to, expectations of future operating results or financial performance, capital expenditures, introduction of new products, regulatory compliance, plans for growth and future operations, as well as assumptions relating to the foregoing. Forward-looking statements are inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which cannot be predicted or quantified. These risks and other factors include, but are not limited to, those listed under "Risk Factors." In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as "may," "will," "should," "could," "expect," "plan," "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "predict," "intend," "potential," "might," "would," "continue" or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. These statements are only predictions. Actual events or results may differ materially.

There may be events in the future that we are not able to accurately predict or control and that may cause our actual results to differ materially from the expectations we describe in our forward-looking statements. Except as required by applicable law, including the securities laws of the United States and the rules and regulations of the SEC, we do not plan to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K after we file this Annual Report on Form 10-K, whether as a result of any new information, future events or otherwise. Before you invest in our common stock, you should be aware that the occurrence of any of the events described in the "Risk Factors" section and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K could harm our business, prospects, operating results and financial condition. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Risks Relating to Our Business and Industry

Uncertain prospects for the global economy could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition

Global economics recently experienced a recession that affected all sectors of the economy. There is no certainty that recent improvements in economic conditions will continue, or that economic conditions will not deteriorate again in the future. These uncertainties affect businesses such as ours in a number of ways, making it difficult to accurately forecast and plan our future business activities. Weak economic conditions may lead consumers and businesses to postpone spending, which may cause our customers to cancel, decrease or delay their existing and future orders with us. Financial difficulties experienced by our suppliers or distributors could result in product delays, increased accounts receivable defaults and inventory challenges. If uncertain economic conditions continue or further deteriorate, our business and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected, as a result of, among other things:

reduced demand for our products, particularly in industries such as the automotive industry that have been severely affected by the global recession;

increased risk of order cancellations or delays;

increased pressure on the prices for our products, such as we have continued to experience in the handset market;

greater difficulty in collecting accounts receivable; and

risks to our liquidity, including the possibility that we might not have access to our cash and investments when needed.

We are unable to predict the prospects for recovery from the recent global downturn and the longer the duration of these uncertainties, the greater the risks we face in operating our business.

Our quarterly and annual operating results have fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate and are difficult to predict and if we do not meet financial expectations of securities analysts or investors, the price of our common stock will likely decline.

Our quarterly and annual operating results have fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate as a result of a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control. Comparing our operating results on a period-to-period basis may not be meaningful, and you should not rely on our past results as an indication of our future performance. Additionally, factors such as the acquisition of our sensor solutions business from Crossbow Technology in January 2010, which has a different operating model than our historical sensor business, and the continued intense competitive pressure on prices for our sensor products used in mobile phone applications, make predicting our future performance based on the results of prior periods particularly difficult. For example, after a period of low growth from 2007 to 2010, our net sales in 2011 grew by 76.3%, from \$38.7 million in 2010 to \$68.2 million, and then declined by 6.4% to \$63.8 million in 2012. Our gross margin decreased from 39.6% in 2010 to 35.0% in 2011, but increased to 37.1% in 2012. Our net loss in 2012 was improved to \$1.0 million from \$6.1 million in 2011 and \$7.4 million in 2010. Our quarterly and annual net sales, gross margin and net profit may be significantly different from our historical amounts, and in future periods may fall below expectations. These and other risks described in this "Risk Factors" section, including the following factors, could cause our quarterly and annual operating results to fluctuate from period to period:

the loss of one or more of our key customers;

the cancellation or deferral of customer orders in anticipation of our new products or product enhancements, or due to a reduction in our customers' end demand;

changes in the price we charge for our products or our pricing strategies, which may be impacted by economic conditions or the pricing strategies of our competitors;

the cyclicality of the semiconductor industry and seasonality in sales of products into which our products are incorporated;

seasonal fluctuations of some of our product application markets as well as geographical markets; and

the length of the product development cycle for our new products.

In addition, we plan our operating expenses, including research and development expenses, hiring of additional personnel and investments in inventory, in part on our expectations of future revenue, and our expenses are relatively fixed in the short term. However, if revenue for a particular quarter is lower than we expect, we may be unable to proportionately reduce our operating expenses for that quarter, which would harm our operating results for that quarter. If our operating results in future quarters fall below the expectations of securities analysts or investors, the market price of our common stock will likely decline.

The average selling prices of products in some of our markets have historically decreased rapidly and will likely continue to do so in the future, which could harm our revenue and gross margins.

In the semiconductor industry, the average selling price of a product typically declines significantly over the life of the product. In the past, we have reduced the average selling prices of our products in anticipation of future competitive pricing pressures, new product introductions by us or our competitors

and other factors. We expect that we will have to similarly reduce our products' average selling prices over the life of any particular product in the future. Reductions in our average selling prices to one customer could also impact our average selling prices to other customers. A decline in average selling prices can harm our gross margins. Our financial results will suffer if we are unable to offset reductions in our average selling prices by increasing our sales volumes, reducing our costs, adding new features to our existing products that enable us to increase the selling price, increasing our revenues from higher-margin products such as our new sensor solution products or developing new or enhanced products on a timely basis with higher selling prices or gross margins. For example, our gross margins declined from 45.6% in 2009 to 39.6% in 2010 to 35.0% in 2011, primarily as a result of decreasing unit prices in response to competitive pressures in the mobile handset market. However, our gross margin improved to 37.1% in 2012 as we shifted our sales focus to selective customers with less pricing pressure.

Acquisitions or investments that we make to expand our business may expose us to new risks and we may not realize the anticipated benefits of these acquisitions or investments.

As part of our growth strategy, we will continue to evaluate opportunities to acquire or invest in other businesses, intellectual property or technologies that would complement our current offerings, expand the breadth of markets we can address or enhance our technical capabilities. Acquisitions or investments that we may potentially make in the future entail a number of risks that could materially and adversely affect our business, operating and financial results, including:

problems integrating the acquired operations, technologies or products into our existing business and products;

diversion of management's time and attention from our core business;

adverse effects on existing business relationships with customers;

need for financial resources above our planned investment levels;

failures in realizing anticipated synergies;

difficulties in retaining business relationships with suppliers and customers of the acquired company;

risks associated with entering markets in which we lack experience;

potential loss of key employees of the acquired company;

potential write-offs of acquired assets;

potential expenses related to the amortization of intangible assets; and

potential goodwill impairment charges.

Our failure to address these risks may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Any such acquisition or investment may require a significant amount of capital investment, which would decrease the amount of cash available for working capital or capital expenditures. In addition, if we issue new equity securities to pay for acquisitions, our stockholders may experience dilution. If we borrow funds to finance acquisitions, such debt instruments may contain restrictive covenants that can, among other things, restrict us from distributing dividends.

Our Crossbow acquisition in particular exposed us to new risks that we have not previously faced.

The product lines we acquired from Crossbow are more highly integrated than our existing products, involve different technologies, more complex manufacturing, assembly and test processes and require more technical support than those required by our current product lines. The sales process and customer base for the Crossbow products also differs substantially from those of our current products.

Our manufacture and sale of the inertial navigation systems for use in general aviation that we acquired from Crossbow are subject to extensive regulatory requirements, including requirements that we obtain and maintain certifications from the United States Federal Aviation Administration, or FAA. Malfunctions in these inertial navigation systems could expose users to the risk of injury or death, and a product liability claim brought against us, even if unsuccessful, would likely be time consuming and costly to defend. Prior to 2010, we had no previous experience in designing, manufacturing, selling and supporting products of this type, and there can be no assurance that we will be successful in these endeavors. As of December 31, 2012, based on our updated forecasts, we concluded that the goodwill attributable to the Crossbow acquisition was fully impaired, and we wrote down the remaining value of \$0.6 million. We have been substantially reliant for the operation of this business on former Crossbow management, engineering, sales and marketing personnel who have become our employees, and are dependent on Crossbow to manufacture the FAA-certified products for us under the contract we entered into with Crossbow as part of the acquisition. This agreement expired on December 31, 2012, and there can be no assurance we will be able to make acceptable arrangements with another FAA-certified manufacturer to carry on the manufacture of those products We have experienced unforeseen difficulties in transitioning the manufacture of the acquired products to our own facility in China and have not been able to achieve the product cost improvements that we anticipated for these acquired businesses. The integration of the lines of business, technologies, personnel and operations we acquired from Crossbow could result in significant diversion of our management's attention and could also require the incurrence of substantial costs, which could adversely affect our profitability in the near term. Our failure to effectively address these risks, or to successfully integrate the businesses we acquired from Crossbow, or other businesses we may acquire, could have a material adverse effect on our business, our reputation and our results of operations

We may not be able to compete effectively and increase or maintain revenue and market share.

We may not be able to compete successfully against current or future competitors. If we do not compete successfully, our market share and revenue may decline. We and our distributors currently sell substantially all of our accelerometer and magnetic sensor products to original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, and original design manufacturers, or ODMs. We face competition in the sensor market primarily from traditional capacitive/piezoresistive-based accelerometer manufacturers, and hall-effect magnetic sensor manufacturers. Our Crossbow acquisition exposes us to competition from additional sources that we historically did not experience. Most of our current competitors have longer operating histories, significantly greater resources, brand recognition and a larger base of customers than we do. In addition, these competitors may have greater credibility with our existing or potential customers. Moreover, many of our competitors have been doing business with customers for a longer period of time and have established relationships, which may provide them with information regarding future market trends and requirements that may not be available to us. Additionally, some of our larger competitors may be able to provide greater incentives to customers through rebates and similar programs. Some of our competitors with multiple product lines may bundle their products to offer a broader product portfolio or integrate sensor functionality into other products that we do not sell. These factors may make it difficult for us to gain or maintain market share.

Our ability to grow depends on our ability to secure and maintain relationships with OEM and ODM customers. If we cannot continue to achieve design wins, if our design wins do not result in large volume orders, or if we fail to meet an OEM's development and service demands, our ability to grow will be limited.

Our ability to grow depends on our ability to continue to achieve design wins with OEMs and ODMs to whom we sell either directly or through our distributors. In order to achieve a design win, where our product is incorporated into an OEM's or ODM's product design, we may often need to make modifications to our products or develop new products that involve significant technological challenges. We may also incur significant product development costs by participating in lengthy field

trials and extensive qualification programs. We cannot assure you that these efforts would result in a design win.

Furthermore, a design win is not a binding commitment to purchase our products and may not result in large volume orders of our products. Rather, it is a decision by an OEM or ODM to use our products in the design process of that OEM's or ODM's product. OEMs and ODMs can choose at any time to stop using our products in their designs or product development efforts. Moreover, even if our products were chosen to be incorporated into an OEM's or ODM's product, our ability to generate significant revenues from that OEM or ODM will depend on the commercial success of their products. Thus, a design win may not necessarily generate significant revenues if our customers' products are not commercially successful.

In addition, OEMs and ODMs place considerable pressure on us to meet their tight development schedules. These customers also often require extensive and localized customer support. As a result, we may be required to significantly expand our customer support organization. Devoting a substantial amount of our limited resources to one or more of these customer relationships could result in opportunity costs which detract or delay us from completing other important product development projects for our other existing customers, which could in turn impair our relationships with existing customers and negatively impact sales of the products under development.

We do not have long-term purchase commitments from our customers, including OEMs and ODMs, and our ability to accurately forecast demand for and sales of our products is limited, which may result in excess or insufficient inventory and significant uncertainty and volatility with respect to our revenue from period to period.

We do not have long-term purchase commitments from our customers, including OEMs and ODMs. Our customers may cancel or reschedule purchase orders. Our customers' purchase orders may vary significantly from period to period, and it is difficult to forecast future order quantities. The lead time required by our foundry providers for wafer production is typically longer than the lead time that our customers provide to us for delivery of our products to them. Therefore, to ensure availability of our products for our customers, we typically ask our foundry providers to start wafer production based on forecasts provided by our customers in advance of receiving purchase orders. However, these forecasts are not binding purchase commitments, and we do not recognize revenue until our products are shipped to customers. Accordingly, we incur inventory and manufacturing costs in advance of anticipated sales. We cannot assure you that any of our customers will continue to place purchase orders with us in the future at the same level as in prior periods or that the volume of our customers' purchase orders will be consistent with our expectations when we plan our expenditures in advance of receiving purchase orders. Our anticipated demand for our products may not materialize. In addition, manufacturing based on customer forecasts exposes us to risks of high inventory carrying costs and increased product obsolescence, which may increase our costs. If we overestimate demand for our products, or if purchase orders are cancelled or shipments are delayed, we may be left with excess inventory that we cannot sell. Conversely, if we underestimate demand, we may not have sufficient inventory and may lose market share and damage our customer relationships. Obtaining additional supply in the face of product shortages may be costly or impossible, particularly in the short term, which could prevent us from fulfilling orders. As a result, our results of operations may fluctuate significantly from period to period in the future.

The length of our sales cycle is unpredictable, which makes it difficult for us to forecast revenue and may increase the volatility of our operating results.

We have a lengthy sales cycle that typically begins with our receipt of an initial request from a customer and ends when our customer executes a purchase order for production quantities. We typically need to obtain a design win to receive purchase orders. In some cases, due to the rapid growth

of new product applications and technologies, this process can be time-consuming and requires substantial investment of our time and resources. In addition, our OEM and ODM customers may require significant time to test, evaluate and design our products into their products. Following a design win, OEMs and ODMs may need several months to begin large-volume production of the products that incorporate our products. Many factors beyond our control could affect the length of the sales cycle of our products. The uncertainties on the sales cycle length makes it difficult for us to forecast our revenue and may increase the volatility of our operating results.

We depend and expect to continue to depend on a limited number of customers for a high percentage of our revenues. As a result, the loss of, or a significant reduction in orders from, any of these customers would significantly reduce our revenues and harm our results of operations.

For 2012, three customers, each of which accounted for 10% or more of our net sales, accounted in the aggregate for 56.3% of our total net sales. For 2011, two OEM customers, each of which accounted for 10% or more of our net sales, accounted in the aggregate for 55.7% of our total net sales. For 2010, one OEM customer, accounted for more than 10% of our net sales. If our OEM customers do not experience continued commercial success with their OEM applications incorporating our products or if it or other major customers purchase fewer of our products, defer orders or fail to place additional orders with us, our revenue could decline, and our operating results may not meet market expectations. For example, sales to our largest OEM customer delined by 27% in 2012, contributing to our year-over-year decline in revenue, and are expected to decrease further in 2013. In addition, we face credit risks on some of our significant customers that are smaller companies. If those customers order our products, but fail to pay on time or at all, our liquidity and operating results could be materially and adversely affected.

Our success depends upon our customers' ability to successfully sell their products.

The success of our products depends, in significant part, on the success of our customers' products that incorporate our products. Most of our net sales in 2012 and 2011 were attributable to sensor products that were incorporated into products such as mobile phones, projectors and automobile parts. If any of our customers are unsuccessful in their sales, whether due to lack of market acceptance of their products, general industry slowdown, changes in the product supply chain or otherwise, our sales could be adversely affected. We are not certain whether these customers will be able to achieve success in their business or whether they will remain competitive in their business even if initially successful.

We rely on a small number of third-party foundries to manufacture wafers, which are significant components in our manufacturing process. If we are unable to secure sufficient supply of wafers, or if the wafers supplied to us do not meet our quality standards, we may be unable to ship finished products and our customer relationships may be damaged.

We currently rely on one foundry service provider to manufacture wafers used in our accelerometer products and two foundry service providers to supply wafers used for magnetic sensors.

Because we outsource our wafer production, which is a critical part of our manufacturing process, we face several significant risks, including:

lack of manufacturing capacity at these foundries;

limited control over delivery schedules, quality assurance and control, manufacturing yields and production costs; and

the unavailability of, or potential delays in obtaining access to, key process technologies.

The ability of these foundries to provide us with wafers is limited by their available capacity. We do not have a guaranteed level of production capacity with our principal foundry and it is difficult to

accurately forecast our capacity needs. Furthermore, we do not have a long-term agreement with this foundry and we place our orders on a purchase order basis. As a result, if it raises its prices or is not able to meet our required capacity for any reason, including shortages or delays in shipment of semiconductor equipment or materials it uses to manufacture our wafers, or if our business relationship with our principal foundry deteriorates, we may not be able to obtain the required capacity from it and would have to seek alternative foundries, which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Using foundries with which we have no established relationships could expose us to potentially unfavorable pricing, unsatisfactory quality or insufficient capacity allocation.

Furthermore, our principal foundries can allocate capacity to the production of other companies' products and reduce deliveries to us on short notice. Many of their customers are larger than we are and may have long-term agreements with the foundry and may receive preferential treatment from them in terms of capacity allocation. Reallocation of capacity by the foundry to its other customers could impair our ability to secure the supply of wafers that we need, which could significantly delay our ability to ship our products, causing a loss of revenue and damage to our customer relationships. In addition, if we underestimate our needs for foundry capacity, our foundries may not have available capacity to meet our immediate needs or we may be required to pay higher costs to fulfill those needs, either of which could materially and adversely affect our business, operating results or financial condition.

Our key foundry service provider maintains facilities that are located in a region that is subject to earthquakes, typhoons and other natural disasters, as well as geopolitical risks and social upheaval.

Currently, most of the wafers used in our sensor products are manufactured by a foundry in Taiwan. Taiwan is susceptible to earthquakes, typhoons, flood and other natural disasters, and has experienced severe earthquakes and typhoons in recent years that caused significant property damage and loss of life. In addition, this foundry is subject to risks associated with uncertain political, economic and other conditions in Taiwan and elsewhere in Asia, such as political turmoil in the region and the outbreak of contagious diseases, such as Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome, or SARS, or any other epidemic such as avian flu. The occurrence of any of the foregoing could disrupt the foundry's operations, resulting in significant disruption or delays in deliveries of raw materials for our operations. As a result, our business operations could be significantly disrupted and deliveries of our products could be delayed.

Our products are complex and defects in our products could result in a loss of customers, damage to our reputation, decreased revenue, unexpected expenses, loss of market share and warranty and product liability claims.

Our products are complex and must meet our customers' stringent quality requirements. Such complex products may contain undetected errors or defects, especially when first introduced or when new versions are released. For example, our products may contain errors that are not detected until after they are shipped because we cannot test for all possible scenarios. Errors or defects can arise due to design flaws, defects in materials or components or as a result of manufacturing difficulties, which can affect both the quality and yield of the product. As our products become more complex, we face significantly higher risk of undetected defects. Any errors or defects in our products, or the perception that there may be errors or defects in our products, could result in customer rejection of our products, damage to our reputation, lost revenue, diversion of development resources and increases in customer service and support costs and warranty claims.

Failure of suppliers to deliver on a timely basis sufficient quantities of components or materials or licensed software used in our products may result in delays or other disruptions in introducing or shipping our products, which could adversely affect our business and operating results.

Some of the components, materials and software used in our products are purchased or licensed from a limited number of suppliers and it is difficult for us to redesign our products to incorporate components, materials or software from alternative suppliers. For example, we obtain the ceramic packaging materials that we use on our accelerometer products from only two suppliers. If any of our suppliers terminates its relationship with us, or is unable to deliver components, materials or software in accordance with our requirements, we may not be able to find alternative sources on favorable terms on short notice. Our inability to find or develop alternative sources of components, materials and software, if and as required, could result in delays or other disruptions in introducing or shipping our products. If any of these events occur, our business and operating results could be adversely affected.

Our success depends on the continuing efforts of our senior management team and other key personnel and on our ability to successfully attract, train and retain additional key personnel.

Our future success depends heavily upon the continuing services of the members of our senior management team and various engineering and other technical personnel. In particular, our founder, Chief Executive Officer and director, Dr. Yang Zhao, was and remains central to the development and advancement of the thermal MEMS technology on which our accelerometer products have been designed and developed. In addition, our engineers and other technical personnel are critical to our future technological and product innovations. We have experienced significant turnover among our senior executive personnel since our initial public offering. If Dr. Zhao or any of our other executive officers were to resign or otherwise leave our employment, we might not be able to replace them easily or at all, and our business could be disrupted and our financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, if any member of our senior management team or any of our other key personnel joins a competitor or forms a competing company, we may lose customers, distributors, know-how and key professionals and staff members. We may incur increased operating expenses and be required to divert the attention of other senior executives to recruit replacement for key personnel. Our industry is characterized by high demand and intense competition for talent and the pool of qualified candidates is very limited. We cannot assure you that we will be able to retain existing, or attract and retain new, qualified personnel, including senior executives and skilled engineers, whom we will need to achieve our strategic objectives. In addition, our ability to train and integrate new employees into our operations may not meet the growing demands of our business. The loss of any of our key personnel or our inability to attract or retain qualified personnel, including engineers and others, could delay the development and introduction of, and would have an adverse effect on our ability to sell, our products as well

If we are unable to effectively manage changes in our rate of growth and address related financial, operational and systems requirements, our business and operating results could be harmed.

Our future growth and expansion require that we expand our operational, engineering and financial systems, procedures and controls and to improve our information technology, accounting and other internal management systems. However, as a result of the recent global economic recession and increasing competition from mobile phone and consumer markets, we have experienced losses since 2009, which have required us to carefully control our costs and expenses in order to minimize the impact of lower gross margins on our results of operations. To the extent that such measures may have impaired or delayed our new product development activities, they could adversely affect our competitiveness. Additionally, these expense control measures could adversely affect our ability to continue to make necessary improvements to our operational, financial and management information systems. We have experienced significant turnover among our senior executive personnel. Our expense

reduction measures also included headcount reductions, particularly in our sales and marketing and research and development staffs. These changes have to some extent contributed, and may in the future contribute, to the challenge of effectively managing our changing operations. If we are unable to manage our changing rate of growth effectively, we may not be able to take advantage of market opportunities, execute our business plan or respond to competitive pressures. To successfully manage our business in this rapidly changing environment, we believe we must effectively:

hire, train, integrate and manage additional qualified engineers, senior managers, sales and marketing personnel and information technology personnel;

implement additional, and improve existing, administrative and operational systems, procedures and controls;

expand our finance and accounting team, which includes hiring additional personnel with U.S. GAAP and internal control expertise;

continue to expand and upgrade our design and product development capabilities; and

manage our relationships with semiconductor manufacturing service providers, customers, suppliers and other third parties.

Moreover, if our allocation of resources does not correspond with future demand for particular products, we could miss market opportunities, and our business and financial results could be materially and adversely affected. We cannot assure you that we will be able to manage our growth effectively in the future.

Assertions by third parties of infringement by us of their intellectual property rights could disrupt our business, result in significant costs and cause our operating results to suffer.

The semiconductor industry is characterized by vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual property rights, which has resulted in protracted and expensive litigation for many companies. We may receive claims from various industry participants alleging infringement of patents, trade secrets and/or other intellectual property rights in the future. Any lawsuit or administrative proceedings resulting from such allegations could subject us to significant liability for damages and invalidate our existing intellectual property rights. These lawsuits, regardless of their success, would likely be time-consuming and expensive to resolve and would divert management's time and attention. Any potential intellectual property litigation or administrative proceedings also could force us to do one or more of the following:

stop selling products that have used technology or manufacturing processes containing the allegedly infringing intellectual property;

pay damages to the party claiming infringement;

attempt to obtain a license for the relevant intellectual property, which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms or at all; and

attempt to redesign those products that contain the allegedly infringing intellectual property with non-infringing intellectual property, which may not be possible.

The outcome of a dispute may result in our need to develop non-infringing technology or enter into royalty or licensing agreements. We have agreed to defend certain of our distributors and direct OEM customers against any claims by third parties of infringement of intellectual property rights and to indemnify them for all costs and damages arising from such claims. Any intellectual property dispute could have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results or financial condition.

We may not be able to prevent others from unauthorized use of our intellectual property, which could harm our business and competitive position.

We design our accelerometer and non-accelerometer products in-house and rely on a combination of patents, trademarks and employee and third-party nondisclosure agreements to protect our intellectual property. As of December 31, 2012, we owned forty-one patents and had eighteen pending patent applications in the United States, and owned forty-two patents and had twenty-nine pending patent applications and assignments in China. As of that date, we also had five issued patents and nine pending patent applications in Japan, two issued patents and five pending patent applications in Germany, three pending patent applications filed with the European Patent Office and seven pending patent applications filed under the Patent Cooperation Treaty (PCT). Policing any unauthorized use of our intellectual property is difficult and costly and the steps we have taken may be inadequate to prevent the misappropriation of our technology. Reverse engineering, unauthorized copying or other misappropriation of our technologies could enable third parties to benefit from our technologies without paying us. In addition, others may independently develop similar proprietary information and techniques, gain access to our intellectual property rights, disclose such technology or design around our patents. Additionally, we cannot assure you that any patent or registered trademark owned by us will be enforceable or will not be invalidated, circumvented or otherwise challenged in the PRC, the United States or other countries or that the rights granted thereunder will provide competitive advantages to us or that any of our pending or future patent applications will be issued with the scope of the claims sought by us, if at all. Furthermore, litigation may be necessary to enforce our patents and other intellectual property rights, protect our trade secrets, determine the validity of and scope of the proprietary rights of others, or defend against claims of infringement or invalidity. Litigation could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources which could harm our business, could ultimately be unsuccessful in protecting our intellectual property rights, and may result in our intellectual property rights being held invalid or unenforceable. Moreover, foreign intellectual property laws may not protect our intellectual property rights. Enforcement of PRC intellectual property-related laws has historically been ineffective, primarily because of ambiguities in PRC laws and difficulties in enforcement. Accordingly, intellectual property rights and confidentiality protections in China may not be as effective as in the United States or other countries. Our failure to protect our intellectual property effectively could harm our business, prospects and reputation.

Some of our key technologies and know-how are licensed from third parties, including a competing company, and the termination of any of the licenses will materially and adversely affect our business.

Our business relies on our ability to use, develop and otherwise exploit our accelerometer-related technologies and know-how. Some of our key technologies and know-how were acquired by us from Analog Devices through licensing arrangements as part of its investment in our company in 1999. All these licensing arrangements may be terminated upon the occurrence of certain events. In particular,

Analog Devices assigned to us its license from Canada's Simon Fraser University, or SFU, on our core thermal accelerometer technology. SFU is entitled to terminate our license upon the occurrence of one of a number of events, including our failure to timely provide financial records. In addition, the license is terminated automatically upon the occurrence of insolvency, bankruptcy or other similar events.

Analog Devices granted us an exclusive, perpetual license to its thermal accelerometer technology rights to use, make, have made, import, offer to sell, sell, develop, modify, reproduce and distribute thermal accelerometer products and agreed not to use such technology rights to make or sell thermal accelerometer products itself. Analog Devices is entitled to terminate this license if our company is dissolved or liquidated or if we breach a material provision of the license agreement.

Analog Devices granted us a non-exclusive license to certain of its testing, wafer sawing and wafer level capping and chip-level packaging technology rights to use, make, have made, import, offer to sell, sell, develop, modify, reproduce and distribute thermal accelerometer products. Analog Devices may terminate this license if our company is dissolved or liquidated or if we breach a material provision of the license agreement.

Under our license with SFU, SFU is entitled to continue to use the licensed technology existing at the time of the license agreement, which was entered into in March 1999, as well as any related technology it develops thereafter without our support. Although we understand that SFU has not developed commercialized products based on its patented accelerometer technology to date, we cannot assure you that it will not do so in the future. If SFU seeks to develop commercialized products based on the accelerometer technology, it may deem us as a competitor and seek to terminate or limit the scope of our license, and as a result, our business, operations, financial condition and results of operation may be materially and adversely affected.

We consider Analog Devices to be a significant competitor. If Analog Devices seeks to terminate, limit the scope of, or increase the fees payable with any of our licenses granted or assigned by them, our business, operations, financial condition and results of operation may be materially and adversely affected.

The loss of the services of our independent packaging service provider could disrupt our shipments, harm our customer relationships and reduce our sales.

We outsource a portion of our product packaging process to third-party packaging service providers. As a result, we do not completely control our product delivery schedules, packaging costs or quality assurance and control for products subject to third-party packaging process. Although we have developed the capacity to perform certain product packaging activities in-house, if our third party packaging service provider experiences capacity constraints or disruption or financial difficulties, raises its prices, suffers any damage to its facilities, or terminates its relationship with us, and we have insufficient capacity in-house, we may have to seek alternative packaging services which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Moreover, we may be exposed to risks associated with qualifying new service providers. Because it may take us an extended amount of time to qualify third-party packaging service providers, we could experience delays in product shipments if we are required to find alternative service providers for our products on short notice. Any problems that we may encounter with the delivery or quality of our products could damage our reputation and result in a loss of customers.

We may be unable to obtain in a timely manner and at a reasonable cost the equipment necessary for us to remain competitive when worldwide economic growth resumes.

Our operations and expansion plans depend on our ability to obtain a significant amount of equipment from a limited number of suppliers and in a market that is characterized, from time to time, by intense demand, limited supply and long delivery cycles. During times of significant demand for this type of equipment, lead times for delivery can be significant. Shortages of equipment could result in an increase in their prices and longer delivery times. If we are unable to obtain equipment in a timely manner and at a reasonable cost, we may be unable to fulfill our customers' orders, which could negatively impact our financial condition and results of operations.

Our expansion plans require substantial capital expenditures and are subject to a number of uncertainties, and our failure to complete these plans would have a material adverse effect on our ability to achieve future growth.

Our future success depends on our ability to significantly increase our manufacturing capacity and research and development capabilities.

We have completed the first phase of construction of two new buildings adjacent to our current facility in Wuxi, China, comprising 20,800 square meters, consisting of 8,700 square meters for a new research and development institute and 12,100 square meters of new manufacturing facilities. Phase one included the structural construction of the two new buildings and furnishing and fitting out the research and development office building. We started using the research and development office building in the fourth quarter of 2009. The total cost for this phase was \$6.7 million. Phase two includes the furnishing and equipment of the manufacturing facility. At the end of 2011, we had furnished and equipped one third of our new manufacturing facility to meet our expected production requirements for both accelerometer products and non-accelerometer products in 2011. In 2012, we did not furnish or equip any additional manufacturing space in the new manufacturing building as the existing space was sufficient to support our 2012 sales. We may need to continue to furnishing the remaining manufacturing facility depending upon the rate of growth of the sensor business.

In 2011, we completed another manufacturing facility with 14,000 square meter total space in Wuxi, China to host the manufacturing of our system solution products. The construction site is located on the same property as our June 2010 land purchase. The construction cost of approximately \$8.1 million has been financed by the local Chinese government. We are currently negotiating with the local Chinese government concerning the terms of an arrangement under which we would either lease the building for five years with a free rent period or purchase the building at cost from the government within five years.

There are a number of events that could delay these expansion projects or increase the costs of building and equipping these or future facilities in accordance with our plans. These include:

failure to raise sufficient funds to build, and maintain adequate working capital to operate, new facilities;

failure to timely obtain environmental and other regulatory approvals, permits or licenses;

shortages and late delivery of building materials and manufacturing equipment;

seasonal factors, such as a long and intensive wet season that limits construction; and

technological, capacity or other changes to our plans for new facilities necessitated by changes in market conditions.

If we are unable to establish or successfully operate additional manufacturing facility, we may be unable to expand our business as planned. If we are unable to carry out our planned expansions, we may not be able to meet customer demand, which could result in lower profitability and a loss in market share.

Our product liability and business disruption insurance may not be sufficient.

A significant portion of our sales derive from automotive safety applications which may expose us to significant product liability claims. The aviation navigation systems business we recently acquired from Crossbow also could expose us to significant product liability claims. We maintain business disruption insurance and general liability insurance which includes product liability coverage in amounts we believe to be appropriate for our operations. However, we cannot assure you that this amount is sufficient to cover all potential claims or losses and damages we may suffer. Any product liability or

warranty claim, litigation, natural disaster or other forms of business disruption may result in our incurring substantial costs and in a diversion of resources.

Compliance with environmental regulations can be expensive, and noncompliance with these regulations may result in adverse publicity, potentially significant monetary damages and fines and suspension of our business operations.

Any failure by us to control the use of, or to restrict adequately the discharge of, hazardous substances could subject us to potentially significant monetary damages and fines or suspensions in our business operations. Our manufacturing processes generate noise, waste water, gases and other industrial wastes and we are required to comply with China's national and local regulations regarding environmental protection. We believe we are currently in compliance with present environmental protection requirements and have all necessary environmental permits to conduct our business as it is presently conducted. However, if more stringent regulations are adopted in the future, the costs of compliance with these new regulations could be substantial. If we fail to comply with any future environmental regulations, we may be required to pay substantial fines, suspend production or cease operations.

We may need additional capital, and the sale of additional common stock or other equity securities could result in dilution to you.

We believe that our current cash, cash flow from operations and proceeds of the project loans from the Agricultural Bank of China and funding from the local government of Wuxi will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs, including working capital requirements and capital expenditures for at least the next twelve months. Our future cash requirements will depend on many factors, including our operating income, the timing of our new product introductions, the costs of maintaining adequate manufacturing capacity, the continuing market acceptance of our products, payment terms for major contracts and customers, or other changing business conditions and future developments, including any investments or acquisitions we may decide to pursue. If our existing cash is insufficient to meet our requirements, we may seek to sell additional equity securities, debt securities or borrow from banks. We cannot assure you that financing will be available in the amounts we need or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. The sale of additional equity securities, including convertible debt securities, would be dilutive to our stockholders. The incurrence of indebtedness would divert cash for working capital requirements and capital expenditures to service debt and could result in operating and financial covenants that restrict our operations and our ability to pay dividends to our stockholders. If we are unable to obtain additional equity or debt financing, our business, operations and prospects may suffer.

We are likely to be adversely affected by the cyclicality of the semiconductor industry.

The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical and is characterized by constant and rapid technological change, product obsolescence and price erosion, evolving standards, short product life cycles and wide fluctuations in product supply and demand. The semiconductor industry has, from time to time, experienced significant downturns, often connected with, or in anticipation of, maturing product cycles of both semiconductor companies' and their customers' products, which may occur as of, or independently from, declines in general economic conditions. These downturns have been characterized by diminished product demand, production overcapacity, high inventory levels and accelerated erosion of average selling prices. The semiconductor industry is currently experiencing such a downturn. Prolongation or worsening of the current downturn, or the occurrence of any future downturn may reduce our revenues and result in us having excess inventory. Furthermore, any upturn in the semiconductor industry could result in increased competition for access to limited third-party foundry, assembly and testing capacity. Failure to gain access to foundry, assembly and testing capacity

could impair our ability to secure the supply of products that we need, which could significantly delay our ability to ship our products, cause a loss of revenues and damage our customer relationships.

The illiquidity of the auction rate securities we hold could adversely affect our financial condition, and if a further write-down of the value of these securities were to become necessary, it would adversely affect our results of operations

As of December 31, 2012, our investments included \$2.5 million (net of \$500,000 unrealized temporary impairment loss) of auction rate securities. Auction rate securities are generally long-term fixed income instruments that are expected to provide liquidity through a Dutch auction process that resets the applicable interest rate at pre-determined calendar intervals, typically every 7, 28, 35 or 49 days. Due to liquidity issues in global credit and capital markets, the auction rate securities we hold have failed at auction, meaning that the amount of securities submitted for sale at auction exceeded the amount of purchase orders. If an auction fails, the issuer becomes obligated to pay interest at penalty rates, and the auction rate securities we hold continue to pay interest in accordance with their stated terms. However, the failed auctions create uncertainty as to the liquidity in the near term of these securities. As a result, we have classified the \$2.5 million of auction rate securities we held at December 31, 2012 as long-term investments.

Based on our expected operating cash flows and our other sources of cash, we do not expect the potential lack of liquidity in our auction rate securities classified as long-term investments to affect our ability to execute our current business plan in the foreseeable future. However, the principal represented by these investments will not be accessible to us until one of the following occurs: a successful auction occurs, the issuer redeems the issue, a buyer is found outside of the auction process or the underlying securities have matured. There can be no assurance that we would be able in the near term to liquidate these securities on favorable terms, or at all, and if we should require access to these funds sooner than we currently expect, our inability to sell these auction rate securities could adversely affect our liquidity and our financial flexibility.

If the credit and capital markets deteriorate further, the credit ratings of the issuers or the insurers of the auction rate securities are downgraded or the collateral underlying the securities deteriorates or other events occur that would affect the fair value of these auction rate securities, it is possible that we might conclude that some or all of them have sustained an other-than-temporary impairment in value, such that we would be required under GAAP to further write down their carrying value. Any such write-down could result in a charge against our earnings in the period in which the impairment is recognized, which could be material.

Risks Related to Doing Business in China

Adverse changes in economic and political policies of the PRC government or laws or regulations of the PRC could have a material adverse effect on the overall economic growth of China, which could materially and adversely affect our business.

All of our manufacturing operations are located in China and a significant portion of devices incorporating our products are ultimately sold to end users in China. Accordingly, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects are affected significantly by economic, political and legal developments in China. China's economy is in transition from a planned economy to a more market-oriented economy and differs from the economies of most developed countries in many respects, including the amount of government involvement, level of development, growth rate, level of capital reinvestment, access to financing, control of foreign exchange and allocation of resources. While the PRC economy has experienced significant growth in the past 30 years, the growth has been uneven across different regions and economic sectors of China. The PRC government has implemented various economic and political policies and laws and regulations to encourage economic development. Although



we believe that such policies have had a positive effect on the economic development of China, we cannot predict the future direction of those policies or the effects those policies may have on our business or results of operations. In addition, since 2003, the PRC government has implemented a number of measures, such as raising surplus deposit reserve ratios and lending interest rates, in order to slow down the growth of certain sectors of China's economy. These actions, as well as future actions and policies of the Chinese government, could materially affect our liquidity and access to bank financing. Furthermore, changes to the policies of the PRC government or the laws and regulations of the PRC could have a material adverse effect on the overall economic growth of China, which could adversely affect our business.

Because our business depends in part on the continued growth of the Chinese economy, any slowdown of such growth could have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.

Our business is significantly dependent upon the economy and the business environment in China. In particular, we expect to continue to rely significantly on the growing demand in China for devices incorporating our products, which in turn may be dependent on the continuing growth of the Chinese economy. The Chinese economy experienced some inflation recently, and there can be no assurance that the growth of the Chinese economy will be steady or that any slowdown of the Chinese economy will not have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.

China's legal system is characterized by uncertainty that could negatively impact our business and results of operations.

We conduct all of our manufacturing operations at our Wuxi subsidiaries, which are subject to PRC laws and regulations applicable to foreign investment in China and, in particular, laws applicable to wholly-foreign owned companies. Since 1979, PRC legislation and regulations have significantly enhanced the protections afforded to various forms of foreign investments in China. However, China has not developed a fully integrated legal system and recently enacted laws and regulations may not sufficiently cover all aspects of economic activities in China.

The PRC legal system is based on written statutes. The interpretation and enforcement of these laws and regulations involve uncertainties in that (i) the laws and regulations are relatively new, (ii) only limited volumes of court decisions are published, (iii) prior court decisions may be only cited for reference but have limited precedential value, and (iv) interpretation of statutes and regulations may also be subject to new government policies reflecting domestic political, economic or social changes. Such uncertainties may limit the legal protections available to us.

The enforcement of existing laws, or contracts based on existing law, may be uncertain and sporadic as well. It may be difficult to obtain swift and equitable enforcement or to obtain enforcement of a judgment by a court of another jurisdiction.

The relative inexperience of China's judiciary in many types of cases creates additional uncertainty as to the outcome of any litigation. Any litigation in China may be protracted and result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and management attention.

The PRC legal system is based in part on government policies and internal rules (some of which are not published on a timely basis or at all) that may have a retroactive effect. As a result, we may not be aware of our violation of these policies and rules until some time after the violation.

Our activities in China may be subject to administrative review and approval by various national and local agencies of the PRC government. Because of the changes occurring in China's legal and regulatory structure, we may not be able to secure the requisite governmental approval for our activities. Failure to obtain the requisite governmental approval for any of our activities could adversely affect our business and results of operations.



The discontinuation of any of the preferential tax treatments currently available to us in China could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The PRC government or its local agencies or bureaus provides preferential tax treatment, in the form of reduced tax rates or tax holidays, to certain qualified enterprises. Our wholly-owned subsidiary, MEMSIC Semiconductor, as a PRC high-technology company operating in a designated high-tech development zone, which we refer to as a "PRC high technology company," benefits from a 15% preferential enterprise income tax rate, compared to a uniform tax rate of 25% that became effective on January 1, 2008, and was exempt from enterprise income tax for two years from 2007, the year in which it first had positive accumulated earnings, and was entitled to a 50% reduction in the enterprise income tax from 2009 to 2011. Our indirectly owned subsidiary MTS is currently subject to the uniform tax rate of 25%.

Moreover, under current PRC laws and regulations, no tax is required to be withheld by MEMSIC Semiconductor with respect to any dividend payments made by it to us, as its stockholder, and no PRC tax is payable by us on the dividends received from it provided that such profits are permitted to be paid by it in accordance with PRC laws and regulations. In addition, as a foreign invested enterprise, or FIE, MEMSIC Semiconductor enjoys certain tax deductions for purchasing equipment made in China. Under the relevant regulation, if an FIE purchases Chinese-made equipment, and the price does not exceed the total investment amount of such FIE, for projects that fall within certain specified categories, 40% of the purchase price amount may be credited against the surplus between the amount of enterprise income tax payable in the current year and the amount paid in the previous year. If the credited amount is greater than the surplus, the excess amount can be carried forward for up to five years, subject to certain exceptions. In addition, we have also benefited from rebates of value-added tax for our export products.

The discontinuation of these preferential tax treatments could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. On March 16, 2007, the National People's Congress, the PRC legislature, approved and promulgated a new tax law named "Enterprise Income Tax Law," which took effect beginning January 1, 2008. Under the new tax law, FIEs and domestic companies are subject to a uniform income tax rate of 25%. The new tax law provides a five-year transition period starting from its effective date for those enterprises which were established before the promulgation date of the new tax law and which were entitled to a preferential lower income tax rate under the then effective tax laws or regulations. The income tax rate of such enterprises will gradually transition to the uniform tax rate within the transition period in accordance with implementing rules to be issued by the State Council. For those enterprises which are enjoying tax holidays, such tax holidays may continue until their expiration in accordance with regulations to be issued by the State Council, but where the tax holiday has not yet started because of losses, such tax holiday shall be deemed to commence from the first effective year of the new tax law. While the new tax law equalizes the income tax rates for FIEs and domestic companies, preferential tax treatment would continue to be given to companies in certain encouraged sectors and to entities classified as high-technology companies supported by the PRC government, whether FIEs or domestic companies. According to the new tax law, entities that qualify as PRC high-technology companies will benefit from a tax rate of 15% as compared to the uniform tax rate of 25%. However, there are a number of requirements for a company to qualify as a PRC high-technology company, including those relating to business scope. There can be no assurances that MEMSIC Semiconductor will continue to qualify as a PRC high-technology company, that it will continue to do so in the future and continue to benefit from such preferential tax rate. Following the effectiveness of the new tax law, our effective income tax rate may increase, unless we are otherwise eligible for preferential treatment.

In addition, according to the Enterprise Income Tax Law and its implementation rules, effective January 1, 2008, any dividends payable to us by MEMSIC Semiconductor is subject to the PRC withholding tax at the rate of 10%. Although MEMSIC Semiconductor has not paid any dividends to

us historically and does not intend to do so in the future, if our Wuxi subsidiary ever does pay any dividends to us in the future, our consolidated results of operations and the amount of dividends we pay to our stockholders may be adversely affected.

The new tax law provides only a framework of the enterprise tax provisions. Even with the promulgation of its implementation rules, the new tax law still leaves many details on the definitions of numerous terms as well as the interpretation and specific application of various provisions unclear and unspecified.

We may be treated as a resident enterprise for PRC tax purposes which may subject us to PRC income tax for any dividends we pay to our non-PRC stockholders.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law, enterprises established under the laws of non-PRC jurisdictions, but whose "de facto management body" is located in the PRC are treated as resident enterprises for PRC tax purposes. Although the implementation rules of the Enterprise Income Tax Law provides a definition of "de facto management body", such definition has not been tested and there remains uncertainty as to which situations a non-PRC enterprise's "de facto management body" is considered to be located in the PRC. Some members of our management team are currently based in the PRC. If we are treated as a resident enterprise for PRC tax purposes, we will be subject to PRC tax on our worldwide income at the 25% uniform tax rate, and any dividend payable by us to our non-PRC corporate stockholders will also be subject to a PRC withholding tax at the rate of 10%. If we are required under the new tax law to withhold income tax on dividends we pay to our non-PRC corporate stockholders, the amount of dividends we are able to pay may be materially and adversely affected.

The intercompany transactions between us and our Wuxi subsidiaries may be subject to scrutiny by the United States and the PRC tax authorities, and there may be material and adverse tax consequences if the United States or the PRC tax authorities determine that these transactions were not entered into on an arm's length basis.

Our Wuxi subsidiaries are PRC companies. Our Wuxi subsidiaries generally purchase manufacturing components from third parties but purchase a small amount of manufacturing components from our U.S. headquarters at cost. To more efficiently manage our manufacturing process, we expect our Wuxi subsidiaries to purchase all manufacturing components from third parties. We purchase all of the MEMS sensors that MEMSIC Semiconductor produces and some of the system solution products that MTS produces.

We could face material and adverse tax consequences if the United States or the PRC tax authorities determine that the transactions between us and our Wuxi subsidiaries were not entered into on an arm's length basis and they may adjust our income and expenses for United States or PRC tax purposes in the form of a transfer pricing adjustment. A transfer pricing adjustment could result in a reduction, for PRC tax purposes, of deductions recognized by our Wuxi subsidiary, or an increase, for the U.S. tax purposes, of income recognized by us on a consolidated basis, which could increase our overall tax liability and adversely affect our results of operations.

Our Wuxi subsidiaries are subject to restrictions on paying dividends or making other distributions to us.

We may rely on dividends paid by our Wuxi subsidiaries for our cash needs, including the funds necessary to pay any dividends or other cash distributions to our stockholders, service any debt we may incur and pay our operating expenses. Regulations in the PRC currently permit payment of dividends only out of accumulated profits as determined in accordance with accounting standards and regulations in China. Our Wuxi subsidiaries are required to set aside at least 10% (up to an aggregate amount equal to half of its registered capital) of its after-tax profits each year, if any, to fund certain reserve funds. These reserve funds are not distributable as cash dividends. As of December 31, 2012, MEMSIC

Semiconductor has established a reserve fund of \$788,000. If our Wuxi subsidiaries incur debt on their own behalf in the future, the instruments governing the debt may restrict their abilities to pay dividends or make other distributions to us. Limitations on the ability of our Wuxi subsidiaries to pay dividends to us could adversely limit our ability to grow, make investments or acquisitions that could be beneficial to our businesses, pay dividends, or otherwise fund and conduct our business. Accordingly, if for any of the above or other reasons, we do not receive dividends from our Wuxi subsidiaries, our liquidity, financial condition and ability to make dividend distribution to our stockholders will be materially and adversely affected.

Restrictions on currency exchange may limit our ability to receive and use our revenue effectively.

The PRC government imposes controls on the convertibility of Renminbi, or RMB, into foreign currencies and, in certain cases, the remittance of currency out of China. Because all or substantially all of our net sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, but a significant portion of our expenses are denominated in RMB, any restrictions on currency exchange may limit our ability to use cash from sales generated in U.S. dollars to fund our business activities in China. The principal regulation governing foreign currency exchange in China is the Foreign Currency Administration Rules (1996), as amended. Under these rules, RMB are freely convertible for trade and service-related foreign exchange transactions, but not for direct investment, loans or investment in securities outside China unless the prior approval of the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, or SAFE, is obtained. Although the PRC government regulations now allow greater convertibility of RMB for current account transactions, significant restrictions still remain. For example, foreign exchange transactions under the capital account of our Wuxi subsidiary, including principal payments in respect of foreign currency-denominated obligations, remain subject to significant foreign exchange controls and the approval of SAFE. These limitations could affect our ability to obtain foreign exchange for capital expenditures. The PRC government may also at its discretion restrict access in the future to foreign currency demands, we may not be able to pay dividends in foreign currencies to our stockholders. In addition, we cannot be certain that the PRC regulatory authorities will not impose more stringent restrictions on foreign exchange transactions in the future.

Fluctuations in the value of RMB could negatively impact our result of operations.

The value of the RMB against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may fluctuate and is affected by, among other things, changes in political and economic conditions inside and outside of China. On July 21, 2005, the PRC government changed its policy of pegging the value of the RMB to the U.S. dollar. Under the new policy, the RMB is permitted to fluctuate within a managed band based on market supply and demand and by reference to a basket of certain foreign currencies. This change in policy has resulted in a 25.0% appreciation of the RMB against the U.S. dollar between July 21, 2005 and December 31, 2012. While the international reaction to the RMB revaluation has generally been positive, there remains significant international pressure on the PRC government to adopt an even more flexible currency policy. In the long term, the RMB may appreciate or depreciate significantly in value against the U.S. dollar, depending on the fluctuation of the basket of currencies against which it is currently valued, or whether it is permitted to enter into a full float.

Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar and all of our sales and liabilities are denominated in U.S. dollars. Approximately one third of our operating expenses and a majority of our assets are denominated in RMB. Accordingly, as a result of China's 2005 currency policy, our operating expenses, in U.S. dollar equivalents, increased and our operating margins and net income were adversely affected. In addition, the value of our Chinese assets, in U.S. dollar equivalents, increased. To the extent that we need to convert U.S. dollars into RMB for our operations, appreciation of the RMB against the U.S. dollar would have an adverse effect on the RMB amount we receive from the conversion. Conversely,

if we decide to convert our RMB into U.S. dollars for the purpose of making payments for dividends on our common stock or for other business purposes, appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the RMB would have a negative effect on the U.S. dollar amount available to us. As a result, any significant revaluation of the RMB may materially and adversely affect our cash flows, revenue, earnings and financial position, and the value of, and any dividends payable on, our common stock in U.S. dollars.

Recent PRC regulations relating to offshore investment activities by PRC residents and employee stock options granted by overseas-listed companies may increase our administrative burden, restrict our overseas and cross-border investment activity or otherwise adversely affect the implementation of our acquisition strategy. If our stockholders who are PRC residents, or our PRC employees who are granted or exercise stock options, fail to make any required registrations or filings under such regulations, we may be unable to distribute profits and may become subject to liability under PRC laws.

The PRC State Administration of Foreign Exchange, or SAFE, recently promulgated regulations that require PRC residents and PRC corporate entities to register with local branches of SAFE in connection with their direct or indirect offshore investment activities. Under the SAFE regulations, PRC residents who make, or have previously made, direct or indirect investments in offshore companies, will be required to register those investments. In addition, any PRC resident who is a direct or indirect stockholder of an offshore company is required to file or update the registration with the local branch of SAFE, with respect to that offshore company, any material change involving its round-trip investment or capital variation, such as an increase or decrease in capital, transfer or swap of shares, merger, division, long-term equity or debt investment or creation of any security interest. Although our PRC counsel has advised us that these SAFE regulations are not applicable to us or our stockholders, we cannot assure you that SAFE will agree with our position. If SAFE disagrees with us, and if any of our PRC stockholders fails to make in a timely manner the required SAFE registration or file or update the registration, our Wuxi subsidiary may be prohibited from distributing its profits and the proceeds from any reduction in capital, share transfer or liquidation to us, and we may also be prohibited from injecting additional capital into our Wuxi subsidiary. Moreover, failure to comply with the various SAFE registration requirements described above could result in liability under PRC laws for evasion of applicable foreign exchange restrictions.

The failure or inability of our PRC resident stockholders to comply with the registration procedures set forth therein may subject us to fines and legal sanctions. In addition, because it is uncertain how the SAFE regulations will be interpreted or implemented, we cannot predict how these regulations will affect our business operations or future strategy. For example, we may be subject to more stringent review and approval process with respect to our foreign exchange activities, such as remittance of dividends and foreign-currency-denominated borrowings, which may adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. Furthermore, if we decide to acquire a PRC domestic company, we cannot assure you that we or the owners of such company, as the case may be, will be able to obtain the necessary approvals or complete the necessary filings and registrations required by the SAFE regulations. This may restrict our ability to implement our acquisition strategy and could adversely affect our business and prospects.

On March 28, 2007, SAFE promulgated the Application Procedure of Foreign Exchange Administration for Domestic Individuals Participating in Employee Stock Holding Plan or Stock Option Plan of Overseas-Listed Company, or the Stock Option Rule. Under the Stock Option Rule, PRC citizens who are granted stock options by an overseas publicly-listed company are required, through a PRC agent or PRC subsidiary of such overseas publicly-listed company, to register with SAFE and complete certain other procedures. We and our PRC employees who have been granted stock options are subject to the Stock Option Rule as a result of our recent initial public offering. If we or our PRC optionees fail to comply with these regulations, we or our PRC optionees may be subject to fines and legal sanctions.

A number of our PRC employees exercised their stock options prior to our becoming an overseas publicly-listed company. Since there is not yet a clear regulation on how and whether these PRC employees are required to complete their SAFE registration, and it is uncertain as to how the government authorities will interpret the Stock Option Rule, it is unclear whether such exercises are permissible by PRC laws and it is uncertain how SAFE or other government authorities will interpret or administrate such regulations. Therefore, we cannot predict how such exercises will affect our business or operations.

PRC regulation of direct investment and loans by offshore holding companies to PRC entities may delay or limit us from using the proceeds of our initial public offering to make additional capital contribution or loans to our Wuxi subsidiaries.

Any capital contributions or loans, that we, as an offshore entity, make to our Wuxi subsidiaries, are subject to PRC regulations. For example, any of our loans to our Wuxi subsidiaries cannot exceed the difference between the total amount of investment that our Wuxi subsidiaries are approved to make under relevant PRC laws and the registered capital of our Wuxi subsidiaries, and any such loans must be registered with the local branch of the SAFE as a procedural matter. In addition, our additional capital contributions to our Wuxi subsidiaries must be approved by the PRC Ministry of Commerce or its local counterpart. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain these approvals on a timely basis, or at all. If we fail to obtain such approvals, our ability to make equity contributions or provide loans to our Wuxi subsidiaries or to fund their operations may be adversely affected, which could harm our Wuxi subsidiary's liquidity and its ability to fund its working capital and expansion projects and meet its obligations and commitments.

We are obligated to withhold and pay PRC individual income tax on behalf of our employees who are subject to PRC individual income tax. If we fail to withhold or pay such individual income tax in accordance with applicable PRC regulations, we may be subject to certain sanctions and other penalties and may become subject to liability under PRC laws.

Under PRC laws, we are obligated to withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of our employees who are subject to PRC individual income tax. In addition, the State Administration of Taxation has issued several circulars concerning employee stock options. Under these circulars, our employees working in China (which could include both PRC employees and expatriate employees subject to PRC individual income tax) who exercise stock options will be subject to PRC individual income tax. We are obligated to file documents related to employee stock options with relevant tax authorities and withhold and pay individual income taxes for those employees who exercise their stock options. If we fail to withhold or pay such individual income tax in accordance with applicable PRC regulations, we may be subject to certain sanctions and other penalties and may become subject to liability under PRC laws.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Securities

The market price for our common stock has been influenced by the recent proposal to acquire our company, and may be volatile.

There has been a history of significant volatility in the market prices of securities of technology companies. Since our initial public offering in December 2007, the market price for our common stock has ranged from a high of \$11.00 to a low of \$1.28 per share. The price of our common stock has been significantly influenced by the announcement on November 20, 2012 that our Board of Directors had received an unsolicited, non-binding proposal from IDG-Accel China Growth Fund II L.P., for itself and on behalf of its affiliated funds and certain nominees, which we refer to collectively as IDG, to acquire all outstanding shares of common stock of MEMSIC not currently owned by IDG or its affiliates for cash in the amount of \$4.00 per share. The Special Committee established by our Board is

continuing to evaluate this proposal and all other strategic alternatives, consistent with the Board's fiduciary duties to act in the best interest of stockholders. We caution MEMSIC stockholders and potential purchasers of MEMSIC common stock that there can be no assurance that any definitive agreement will be executed with IDG or that any transaction will be consummated with IDG or another party. The withdrawal or abandonment of the IDG proposal or failure of any announced transaction with IDG or another party to be timely consummated would likely have a significant and immediate adverse effect on our stock price. The market price of our common stock may continue to be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations, in response to factors including the following:

announcements or developments concerning the IDG proposal, or changes in investors' perceptions concerning the likelihood that a transaction with IDG or another party will be consummated

actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly operating results;

changes in financial estimates by securities research analysts;

conditions in the semiconductor industry;

changes in the economic performance or market valuations of other companies in the semiconductors industry;

announcements by us or our competitors of new products, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments;

addition or departure of key personnel;

fluctuations of exchange rates between the RMB and the U.S. dollar;

intellectual property litigation;

transfer restrictions on our outstanding shares or sales of additional shares; and

general economic or political conditions in Asia, particularly China, the United States and Europe.

In addition, the securities market has from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are not related to the operating performance of particular companies. These market fluctuations may also materially and adversely affect the market price of our shares.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or reports about our business, or if they adversely change their recommendations regarding our common stock, the market price for our common stock and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock upon listing may be influenced by research or reports that industry or securities analysts publish about us or our business. If one or more analysts who cover us downgrade our common stock, the market price for our common stock would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of us or fail to regularly publish reports on us, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which, in turn, could cause the market price for our common stock or trading volume to decline.

Delaware law and provisions of our charter documents could discourage potential acquisition proposals and could delay, deter or prevent a change in control.

Our charter documents contain provisions that could discourage, delay or prevent a change in control or changes in our management that our stockholders may deem advantageous. These provisions:

require super-majority voting to amend some provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws;

require a staggered board of directors making it more difficult for stockholders to replace a majority of our directors;

authorize the issuance of "blank check" preferred stock that our board could issue to increase the number of outstanding shares and to discourage a takeover attempt;

provide that a special meeting of stockholders may be called only by the president, the chief executive officer or the board of directors acting pursuant to a resolution adopted by the board; and

establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our board by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

In addition, we are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which, subject to some exceptions, prohibits "business combinations" between a Delaware corporation and an "interested stockholder," which is generally defined as a stockholder who becomes a beneficial owner of 15% or more of a Delaware corporation's voting stock for a three-year period following the date that the stockholder became an interested stockholder. Section 203 could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control that our stockholders might consider to be in their best interests.

These anti-takeover defenses could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in control. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for you and other stockholders to elect directors of your choice and cause us to take corporate actions with which you may disagree.

Our principal stockholders and affiliated entities can exert substantial influence over our corporate activities.

As of March 19, 2013, our executive officers, directors and entities affiliated with them beneficially owned approximately 33.9% of our outstanding shares of common stock. These included Dr. Yang Zhao, our president and chief executive officer, who beneficially owned 3.6% of our outstanding shares of common stock and Dr. Quan Zhou, who is a Managing Director and General Partner at IDG Capital Partners, whose affiliated funds beneficially own approximately 19.5% of our outstanding shares of common stock. These stockholders, if acting together, could exert substantial influence over matters such as electing directors and approving material mergers, acquisitions or other business combination transactions. This concentration of ownership may also discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our company, which could deprive our stockholders of an opportunity to receive a premium for their shares as part of a sale of our company and might reduce the price of our shares. These actions may be taken even if they are opposed by our other stockholders. In cases where their interests are aligned and they vote together, these stockholders will also have the power to prevent or cause a change in control. In addition, these persons could divert business opportunities from us to themselves or others.

Failure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act could have a material adverse effect on our business.

As a public company, we are required to document and test our internal financial control procedures in order to satisfy the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which requires annual management assessments of the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting and will require a report by our independent auditors that both addresses management's assessments and provides for the independent auditor's assessment of the effectiveness of our internal controls. During the course of our testing, we may identify deficiencies which we may not be able to remediate in time to meet our deadline for compliance with Section 404, and we may also identify inaccuracies or deficiencies in our financial reporting that could require revisions to or restatement of prior period results. Testing and maintaining internal controls will also involve significant costs and can divert our management's attention from other matters that are important to our business. We may not be able to conclude on an ongoing basis that we have effective internal controls over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404. Failure to achieve and maintain an effective internal control environment could harm our operating results, could cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations and could require that we restate our financial statements for prior periods, any of which could cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information and cause a decline, which could be material, in the trading price of our common stock.

It may be difficult to enforce judgments against us in U.S. courts.

Although we are a Delaware corporation, our manufacturing subsidiaries and approximately 55.8% of our assets were located outside of the United States as of December 31, 2012. As a result, you may not be able to enforce against us in U.S. courts judgments based on the civil liability provisions of U.S. federal securities laws. It is unclear if original actions of civil liabilities based solely upon U.S. federal securities laws are enforceable in courts outside the United States. It is equally unclear if judgments entered by U.S. courts based on the civil liability provisions of U.S. federal securities laws are enforceable in courts outside the United States. Any enforcement action in a court outside the United States will be subject to compliance with procedural requirements under applicable local law, including the condition that the judgment does not violate the public policy of the applicable jurisdiction.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties.

Our corporate headquarters are located at One Tech Drive, Suite 325, Andover, Massachusetts 01810. In addition, we also have offices in Chicago, Illinois and San Jose, California. Our Andover headquarters is responsible for sales and marketing, financing, and research and development, our Chicago office is also responsible for research and development and our San Jose office is responsible for sales and marketing, research and development for the system solution products. In addition, we have sales offices in Shanghai, China and Tokyo, Japan. We lease these premises from unrelated third parties. The lease contract on our corporate headquarters in Andover expires in June 2013.

Our current manufacturing facility and our new facility are located on a parcel of land of approximately 35,000 square meters in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province of China. We purchased the land use rights to the land in 2003. With the completion of the new research and development and manufacturing buildings in 2009, our current manufacturing facility comprises a production area of approximately 16,300 square meters and an office area of approximately 8,700 square meters. The current facility is responsible for sensor product manufacturing, product engineering, manufacturing engineering, quality assurance, packaging and testing as well as application engineering. We purchased

another piece of land of approximately 66,670 square meters in Wuxi in June of 2010 for \$4.0 million, which we have used to build a manufacturing facility for our indirect Wuxi subsidiary, MEMSIC Transducer Systems Co. Ltd. ("MTS"). The building, consisting of 14,000 square meters, was completed and begun usage in the third quarter of 2011.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On September 11, 2012, Trilogy Marketing, Inc. (Trilogy) commenced an action in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan, in which it alleges that MEMSIC has failed to pay sales representative commissions to Trilogy. We have not concluded that a loss of any magnitude in this matter is probable, and are unable to estimate the range of potential loss, if any, that might arise from this matter.

We are not involved in any litigation or other legal matters which, if decided adversely against us, could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse impact on our business or operations. However, many participants in our industry have significant intellectual property rights and have demonstrated a willingness to instigate litigation based on allegations of infringement. We cannot assure you that we will not receive notices of intellectual property right infringements in the future.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth the high and low reported sales prices of our common stock for the periods indicated as reported by the Nasdaq Global Market.

	High		Low	
Year ended December 31, 2011				
Quarter ended March 31, 2011	\$	3.70	\$	3.00
Quarter ended June 30, 2011	\$	3.70	\$	2.81
Quarter ended September 30, 2011	\$	3.44	\$	2.22
Quarter ended December 31, 2011	\$	3.26	\$	2.16
Year ended December 31, 2012				
Quarter ended March 31, 2012	\$	5.20	\$	2.46
Quarter ended June 30, 2012	\$	4.62	\$	2.08
Quarter ended September 30, 2012	\$	2.57	\$	1.55
Quarter ended December 31, 2012	\$	3.34	\$	1.63

On March 19, 2013, the last reported sale price on the Nasdaq Global Market for our common stock was \$ 2.62 per share. On March 19, 2013, there were approximately 21 holders of record of our common stock. This number does not include stockholders for whom our shares were held in "nominee" or "street" name.

We currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to finance our growth. We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Payment of future dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our board of directors after taking into account various factors, including our financial condition, operating results, current and anticipated cash needs, restrictions in financing agreements and plans for expansion.

The net proceeds to us of our initial public offering in 2007, including the net proceeds from exercise of underwriters' over-allotment option were approximately \$60.2 million. Through December 31, 2012, we have applied approximately \$10.6 million of the net proceeds to fund capital expenditures for the expansion of our manufacturing facility in Wuxi, \$7.3 million to the construction and furnishing of two new buildings adjacent to that facility, \$4.0 million to the purchase of a piece of land for the MTS manufacturing facility and manufacturing equipment, and \$18.0 million to the Crossbow acquisition. We invested the balance of \$20.3 million of the net proceeds from our initial public offering in money market funds, bank certificates of deposit and auction rate securities, pending other uses.

For information regarding securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation plans, see Part III, Item 12, "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters."

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Not applicable.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

We provide advanced semiconductor sensor and system solutions based on integrated MEMS technology and mixed signal circuit design. We operate and manage our business in two reporting segments. We develop, design, manufacture and market:

semiconductor sensor products, which we refer to as sensor products, based on micro-electromechanical systems (MEMS) technology and advanced integrated circuit design; and

sensor system solution products, which we refer to as system solution products, which incorporate sensors with on-board computing, wireless communications and systems and application software solutions.

In making operating decisions, our chief executive officer, who is the chief operating decision maker, considers the gross profit results of the sensor product segment and the system solution product segment separately, but utilizes enterprise-wide operating expense and earning results.

Our sensor products combine proprietary thermal-based MEMS technology and advanced analog mixed signal processing circuitry design into a single chip using a standard CMOS process. This approach allows us to provide sensor solutions at a lower cost, with higher performance and greater functionality than our competitors. Our magnetic sensor product is based on AMR technology which provides higher accuracy, better sensitivity across temperature and lower power as compared to hall-effect based magnetic sensors. In addition, our technology platform allows us to easily integrate additional functions or create new sensors to expand into touch and flow sensors and related applications. Our sensor products have a wide range of applications such as mobile phones, automotive safety systems and video projectors.

Our system solution products consist primarily of wireless sensors that connect the physical environment with enterprise management and information systems to provide advanced monitoring, automation and control solutions for a range of industries, as well as inertial systems that provide end-users and systems integrators with MEMS-based solutions for measurement of static and dynamic motion in a wide variety of challenging environments, including avionics, remotely operated vehicles, agricultural and construction vehicles, automotive test and wind power turbines.

Our system solution products initially consisted primarily of the product lines we acquired from Crossbow Technology in January 2010, including the non-military portion of Crossbow's inertial navigation systems business and its wireless sensor network Mote and eKo environmental monitoring business

We manufacture our accelerometer products utilizing a "semi-fabless" model by outsourcing the production of CMOS wafers and completing the post-CMOS MEMS process in-house. By outsourcing the standard CMOS manufacturing process, we are able to more efficiently manage our capital expenditures and cost of goods sold.

We manufacture our magnetic sensor products through utilizing sensor wafers from both internal and external fabs, outsourcing the packaging process and completing the testing process in-house. Currently there are limited reliable AMR magnetic sensor suppliers in the world. We believe we need an internal fab to ensure a reliable supply of the magnetic sensor.

We manufacture our wireless system solution products and partial inertial system solution products through outsourcing most of the assembly process to third-party contract assembly vendors and performing final testing and programming functions in-house at our facility in Wuxi. Certain of our inertial system solution products, including FAA-certified products, have been manufactured by Crossbow Technology under a manufacturing agreement that expired on December 31, 2012. We are

evaluating other FAA certified vendors to carry on the manufacturing of our FAA-certified products in the future.

We sell our products either to distributors, which then resell to OEMs and ODMs, or to OEM and ODM customers directly. Historically, a small number of our customers have accounted for a substantial portion of our revenue, and sales to our largest distributor customers and OEM and ODM customers have varied significantly. This significant variation is in part due to the fact that our sales are made on the basis of purchase orders rather than long-term contracts. Although our distributors generally provide us with non-binding rolling forecasts, our distributors generally have up to 30 days prior to delivery to cancel or reschedule shipments pursuant to our distribution agreements. This arrangement has added to the fluctuation and unpredictability of our sales. Because our products are a component of our customers' products, our sales performance is significantly affected by the sales performance of our customers' products. It is difficult for us to accurately forecast our product demand because in the case where we sell our products to distributors, we may not know the identity of the distributor's OEM and ODM customers and information regarding their demand.

OEM and ODM customers' products are complex and require significant time to define, design and ramp to volume production. Our sales cycle begins with our marketing and sales staff and application engineers engaging with our OEM and ODM customers' system designers and management, which is typically a multi-month, or even multi-year, process. If this process is successful, an OEM and ODM customer will decide to incorporate our solution in its product, which we refer to as a design-win. Because the sales cycles for our products are long, we incur expenses to develop and sell our products, regardless of whether we achieve the design-win and well in advance of generating revenue, if any, from those expenditures. Although we do not have long-term purchase commitments from any of our distributor customers or OEM and ODM customers, once one of our products is incorporated into an OEM's or ODM's design, it is likely to remain a part of the design for the life cycle of its product. We believe this to be the case because a redesign would generally be time consuming and expensive.

Description of Certain Line Items

Net Sales

Net sales represent gross revenue net of an allowance for the estimated amount of product returns and sales rebates from our customers. Sales to distributors are made pursuant to distributor agreements, which allow for the return of goods under certain circumstances. We recognize revenue in accordance with ASC Topic 605-15, *Revenue Recognition*.

Historically, our revenue has been derived primarily from shipments of our sensor products. Following our Crossbow acquisition in January 2010, net sales of system solution products increased as a percentage of our net sales, and accounted for 14.6% of our net sales in 2012. The primary factors that affect our revenue are the sales volumes and average selling prices of our products. Growth in our net sales has generally been attributable to the increase in the unit volumes of our products, as the average selling prices, particularly of our sensor products have tended to decline due to the following factors, among others:

the semiconductor component market is highly competitive, and as a result, the average selling prices of particular components generally experience rapid declines over the course of their respective product and technology life cycles. This trend has been particularly evident recently in the market for mobile phone applications. We seek to mitigate the impact of this trend on our business by continuing to rapidly design, develop and sell new generations of products with additional functionalities to replace older generation products;



we may also reduce our product prices as we are able to increase our production yields by continuously improving the manufacturing efficiency or to reduce our manufacturing costs by re-engineering our product and reducing the overall material cost;

changes in our product mix may affect the average selling prices of our products. For example, our products for consumer and mobile phone markets generally have lower average selling prices than products for the automotive market. The average selling prices of products may also be affected by our strategy to increase market adoption of our products in certain markets; and

we occasionally grant discounts or modified payment terms to our large customers or OEM and ODM customers for high volume purchases.

Net Sales by Reportable Segment

Our sales consist of two reportable segments: sensor products that are used as components in our customers' products and system solution products that incorporate sensors with on-board computing, wireless communications and systems and application software solutions and offer a complete system solution to our customers. The following table sets forth our net sales by reportable segment for the periods indicated by amount and as a percentage of our net sales (dollar amounts in thousands).

	For the year ended December 31,					
	20	012	2011			
	Amount	Amount % of Sales		% of Sales		
Sensor products	\$ 54,491	85.4% \$	57,877	84.9%		
System solution products	9,320	14.6	10,276	15.1		
Total	\$ 63,811	100.0% \$	68,153	100.0%		

Net Sales by Application

In 2012, net sales from mobile phone applications remained the largest component of our total sales, representing 45.6% of total net sales in 2012, compared to 51.9% in 2011. The percentage decrease was primarily due to the decline of the average sales price and the winding down in sales volume of the phone models at a major mobile phone manufacturer that utilized our magnetic sensors.

Net sales from automotive applications represented 21.4% of total net sales in 2012, compared to 21.1% in 2011. We have one major automotive customer which incorporates our accelerometer sensor product into vehicle rollover and electronic stability control applications. To increase net sales from the automotive market, we will continue to seek to have our sensors designed into new automotive applications and to expand our customer base. However, revenue increases, if any, from the automotive market require significant time, as the development lead time in this market is generally longer than other markets in which we participate.

In 2012, net sales from industrial and other applications represented 17.0% of total net sales, down from 17.3% of total net sales in 2011. The decrease was primarily due to the slow transition to the upgraded new products. We expect sales from industrial and other applications to be flat or slightly decrease while we work toward expanding these markets with new and upgraded products.

Net sales from consumer applications accounted for 16.0% of total net sales in 2012, compared with 9.7% in 2011. This increase was primarily due to an increase in sales of our accelerometer product in a digital camera application in the Japan market as well as the selection of our magnetic sensor product for use in tablet PCs at a major software company in the U.S. Net sales from consumer applications have fluctuated historically as a result of the generally short life cycle of consumer

electronics and changes in our customer base. As our product offering and customer base for consumer applications continue to diversify, we expect net sales from consumer applications to fluctuate less.

The following table sets forth our net sales by application for the periods indicated by amount and as a percentage of our net sales (dollar amounts in thousands).

	For the year ended December 31,						
		20	12	2011			
	A	mount	% of Sales	Amount	% of Sales		
Mobile phone	\$	29,139	45.6%	\$ 35,354	51.9%		
Consumer		10,208	16.0	6,629	9.7		
Automotive		13,646	21.4	14,380	21.1		
Industrial/other		10,818	17.0	11,790	17.3		
Total	\$	63,811	100.0%	\$ 68,153	100.0%		

Net Sales by Customer Base

Our customers primarily consist of OEMs and ODMs, and distributors who resell to OEMs and ODMs. Historically, a small number of our customers have accounted for a substantial portion of our net sales. Customers that individually represented 10% or more of our net sales, accounted in the aggregate for approximately 56.3% of our net sales in 2012 compared with 62.4% in 2011.

The following schedule summarizes the percent of total sales to each customer that accounted for 10% or more of our total sales in either of 2012 or 2011.

	For the Year Ended December 31,		
Customer	2012	2011	
Samsung	27.4%	37.4%	
Autoliv, Inc	18.7	18.3	
Tokyo Electron Device Limited	10.2	6.7	
% of total sales	56.3%	62.4%	

We have experienced and will continue to experience fluctuations in demand from a significant number of customers, including many of our largest customers. It is difficult for us to accurately forecast our product demand, particularly in the case of sales to our distributors, as we may not know the identity of the distributor's OEM and ODM customers and lack information regarding their demand.

Occasionally, design changes in the products of our OEM and ODM customers have resulted in the loss of sales. For example, a design change in a product of a large OEM customer in 2007 for mobile phone applications resulted in a decrease of our sales to such customer in 2008. That customer accounted for 44.6% of our net sales in 2007.

Net Sales by Geography

Our products are shipped to OEM and ODM customers worldwide. However, we focus on different application markets among geographical regions. In the greater China region, our revenue has historically been primarily derived from products for mobile phone applications. We are also seeking to expand the consumer and industrial applications markets in the greater China region, for example, through the introduction of our new MEMS-based gas flow meter. In other Asian countries (excluding China and Japan), we are seeking to grow market shares in the mobile phone and consumer

applications. In Japan, our revenue has primarily been derived from products for consumer applications, particularly projectors and digital cameras. We are also seeking to penetrate the automotive market in Japan. In North America, our revenue has primarily been derived from products for automotive applications.

The following table sets forth our net sales by geographical region for the periods indicated by amount and as a percentage of our net sales (dollar amounts in thousands).

	For the year ended December 31,							
	2012				2011			
	Amount		% of Sa	les A	mount	% of	Sales	
Asia (excluding Japan)	\$	34,469	5	4.0% \$	39,722		58.3%	
Europe		3,396		5.3	3,433		5.0	
Japan		11,472	1	8.0	7,996		11.7	
North America		14,354	2	2.5	16,630		24.4	
Other		120		0.2	372		0.5	
Total	\$	63,811	10	0.0% \$	68,153		100.0%	

Cost of Goods Sold

We are a semi-fabless company. We outsource wafer production for our accelerometer products and for a portion of the wafers used in our magnetic sensor products to third-party foundries and complete the post-CMOS MEMS and most of the packaging, assembly and testing functions in-house. We also purchase our ceramic packaging materials from third-party suppliers.

During 2012, our wireless system solution products and some of our inertial system solution products were manufactured by our indirect subsidiary in Wuxi, China through outsourcing most of the assembly process to third-party contract assembly vendors and performing final testing and programming functions in-house at our facility in Wuxi. Until recently, our FAA-certified products were manufactured by Crossbow Technology under an agreement that expired on December 31, 2012.

Cost of goods sold consists of: (i) cost of wafer, ceramic and other materials purchased from third parties; (ii) manufacturing overhead, primarily consisting of salaries and wages of our quality control employees and manufacturing-related management employees, depreciation, and equipment and parts; (iii) direct labor, primarily consisting of salaries and wages of our manufacturing operators; and (iv) outsourced processing fees paid to third-party packaging service providers and assembly vendors.

Our relationships with third-party foundry and packaging service providers do not provide for guaranteed levels of production capacity at pre-determined prices. As a result, our outsourcing costs relating to wafer production, and to a lesser extent, packaging services, are susceptible to sudden changes based on conditions in the global semiconductor market and our service providers' available capacity.

Gross Profit and Gross Margin

Our gross profit and gross margin from our sensor products have historically declined over time, due to a variety of factors, including average selling prices of our products, our product application mix, prices of wafers, excess and obsolete inventory, pricing by competitors, changes in production yields, and percentage of sales conducted through distributors. Our products for mobile phone applications have historically had lower margins than our products for automotive products. We have continuously worked to stabilize and improve our gross margin through engineering redesign of our sensor products and by seeking to improve the manufacturing process to increase manufacturing efficiency. In 2012, our gross margin improved to 37.1% from 35.0% in 2011, as a result of our cost

reduction effort and the decrease of our net sales to mobile phone application as a percentage of total sales. Notwithstanding the relatively low margins in the mobile phone applications market, we will seek to increase our market share in that market by introducing products with more functionalities and at a competitive cost, in the goal of capitalizing on the significant potential for revenue growth in that market.

The gross margin from systems solution products has benefited from the reduced cost associated with our transfer of manufacturing to our Wuxi, China operations. However, the gross margin from systems solution products also fluctuate based on the mix of the product sales. Gross margins from wireless sensor network products are generally lower than those of inertial products. In 2012, the gross margin from system solution products decreased to 46.0% from 54.5% in 2011, mainly due to an increase in sales of lower margin wireless sensor network products as a percentage of our total sensor solution product sales. We expect the gross margins for our system solution products to increase in the coming year as we continue to make improvements to the manufacturing process and introduce new inertial products which will have a better cost structure.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses are recognized as they are incurred and primarily consist of salaries and wages of research and development employees; research costs, primarily consisting of mask costs and prototype wafers, consulting fees paid for outside design services; travel and other expenses; and stock-based compensation attributable to our research and development employees.

Historically, research and development expenses have increased both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales. However, research and development expenses decreased both in absolute terms and as a percentage of total net sales in 2012, compared to 2011 due to headcount reduction. We expect our research and development expenses to increase for the foreseeable future as we committed to invest in research and development resources to develop new competitive sensor and system solution products.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

Sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of wages, salaries and commissions for our sales and marketing personnel; consulting expenses, primarily consisting of sales consulting services and software application consulting services; travel expenses; independent sales representatives commissions; office rental; market promotion and others expenses and stock-based compensation. We expect the sales and marketing expense to increase in the long term as we continue to invest in sales and marketing resources to develop new market applications, expand our sales marketing network and engage in additional marketing and promotional activities.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of salaries and wages for administrative personnel; costs for professional services, including legal, tax and accounting services; depreciation and amortization expenses for non-manufacturing equipment; travel and entertainment expenses; office supply and other office-related expenses; office rental expenses; others, such as utilities, insurance and provision for accounts receivable; and stock-based compensation.

Our general and administrative expenses increased in 2012 due to the addition of corporate quality and IT resources and expanded operations in Wuxi China. We expect that our general and administrative expenses will increase moderately as we grow our business and our operations in the near future.

Impairment of Goodwill

We recorded a goodwill impairment charge of \$0.6 million in 2012 and \$4.5 million in 2011 related to our 2010 Crossbow acquisition as a result of our annual goodwill impairment analysis.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income (expense) primarily consists of interest income earned on our cash and cash equivalents, and interest expense incurred on our borrowings and net foreign currency exchange gains and losses.

Provision for (Benefit from) Income Taxes

We conduct sales through our headquarters in Andover, Massachusetts. Our Wuxi subsidiary is primarily engaged in manufacturing and engineering activities and does not conduct direct sales to customers. For internal accounting and PRC tax purposes, we account for the transfers of goods from our Wuxi subsidiary to our U.S. headquarters as sales, and calculate the transfer price of such sales based on a markup of manufacturing and operating costs. We believe the prices of these sales were consistent with the prevailing market prices.

U.S. Tax

In the United States, we are subject to the federal income tax and the Massachusetts state income tax, which are approximately at the rates of 34.0% and 8.0%, respectively. At December 31, 2012, the Company had gross U.S. net operating loss carryforwards of \$10.3 million, which expire in various amounts beginning in 2028. Included within this amount is approximately \$367,000 of excess tax deductions associated with non-qualified stock options that have been exercised. When these excess tax benefits actually result in a reduction to currently payable income taxes, the tax benefit will be recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital. The Company's operating losses may be subject to limitations under provisions of the Internal Revenue Code.

PRC tax

Our PRC taxes primarily consist of enterprise income tax, value-added tax, and certain other miscellaneous taxes.

Enterprise Income Tax

Under the "Enterprise Income Tax Law" of China, which took effect on January 1, 2008, Foreign Invested Enterprises (FIEs) and domestic companies are subject to a uniform tax rate of 25%. In addition, preferential tax treatment would continue to be given to companies (FIEs or domestic) in certain encouraged sectors and to entities classified as "high-technology companies especially supported by the PRC government". The company needs to meet certain qualification requirements to be eligible for this preferential tax treatment. The qualification will be reviewed every three years.

MEMSIC Semiconductor has been qualified as a "high-technology company especially supported by the PRC government" since 2008 and passed the "high-technology Company especially supported by the PRC government" review in 2011. Therefore, a preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15% under the new tax law will apply to MEMSIC Semiconductor from 2012 to 2014. Prior to 2012, according to the relevant transition preferential tax policies issued by the State Council, the preferential enterprise income tax rate under the new tax law and the transition-period preferential tax policy can not apply simultaneously. MEMSIC Semiconductor chose a 50% reduction on the uniform enterprise income tax rate of 25% from 2009 to 2011, with an effective tax rate of 12.5%.

The new tax law and its implementing rules provide that dividends paid by a PRC entity to a non-resident enterprise for tax purposes is subject to PRC withholding tax at a rate of 10% subject to reduction by an applicable tax treaty with the PRC. We expect that a 10% withholding tax will apply to dividends paid to us by our Wuxi subsidiary, but this treatment will depend on our status as a non-resident enterprise of China. For detailed discussion of PRC tax issues related to resident

enterprise status, see "Risk Factors -Risks Related to Doing Business in China We may be treated as a resident enterprise for PRC tax purposes under the Enterprise Income Tax Law effective as of January 1, 2008, which may subject us to PRC income tax for any dividends we pay to our non-PRC stockholders".

Our indirect Wuxi subsidiary and MEMSIC Semiconductor's wholly owned subsidiary MEMSIC Transducer Systems Company Limited ("MTS") is subject to the enterprise income tax rate of 25%. In 2013, MTS will apply for "high-technology Company especially supported by the PRC government". Once approved, a preferential enterprise income tax rate of 15% will apply to MTS.

See "Risk Factors Risks Related to Doing Business in China The discontinuation of any of the preferential tax treatments currently available to us in China could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations."

Other PRC taxes

Other miscellaneous PRC taxes primarily consist of property tax, land-use tax and stamp tax which are accounted for in our general and administrative expenses, and education surcharge and City maintenance and construction tax, which is recorded as part of our cost of goods sold.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements and related notes requires us to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, net sales and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We have based our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Our management has discussed the development, selection and disclosure of these estimates with the audit committee of our board of directors. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We consider an accounting policy to be critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time the estimate is made, and if different estimates that reasonably could have been used, or changes in the accounting estimates that are reasonably likely to occur periodically, could materially impact the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the following critical accounting policies are the most sensitive and are those that require the more significant estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. You should read the following descriptions of critical accounting policies, judgments and estimates in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and other disclosures filed in this report.

Investments

We account for our investments under ASC Topic 320, *Investments Debt and Equity Securities*. Marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale securities and are accounted for at their fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on these securities are reported as other comprehensive income (loss), respectively. Under ASC Topic 320-10, unrealized holding gains and losses are excluded from earnings and reported net of the related tax effect in other comprehensive income as a separate component of shareholders' equity. When the fair value of an investment declines below its original cost, we evaluate the investment in accordance with ASC Topic 320-10, which addresses the determination as to when an investment is considered impaired, whether that impairment is other than temporary, and the measurement of an impairment loss. When the fair value of an investment declines below its original cost, we consider the duration and extent of the decline and

economic factors influencing the markets. If a decline in fair value is judged to be other-than-temporary, the cost basis of the individual security is written off to fair value as a new cost basis and the amount of the write-down is reflected in earnings (that is, accounted for as a realized loss). The new cost basis is not changed for subsequent recoveries in fair value. Subsequent increases in the fair value of available-for-sale securities are included in other comprehensive income; subsequent decreases in fair value, if not an other-than-temporary impairment, also are included in other comprehensive income. The determination of whether a loss is other-than-temporary is highly judgmental and may have a material impact on our results of operations.

As of December 31, 2012, our investments included \$2.5 million of auction rate securities. Due to liquidity issues in global credit and capital markets, the auction rate securities we hold have failed at auction, meaning that the amount of securities submitted for sale at auction exceeded the amount of purchase orders. If an auction fails, the issuer becomes obligated to pay interest at penalty rates, and the auction rate securities we hold continue to pay interest in accordance with their stated terms. We have classified our auction rate securities as long-term investments since December 31, 2008, due to our assessment of the uncertainty as to the time frame within which we would likely be able to liquidate these investments under current market conditions.

We estimated the fair value of these securities at December 31, 2012 using broker valuations and internally-developed models of the expected future cash flows related to the securities as well as a third party specialist's valuation. One of the more significant assumptions made in our internally-developed models was the term of expected cash flows of the underlying auction rate securities and the discount related to the illiquidity of the investments. We developed several scenarios for the liquidation of the auction rate securities over periods that ranged from 3 to 7 years. In estimating the fair value of these investments, we considered the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, the magnitude of the losses compared to the investments' cost, the length of time the investments have been in an unrealized loss position, the low probability that we will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the security, whether the security has been downgraded by a rating agency, and our ability and intent to hold these investments until the anticipated recovery in market value occurs. Based on the estimated operating cash flows and other sources of cash, we intend to hold these auction rate securities for the foreseeable future.

Our valuation analysis at December 31, 2012 resulted in an increase of \$100,000 in temporary unrealized impairment loss from 2011. The total unrealized impairment loss at December 31, 2012 was \$500,000. We continue to monitor the market for auction rate securities and to assess its impact on the fair value of our investments. If current market conditions deteriorate further, we may be required to record additional temporary unrealized losses in other comprehensive income (loss) or, if the decline in fair value is judged to be other-than-temporary, the cost basis of the individual security may be written off to fair value as a new cost basis and the amount of the write-down would be reflected as a charge to earnings.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from the sale of our products to OEM and ODM customers when all of the following conditions have been met: (i) evidence exists of an arrangement with the customer, typically consisting of a purchase order or contract; (ii) our products have been shipped and risk of loss has passed to the customer; (iii) we have completed all of the necessary terms of the purchase order or contract; (iv) the amount of revenue to which we are entitled is fixed or determinable; and (v) we believe it is probable that we will be able to collect the amount due from the customer. To the extent that one or more of these conditions has not been satisfied, we defer recognition of revenue. An allowance for estimated future product returns and sales price allowances is established at the date of revenue recognition. An allowance for uncollectible receivables is established by a charge to operations,



when in our opinion, it is probable that the amount due to us will not be collected. Historically, product returns and bad debt expense have not been significant.

Our products are warranted against manufacturing defects for twelve months following the date of sale (eighteen months following date of sale to a distributor). Products returned under the provisions of the warranty agreement require our pre-approval. Our sole obligation under the provisions of the warranty agreement is to replace or repair the product. Reserves for potential warranty claims are provided at the time of revenue recognition and are based on several factors, including historical claims experience, current sales levels and our estimate of repair costs. To date, warranty expenses have not been significant.

We sell products to OEM and ODM manufacturers as well as distributors. Sales to distributors are made pursuant to distributor agreements, which allow for the return of goods under certain circumstances. We follow the following criteria for recognition of sales to distributors: (i) the selling price to the distributor is fixed or determinable at the date of shipment; (ii) our product has been shipped and risk of loss has passed to the distributor; (iv) it is probable that the amount due from the distributor will be collected; (v) we do not have a significant future obligations to directly assist in the distributor's resale of the product and (vi) the amount of future returns can be reasonably estimated. Once these criteria are met, we recognize revenue upon shipment to the distributor and estimate returns based on historical sales returns.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our standard policy on payment terms is net 30 days from delivery. In 2012 and 2011, our average days sales outstanding was 28 days and 33 days, respectively. At certain times our trade accounts receivable have included balances from customers that have exceeded 10% of total accounts receivable. We have established credit limits for each of our customers and review such limits prior to product shipment. We believe that our customers are generally of high credit quality and that we are not subject to unusual risk with respect to such customers.

Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable is included as a charge to sales and marketing expense. We evaluate the sufficiency of our allowance for accounts receivable on a quarterly basis.

The sufficiency of our allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable is evaluated based on the recoverability of our accounts receivable, which is in turn based on a combination of factors, many of which are based on estimates. These factors include indicators of a specific customer's inability to meet its financial obligations to us, such as in the case of bankruptcy filings or deterioration in the customer's operating results or financial position. In addition, we may consider the length of time the receivables are past due, the financial health of the customer and historical experience. If circumstances related to specific customers change, our estimates of the recoverability of receivables could be further adjusted.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (weighted average first in-first out) or market. We evaluate our inventory for potential excess and obsolete inventories based on forecasted demands and record a provision for such amounts as necessary.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess cost of the Crossbow asset acquisition over the net fair value allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and to the acquired intangible asset that does not qualify for separate recognition according to ASC Topic 805. All goodwill acquired in the Crossbow acquisition was allocated to our system solutions product reporting unit.

We evaluate our goodwill annually at the end of the year and determine whether events or circumstances exist to indicate an impairment loss. We performed an annual impairment test for goodwill in December 2012 and 2011, and concluded that impairment existed as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. As a result, we recorded an impairment charge of \$0.6 million and \$4.5 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The goodwill was fully impaired at December 31, 2012.

During our business planning process in the fourth quarter of 2012, we continued to see weak forecast from the acquired system solution business. We concluded that this slower than anticipated growth represented an indicator of impairment of the goodwill associated with the acquired assets.

We performed the recoverability test to determine whether an impairment loss should be measured with respect to our long-lived assets of our system solution product reporting unit, including trademarks, customer relationships and developed technologies. We estimated the future net undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated from the use of the long-lived assets of the system solution product reporting unit and their eventual disposal and compared this to the carrying amount of the long-lived assets. We concluded that the estimated undiscounted cash flows exceed the carrying amount and the long-lived assets are recoverable, and that therefore, an impairment of the long-lived assets did not exist at December 31, 2012.

We performed our analysis and determined goodwill impairment according to ASC Topic 350, *Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets* and ASC Topic 360, *Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets*, using a two-step method. In the first step, we compared the estimated fair value of the reporting segment of our system solution product to its carrying amount, including goodwill, and this comparison indicated an impairment.

The determination of the fair value of our system solution product reporting unit included two valuation methods: the income approach and the market approach. Under the income approach, we considered the discounted cash flow (DCF) method. Under the market approach, we have considered the guideline public company (GPC) method. The income approach provides a method for incorporating our long term forecast into the determination of value. Judgment is required when performing adjustments to the forecast, selecting an appropriate discount rate and determining a terminal value. The market approach provides a method for incorporating market prices and multiples into the determination of value. Judgment is required when selecting guideline companies and transactions and when adjusting the multiples. Under the guideline public company method, value was estimated based on multiples of 2012 revenues and 2013 projected revenues. We compared our system solution product reporting unit to the guideline public companies in terms of size, profit margins and revenue growth rates. The guideline public company multiples were discounted based on these comparisons. A premium for control of 15% was applied to the value indicated by the guideline public company method. We have applied equal weighting to the income and market (GPC) approaches. We tested the reasonableness of the fair value conclusion by calculating value using the DCF method and the GPC method, comparing the fair value conclusion to the market capitalization of the parent company.

As a result of this analysis, we concluded that the fair value of our system solution product reporting unit was less than the carrying amount, indicating an impairment.

According to ASC Topic 350, if the carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value, step two is required to determine the amount of the impairment loss. Step two requires the allocation of the estimated fair value of the system solution product segment, including any unrecognized intangible assets, and liabilities in a hypothetical purchase price allocation. Any remaining unallocated fair value represents the implied fair value of goodwill, which is compared to the corresponding carrying value of goodwill to compute the goodwill impairment amount. We followed these steps and concluded the goodwill impairment to be \$0.6 million and \$4.5 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

General

Share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, are recognized in our financial statements based on their fair values. The cost of equity-based service awards is based on the grant-date fair value of the award and is recognized over the period during which the employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award (vesting period). Stock-based compensation arrangements with non-employees are accounted for utilizing the fair value method or, if a more reliable measurement, the value of the services or consideration received. The resulting compensation expense is recognized for financial reporting over the term of performance or vesting.

Valuation of Stock Options

We use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to calculate the grant-date fair value of an option award. The key input assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model include; (i) the risk-free interest rate is based on the yield available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds at the date of grant with maturity dates approximately equal to the expected life at the grant date, (ii) the expected life of the options is based on evaluations of historical and expected future employee exercise behavior; (iii) volatility is based on historic volatilities from traded shares of a selected publicly traded peer group, believed to be comparable after consideration of size, maturity, profitability, growth, risk and return on investment; and (iv) dividend yield, we have not paid dividends in the past and do not expect to in the foreseeable future. We utilize historical data to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures and records stock-based compensation expense only for those awards that are expected to vest.

Income Taxes

Our deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and of tax credits. Deferred tax assets arise when a company's financial statements recognize charges or expenses that, for income tax purposes, will not be allowed as deductions until future periods. For example, when a corporation incurs an expense in its financial statements, such as restructuring charges, that it is not allowed to deduct on its federal tax return until paid in the future, the future tax benefit of that expense is generally recorded in the income statement as a reduction of income tax expense and in the balance sheet as a deferred tax asset. The same general treatment applies to the carry forward of unused net operating losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets are often netted with deferred tax liabilities when presented in the balance sheet and are referred to as net deferred tax assets. We measure our deferred tax assets and liabilities using the tax rates and laws we expect to be in effect at the time of their reversal or utilization.

Under ASC Topic 740, *Accounting for Income Tax*, a net deferred tax asset may be carried on the balance sheet at its full value only if it is more likely than not that the deductions, losses, or credits giving rise to such deferred tax asset will be used in the future. We periodically evaluate our deferred tax assets for recoverability using a consistent approach that considers the relative impact of negative and positive evidence, including our historical profitability and projections of future taxable income. Under GAAP, we are required to establish a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets and record a charge to income or stockholders' equity if we determine, based on available evidence at the time the determination is made, that it is not more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized. In evaluating the need for a valuation allowance, we estimate future taxable income based on management-approved business plans and ongoing tax planning strategies. This process involves significant management judgment about assumptions that are subject to change from period to period based on changes in tax laws or variances between our projected operating performance, our actual results and other factors.

We have been in a three-year cumulative loss position since 2009 in the United States and as a result we recorded a full valuation allowance against our U.S. deferred tax assets, due to the uncertainty with respect to future taxable income in the United States. In the event we generate future taxable income, our income tax expense in future periods could be reduced to the extent those deferred tax assets are deemed recoverable.

The net deferred tax asset balance at December 31, 2012 was \$202,000, including \$179,000 related to PRC taxes applicable to our China subsidiary and \$23,000 related to Japan taxes applicable to Crossbow Japan.

We reinvest any earnings of our Wuxi subsidiary, MEMSIC Semiconductor, in its operations. We have not provided for U.S. income taxes that could result from the distribution of such earnings to us. If these earnings were ultimately distributed to the U.S. in the form of dividends or otherwise, or if the shares of the Wuxi subsidiary were sold or transferred, we would be subject to additional U.S. income taxes, net of impact of any available foreign tax credits. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of unrecognized deferred U.S. taxes on these undistributed earnings.

We have performed an analysis of our uncertain tax positions in connection with the application of ASC Topic 740 as of the year ended December 31, 2012 and concluded we have no uncertain tax positions that do not meet a more likely than not standard set forth by ASC Topic 740. Therefore, we have not recorded a tax reserve related to uncertain positions in our financial statements.

Advance Research Funding

Advance research funding represents grants awarded by the Chinese government to fund specific research and development projects that we undertake. The amount received is initially recorded as a liability and subsequently recognized as a credit to research and development expenses in our statements of operations, or to the carrying value of equipment purchased for the specified research and development projects on our balance sheet as we perform the project and have complied with the conditions or performance obligations attached to the related government grants. Significant judgment may be involved in assessing our completion of the project or compliance with the required application of the research funding to qualified expenses.

Results of Operations

The following tables set forth a summary of our consolidated statements of operations for the periods by amount and as a percentage of our total net sales. This information should be read together with our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The operating results in any period are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for any future period:

	For the year ended December 31,				
	:	2012	2	011	
	Amount	% of net sales	Amount	% of net sales	
		(dollar amounts i	n thousands)		
Net sales	\$ 63,811	100.0%	\$ 68,153	100.0%	
Cost of goods sold	40,108	62.9	44,314	65.0	
Gross profit	23,703	37.1	23,839	35.0	
Operating expenses:					
Research and development	6,875	10.8	8,554	12.5	
Sales and marketing	5,195	8.1	6,892	10.1	
General and administrative	9,418	14.8	8,718	12.8	
Depreciation	1,552	2.4	1,637	2.4	
Amortization	1,481	2.3	1,628	2.4	
Impairment of goodwill	647	1.0	4,492	6.6	
Total operating expenses	25,168	39.4	31,921	46.8	
Operating loss	(1,465)	(2.2)	(8,082)	(11.8)	
Other income:					
Interest income, net	260	0.4	438	0.6	
Foreign exchange gain	191	0.3	1,154	1.7	
Other, net	319	0.5	564	0.8	
Total other income	770	1.2	2,156	3.1	
Loss before income taxes	(695)	(1.0)	(5,926)	(8.7)	
Provision for income taxes	266	0.4	(3,920)	0.1	
	200	0.4	//	0.1	
Net loss	\$ (961)	(1.4)	\$ (6,003)	(8.8)	
Less: net income attributable to non-controlling interests in joint ventures	27	0.1	82	0.1	
Net loss attributable to MEMSIC, Inc.	\$ (988)	(1.5)%	\$ (6,085)	(8.9)%	

Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2011

Net Sales. Our net sales decreased by 6.4% to \$63.8 million in 2012 from \$68.2 million in 2011. This decrease was primarily due to a decrease in net sales of our magnetic sensor product to a major mobile phone manufacturer, whose market sales of the smart phone models in which our sensor is included have declined.

Sales in mobile phone applications decreased 17.6% to \$29.1 million in 2012 from \$35.4 million in 2011, due to the decrease in unit sales of our magnetic sensor products to a major mobile phone manufacturer.

Sales in automotive applications decreased 5.1% to \$13.6 million in 2012 from \$14.4 million in 2011. This decrease was primarily due to soft sales from the auto models in which our sensor is incorporated.

Sales in consumer applications increased 54.0% to \$10.2 million in 2012, compared to \$6.6 million in 2011. This increase was primarily due to an increase in sales of our accelerometer product in a digital camera application in the Japan market as well as the selection of our magnetic product for use in a tablet PC at one major software company in the U.S.

Sales in our industrial and other applications decreased 8.2% to \$10.8 million in 2012 from \$11.8 million in 2011. The decrease was primarily due to the slow transition of the acquired system solution products to the upgraded new products.

Cost of goods sold. Our cost of goods sold decreased by 9.5% to \$40.1 million in 2012 from \$44.3 million in 2011. This decrease was primarily due to the decrease in the volume of units sold.

Gross profit and gross margin. Our gross profit decreased slightly to \$23.7 million in 2012 from \$23.8 million in 2011 despite a 6.4% revenue decrease. Our gross margin percentage increased by 2.1 percentage points to 37.1% in 2012 from 35.0% in 2011 primarily due to the decrease of our net sales to lower-margin mobile phone application as a percentage of total sales and our cost reduction efforts.

Our gross profits and gross margins by product type are shown in the following table (dollars in thousands):

		Fo	or the year ende	d December 31,	
		2012	2	201	1
	Gre	oss Profit	Margin %	Gross Profit	Margin %
Sensor products	\$	19,418	35.6%	\$ 18,237	31.5%
System solution products		4,285	46.0	5,603	54.5
Total	\$	23,703	37.1%	\$ 23,840	35.0%

Gross profit from our sensor products increased to \$19.4 million in 2012 from \$18.2 million in 2011. This increase was primarily due to increased sales volume from our sensor product to mobile phone and digital camera applications. Gross margin of our sensor products also increased to 35.6% in 2012 from 31.5% in 2011 as a result of our continued effort in cost reduction of our magnetic sensor product through engineering redesign of the product, manufacturing efficiency enhancement and yield improvement as well as the reduction in sales of lower margin mobile phone sales as a percentage of total net sales.

Gross profit of our system solution products decreased to \$4.3 million in 2012 from \$5.6 million in 2011. Gross margin of our system solution products also decreased to 46.0% in 2012 from 54.5% in 2011. The decrease in the gross profit and the gross margin of our system solution products in 2012 was mainly due to an increase in sales of a new wireless solution product which had a low gross margin in Japan and a decrease in sales of inertial products due to product transition.

Research and development. Our research and development expenses decreased by 19.6% to \$6.9 million in 2012 from \$8.6 million in 2011. This decrease was primarily due to a reduction in engineering headcount and a decrease in consulting and testing expenses related to upgrading and reengineering of our system solutions products as well as an application of government funding to certain research project expenses. Research and development expenses, as a percentage of total net sales, decreased to 10.8% for the year ended December 31, 2012 from 12.5% for the year ended December 31, 2011. We will continue to invest in research and development resources to develop new sensor and system solution products, and as a result, we expect our research and development expense will increase in 2013.

Sales and marketing. Our sales and marketing expenses decreased by 24.6% to \$5.2 million in 2012 from \$6.9 million in 2011. The decrease was primarily due to a reduced commission expense related to lower sales to one major mobile phone manufacturer as well as a restructuring of our sales and marketing department to focus more marketing effort on developing new applications and new markets with higher gross margin. Sales and marketing expenses, as a percentage of total net sales, decreased to 8.1% for the year ended December 31, 2012 from 10.1% for the year ended December 31, 2011.

General and administrative. Our general and administrative expenses increased by 8.0% to \$9.4 million in 2012 from \$8.7 million in 2011. This increase was primarily due to the addition of corporate quality and IT resources and expanded operations in Wuxi, China. General and administrative expenses, as a percentage of total net sales, increased to 14.8% for the year ended December 31, 2012 from 12.8% for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Depreciation expense. Depreciation expense related to office equipment, computers, software, leasehold improvements and building spaces that are not used in the course of manufacturing our products. Depreciation expense was approximately \$1.6 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Amortization. Amortization expense was \$1.5 million in 2012, compared to \$1.6 million in 2011.

Impairment of goodwill. We recorded a goodwill impairment charge of \$0.6 million related to our 2010 Crossbow acquisition at December 31, 2012 as a result of our annual 2012 goodwill impairment analysis.

Other income, net. Our other income, net was \$0.8 million in 2012 compared to \$2.2 million in 2011. The decrease was primarily attributable to a lower foreign exchange gain of \$191,000 in 2012, compared to a foreign exchange gain of \$1.2 million in 2011, lower interest income due to a decrease in interest rates and an accrued interest expense of \$232,000 related to construction cost of the MTS building that was financed by the local Chinese government.

Provision for income taxes. Our income tax provision was \$266,000 in 2012 compared to an income tax provision of \$77,000 in 2011. Our income tax provision for 2012 reflected a tax provision of \$104,000 related to income our subsidiary MEMSIC Semiconductor Wuxi, \$166,000 related to income in Crossbow Japan and a provision of \$1,300 related to U.S. state minimum tax, offset by a tax benefit of \$6,000 related to a change in the deferred tax assets in China.

Our income tax provision was \$77,000 in 2011 compared to an income tax benefit of \$6,000 in 2010. Our income tax provision for 2011 reflected a tax provision of \$138,000 related to income in Crossbow Japan and a provision of \$1,000 related to U.S. state minimum tax, offset by a tax benefit of \$5,000 related to a change in the deferred tax assets in China and a reversal of a provision of \$57,000 related to certain deferred tax liabilities as a result of goodwill impairment loss.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2012, our principal sources of liquidity consisted of cash and cash equivalents of \$27.3 million. In addition, our investments included \$34.6 million of short-term investments and \$2.5 million of auction rate securities that have failed at auction and that are classified as long-term investments on our balance sheet. The principal represented by the auction rate security will not be accessible to us until one of the following occurs: a successful auction occurs, the issuer redeems the issue, a buyer is found outside of the auction process or the underlying securities have matured. Based on our expected operating cash flows, and our other sources of cash, we do not expect the potential lack of liquidity in these investments to affect our ability to execute our current business plan in the near term. There can be no assurance that we would be able in the near term to liquidate these securities on favorable terms, or at all, and if we should require access to these funds sooner than we

currently expect, our inability to sell these auction rate securities could adversely affect our liquidity and our financial flexibility.

We outsource certain steps of the manufacturing process to third parties while conducting the remaining steps in-house. As a result, our principal uses of cash historically have consisted of payments to our suppliers for the costs related to the outsourcing of wafer fabrication and outsourced processing fees paid to and materials purchased from third parties, as well as payments for our manufacturing overhead and equipment purchases. Other significant cash outlays consist of capital expenditures, including the construction of our buildings in China. We also have used cash to fund salaries, wages and commissions for our non-manufacturing related employees.

On June 30, 2010, our indirect Wuxi subsidiary, MEMSIC Transducer Systems Company Limited, or MTS, obtained a \$20 million, five-year project loan from Agricultural Bank of China. Of this amount, \$15 million was used by MTS to purchase from us substantially all the assets that we purchased from Crossbow Technology, Inc., \$3 million is for working capital purposes and \$2 million for the purchase of equipment to build the manufacturing capacity for the system solution products. This loan is collateralized by the buildings and land owned by our Wuxi subsidiaries as well as the intellectual property purchased by MTS from us. The interest rate of the loan is a variable rate, adjusted semi-annually based on the LIBOR rate plus 4.00%. MTS has obtained agreement from the local Wuxi government to fully subsidize the interest expense on a quarterly basis. As of December 31, 2012, \$17,930,000 has been withdrawn, \$500,000 has been repaid and \$17,430,000 is outstanding. The repayment schedule of the principal amount is as follows:

Date	Payment Amount
June 29, 2013	\$ 1,000,000
June 29, 2014	2,500,000
June 29, 2015	13,930,000

\$ 17,430,000

We believe that our current cash, proceeds of our project loan from the Agricultural Bank of China and cash flow from operations will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs, including working capital requirements and capital expenditures for at least the next twelve months. Our future cash requirements will depend on many factors, including our operating income, the timing of our new product introductions, the costs of maintaining adequate manufacturing capacity, the continuing market acceptance of our products, or other changing business conditions and future developments, including any investments or acquisitions we may decide to pursue. If our existing cash is insufficient to meet our requirements, we may seek to sell additional equity securities, debt securities or borrow from banks. We cannot assure you that financing will be available in the amounts we need or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. The sale of additional equity securities, including convertible debt securities, would be dilutive to our stockholders. The incurrence of indebtedness would divert cash for working capital requirements and capital expenditures to service debt and could result in operating and financial covenants that restrict our operations and our ability to pay dividends to our stockholders. If we are unable to obtain additional equity or debt financing, our business, operations and prospects may suffer.

The following table sets forth a summary of our cash flows for the periods indicated:

	Year Ended December 31,		
	2011		2010
Net cash provided by operating activities	\$ 4,720,313	\$	4,037,259
Net cash used in investing activities	(28,797,556)		(7,293,717)
Net cash used in financing activities	(338,208)		(59,727)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	(192,475)		(463,892)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	\$ (24,607,926)	\$	(3,780,077)

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for 2012 was \$4.7 million, which was the result of a net loss of \$1.0 million adjusted to reflect a net increase relating to non-cash items and the net change in operating assets and liabilities. The non-cash items totaled \$6.6 million and were the result of \$4.7 million depreciation and amortization, stock based compensation of \$1.3 million, and goodwill impairment charge of \$0.6 million. The adjustments related to changes in balances of operating assets and liabilities, a net use of cash of \$0.9 million, consisted of a \$3.4 million decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses, a \$0.4 million increase in other assets, offset by a decrease of \$1.2 million in accounts receivable and a decrease in inventory of \$1.7 million.

Net cash provided by operating activities for 2011 was \$4.0 million, which was the result of a net loss of \$6.0 million adjusted to reflect a net increase relating to non-cash items and the net change in operating assets and liabilities. The non-cash items totaled \$10.8 million and were the result of \$4.7 million depreciation and amortization, stock based compensation of \$1.6 million, and goodwill impairment charge of \$4.5 million. The adjustments related to changes in balances of operating assets and liabilities, a net use of cash of \$0.8 million, consisted of a \$2.1 million increase in inventory, an increase of \$2.4 million in accounts receivable, offset by a decrease in others assets of \$0.4 million and an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses of \$3.3 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for 2012 was \$28.8 million primarily attributable to the \$73.9 million purchases of short-term investments and \$1.0 million used for the purchase of property and equipment, offset by proceeds from the sale of short-term investments of \$46.1 million.

Net cash used in investing activities for 2011 was \$7.3 million primarily attributable to the \$6.8 million purchases of short-term investments and \$2.9 million used for the purchase of property and equipment, offset by proceeds from the sale of investments of \$2.4 million as the result of the redemption of one of our auction rate securities.

Financing Activities

Net cash used by financing activities for 2012 was \$0.3 million, consisting \$0.5 million repayment of bank loan by MTS and cash dividend of \$59,000 paid to the minority owner of Crossbow Japan, offset by proceeds of \$0.2 million from exercise of options to purchase common stock.

Net cash used by financing activities for 2011 was \$60,000, mainly the result of payment of a cash dividend of \$115,000 paid to the minority owner of the joint venture in Japan offset by proceeds of \$56,000 from the exercise of options to purchase common stock.

Capital Expenditures

We have completed the first phase of construction of two new buildings adjacent to our current facility in Wuxi, China, comprising 20,800 square meters, consisting of 8,700 square meters for a new research and development institute and 12,100 square meters of new manufacturing facilities. Phase one included the structural construction of the two new buildings and furnishing and fitting out the research and development office building. We started using the research and development office building in the fourth quarter of 2009. The total cost for this phase was \$6.7 million. Phase two includes the furnishing and equipment of the manufacturing facility. At the end of 2011, we furnished and equipped one third of our new manufacturing facility to meet our expected production requirements for both accelerometer products and non-accelerometer products in 2011. We did not furnish or equip any additional manufacturing space in the new manufacturing building in 2012 as the current space is sufficient to support our 2012 sales.

We completed another manufacturing facility with 14,000 square meter total space in Wuxi, China in 2011 to host the manufacturing of our system solution products. The construction site is located on the same property as our June 2010 land purchase. The construction cost of approximately \$8.1 million was financed by the local Chinese government. In the third quarter of 2012, we were notified by the local Chinese government that we would be expected to make payments on the building beginning in February 2013. Upon notification, we started to accrue a financing charge using the effective interest rate method at an annual rate of 8% on the construction cost of the building, based on a 2009 memorandum with the local Chinese government, while we continue to renegotiate with the local Chinese government the payment terms of the construction cost of the building. The total accrued finance charge related to the MTS building was \$232,000 as of December 31, 2012. The \$8.1 million construction cost of the building is reflected as a long-term liability in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Under the November 2011 MEMSIC Wuxi Wireless Sensor Network Technology Co., Ltd. Investment Contribution Agreement, our indirect subsidiary MTS is expected to contribute certain intangible assets with an assessed value equal to the incremental investment of RMB16 million (approximately \$2.5 million). If the assessed value of the contributed intangible assets is less than RMB16 million, MTS will make up the deficiency in cash in order to bring the total investment from MTS to RMB20 million, representing 66.67% of the total equity.

Our capital expenditures amounted to \$1.0 million and \$2.9 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have special purpose entities. Other than operating leases for office leases, we do not engage in off-balance sheet financing arrangements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02, Intangibles Goodwill and Other (ASC Topic 350), Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment, which adds an optional qualitative assessment for determining whether an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired, similar to the goodwill guidance issued in ASU 2011-08. Companies have the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not (a likelihood of more than 50%) that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired. If a company determines that it is more likely than not that the fair value of such an asset exceeds its carrying amount, it would not need to calculate the fair value of the asset in that year. However, if a company concludes otherwise, it must calculate the fair value of the asset, compare that value with its carrying amount and record an impairment charge, if any. The guidance is effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years

beginning after September 15, 2012. The adoption of ASU No. 2012-02 did not have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2011, the FASB amended ASC Topic 350, Intangibles Goodwill and Other. This amendment is intended to reduce the cost and complexity of the annual goodwill impairment test by providing entities an option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether further impairment testing is necessary. The amended provisions are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 2011. This amendment impacts testing steps only and, therefore, adoption did not have an impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, which amended ASC Topic 220, Comprehensive Income. This amendment was issued to enhance comparability between entities that report under GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and to provide a more consistent method of presenting non-owner transactions that affect an entity's equity. The amendment requires companies to present the components of net income and other comprehensive income either as one continuous statement or as two separate but consecutive statements. It eliminates the option to report other comprehensive income and its components as part of the statement of changes in shareholders' equity. Furthermore, regardless of the presentation methodology elected, the issuer will be required to present on the face of the financial statements a reclassification adjustment for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income. The methodology for the computation and presentation of earnings per share remains the same. The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 and is to be applied retrospectively. As this pronouncement relates to disclosure only, the adoption did not have an impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (ASC Topic 820), Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS (ASU No. 2011-04). The amendments in this update apply to all reporting entities that are required or permitted to measure or disclose the fair value of an asset, a liability, or an instrument classified in a reporting entity's shareholders' equity in the financial statements. ASU No. 2011-04 does not extend the use of fair value accounting, but provides guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other standards within U.S. GAAP or IFRS. ASU No. 2011-04 changes the wording used to describe many requirements in GAAP for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements. Additionally, ASU No. 2011-04 clarifies the FASB's intent about the application of existing fair value measurements. The amendments in this update are to be applied prospectively. For public entities, the amendments are effective during interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoption of ASU No. 2011-04 did not have a material effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MEMSIC, Inc.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011	<u>D-55</u>
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011	<u>D-56</u>
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011	<u>D-57</u>
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011	<u>D-58</u>
	<u>D-59</u>
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011	<u>D-60</u>
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	<u>D-61</u>
D-54	

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of MEMSIC, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MEMSIC, Inc. as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of MEMSIC, Inc. at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP Boston, Massachusetts March 22, 2013

MEMSIC, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

	Ι	December 31, 2012	Γ	December 31, 2011
ASSETS				
Current assets:				
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	27,306,202	\$	51,914,128
Restricted cash		2,867,896		3,791,189
Short-term investments		34,640,188		6,814,728
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$18,774 and \$6,441, respectively, as of				< 0 < 0 0 0 1
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011		4,821,867		6,068,904
Inventories		9,840,659		11,459,153
Other current assets		2,285,923		2,050,787
Total current assets		81,762,735		82,098,889
Property and equipment, net		29,002,825		30,998,489
Long-term investments		2,500,000		2,600,000
Goodwill		_, ,		606,976
Intangible assets, net		9,918,305		11,091,532
Other assets		144,106		136,633
Total assets	\$	123,327,971	\$	127,532,519
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY				
Current liabilities:				
Accounts payable	\$	3,778,672	\$	8,439,605
Accrued expenses		3,934,975		2,630,966
Advance research funding		2,867,896		3,791,189
Current portion of note payable to bank		1,000,000		500,000
Total current liabilities		11,581,543		15,361,760
Note payable to bank, net of current portion		16,430,000		17,430,000
Building liability		8,135,115		8,161,288
Other liabilities		86,420		124,180
ouci natinues		00,420		124,100
Total other liabilities		24,651,535		25,715,468
Stockholders' equity:		,		,,
Common stock, \$0.00001 par value; authorized, 45,000,000 shares; 24,219,685 and 23,983,813 shares				
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively		242		240
Additional paid-in capital		102,813,203		101,266,272
Accumulated other comprehensive income		4,477,071		4,363,930
Accumulated deficit		(20,896,074)		(19,908,135)
MEMSIC The stackholders' equity		96 204 442		95 700 207
MEMSIC, Inc. stockholders' equity Non-controlling interests related to joint ventures		86,394,442		85,722,307
Non-controlling interests related to joint ventures		700,451		732,984
Total stockholders' equity		87,094,893		86,455,291
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$	123,327,971	\$	127,532,519

See notes to consolidated financial statements

MEMSIC, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

	Year Ended De	ecei	nber 31,
	2012		2011
Net sales	\$ 63,810,807	\$	68,153,132
Cost of goods sold	40,107,592		44,313,782
Gross profit	23,703,215		23,839,350
Operating expenses:			
Research and development	6,874,962		8,553,569
Sales and marketing	5,194,733		6,892,303
General and administrative	9,417,623		8,717,322
Depreciation	1,552,345		1,637,476
Amortization	1,480,609		1,627,692
Impairment of goodwill	646,602		4,492,000
Total operating expenses	25,166,874		31,920,362
Operating loss	(1,463,659)		(8,081,012)
Other income:			
Interest income, net	258,516		437,655
Foreign exchange gain	191,484		1,153,822
Other, net	318,660		564,489
Total other income	768,660		2,155,966
Loss before income taxes	(694,999)		(5,925,046)
Provision for income taxes	266,344		77,397
	,		,
Net loss	(961,343)		(6,002,443)
Less: net income attributable to non-controlling interests related to joint ventures	26,596		82,127
Net loss attributable to MEMSIC, Inc.	\$ (987,939)	\$	(6,084,570)
Net loss per common share attributable to MEMSIC, Inc.:			
Basic	\$ (0.04)	\$	(0.26)
Diluted	\$ (0.04)	\$	(0.26)
Weighted average shares outstanding used in calculating net loss per common share:			
Basic	24,027,523		23,827,937
	,,		.,.,
Diluted	24,027,523		23,827,937

See notes to consolidated financial statements

MEMSIC, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

	For the year ended December 31,		
		2012	2011
Net loss	\$	(961,343) \$	(6,002,443)
Other comprehensive income (loss):			
Unrealized loss on investments		(99,812)	(197)
Foreign currency translation adjustments		212,953	1,331,730
Comprehensive loss		(848,202)	(4,670,910)
Less: Income attributable to non-controlling interests in joint ventures		26,596	82,127
Foreign currency translation adjustments			(3,025)
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests in joint ventures		26,596	79,102
Comprehensive loss attributable to MEMSIC, Inc.	\$	(874,798) \$	(4,750,012)

See notes to consolidated financial statements

MEMSIC, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

	Common S	Stock		A	ccumulated			Non- controlling Interests	
	Shares	Par Value	Additional Paid-In Capital	Со	Other mprehensive Income	Accumulated Deficit	MEMSIC, Inc. Stockholders' Equity	in Joint Ventures	Total Stockholders' Equity
Balance at December 31, 2010	23,810,613	\$ 238	\$ 99,615,378	\$	3,029,372	(13, 823, 565)	\$ 88,821,423	\$ 361,445	\$ 89,182,868
Net loss						(6,084,570)	(6,084,570)	82,127	(6,002,443)
Foreign currency translation									
adjustments					1,334,755		1,334,755	(3,025)	1,331,730
Unrealized loss on short-term investments					(197)		(197)		(197)
Exercise of options to purchase									
common stock	33,200	1	55,661				55,662		55,662
Issuance of restricted stock award	140,000	1	(1						
Stock compensation expense			1,595,234				1,595,234		1,595,234
Dividend paid to Japan									
non-controlling interest and other adjustments								(25,330)	(25,330)
adjustments								(25,550)	(23,330)
Balance at December 31, 2011	23,983,813	\$ 240	\$101,266,272	\$	4,363,930	\$ (19,908,135)	\$ 85,722,307	\$ 732,984	\$ 86,455,291
Net income						(987,939)	(987,939)	26,596	(961,343)
Foreign currency translation									
adjustments					212,953		212,953		212,953
Unrealized loss on investments					(99,812)		(99,812)		(99,812)
Exercise of options to purchase									
common stock	121,568	1	228,143				228,144		228,144
Issuance of restricted stock award	114,304	1	(7,224				(7,223)		(7,223)
Stock compensation expense			1,326,012				1,326,012		1,326,012
Dividend paid to Japan									
non-controlling interest								(59,129)	(59,129)
Balance at December 31, 2012	24,219,685	\$ 242	\$102,813,203	\$	4,477,071	\$ (20,896,074)	\$ 86,394,442	\$ 700,451	\$ 87,094,893

See notes to consolidated financial statements

MEMSIC, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

	Year Ended December 31,		nber 31,	
		2012		2011
Cash flows from operating activities:				
Net loss	\$	(961,343)	\$	(6,002,443)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash provided by operating activities:				
Depreciation		3,149,138		3,114,498
Amortization		1,542,986		1,627,692
Stock compensation expense		1,326,012		1,595,234
Deferred rent		(37,760)		34,145
Deferred income taxes		(722)		(64,664)
Impairment of goodwill		646,602		4,492,000
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:				
Restricted cash		962,117		(708,501)
Accounts receivable		1,155,241		(2,386,050)
Inventories		1,690,243		(2,104,880)
Other assets		(370,011)		417,273
Advance research funding		(962,117)		708,501
Accounts payable and accrued expenses		(3,420,073)		3,314,454
Net cash provided by operating activities		4,720,313		4,037,259
Cash flows from investing activities:		.,,		.,,,
Purchase of short-term investments		(73,889,615)		(6,814,925)
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments		46,064,540		2,420,000
Purchase of property and equipment		(972,481)		(2,898,792)
Net cash used in investing activities		(28,797,556)		(7,293,717)
Cash flows from financing activities:		(,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		(,,_,_,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
Cash dividend paid to non-controlling interest		(59,129)		(115,389)
Proceeds from exercise of options to purchase common stock		220.921		55,662
Payment on note payable to bank		(500,000)		
Net cash used in financing activities		(338,208)		(59,727)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents		(192,475)		(463,892)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		(24,607,926)		(3,780,077)
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period		51,914,128		55,694,205
		,- , -0		
Cash and cash equivalents end of period	\$	27,306,202	\$	51,914,128

See notes to consolidated financial statements

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. NATURE OF THE BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS

MEMSIC, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated on March 3, 1999 as a Delaware corporation. The Company is a leading provider of semiconductor sensor systems solutions based on micro electromechanical systems (MEMS) technology and advanced integrated circuit design. The Company has integrated a MEMS technology-based inertial sensor, commonly known as an accelerometer, with mixed signal processing circuitry onto a single chip using a standard complementary metal-oxide-semiconductor (CMOS) process. This proprietary technology has allowed for sensor solutions at lower cost, higher performance and improved functionality. Utilizing a standard CMOS process allows easy integration of additional functions and the creation of new sensors to expand into magnetic, touch and flow sensors, as well as other MEMS application areas beyond accelerometers. Any application that requires the control or measurement of motion is a potential application for accelerometers. The Company's sensor and solution products have a wide range of applications for consumer electronics, mobile phones, automotive (airbags, rollover detection, electronic stability control and navigation systems), as well as business, industrial and medical applications.

MEMSIC, Inc. maintains its corporate headquarters in Massachusetts. All manufacturing operations are provided by its wholly-owned subsidiary, MEMSIC Semiconductor (Wuxi) Company Limited (MEMSIC Semiconductor) and MEMSIC Semiconductor's wholly owned subsidiary MEMSIC Transducer Systems Company Limited (MTS), which are located in the People's Republic of China (PRC).

The Company also has a majority (51%) owned and controlled joint venture, Crossbow Japan Limited (Crossbow Japan) located in Japan.

On November 23, 2011, MTS entered into an Investment Contribution Agreement ("JV Agreement") with Wuxi New District Science and Technology Financial Investment Group Co. Ltd. ("Wuxi VC Group"), a state owned Chinese venture capital fund. The JV Agreement creates a joint venture to further design, develop and market MTS' wireless sensor network technology. In connection with the joint venture, a new corporation was organized under the laws of the People's Republic of China ("PRC"), named MEMSIC Wuxi Wireless Sensor Network Technology Co. Ltd. ("Wuxi WSN"). MTS has a 66% ownership of Wuxi WSN, which began operation in January 2012.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MEMSIC, Inc., MEMSIC Semiconductor, MTS and the Company's majority owned and controlled joint ventures, Crossbow Japan and Wuxi WSN. The Company presents all of Crossbow Japan's assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, as well as the non-controlling interest in Crossbow Japan (representing the 49% equity interest in the entity not owned by the Company), in its consolidated financial statements. The Company also presents all of Wuxi WSN's assets and liabilities as well as the non-controlling interest in Wuxi WSN (representing 33% equity interest in the entity not owned by the Company), in its consolidated financial statements. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and are included in sales and marketing expenses. Advertising costs were not material for the periods presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

The Company presents cash on hand associated with advance research funding received from the Chinese government as restricted cash since the cash must be maintained in a separate bank account and used only for specified research projects.

Advance Research Funding

Advance research funding represents research funding granted by the Chinese government for specific research and development projects the Company is taking on. The amount received is initially recorded as a liability and subsequently recognized as a credit to research and development expenses in the statements of operations, or to the carrying value of equipment purchased for the projects as the Company performs the project and has complied with the conditions or performance obligations attached to the related government grants.

Advance research funding activities for year ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

	Advanced Research Funding
Balance at January 1, 2012	\$ 3,791,189
Funds received	1,958,235
Research and development activities	(825,361)
Property and equipment expenditures	(2,094,990)
Foreign exchange rate impact	38,823
Balance at December 31, 2012	\$ 2,867,896

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments consist primarily of bank certificate deposits, government and municipal bonds with maturities of one year or less. The Company classifies its short-term investments as "held-to-maturity", which are carried at amortized cost.

Foreign Currency

The Company's manufacturing operations and certain other operations are conducted by MEMSIC Semiconductor, MTS and Wuxi WSN. The functional currency of MEMSIC Semiconductor, MTS and

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Wuxi WSN is the Renminbi. Financial transactions between the Company and MEMSIC Semiconductor and MTS are conducted in United States dollars. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the underlying currency for approximately 54.4% and 56.4% of consolidated assets, respectively, was the Renminbi. The functional currency of the acquired joint venture Crossbow Japan is the Japanese Yen. Financial transactions between the Company and Crossbow Japan are conducted in United States dollars. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the underlying currency for approximately 1.4% and 1.2% of consolidated assets, respectively, was the Japanese Yen. The Company does not believe that it is subject to significant foreign exchange risk and, accordingly, has not utilized hedging strategies with respect to such foreign exchange exposure.

The financial statements of MEMSIC Semiconductor, MTS, Wuxi WSN and Crossbow Japan are translated into United States dollars in accordance with United States GAAP. The functional currencies of MEMSIC Semiconductor, MTS, Wuxi WSN and Crossbow Japan are translated into United States dollars utilizing the following method: assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the end of the period, and revenues and expenses are translated at the weighted average exchange rate during the year. Cumulative translation gains and losses are included as a separate component of stockholders' equity and reported as a part of comprehensive income. Transaction gains and losses are included in the consolidated statements of operations as incurred.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

ASC Topic 220, *Comprehensive Income*, established the standards for reporting and displaying comprehensive income (loss) in financial statements. Comprehensive income (loss) is defined to include all changes in stockholders' equity during the period other than those changes that result from investments by and distributions to stockholders.

Concentration of Credit

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents as well as accounts receivable. The Company's cash and cash equivalents are on deposit at financial institutions and, at times, exceed the federal insured limits. The Company believes that the financial institutions are of high credit quality and that the Company is not subject to unusual credit risk beyond the normal credit risk associated with commercial banking relationships.

The Company, as indicated below, has customers that comprise more than 10% of sales or accounts receivables for all periods presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The Company establishes credit limits for each of its customers and reviews such limits prior to product shipment. The Company believes that the customers indicated below are of high credit quality and that the Company is not subject to unusual risk with respect to such customers, and generally does not

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

require collateral. The following schedule summarizes the percent of total sales to each customer that accounted for 10% or more of its total sales in either 2012 or 2011.

	For the Ende Decemb	ed
Customer	2012	2011
Customer I	27.4%	37.4%
Customer II	18.7	18.3
Customer III	10.2	6.7
% of total sales	56.3%	62.4%

The following schedule summarizes the percent of total accounts receivable balances for customers that accounted for 10% or more of the Company's total accounts receivables for either 2012 or 2011.

	Year er Decembe	
Customer	2012	2011
Customer I	5.8%	37.5%
Customer II	38.1	36.8
Customer IV	18.3	0.7
% of total accounts receivable	62.2%	75.0%

Concentration of Supplier

The Company relies on one affiliated supplier for all wafer purchases required in the manufacturing process, other than those used in the Company's magnetic sensor products. Investment funds controlled by this supplier beneficially own approximately 9.8% of the Company's common stock, and one of the Company's directors is the managing partner and chief financial officer of these funds. Purchases from this affiliated supplier represent approximately 16% and 29% of all material costs for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 respectively, presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. At December 31, 2012, the Company had \$595,000 of non-cancellable open purchase order agreements with this affiliated supplier, and the Company's accounts payable at December 31, 2012 include \$410,000 due to this supplier. The transactions between the Company and this affiliated supplier are on terms that the Company believes are no less favorable to the Company that it could obtain in arms-length transactions.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect at the date of the financial statements the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments, which include cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable, notes payable and accrued expenses, approximate their fair values due to the short term nature of the instruments at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to temporary differences between the financial reporting bases and the tax bases of assets and liabilities, carryforward tax losses and available tax credits. Such assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and laws expected to be in effect at the time of their reversal or utilization. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce the net deferred tax asset to an amount more likely than not to be realized.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets relate to issued and applied-for patents on the Company's core technology, gas meter processing know-how purchased in May 2008 and intellectual property related to the Company's January 2010 acquisition of assets from Crossbow Technology, Inc.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (weighted average FIFO) or market. The Company evaluates its inventory for potential excess and obsolete inventories based on forecasted demand and records a provision for such amounts as necessary.

Net Loss per Share

Basic net loss per share is calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted-average common shares outstanding. Diluted net loss per share is calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted-average common shares and potentially dilutive securities outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. For financial reporting, depreciation is provided utilizing straight-line method over the estimated two to ten-year life for equipment and furniture and fixtures, the estimated twenty year life for the building in China, and the estimated forty-seven year life for land in China. Chinese statutory regulations stipulate that the ownership of land reverts back to the PRC after forty-seven years. The Company estimates a residual value of 10% of the assets' original cost in calculating depreciation for assets in China. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or term of the lease. Costs for repairs and maintenance that do not increase the useful life of the asset are expensed as incurred.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of its product to end customers when all of the following conditions have been met: (i) evidence exists of an arrangement with the customer, typically consisting of a purchase order or contract; (ii) the Company's products have been shipped and risk of loss has passed to the customer; (iii) the Company has completed all of the necessary terms of the purchase order or contract; (iv) the amount of revenue to which the Company is entitled is fixed or determinable; and (v) the Company believes it is probable that it will be able to collect the amount due from the customer. To the extent that one or more of these conditions has not been satisfied, the Company defers recognition of revenue. An allowance for estimated future product returns and sales price allowances is established at the date of revenue recognition. An allowance for uncollectible receivables is established by a charge to operations when, in the opinion of the Company, it is probable that the amount due to the Company will not be collected.

The Company sells its products to distributors as well as to end customers. Sales to distributors are made pursuant to distributor agreements, which allow for the return of goods under certain circumstances. Accordingly, the Company follows the following criteria for recognition of sales to distributors: (i) the selling price to the distributor is fixed or determinable at the date of shipment; (ii) the distributor's obligation to pay the selling price is not contingent on resale of the product; (iii) the Company's product has been shipped and risk of loss has passed to the distributor; (iv) it is probable that the amount due from the distributor will be collected; (v) the Company does not have significant future obligations to directly assist in the distributor's resale of the product; and (vi) the amount of future returns can be reasonably estimated. Once these criteria are met, the Company recognizes revenue upon shipment to the distributor and estimates returns based on historical sales returns.

Shipping and Handling costs

Shipping and handling costs incurred are included in cost of goods sold in the consolidated statements of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based payments to employees based on requirements that all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, shall be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values. The cost of equity-based service awards is based on the grant-date fair value of the award and is recognized over the period during which the employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award (vesting period). Stock-based compensation arrangements with non-employees are accounted for utilizing the fair value method or, if a more reliable measurement, the value of the services or consideration received. The resulting compensation expense is recognized for financial reporting over the term of performance or vesting.

Warranty Reserve

The Company's products are warranted against manufacturing defects for twelve months following the date of sale (eighteen months following date of sale to a distributor). Products returned under the provisions of the warranty agreement require the pre-approval of the Company's sole obligation under the provisions of the warranty agreement is to replace or repair the product. Reserves

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

for potential warranty claims are provided at the time of revenue recognition and are based on several factors including historical claims experience, current sales levels and the Company's estimate of repair costs. To date, warranty expenses have not been significant.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02, Intangibles Goodwill and Other (ASC Topic 350), Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment, which adds an optional qualitative assessment for determining whether an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired, similar to the goodwill guidance issued in ASU 2011-08. Companies have the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not (a likelihood of more than 50%) that an indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired. If a company determines that it is more likely than not that the fair value of such an asset exceeds its carrying amount, it would not need to calculate the fair value of the asset in that year. However, if a company concludes otherwise, it must calculate the fair value of the asset, compare that value with its carrying amount and record an impairment charge, if any. The guidance is effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012. The adoption of ASU No. 2012-02 did not have a material effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2011, the FASB amended ASC Topic 350, Intangibles Goodwill and Other. This amendment is intended to reduce the cost and complexity of the annual goodwill impairment test by providing entities an option to perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether further impairment testing is necessary. The amended provisions are effective for reporting periods beginning on or after December 15, 2011. This amendment impacts testing steps only and, therefore, adoption did not have an impact on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, which amended ASC Topic 220, Comprehensive Income. This amendment was issued to enhance comparability between entities that report under GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and to provide a more consistent method of presenting non-owner transactions that affect an entity's equity. The amendment requires companies to present the components of net income and other comprehensive income either as one continuous statement or as two separate but consecutive statements. It eliminates the option to report other comprehensive income and its components as part of the statement of changes in shareholders' equity. Furthermore, regardless of the presentation methodology elected, the issuer will be required to present on the face of the financial statements a reclassification adjustment for items that are reclassified from other comprehensive income to net income. The methodology for the computation and presentation of earnings per share remains the same. The pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 and is to be applied retrospectively. As this pronouncement relates to disclosure only, the adoption did not have an impact on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurement (ASC Topic 820), Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRS (ASU No. 2011-04). The amendments in this update apply to all reporting entities that are required or permitted to measure or disclose the fair value of an asset, a liability, or an instrument classified in a reporting entity's shareholders' equity in the financial statements. ASU No. 2011-04 does

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

not extend the use of fair value accounting, but provides guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other standards within U.S. GAAP or IFRS. ASU No. 2011-04 changes the wording used to describe many requirements in GAAP for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements. Additionally, ASU No. 2011-04 clarifies the FASB's intent about the application of existing fair value measurements. The amendments in this update are to be applied prospectively. For public entities, the amendments are effective during interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The adoption of ASU No. 2011-04 did not have a material effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

4. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Long-term investments held by the Company at December 31, 2012 consisted primarily of auction rate securities, or ARS, and are considered available for sale. These securities reset the interest or dividend rates by auctions held at intervals of 7, 28, 35 or 49 days, and at such dates the Company has the option to sell such securities. The auction rate securities held by the Company have contractual maturities of greater than 10 years.

These investments are carried at fair value, with the unrealized gains and losses, if any, net of tax, reported in other comprehensive income. The cost of securities sold is based on the specific identification method. Interest and dividends on securities are included in interest and dividend income. Quarterly, management reviews the valuation of investments and considers whether any decline in value is deemed to be an other-than-temporary decline.

At December 31, 2012, the Company held one ARS investment: Illinois Educational Facilities Authority Select Auction Variable Rate Securities, having a value at par of \$3.0 million with a maturity date in 2028. The carrying value of this investment at December 31, 2012 was \$2.5 million, net of a \$0.5 million temporary unrealized impairment loss. The Company has classified this investment as a long-term asset due to liquidity issues experienced in global credit and capital markets as well as failed auctions since the first quarter of 2008. A failed auction means that the amount of securities submitted for sale at auction exceeded the amount of purchase orders. If an auction fails, the issuer becomes obligated to pay interest at penalty rates. The auction rate securities the Company holds continue to pay interest in accordance with their stated terms. However, the failed auctions create uncertainty as to the liquidity of these securities.

During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company received \$2.4 million from a full redemption of the Montana Health Facility Authority Select Auction Variable Rate Securities ARS previously held by the Company.

Based on the Company's expected operating cash flows, and other sources of cash, the Company does not expect the potential lack of liquidity in this investment to affect its ability to execute its current business plan in the near term. The Company does not intend to sell the investments u ntil the maturity date or before a recovery of cost occurs and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost base.

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Recurring Fair Value Measurement

The Company accounts for assets and liabilities recognized or disclosed in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 820.

ASC Topic 820 provides that fair value is an exit price, representing the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants based on the highest and best use of the asset or liability. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. ASC Topic 820 requires the Company to use valuation techniques to measure fair value that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. These inputs are prioritized as follows:

- Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
- Level 2: Other inputs that are observable directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or market-corroborated inputs
- Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data and which require the Company to develop its own assumptions about how market participants would price the assets or liabilities The valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value are as follows:

A.

Market approach Uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities

B.

Income approach Uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based on current market expectations about those future amounts, including present value techniques, option-pricing models and excess earnings methods

Cost approach Based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost)

The following table sets forth the Company's financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and presents them within the fair value hierarchy using the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement at December 31, 2012 (in thousands):

	a	arrying mount as of ember 31, 2012	i 1 a	oted prices n active markets wailable Level 1)	Significant other observable inputs (Level 2)	unob ir	nificant servable 1puts evel 3)	Valuation Technique
Cash equivalents	\$	27,306	\$	27,306	\$	\$		(A)
Restricted cash		2,868		2,868				(A)
Short-term investments		34,640		34,640				(A)
Long-term investments		2,500					2,500	(B)
Total assets recorded at fair value	\$	67,314	\$	64,814	\$	\$	2,500	

C.

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

The reconciliation of the Company's assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows (in thousands):

	 tion Rate curities
Balance at January 1, 2012	\$ 2,600
Redemptions	
Transfers to Level 3	
Gains and losses:	
Reported in earnings	
Reported in other comprehensive loss	(100)
Balance at December 31, 2012	\$ 2,500

The Company initially accounted for the ARS held in its portfolio as available-for-sale investments. The carrying value of these ARS approximated fair value due to the frequent resetting of the interest rate. While the Company continues to earn interest at the specified contractual rate on those investments involved in failed auctions, due to the ongoing failed auctions and the illiquidity of these securities under current market conditions, the Company has considered whether par value continues to be a reasonable basis for estimating the fair value of these ARS at December 31, 2012 and 2011. The Company estimated the fair value of these securities at December 31, 2012 and 2011 using broker valuations and internally-developed models of the expected future cash flows related to the securities as well as referencing a third party specialist's valuation. One of the more significant assumptions made in the Company's internally-developed models was the term of expected cash flows of the underlying auction rate securities over periods that ranged from 3 to 7 years. In estimating the fair value of these investments, the Company considered the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, the magnitude of the losses compared to the investments' cost, the length of time the investment has been in an unrealized loss position, the low probability that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the security, whether the security has been downgraded by a rating agency, and the Company's ability and intent to hold these investments until the anticipated recovery in market value occurs. Based on the estimated operating cash flows and other sources of cash, the Company intends to hold the ARS for the foreseeable future.

The Company's valuation analysis for the year ended December 31, 2012 resulted in an increase of \$100,000 to the unrealized impairment loss recorded at December 31, 2010. The total unrealized impairment loss at December 31, 2012 was \$500,000. The Company continues to monitor the market for auction rate securities and to assess its impact on the fair value of the Company's investments. If current market conditions deteriorate further, the Company may be required to record additional temporary unrealized losses in other comprehensive income (loss) or, if the decline in fair value is judged to be other-than-temporary, the cost basis of the individual security may be written off to fair value as a new cost basis and the amount of the write-down would be reflected as a charge to earnings.

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

Nonrecurring Fair Value Measurement

During 2012, the Company recognized a goodwill impairment charge of \$0.6 million. This charge was based on fair value measurements derived using the income approach and market approach. The valuation methodologies incorporated unobservable inputs reflecting significant estimates and assumptions made by management. Accordingly, the Company classified these measurements as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. Refer to Note 8 Goodwill and Intangible Assets for further detailed information related to the significant unobservable inputs.

6. INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following:

	December 31,				
		2012		2011	
Raw materials	\$	4,533,002	\$	5,106,112	
Work in process		3,083,008		3,258,397	
Finished goods		2,224,649		3,094,644	
Total	\$	9,840,659	\$	11,459,153	

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following:

	December 31,				
		2012		2011	
Land	\$	4,577,579	\$	4,531,177	
Building and improvements		19,651,110		17,642,165	
Machinery and equipment		18,282,014		17,270,155	
Computer hardware and software		1,442,945		1,153,730	
Construction-in-progress		1,611,022		3,585,156	
Total property and equipment, at cost		45,564,670		44,182,383	
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization		16,561,845		13,183,894	
Property and equipment, net	\$	29,002,825	\$	30,998,489	

The Company has completed the first phase of construction of two new buildings adjacent to its current facility in Wuxi, China, comprising 20,800 square meters, consisting of 8,700 square meters for a new research and development institute and 12,100 square meters of new manufacturing facilities. Phase two includes the furnishing and equipment of the manufacturing facility. By the end of 2011, the Company completed one third of phase two to furnish and equip the new manufacturing building. The Company did not need to furnish additional manufacturing space in 2012.

In June 2010, the Company purchased a piece of land in Wuxi for approximately \$4 million to build the MTS manufacturing facility. In August 2011, the Company completed construction of the MTS manufacturing facility with 14,000 square meters of total space to host the manufacturing of its system solution products.

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess cost of the Crossbow asset acquisition over the net fair value allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and to the acquired intangible asset that does not qualify for separate recognition according to ASC Topic 805. All goodwill acquired in the Crossbow acquisition has been allocated to the Company's system solutions product segment.

The Company evaluates the goodwill annually at the end of the year and determines whether events or circumstances exist to indicate an impairment loss.

The Company performed an annual impairment test for goodwill in December 2011 and concluded that impairment existed as of December 31, 2011 and recorded an impairment charge of \$4.5 million in 2011. The ending balance of goodwill at December 31, 2011 was \$0.6 million. As a result of the Company's December 2012 annual impairment test for goodwill, the Company concluded that the remaining balance of goodwill of \$0.6 million was fully impaired at December 31, 2012.

During the Company's business planning process in the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company's management continued to see a weak forecast from the acquired system solution business. The Company concluded that this slower than anticipated growth represented an indicator of impairment of the goodwill associated with the acquired business.

The Company determined the goodwill impairment according to ASC Topic 350, *Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets* and ASC Topic 360, *Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets*, using a two-step method. In the first step, it compared the estimated fair value of its system solution product reporting unit to its carrying amount, including goodwill and it indicated an impairment.

The determination of the fair value of our system solution product reporting unit included two valuation methods: the income approach and the market approach. Under the income approach, the Company considered the discounted cash flow (DCF) method. Under the market approach, it considered the guideline public company (GPC) method. The income approach provides a method for incorporating the Company's long term forecast into the determination of value. Judgment is required when performing adjustments to the forecast, selecting an appropriate discount rate and determining a terminal value. The market approach provides a method for incorporating the multiples into the determination of value. Judgment is required when selecting guideline companies and transactions and when adjusting the multiples. Under the guideline public company method, value was estimated based on multiples of 2012 revenues and 2013 projected revenues. The Company compared its system solution product reporting unit to the guideline public companies in terms of size, profit margins and revenue growth rates. The guideline public company multiples were discounted based on these comparisons. A premium for control of 15% was applied to the value indicated by the guideline public company method. The Company applied equal weighting to the income and GPC approaches. The Company tested the reasonableness of the fair value conclusion by calculating value using the DCF method and the GPC method, comparing the fair value conclusion to the market capitalization of the parent company.

As a result of this analysis, the Company concluded that the fair value of our system solution product reporting unit was less than the carrying amount, indicating an impairment.

According to ASC Topic 350, if the carrying amount exceeds the estimated fair value, step two is required to determine the amount of the impairment loss. Step two requires the allocation of the

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

estimated fair value of the system solution product segment, including any unrecognized intangible assets, and liabilities in a hypothetical purchase price allocation. Any remaining unallocated fair value represents the implied fair value of goodwill, which is compared to the corresponding carrying value of goodwill to compute the goodwill impairment amount. The Company followed these steps and concluded that the remaining balance of goodwill of \$0.6 million was fully impaired at December 31, 2012.

The carrying amount of goodwill and activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows:

	Sensor business segment	s t	System solution ousiness segment	Total
Balance at January 1, 2012	\$	\$	606,976	\$ 606,976
Impairment charge			(646,602)	(646,602)
Foreign exchange impact			39,626	39,626
Balance at December 31, 2012	\$	\$		\$

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets relate to issued and applied-for patents on the Company's core technology and gas meter processing know-how purchased in May 2008, as well as trademarks, customer relationships and developed technology acquired from Crossbow Technology, Inc. on January 15, 2010.

Intangible assets consisted of the following at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

	Gross					
	carrying amount	Accumulated amortization		Net carrying amount		Expected life (Years)
December 31, 2012						
Patents	\$ 1,514,081	\$	(384,031)	\$	1,130,050	15
Know-how	564,154		(516,973)		47,181	5
Trademarks	408,000		(408,000)			2
Customer relationships	4,967,413		(1,581,208)		3,386,205	8 - 10
Developed technology	7,622,193		(2,267,324)		5,354,869	8 - 10
	\$ 15,075,841	\$	(5,157,536)	\$	9,918,305	
December 31, 2011						
Patents	\$ 1,219,129	\$	(277,804)	\$	941,325	15
Know-how	593,240		(405,563)		187,677	5
Trademarks	408,000		(399,500)		8,500	2
Customer relationships	4,918,690		(1,031,441)		3,887,249	8 - 10
Developed technology	7,544,929		(1,478,148)		6,066,781	8 - 10
	\$ 14,683,988	\$	(3,592,456)	\$	11,091,532	

Amortization expense expected over the next five years (2013 and beyond) is approximately \$1.5 million per year. Amortization expense amounted to \$1.5 million and \$1.6 million, respectively, for

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. Changes in the net carrying amount of intangible assets included the impact from foreign exchange rate.

The Company has considered the cash flows associated with the valuation of the definite-lived intangible assets and concluded that the straight-line amortization method best approximates the economic pattern of usefulness of those assets.

9. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

	Decem	ber 3	31,
	2012		2011
Accrued compensation	\$ 1,746,032	\$	1,244,690
Professional fees	311,781		347,242
Other	1,877,162		1,039,034
Total accrued expenses	\$ 3,934,975	\$	2,630,966

10. NOTE PAYABLE TO BANK

On June 30, 2010, MTS, a wholly owned subsidiary of MEMSIC Semiconductor, entered into a five-year project loan agreement with Agricultural Bank of China. The total loan available is \$20 million, of which \$15 million was designated by the Company for the purchase of substantially all the assets acquired from Crossbow Technology, Inc., \$3 million for working capital purposes and \$2 million for the purchase of equipment to be used in the manufacture of the Company's system solution products.

The loan is collateralized by the buildings and land owned by MEMSIC Semiconductor as well as the land and intellectual property owned or to be purchased by MTS. The interest rate of the loan is a variable rate, adjusted semi-annually based on the LIBOR rate plus 4.00%. MTS has obtained agreement from the local government in Wuxi, China to fully subsidize the interest expense on a quarterly basis. No financial covenants are required for this loan. As of December 31, 2012, \$17.9 million has been withdrawn, \$0.5 million has been repaid, \$17.4 million is outstanding and \$2.1 million is available for borrowing. Interest expense paid and subsidized by the Wuxi government for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$0.9 million. Based on the terms of the agreement, there are no circumstances in which amounts previously subsidized by the Wuxi government are repayable by the Company. In the remote event the Wuxi government is unable to fulfill its obligation to subsidize the interest payment, the Company would recognize the interest expense in its income statement. The repayment schedule of the principal amount is as follows:

Date	Payment Amount
June 29, 2013	\$ 1,000,000
June 29, 2014	2,500,000
June 29, 2015	13,930,000

\$ 17,430,000

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. BUILDING LIABILITY

In June 2010, the Company purchased a piece of land in Wuxi for approximately \$4.0 million to build the MTS manufacturing facility. In August 2011, the Company completed construction of the MTS manufacturing facility with 14,000 square meters of total space to host the manufacturing of its system solution products. The construction cost of approximately \$8.1 million was financed by the local Chinese government. In the third quarter of 2012, the Company was notified by the local Chinese government that the Company would be expected to make payments on the building beginning in February 2013. Upon notification, the Company started to accrue a financing charge using the effective interest rate method at an annual rate of 8% on the construction cost of the building, based on a 2009 memorandum with the local Chinese government, while the Company is renegotiating with the local Chinese government the payment terms of the construction cost of the building. The \$8.1 million construction cost of the building is reflected as a long-term liability in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

12. COMMON STOCK

The Company reserved 7,152,554 and 5,990,405 shares at December 31, 2012 and 2011 for outstanding options to purchase common stock.

13. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS

Description of Plans

On March 29, 2000, the Company's stockholders and board of directors approved the 2000 Omnibus Stock Plan (the "2000 Plan"), as amended, under which 2,969,000 shares of the Company's common stock were reserved for issuance to directors, officers, employees, and consultants. With the adoption of the 2007 Plan discussed below, the Company no longer grants awards under the 2000 Plan.

On August 22, 2007, the Company's board of directors approved the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the "2007 Plan"), under which up to 3,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock may become available for issuance. At the adoption date, 1,526,425 shares were reserved for issuance. The reserved amount will increase by 300,000 shares at each of the five anniversaries of the adoption date, for a maximum of 3,000,000 shares issuable under the 2007 Plan.

Options granted under the 2000 Plan and the 2007 Plan may be incentive stock options or nonqualified stock options. Both the 2000 Plan and the 2007 Plan provide that the exercise price of incentive stock options must be at least equal to the market value of the Company's common stock at the date such option is granted. For incentive stock option grants to an employee who owns more than 10% of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company, the exercise price of the incentive stock option must be not less than 110% of market value at the time of grant. Granted options expire in ten years or less from the date of grant and vest based on the terms of the awards, generally ratably over four years.

Prior to December 19, 2007, there was no public market for the Company's common stock. Accordingly, the board of directors determined the market value of the common stock at the date of grant by considering a number of relevant factors, including the Company's operating and financial performance and corporate milestones achieved, the prices at which shares of convertible preferred stock in arm's-length transactions were sold, the composition of and changes to the management team, the superior rights and preferences of securities senior to the common stock at the time of each grant



MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

and the likelihood of achieving a liquidity event for the shares of common stock underlying stock options.

On December 9, 2009, the Company's board of directors approved the 2009 Nonqualified Inducement Stock Option Plan (the "2009 Plan") with an effective date on January 15, 2010, the closing date of the acquisition of Crossbow assets. Under the 2009 Plan, up to 1,250,000 shares of the Company's common stock may become available for issuance. On December 23, 2010, the Company's board of directors approved an Amended and Restated 2009 Nonqualified Inducement Stock Option Plan (the "Amended and Restated Plan") and an increase in shares of the Company's common stock available for issuance under the Amended and Restated Plan from 1,250,000 to 2,500,000. Except as otherwise determined by the Compensation Committee of the Company's board of directors, the form of option to be employed under the Amended and Restated Plan shall be substantially identical to the form of nonqualified option customarily used under the Company's 2007 Stock Incentive Plan.

On June 29, 2011 at our Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the Company's stockholders and board of directors approved the amendment and restatement of the Company's 2007 Plan. As amended, the 2007 Plan

permits the granting of restricted stock units ("RSUs"), performance-based stock awards and stock appreciation rights;

eliminates the ability to reprice options;

extends the expiration date of the plan to June 29, 2021;

provides that awards may qualify as "performance-based compensation" under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and

incorporates certain other administrative provisions.

On June 28, 2012, the Company's shareholders voted to approve an amendment to the 2007 Plan, including increasing the number of shares of common stock issuable under the 2007 Plan by 1,500,000 shares. The maximum shares issuable under the 2007 Plan thus increased to 4,500,000 shares.

Valuation of Stock Options

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to calculate the grant-date fair value of an option award. The key input assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model include: (i) the risk-free interest rate is based on the yield available on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds at the date of grant with maturity dates approximately equal to the expected life at the grant date, (ii) the expected life of the options is based on evaluations of historical and expected future employee exercise behavior; (iii) volatility is based on the implied volatility of the Company's common stock, which the Company believes results in the best estimate of the grant-date fair value of employee stock options because it reflects the market's current expectations of future volatility; and (iv) dividend yield of zero, as the Company has not paid dividends in the past and it does not expect to in the foreseeable future. The Company utilizes historical data to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures and records stock-based compensation expense only for those awards that are expected to vest.

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

During the third and fourth quarter of 2012, the Company only granted RSUs and did not grant any stock options. The weighted-average fair values per share of the options granted during 2012 and 2011 were \$1.58 and \$1.97, respectively, utilizing the following assumptions:

	For the year end	For the year ended December 31,		
	2012	2011		
Volatility	67% - 71%	64%		
Expected dividend yield	0%	0%		
Expected life (years)	5.1 - 8.5	5.6 - 5.8		
Risk-free interest rate	1.15% - 1.44%	2.20% - 2.34%		
Forfeitures	33% - 36%	36% - 37%		

The Company has historically accounted for stock options granted to consultants using the fair value method for the calculation of compensation cost. For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded compensation expense for stock option grants to consultants in the amount of \$5,000 and \$0, respectively.

At December 31, 2012, total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense for stock options granted to the Company's employees and directors was estimated to approximate \$1.4 million.

The stock option activity under the 2000 Plan, 2007 Plan and 2009 Stock Plan is as follows:

	Options Outstanding	Weighted Average Exercise Price	Remaining Contractual Term in Years	Aggregrate Intrinsic Value
Options outstanding at January 1, 2012	2,338,805	\$ 5.00	6.5	\$ 1,131,474
Granted	615,000	2.23		
Exercised	(121,568)	1.88		
Cancelled	(196,737)	3.63		
Options outstanding at December 31, 2012	2,635,500	\$ 4.59	6.3	\$ 2,014,390
Options vested at December 31, 2012	1,424,675	\$ 4.67	4.9	\$ 1,284,225
Available for grant at December 31, 2012	3,823,637			

The intrinsic values (aggregate market value minus aggregate exercise price) of stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were \$178,138 and \$34,494, respectively. The total fair value of options vested during the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was approximately \$468,000 and \$1,121,000, respectively.

MEMSIC, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

13. STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS (Continued)

Stock-based compensation expenses related to stock options, restricted stock awards ("RSA") and RSUs were charged to the following expenses:

	For the ye Decem	
	2012	2011
Research and development	\$ 212,869	\$ 265,953
Sales and marketing	149,387	184,431
General and administrative	963,756	1,144,850
Total	\$ 1,326,012	\$ 1,595,234

The Company accounted for RSAs and RSUs using the fair value at the date of the grant for the calculation of compensation cost. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded compensation expense for RSA and RSU in the amount of \$139,000 and \$511,000, respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, total unrecognized compensation expenses related to non-vested RSAs and RSUs were \$121,000 and \$1.1 million, respectively. These expenses are expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.3 years for RSAs and 3.0 years for RSUs.

A summary of RSA activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows:

	Shares	Weighted Average Market Value at Grant Date	
Nonvested at January 1, 2012	140,000	\$	3.41
Awarded			
Vested	(87,500)		3.41
Forfeited			
Nonvested at December 31, 2012	52,500	\$	3.41